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Core Values

We put you and your well-being at the centre 
of all that we do. Treating all with respect, 
compassion and dignity.

Compassion

We will uphold your trust by maintaining the 
highest professional integrity and standards.Commitment

We will continually seek advancement and 
innovation to achieve better healthcare.Excellence

We dedicate and combine our skills, knowledge 
and experience for your benefit.Team-Based Care

We seek always to create and deliver value  
for you.Value

Vision

Your Trusted  Partner
for Health
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At  a glance

Revenue Contributed by Segment

$477.6m
0.8%

Group achieved 0.8% growth 
in revenue to $477.6 million

Revenue

FY2016

FY2017

473.6

477.6

$291.8m
Revenue from Hospital 
Services Division grew 2.3% 
to $291.8 million

2.3%

Hospital Services  
Division

FY2016

FY2017

285.3

291.8

$21.4m$206.6m
Revenue from Investment 
Holdings Division grew 21.1% 
to $21.4 million

Revenue from Healthcare 
Services Division decreased 
by 1.6% to $206.6 million

21.1%1.6%

Investment Holdings 
Division

Healthcare Services 
Division

FY2016

FY2017

FY2016

FY2017

17.7

21.4

209.9

206.6

70.2

70.8

$70.8m
Profit after tax and minority 
interests (PATMI) grew by 
0.8% to $70.8 million

0.8%

PATMI

FY2016

FY2017

Hospital Services Healthcare Services
4%

Investment Holdings
40%56%
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Financial Highlights

67.9

68.7

$68.7m
1.1%

Profit after Tax (PAT) grew 
by 1.1% to $68.7 million

FY2016

FY2017

PAT
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Financial Summary

Earnings per Share** (Cents)

Revenue ($’M) PATMI ($’M)

Dividend per Share** (Cents)

2013
$’000

2014
$’000

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2017
$’000

Revenue 340,989 374,641 410,535 473,608 477,583

EBITDA 82,207* 89,973 93,411 96,611 95,078

Operating Profit 73,939* 80,327 80,604 81,946 80,086

Profit Before Tax 74,850* 81,281 81,607 82,930 80,818

PATMI 64,504* 67,639 69,291 70,210 70,779

Profit After Tax 64,907* 67,962 69,031 67,946 68,661

Diluted Earnings per Share** (cents) 3.86* 3.99 4.01 4.00 4.00

Net Asset Value per Share** (cents) 28.44 31.83 34.96 38.12 41.45

Dividend per Share** (cents) 1.67 1.83 2.00 2.00 2.25***

Return on Equity (%) 13.7* 12.6 11.5 10.5 9.6

* Excluding the gain on disposal of a subsidiary in 2013.
** Adjusted for share split in May 2016 (3 for 1).
*** Final dividend of 1.75 cents is subject to approval by shareholders at Annual General Meeting on 27 April 2018.
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Expanding our Landmark for you

Re-enactment of scenes based on a true story.

Ms Lim* having her condition assessed after an operation to ensure there are no complications.

A medical technologist carefully analysing Ms Lim’s blood sample in the lab.

Ms Lim having a light-hearted chat with Dr Yang at the sky garden on a breezy afternoon.

* Name has been changed to protect the privacy of the person.



Listening to You

Ms Lim found it hard to accept being diagnosed with colon 

cancer in her early 20s. At the start of the treatment, she 

was stubborn, demanding and uncooperative when asked 

to undergo further tests to assess her condition. She even doubted her 

doctor’s ability to treat her.

But with a positive spirit and a compassionate heart, General Surgeon 

Dr Yang Ching Yu earned her trust as he soldiered alongside her 

through a major operation and follow-up treatments during the 

first five critical years and thereafter; always displaying patience and 

empathy, as well as constantly encouraging her to fight on.

20 years after her initial diagnosis, Ms Lim’s condition is well under 

control and she is living a fulfilling life. She still visits Dr Yang periodically 

for review at Raffles Hospital, just that he is more like a friend to her now.
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Though 2017 was a challenging year for the Group, 
we managed to grow our top line modestly by 
0.8%, from $473.6 million to $477.6 million. The 
Group achieved a net profit after tax attributable 
to owners of the Company of $70.8 million, from 
$70.2 million in 2016. 

The strong operating cashflows generated from 
our businesses contributed to a healthy cash 
position of $98.3 million as at 31 December 2017. 
These cashflows enabled the Group to reinvest in 
the Raffles Hospital Extension as well as Raffles 
Hospital Chongqing and Raffles Hospital Shanghai. 
These investments, together with capital 
expenditure for business expansion amounted to 
$141.6 million in 2017.

Opening Raffles Specialist Centre
In Singapore, we are expanding our services to meet 
growing patient needs. I am pleased to inform you 
that the Raffles Hospital Extension project was 
completed at the end of 2017. We opened Raffles 
Specialist Centre on 22 January 2018. Together with 
Raffles Hospital, it will function as a fully integrated 
medical complex. The increase in floor space will 
enable us to grow our clinics and bed spaces, and 
offer new clinical services such as radiotherapy 
services for cancer treatment. This extension would 
also provide us with the capacity to grow for the 
years to come. Renovation works have begun at the 
Hospital building to rejuvenate the existing clinics 
and in-patient facilities.

We strive to provide the best care and medical outcomes for 
our patients. Our core values of Compassion, Commitment, 
Excellence, Team-based care, and Value will continue to guide 
us as we grow our practice. 

Chairman’s Message
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As demand for new services grow, we welcome 
new specialists in paediatrics, dermatology, 
ophthalmology, oncology, haematology and 
radiology as well as family physicians and dental 
surgeons. Together, the Group now has 2,400 staff 
consisting of multi-speciality physicians, nurses and 
allied health professionals, healthcare managers 
and other support staff. We all work together 
as a team to provide compassionate care in an 
integrated manner to all our patients, in Singapore 
and the region. 

Digitalising the Business
Making our services more accessible for our 
patients, we have embarked on several digital 
initiatives in the year. For the convenience of our 
customers and patients, our e-commerce platform 
offers Raffles Health supplements, vaccinations and 
health screening services online. To better serve our 
patients, we introduced a SMS-digital queue system 
in our Raffles Medical branches. As a Group, we will 
continue to leverage on technology to transform 
our business to serve our patients and corporate 
clients better.

Expanding Beyond our Shores
Our medical centres in China, Hong Kong, 
Cambodia, Japan and Vietnam are gaining traction 
with expatriate and local population. We are also 
very pleased that the 700-bed Raffles Hospital 
Chongqing and the 400-bed Raffles Hospital 
Shanghai will be opening in the fourth quarter of 
2018 and second half of 2019 respectively.

Building a Sustainable Business
As we build a sustainable business, we want to 
create value for our stakeholders - our patients, 
staff, shareholders and the community. Our 
commitment to sustainability extends to our 
environment. Our first sustainability report will be 
published later this year.

Striving for Medical Excellence
As a healthcare organisation, the quality of care 
and service for our patients is core to what we 
do. Our group practice model, with its peer-
review system, coupled with the external audits 
by Joint Commission International, Mayo Clinic, 
and the Ministry of Health Singapore, ensure that 
we maintain high quality standards as we strive 

to provide the best care and medical outcomes 
for our patients. Our core values of Compassion, 
Commitment, Excellence, Team-based care, 
and Value will continue to guide us as we grow  
our practice.

Appreciating our Shareholders and Board
We thank our shareholders for their support and 
faith in the Group. The Directors are pleased to 
recommend a final dividend of 1.75 cents per share. 
Together with the interim dividend paid in August 
2017, the total ordinary dividend for the year will 
be 2.25 cents per share, an increase of 12.5% as 
compared to the previous year.

We want to record our deep appreciation to the 
Board of Directors for their guidance, support 
and contributions. Their interactions with our 
senior management provide valuable guidance on 
strategic and business matters.

We are thankful for our patients’ trust in our care. 
As we expand, we commit to bring the Raffles 
Medical brand and quality of care to more patients 
both locally and overseas.  

The increase in floor space will enable us to grow our clinics and bed 
spaces, and offer new clinical services such as radiotherapy services for 
cancer treatment.

The Group now has 2,400 staff consisting of multi-speciality physicians, nurses 
and allied health professionals, healthcare managers and other support staff, 
all working together to provide compassionate care to our patients.

Dr Loo Choon Yong
Executive Chairman
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Dr Loo Choon Yong
Executive Chairman and Co-Founder

Mr Eric Ang Teik Lim
Chairman of Nomination & Compensation  
Committee and Independent Director

Mr Raymond Lim Siang Keat
Independent Director

Mr Olivier Lim Tse Ghow
Non-Independent Director

Mr Koh Poh Tiong
Lead Independent Director

Dr Wee Beng Geok
Independent Director

Mr Lim Beng Chee
Independent Director

Mr Tan Soo Nan
Non-Independent Director

Mr Kee Teck Koon
Chairman of Audit & Risk Committee and 
Independent Director

Dr Sarah Lu Qinghui
Non-Independent Director

Professor Lim Pin
Independent Director

Board of Directors
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1  Dr Loo Choon Yong is the Executive 
Chairman of   Raffles   Medical   Group.   He co-
founded the Group in 1976 and was appointed 
to his current position in 1997 when the Group 
was listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange.  
He is also the Chairman of the Asian Medical 
Foundation Ltd and Raffles Health Insurance 
Pte Ltd as well as Director of International 
SOS (MC Holdings) Pte Ltd.

In the area of public service, Dr Loo was 
appointed by the President of Singapore in 
2015,  as  the  Non-Resident Ambassador to the 
Republic of Poland. Prior to this, he was Non-
Resident Ambassador to the Italian Republic 
between 2006 and 2015. He was also appointed 
Chairman of JTC Corporation, Singapore’s 
leading industrial infrastructure specialist 
spearheading the planning, promotion and 
development of a dynamic industrial landscape 
from January 2013. He was previously the 
Chairman of Sentosa Development Corporation 
and Sentosa Golf Club.

Dr Loo was a Nominated Member of 
Parliament from 2005 to 2006 and again 
from 2007 to 2009. He was a member of the 
Board of Trustees of Singapore Management 
University (SMU) from 2000 to January 
2014. He was also previously the Deputy 
Chairman of the Action Committee for 
Entrepreneurship (ACE), a public-private 
collaboration to promote entrepreneurship 
in Singapore, a member of the Government 
Economic Review Committee (ERC) from 2001 
to 2003 and Chairman of ERC’s Healthcare 
Services Working Group (HSWG).

In the area of social service, Dr Loo had 
been active in the fight against drug abuse 
for more than 20 years. He was the former 
Chairman of National Council Against Drug 
Abuse (NCADA) and President of Singapore 
Anti-Narcotic Association (SANA).

Besides his medical training, Dr Loo also read 
Law at the University of London and is a 
barrister of Middle Temple.

Dr Loo was awarded the Singapore National 
Day Awards Public Service Medal (2003) 
and Public Service Star (2009) and the 
Distinguished Service Award (2005) from the 
Ministry of Home Affairs for his contributions 
to Singapore’s fight against drug abuse.

In February 2015, Dr Loo received the SG50 
Outstanding Chinese Business Pioneers 
Award from the Singapore Chinese Chamber 
of Commerce & Industry. In April 2013, he 
was named Businessman of the Year 2012 
at the Singapore Business Awards, jointly 
organised by The Business Times and DHL. 
In May 2010, Dr Loo was named Best Chief 
Executive Officer in the mid-cap category of 
the Singapore Corporate Awards organised 
by The Business Times and supported by the 
Singapore Stock Exchange.

He joined the Board on 16 May 1989.

2  Mr Koh Poh Tiong is currently Board 
Director & Advisor of Fraser & Neave Limited 
(F&N). He was previously the Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO) of F&N’s Food & Beverage 
Division from 2008 to 2011, CEO of Asia Pacific 
Breweries Limited from 1993 to 2008, Non-

Executive Chairman and Senior Advisor of 
Ezra Holdings Limited from 31 December 
2012 to 31 January 2016, Director of Great 
Eastern Life Assurance Co. Ltd from 15 April 
2008 to 14 April 2017 and Director of United 
Engineers Ltd from 1 December 2011 to 19 
September 2017. 

Mr Koh also serves as Director in SATS Ltd, 
Delfi Limited, Great Eastern Life Assurance 
(Malaysia), Great Eastern General Insurance 
(Malaysia) Berhad as well as Chairman of Bukit 
Sembawang Estates Limited, Times Publishing 
Limited and Yunnan Yulinquan Liquor Co Ltd. 
He was previously the Chairman of the Agri-
Food & Veterinary Authority and Director at 
Wildlife Reserves Singapore Pte Ltd, Jurong 
Bird Park Pte Ltd and Media Corporation of 
Singapore Pte Ltd.

Mr Koh is noted for his strong civic 
involvement and long-standing interest in 
sports and education. He is currently the 
Council Chairman of  the Singapore Kindness 
Movement and Chairman of the National 
Kidney Foundation. He has previously served 
on the Singapore Youth Olympic Games 
Organising Committee, the Singapore 
Sports Council, the Football Association of 
Singapore, and on the MBA Advisory Board of 
the Nanyang Technological University.

For his contribution to  society  and  business, 
Mr Koh was conferred the Public Service Star 
Award in 2013 as well as the Public Service 
Medal and the Service to Education Medal in 
2007. Mr Koh was also named Outstanding 
Chief Executive of the Year at the Singapore 
Business Awards 1998, jointly organised by 
The Business Times and DHL.

Mr Koh holds a Bachelor of Science degree 
from the University of Singapore.

He joined the Board on 3 October 2011.

3  Mr Kee Teck Koon is currently a Non-
Executive Director of CapitaLand Limited and 
is also the Non-Executive Chairman of Changi 
Airports International Pte Ltd. Effective 9 
January 2017, he assumed the position of 
interim Executive Director of NTUC Enterprise, 
whilst a search is being undertaken for a 
Group CEO successor. He holds Directorship 
positions in NTUC Enterprise Co-operative 
Limited, NTUC Income Insurance Co-operative 
Limited, Mandai Safari Park Holdings Pte Ltd 
and Lien Foundation.

Mr Kee was previously the Non-Executive 
Chairman of CapitaCommercial Trust 
Management Limited (the Manager of SGX-
ST listed CapitaCommercial Trust). He also 
held several senior appointments within the 
CapitaLand Group including Chief Investment 
Officer of CapitaLand Limited (CapitaLand) 
and was responsible for overseeing the 
CapitaLand Group’s Financial, Commercial 
and Retail businesses between April 2003 and 
January 2007.

Prior to that, Mr Kee was the Managing 
Director and Chief Executive Officer of The 
Ascott Limited, the Managing Director and 
Chief Executive Officer of Somerset Holdings 
Limited, Executive Vice President at Pidemco 
Land Limited, and had also held senior 
management appointments within several 

other organisations. He started his career in 
1979 with the Singapore Armed Forces and 
the Ministry of Defence where he remained 
until 1991.

Mr Kee holds a Master of Arts in Engineering 
Science from the University of Oxford,  
United Kingdom.

He joined the Board on 3 January 2012.

4  Mr Eric Ang is currently Senior Executive 
Advisor at DBS Bank Ltd, where  he  has  been  
since the start of his banking career in 1978. 
Prior to this appointment, Mr Ang was Head 
of Capital Markets at DBS Bank Ltd. Through 
the years, he developed a long wealth of 
experience in Singapore’s capital  markets, 
having worked on landmark deals such as 
the listing of Singapore Airlines, Singapore 
Telecoms and CapitaMall Trust. 

Currently, Mr Ang sits on the Board of 
Directors of Sembcorp Marine Ltd, Changi 
Airport Group (Singapore) Pte Ltd, Surbana 
Jurong Private Limited, NetLink NBN 
Management Pte Ltd and DBS Foundation Ltd. 
He is the Co-Chairman of the SGX Disciplinary 
Committee and is one of the Vice-Chairmen 
of Community Chest in Singapore.

Mr Ang has a Bachelor’s degree in Business 
Administration (Honours) from the University 
of Singapore.

He joined the Board on 24 April 2015.

5  Dr Wee Beng Geok has more than 40 
years of experience in the areas of human 
resource strategy, talent management 
and leadership development. She is well 
known as an expert in organisational 
behaviour and strategy, management 
and leadership, including human capital 
management, strategy implementation and  
change management.

In addition to her management experience in 
various companies, Dr Wee has held various 
academic appointments at the Nanyang 
Business School, Nanyang Technological 
University including Advisor and Director 
of Asian Business Case Centre, Consultant 
of the Division of Strategy, Management 
and Organisation, Programme Director of 
the MBA programme for Human Capital 
Management Specialisation as well as 
Associate Professor, Division of Strategy, 
Management and Organisation.

Dr Wee holds a PhD in Management Systems 
and Sciences from the University of Hull, 
a Master in Business Administration from 
Cranfield University, and a Bachelor of 
Business Administration from the University 
of Singapore.

She joined the Board on 27 November 2000.

6  Professor Lim Pin is currently Professor 
of Medicine at the National University of 
Singapore (NUS) and Emeritus Consultant 
Endocrinologist at the National University 
Hospital. He was the former Vice-Chancellor 
of NUS from 1981 to 2000, where under his 
leadership, NUS developed as a tertiary 
institution whose teaching, scholarship 
and quality of  research  commanded   

Board of Directors
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international   respect. In recognition of his 
work and achievements, Professor Lim was 
accorded the highest academic title of ‘NUS 
University Professor’.

Professor Lim has strong involvement in 
research and not-for-profit organisations. 
He was the Chairman of the National 
Wages Council from 2001 to 2014 and 
currently chairs the Singapore Millennium 
Foundation Limited, Special Needs Trust 
Company Limited (SNTC), Tropical Marine 
Science Institute (TMSI) Management Board, 
the Board of Trustees of the Ang Mo Kio – 
Thye Hua Kwan Hospital, NUHS Fund Ltd 
and NUHS Health & Research Endowment 
Fund Ltd. He is also Emeritus Advisor to 
the Bioethics Advisory Committee and co- 
chairs the Governing Boards of joint research 
centres such as the Singapore-MIT Alliance 
for Research and Technology (SMART), ETH 
Singapore SEC Ltd, TUM Campus for Research 
Excellence and Technological Enterprise 
(CREATE), Berkeley Education Alliance 
for Research in Singapore (BEARS) and 
Cambridge Centre for Advanced Research in 
Energy Efficiency in Singapore (CARES). 

Professor Lim received the Outstanding 
Volunteer Award in October 2015 from the 
Minister for Social and Family Development 
and the Distinguished Service Award in April 
2015 from the National Trades Union Congress. 
He was also awarded the Distinguished 
Service Order in 2000, Meritorious Service 
Medal in 1990 and Public Administration 
Medal (Gold) in 1984.

He joined the Board on 19 February 2001.

7  Mr Raymond Lim is currently Executive 
Chairman of APS Asset Management Pte 
Ltd and Senior Advisor to John Swire & Sons 
(Hong Kong) Ltd. He also serves on the 
Boards of Hong Leong Finance Limited and 
Swire Properties Limited.

Mr Lim was a former Cabinet Minister in 
the Singapore government and served as a 
Member of Parliament from 2001 to 2015. His 
ministerial appointments included Foreign 
Affairs, Trade & Industry, Entrepreneurship, 
Finance and Transport. He is currently 
also an Adjunct Professor at the Lee Kuan 
Yew School of Public Policy, National 
University of Singapore and the Nanyang 
Centre for Public Administration, Nanyang 
Technological University.

Prior to entering politics in 2001, Mr Lim 
held various senior positions in the financial 
industry including Managing Director of 
Temasek Holdings, Chief Executive Officer of 
DBS Securities and Group Chief Economist of 
ABN AMRO Asia Securities.

A Rhodes and Colombo Plan scholar, Mr 
Lim has degrees in economics and law 
from the Universities of Adelaide, Oxford  
and Cambridge.

He joined the Board on 25 April 2013.

8  Mr Lim Beng Chee is the Chief Executive 
Officer and Executive Director of Shangri-La 
Asia Limited from 1 January 2017. He is also 
a Non-Executive Director in WIND Group Pte 
Ltd and SCPG Holdings Co Ltd.   Mr Lim was 
previously a Non-Executive Director of Changi 
Airport International Pte Ltd, Chief Executive 
Officer of CapitaMalls Asia Limited (CMA), now 
known as CapitaLand Mall Asia Limited, from 
2008 to 2014. CMA is a developer, owner and 
operator of shopping malls in Singapore, China 
and other parts of Asia. CMA was listed on the 
Singapore Stock Exchange from 2009 to 2014.

Mr Lim has more than 15 years of experience 
in retail real estate investment, development, 
mall operations, asset management and 
fund management with DBS Land Limited, 
CapitaLand Limited and CapitaLand Mall 
Asia Limited including a two-year stint in 
Beijing, China as Chief Executive Officer 
of CapitaRetail China Trust Management 
Limited, Singapore’s first China retail real 
estate investment trust.

Mr Lim graduated with a Bachelor of Arts 
in Physics (Honours) from the University 
of Oxford, and subsequently obtained a 
Post Graduate Diploma in Education from 
Nanyang Technological University (NTU). He 
also holds a Master of Business Administration 
(Accountancy) from NTU.

He joined the Board on 23 July 2015.

9  Mr Tan Soo Nan currently serves on the 
Boards of public listed and private companies 
including Raffles Medical Group Ltd, SATS Ltd, 
Raffles Health Insurance Pte Ltd, ICE Futures 
Singapore Pte Ltd, ICE Clear Singapore Pte 
Ltd, ICE Singapore Holdings Pte Ltd and 
Engro Corporation Limited. Mr Tan is also 
active in social causes and serves as Chairman 
of Temasek Foundation Management Services 
CLG Limited and Director in Woh Hup Trust 
and the Society for the Physically Disabled 
as well as Chairman of the Advisory Board 
/ Executive Committee of The Photographic 
Society of Singapore, all of which are not-for-
profit organisations.

Mr Tan had previously held the positions of 
Chief Executive Officer at Singapore Pools 
(Private) Limited, Singapore Totalisator 
Board, and Temasek Capital (Private) Limited 
as well as Senior Managing Director of DBS 
Bank. He was also previously a Director of 
OSIM International Ltd, Chairman of Temasek 
Education Foundation CLG Limited and 
has had over 29 years of experience in the 
banking industry.

He joined the Board on 28 July 2000.

10  Mr Olivier Lim is currently Chairman of 
Certis CISCO Security Pte Ltd, Frasers Property 
Australia Pty Ltd and globalORE Pte Ltd, 
Director of SGX listed Banyan Tree Holdings 
Limited, DBS Group Holdings Ltd and DBS 
Bank Ltd. He is also a member of the board of 
JTC Corporation, the board of trustees of the 
Singapore Management University (SMU), and 
the board of governors of Northlight School. 
He serves on the Securities Industry Council 
and the advisory board of SMU’s Institute for 
Societal Leadership.

Mr Lim worked at CapitaLand Limited from 
2003 to 2014 and served as Group Deputy Chief 
Executive Officer, Group Chief Investment 
Officer and Group Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 
during his career there. He was named CFO 
of the Year in the Business Times Singapore 
Corporate Awards 2007. Between 1989 and 
2003, he worked at Citibank Singapore in 
various roles in the corporate and investment 
banking units and was Head of the Real Estate 
Unit in his ultimate role.

Mr Lim has previously served as Non-Executive 
Chairman of ASX listed Australand Holdings 
Limited, Chairman of the Advisory Council of 
the Singapore CFO Institute and Chairman of 
Mount Faber Leisure Group. He has also held 
Directorships in several SGX listed companies, 
as well as served on the Boards of Sentosa 
Development Corporation and the Accounting 
and Corporate Regulatory Authority (ACRA).

Mr Lim holds a First Class Honours degree in 
Civil Engineering from the Imperial College 
of Science, Technology and Medicine in the 
United Kingdom.

Mr Lim was a member of the Board from 1 
October 2009 to 28 June 2013. He re-joined 
the Board on 1 October 2014.

11  Dr Sarah Lu is currently a General 
Surgeon with clinical interest in breast 
surgery, and a Consultant with Tan Tock 
Seng Hospital. She is the Program Director of 
National Healthcare Group, General Surgery 
Residency Programme, an adjunct Assistant 
Professor with Lee Kong Chian School of 
Medicine, and a Clinical Lecturer at the Yong 
Loo Lin – National University of Singapore 
School of Medicine. 

She is passionate about education and 
is currently pursuing a Masters in Health 
Professional Education.

Dr Lu graduated from the University of 
London with a MBBS (Bachelor of Medicine, 
Bachelor of Surgery) in 2005, obtained 
her Master of Medicine (Surgery) from the 
National University of Singapore in 2010, and 
was admitted as a Fellow of the Royal College 
of Surgeons (Edinburgh) in 2013. 

Dr Lu was appointed as a Non-Executive and 
Non-Independent Director of the Company. 

She joined the Board on 20 February 2018.
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Information as at 31 December 2017
Dr Loo Choon Yong (1), 68
Executive Chairman and Non-independent Director

Academic and Professional Qualifications:
 Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery,  

University of Singapore
 Diplomate Member, The College of General  

Practitioners, Singapore
 Diploma in Cardiac Medicine, University of London
 Bachelor of Law (Honours), University of London
 Barrister, Middle Temple

Board Committee(s) served on:
Nil 

Current Directorships in Listed Companies:
1. Raffles Medical Group Ltd 

(Executive Chairman and Non-Independent Director)

Other Major Appointments:
1. Ministry of Foreign Affairs  

(Non-Resident Ambassador to the Republic of Poland)
2. JTC Corporation (Chairman)
3. Asian Medical Foundation Ltd (Chairman)
4. Raffles Health Insurance Pte Ltd (Chairman)
5. International SOS (MC Holdings) Pte Ltd (Chairman)

Previous Directorships in Other Listed Companies held over the 
preceding three years (1 Jan 2015 to 31 Dec 2017):
Nil

Mr Koh Poh Tiong, 71
Lead Independent Director

Academic and Professional Qualifications:
 Bachelor of Science, University of Singapore

Board Committee(s) served on:
 Audit & Risk Committee (Member)
 Nomination & Compensation Committee (Member)

Current Directorships in Listed Companies:
1. Raffles Medical Group Ltd  

(Non-Executive and Lead Independent Director)
2. Fraser & Neave Limited  

(Non-Executive and Non-Independent Director and Advisor)
3. SATS Ltd (Non-Executive and Independent Director)
4. Delfi Limited (Non-Executive and Independent Director)
5. Bukit Sembawang Estates Limited  

(Chairman, Non-Executive and Independent Director)

Other Major Appointments:
1. Singapore Kindness Movement (Chairman)
2. National Kidney Foundation (Chairman)
3. Times Publishing Limited (Chairman)
4. Great Eastern Life Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad  

(Independent Director)
5. Great Eastern General Insurance (Malaysia) Berhad  

(Independent Director)
6. Yunnan Yulinquan Liquor Co Ltd (Chairman)

Previous Directorships in Other Listed Companies held over the 
preceding three years (1 Jan 2015 to 31 Dec 2017):
1. Ezra Holdings Limited  

(Non-Executive Chairman and Senior Advisor)
2. United Engineers Limited  

(Non-Executive and Independent Director)

Mr Kee Teck Koon, 61
Independent Director

Academic and Professional Qualifications:
 Bachelor of Arts, University of Oxford
 Master of Arts in Engineering Science, University of Oxford

Board Committee(s) served on:
 Audit & Risk Committee (Chairman)

Current Directorships in Listed Companies:
1. Raffles Medical Group Ltd  

(Non-Executive and Independent Director)
2. CapitaLand Limited (Non-Executive and Independent Director)

Other Major Appointments:
1. Changi Airports International Pte Ltd (Non-Executive Chairman)
2. NTUC Enterprise Co-operative Limited (Executive Director)
3. NTUC Income Insurance Co-operative Limited  

(Non-Executive Deputy Chairman)
4. Mandai Safari Park Holdings Pte Ltd (Non-Executive Director)
5. Lien Foundation (Non-Executive Director)

Previous Directorships in Other Listed Companies held over the 
preceding three years (1 Jan 2015 to 31 Dec 2017):
Nil

Mr Eric Ang Teik Lim, 64
Independent Director

Academic and Professional Qualifications:
 Bachelor in Business Administration (Honours),  

University of Singapore

Board Committee(s) served on:
 Nomination & Compensation Committee (Chairman)

Current Directorships in Listed Companies:
1. Raffles Medical Group Ltd  

(Non-Executive and Independent Director)
2. Sembcorp Marine Ltd (Non-Executive and Independent Director)

Other Major Appointments:
1. Changi Airport Group (Singapore) Pte Ltd (Director)
2. Surbana Jurong Private Limited (Director)
3. NetLink NBN Management Pte Ltd (Director)
4. DBS Foundation Ltd (Director)
5. SGX Disciplinary Committee (Co-Chairman)
6. Community Chest (Vice-Chairman)

Previous Directorships in Other Listed Companies held over the 
preceding three years (1 Jan 2015 to 31 Dec 2017):
1. Hwang Capital (Malaysia) Berhad  

(Non-Executive and Non-Independent Director)
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Board of Directors

(1) Dr Loo is the father of Dr Sarah Lu Qinghui, a Non-Independent Director 
of the Company.

Further Information on Directors
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Further Information on Directors
Dr Wee Beng Geok, 69
Independent Director

Academic and Professional Qualifications:
 PhD in Management Systems & Sciences, University of Hull
 MBA, Cranfield School of Management, Cranfield University  

(previously Cranfield Institute of Technology)
 Bachelor of Business Administration, University of Singapore

Board Committee(s) served on:
 Nomination & Compensation Committee (Member)

Current Directorships in Listed Companies:
1.   Raffles Medical Group Ltd  

(Non-Executive and Independent Director)

Other Major Appointments:
Nil

Previous Directorships in Other Listed Companies held over the 
preceding three years (1 Jan 2015 to 31 Dec 2017):
Nil

Professor Lim Pin, 81
Independent Director

Academic and Professional Qualifications:
 MBBChir, MA and MD, University of Cambridge
 FAMS, FRCP (Lond), FRACP, FRCPE, FACP

Board Committee(s) served on:
 Nomination & Compensation Committee (Member)

Current Directorships in Listed Companies:
1.   Raffles Medical Group Ltd 
 (Non-Executive and Independent Director)

Other Major Appointments:
1. Singapore Millennium Foundation Ltd (Chairman)
2. Special Needs Trust Company Limited (SNTC) (Chairman)
3. Ang Mo Kio – Thye Hua Kwan Hospital Board of Trustees (Chairman)
4. Singapore-MIT Alliance for Research and Technology  

(SMART) (Co-Chairman)
5. ETH Singapore SEC Ltd Governing Board (Co-Chairman)
6. TUM CREATE Ltd Governing Board (Co-Chairman)
7. Berkeley Education Alliance for Research in Singapore (BEARS) 

Governing Board (Co-Chairman)
8. Cambridge Centre for Advanced Research in Energy Efficiency in 

Singapore Ltd (CARES) Governing Board (Co-Chairman)
9. National University of Singapore (University Professor)
10. National University Hospital (Emeritus Consultant Endocrinologist)
11. Tropical Marine Science Institute (TMSI)  

Management Board (Chairman)
12. Bioethics Advisory Committee (Emeritus Advisor)
13. NUHS Fund Ltd (Chairman)
14. NUHS Health & Research Endowment Fund Ltd (Chairman)

Previous Directorships in Other Listed Companies held over the 
preceding three years (1 Jan 2015 to 31 Dec 2017):
Nil

Mr Raymond Lim Siang Keat, 58
Independent Director

Academic and Professional Qualifications:
 Bachelor of Economics (First Class Honours),  

University of Adelaide
 Bachelor of Arts in Jurisprudence, Balliol College,  

University of Oxford
 Master of Law (First Class Honours), King’s College,  

University of Cambridge

Board Committee(s) served on:
 Audit & Risk Committee (Member)

Current Directorships in Listed Companies:
1. Raffles Medical Group Ltd  

(Non-Executive and Independent Director)
2. Hong Leong Finance Limited  

(Non-Executive and Independent Director)
3. Swire Properties Limited (Non-Executive Director)

Other Major Appointments:
1. APS Asset Management Pte Ltd (Executive Chairman)
2. John Swire & Sons (Hong Kong) Ltd (Senior Advisor)
3. Lee Kuan Yew School of Public Policy,  

National University of Singapore (Adjunct Professor)
4. Nanyang Centre for Public Administration,  

Nanyang Technological University, Singapore (Adjunct Professor)

Previous Directorships in Other Listed Companies held over the 
preceding three years (1 Jan 2015 to 31 Dec 2017):
1. Insurance Australia Group Limited  

(Non-Executive and Independent Director)

Mr Lim Beng Chee, 50
Independent Director

Academic and Professional Qualifications:
 Bachelor of Arts in Physics (Honours), University of Oxford
 Post Graduate Diploma in Education,  

Nanyang Technological University
 Master of Business Administration (Accountancy),  

Nanyang Technological University

Board Committee(s) served on:
Nil

Current Directorships in Listed Companies:
1. Raffles Medical Group Ltd  

(Non-Executive and Independent Director)
2. Shangri-La Asia Limited (Executive Director)

Other Major Appointments:
1. WIND Group Pte Ltd (Non-Executive Director)
2. SCPG Holdings Co Ltd (Non-Executive Director)

Previous Directorships in Other Listed Companies held over the 
preceding three years (1 Jan 2015 to 31 Dec 2017):
Nil
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Mr Tan Soo Nan, 69
Non-Independent Director

Academic and Professional Qualifications:
 Bachelor of Business Administration (Honours),  

University Of Singapore
 Associate of The Chartered Institute of Bankers
 Program for Management Development, Harvard Business School

Board Committee(s) served on:
Nil

Current Directorships in Listed Companies:
1. Raffles Medical Group Ltd  

(Executive and Non-Independent Director)
2. SATS Ltd (Non-Executive and Independent Director)
3. Engro Corporation Limited  

(Non-Executive and Independent Director)

Other Major Appointments:
1. Raffles Health Insurance Pte Ltd (Executive Director)
2. ICE Futures Singapore Pte Ltd (Director)
3. ICE Clear Singapore Pte Ltd (Director)
4. ICE Singapore Holdings Pte Ltd (Director)
5. Temasek Foundation Management Services CLG Limited (Director)
6. Woh Hup Trust (Director)

Previous Directorships in Other Listed Companies held over the 
preceding three years (1 Jan 2015 to 31 Dec 2017):
1. OSIM International Ltd (Director)

Mr Olivier Lim Tse Ghow, 53
Non-Independent Director

Academic and Professional Qualifications:
 Bachelor of Engineering (Civil) (First Class Honours),  

Imperial College, London

Board Committee(s) served on:
Nil

Current Directorships in Listed Companies:
1. Raffles Medical Group Ltd  

(Non-Executive and Non-Independent Director)
2. Banyan Tree Holdings Limited  

(Non-Executive and Independent Director)
3. DBS Group Holdings Ltd  

(Non-Executive and Independent Director)

Other Major Appointments:
1. Frasers Property Australia Pty Ltd  

(Chairman, Non-Executive and Independent Director)
2. Certis CISCO Security Pte Ltd  

(Chairman, Non-Executive and Independent Director)
3. JTC Corporation (Board Member)
4. Singapore Management University Board of Trustees (Member)
5. Securities Industry Council (Member) 
6. globalORE Pte Ltd  

(Chairman, Non-Executive and Independent Director)
7. DBS Bank Ltd (Non-Executive and Independent Director)

Previous Directorships in Other Listed Companies held over the 
preceding three years (1 Jan 2015 to 31 Dec 2017):
Nil

Board of Directors

Dr Sarah Lu Qinghui (2), 36
Non-Independent Director

Academic and Professional Qualifications:
 MBBS, University of London
 Master of Medicine (Surgery), National University of Singapore
 Fellow, Royal College of Surgeon (Edinburgh)

Board Committee(s) served on:
Nil

Current Directorships in Listed Companies:
1. Raffles Medical Group Ltd  

(Non-Executive and Non-Independent Director)

Other Major Appointments:
Nil

Previous Directorships in Other Listed Companies held over the 
preceding three years (1 Jan 2015 to 31 Dec 2017):
Nil
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(2) Dr Sarah Lu Qinghui was appointed to the Board on 20 February 2018.
 Dr Lu is the daughter of Dr Loo Choon Yong, Executive Chairman of  

the Company.



The emergency team performing resuscitation to revive Mr Aven*.

Mr Aven being assured that he is recovering well after the procedure.

Mr and Mrs Aven learning how to care for the heart during a review session.

Re-enactment of scenes based on a true story.

* Name has been changed to protect the privacy of the person.



A heart attack is not something that one can foresee. While 

on a holiday in Singapore with his wife, Mr Aven suddenly 

collapsed from a cardiac arrest and was rushed to the 24-

hour emergency department at Raffles Hospital without a heartbeat. 

The emergency team wasted no time in resuscitating him back to life. 

To everyone’s relief, Mr Aven’s heart started beating again. 

A multi-disciplinary team of specialists, led by Cardiologist Dr Teo Swee 

Guan, and nurses immediately followed up after that. They worked 

together to stabilise Mr Aven’s condition with further treatment, and 

kept him under close supervision throughout his stay in the hospital.

Tears of joy and consolation filled Mrs Aven’s eyes when Mr Aven 

whispered “I love you” to her as he regained consciousness. Mr Aven 

steadily recovered from this episode and is continuing with outpatient 

therapies in his home country to manage his health condition.

Putting You First
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Senior Management

1  Dr Loo Choon Yong
Executive Chairman, 
Raffles Medical Group

Dr Loo Choon Yong is the Executive Chairman of 
Raffles Medical Group. He co-founded the Group in 
1976 and was appointed to his current position in 
1997 when the Group was listed on the Singapore 
Stock Exchange. He is also the Chairman of the 
Asian Medical Foundation Ltd and Raffles Health 
Insurance Pte Ltd. 

In the area of public service, Dr Loo was appointed 
by the President of Singapore in 2015, as the Non-
Resident Ambassador to the Republic of Poland. 
Prior to this, he was Non-Resident Ambassador to 
the Italian Republic between 2006 and 2015. He 
was also appointed Chairman of JTC Corporation, 
Singapore’s leading industrial infrastructure 
specialist spearheading the planning, promotion 
and development of a dynamic industrial 
landscape from January 2013. He was previously 
the Chairman of Sentosa Development 
Corporation and Sentosa Golf Club.

2  Ms Goh Ann Nee
Chief Financial Officer, Raffles Medical Group

Ms Goh Ann Nee joined Raffles Medical Group 
as Chief Financial Officer in February 2016. Prior 
to her appointment, Ms Goh has been the Chief 
Financial Officer of City Developments Limited 
and the Vice President (Finance) at Millennium 
& Copthorne International Limited. She also 
worked with various multi-national companies, 
and was based overseas in various cities during 
the course of her career in international 
financial management.

A Chartered Accountant, Ms Goh graduated with 
a Bachelor of Accountancy from the University of 
Glasgow and started her career with Coopers & 
Lybrand (now known as PricewaterhouseCoopers) 

in London. She subsequently obtained a Master of 
Business Administration.

Ms Goh is also a member of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the 
Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants and 
a Fellow Member of CPA Australia.

She has being reappointed to the ACRA 
(Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority)  
Financial Reporting Technical Advisory Panel and 
also on the Advisory Council at the Fletcher 
School of Law & Diplomacy, GMAP (Boston, USA).

3  Ms Jessica Tan Soon Neo 
Director, Group Commercial,  
Raffles Medical Group

Ms Jessica Tan joined the organisation in June 
2017 as Director, Group Commercial. Her role 
includes leveraging Raffles Medical Group’s 
integrated healthcare system to lead and support 
the growth strategies for Raffles Medical Group 
in Singapore and the region, providing quality 
healthcare to patients and building partnerships 
with corporate clients and industry partners.

Ms Tan has over 27 years in the IT industry, 13 
years with Microsoft and 14 years with IBM. In 
her tenure with both organisations, she has 
held leadership roles across diverse areas of the 
business in the Asia Pacific region and Singapore. 
She developed and drove growth strategies 
and business results, deepened customer and 
partner relationships. Ms Tan also focused on 
the development and attraction of the best 
talent for the organisations, and led Microsoft’s 
ongoing corporate citizenship commitments to 
help advance social and economic progress. 

In 2015, Ms Tan was re-elected Member 
of Parliament for the East Coast Group 
Representation Constituency in Singapore, 
having served for two terms since May 2006. She 

is the Chairman of the East Coast Fengshan Town 
Council. She is currently a member of the Social 
and Family Development and Manpower GPCs. In 
2016, she was appointed Chairman of the Public 
Accounts Committee. Ms Tan is active in various 
communities in Singapore, and serves as board 
member in a number of Singapore communities, 
listed companies and educational institutions.

4  Mr Lawrence Lim
Director, Corporate Development,  
Raffles Medical Group

Mr Lawrence Lim is the Director of Corporate 
Development responsible for healthcare facility 
and institutional development projects. He was 
the General Manager of Raffles Hospital for a 
period of 10 years from its inception in 2000 
to 2012. In the course of this period, he held 
concurrent responsibilities for managing the 
network of GP and dental clinics and providing 
consultancy for overseas healthcare projects. 
He has extensive years of experience in the 
healthcare industry. He started in the Ministry 
of Health as the Director of Development 
responsible for policy developments for 
the Medisave Scheme and health facility 
development. Prior to joining Raffles Medical 
Group, Mr Lim was the Chief Executive Officer 
of the Singapore General Hospital from 1992 to 
2000, and Chief Executive Officer responsible for 
restructuring the Toa Payoh Hospital from 1990 
to 1992.

Mr Lim graduated from the University of 
Birmingham in 1977 with a Bachelor of Social 
Science in Mathematical Economics (1st Class 
Honours). He obtained a Master of Science in 
Management in 1988 from Stanford University’s 
Graduate School of Business, and attended the 
Advanced Management Program at the Harvard 
Business SchooI in 1995.
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5  Mrs Kimmy Goh
Group Financial Controller and Company 
Secretary, Raffles Medical Group

Mrs  Kimmy Goh joined Raffles Medical Group 
in 1992 and holds the responsibilities of Group 
Financial Controller since 2005. She was 
appointed Company Secretary in 2007.

Mrs Goh is responsible for the Group’s financial 
strategy & management, taxation, treasury 
and corporate secretarial functions. She is also 
involved in corporate planning of the Group. 
Prior to joining the Group, Mrs Goh had about 
eight years of audit experience with two 
international public accounting firms.

Mrs Goh is a Chartered Accountant of the 
Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants 
(ISCA) and is a Fellow of the Association of 
Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA).

6  Dr Kenneth Wu
General Manager, Raffles Hospital

Dr Kenneth Wu is the General Manager of Raffles 
Hospital and is responsible for the operations 
and facilities management of Raffles Hospital. 
He joined the Group in 1997 as a family physician 
and subsequently took on management roles in 
Raffles Medical and thereafter, Raffles Hospital.

Dr Wu graduated with a MBBS (Bachelor of 
Medicine, Bachelor of Surgery) from the National 
University of Singapore in 1989 and obtained his 
GDFM (Graduate Diploma Family Medicine) from 
the National University of Singapore in 2007.

7  Mr Yong Yih Ming
General Manager, Raffles Medical

Mr Yong Yih Ming is the General Manager of 
Raffles Medical and is responsible for developing 
the Group’s corporate businesses, and managing 
the primary care network of clinics and health 
screening centres in Singapore. He joined the 
Group in 2007 and has served as Director, 
Operations and Director, Corporate Services. In 
2010, he led a team to set up the Group’s first 
medical centre in Shanghai, China.

Mr Yong has 14 years of experience in the 
healthcare industry. He previously held 
management positions in ambulatory 
operations, operational support services and 
business development in Alexandra Hospital 
before joining the Group. He was involved in the 
development of Khoo Teck Puat Hospital (KTPH) 
as a member of the KTPH Planning Committee, 
and chaired the Operational Support Services 
Workgroup then.

Mr Yong obtained a Master of Business 
Administration in Healthcare Management from 
the National University of Singapore in 2013. He 
has been serving as a District Councillor with the 
South East Community Development Council 
since 2011. 

8  Mr Teo Kah Ling
Chief Information Officer,  
Raffles Medical Group

Mr Teo Kah Ling is the Chief Information Officer 
of Raffles Medical Group, and has 15 years of 
experience in the healthcare industry.

Mr Teo previously held the position of Head 
Systems Services and Principal Enterprise 
Architect of Integrated Health Information 
Systems. During his time with Integrated Health 
Information Systems, he was responsible for all 
IT Infrastructure related projects for the National 
Healthcare Group of Hospitals.

Mr Teo graduated from the National University of 
Singapore with a Bachelor of Science (Computer 
and Information Science) in 1991. He also has 
a Master of Business Administration  from the 
University of Leicester and a Master of Science 
(Artificial Intelligence) from the University of Leeds.

9  Ms Christine Cheu
General Manager, Raffles Health Insurance

Ms Christine Cheu joined in January 2017 as the 
General Manager of Raffles Health Insurance, 
a subsidiary of Raffles Medical Group. She is 
responsible for the health insurance and third 
party administration business. 

Ms Cheu has 23 years of experience in Life & Health 
and Reinsurance sectors. She started her career in 
Singapore in 1994. Three years later, she moved 
to Zurich, Switzerland to join Swiss Reinsurance 
Company and later, Winterthur Insurance and 
Zurich Insurance Company. Her responsibilities 
included product development, actuarial pricing, 
and client management, covering the Asian and 
European markets. In 2008, Ms Cheu moved to 
Hong Kong with Zurich Insurance to help with the 
regional expansion. In 2013, she was transferred to 
Malaysia where she became the Chief Marketing 
Officer of Zurich Insurance Malaysia before joining 
Hong Leong Assurance as Chief Operating Officer 
two years later.

Ms Cheu graduated from University of Western 
Ontario (Canada) with a Bachelor of Science, 
major in Actuarial Science in 1994. She later 
obtained a Master of Business Administration from 
University of Chicago Booth School of Business 
in 2006 and a Master of Science in Information 
System Management from Hong Kong University 
of Science and Technology in 2011. 

10  Dr Koh Hau-Tek
General Manager, Raffles Medical, China

Dr Koh Hau-Tek is the General Manager, Raffles 
Medical, China. Prior to joining Raffles Medical 
in January 2017, he has worked previously 
in other major medical groups in Singapore 
and the Republic of Ireland, and has been a 
practicing physician for over 17 years. Dr Koh 
has sat on and presided over Medical Boards 
and Clinical Governance committees in several 
medical groups, including Parkway Shenton 
and Healthway Medical Group. He was actively 
involved in multiple large-scale projects in 
both B2B and B2G arenas, to enhance scope of 
clinical services and developing new business 
lines. He was involved operationally in national 
pandemics, supervising and overseeing the 
preparations and implementation of pandemic 
workflow at the airport and multiple primary 
care facilities. After Parkway Shenton, Dr Koh 
was Vice-President, International Business 
Development, with focus on strategy and 
business development at Certis CISCO Pte Ltd, 
driving merger and acquisition activities.

Graduating from the National University of 
Ireland with a 1st class Honours medical degree 
& an intercalated Bachelor of Medical Science, Dr 
Koh completed Basic Specialist training in General 
Surgery in the Republic of Ireland. After achieving 
membership to the Royal College of Surgeons in 
Ireland, he further obtained a Master in Medicine 
(Surgery), Singapore. Dr Koh is a registered Family 
Physician with the Singapore Medical Council and 
a registered Designated Workplace Doctor with 
Singapore’s Ministry of Manpower and currently 
both in management and clinical practice. He 
also completed an Advanced Management 
Program (Nanyang-Berkeley), and holds a Master 
of Business Administration (MBA) from Nanyang 
Business School.

Dr Koh is an adjunct lecturer in Occupational 
Medicine at the National University of Singapore.

11  Mr Andrew Wong
General Manager, IndoChina, Special Business 
Units & Raffles Japanese Clinic

Mr Andrew Wong is the General Manager 
responsible for IndoChina, Special Business Units 
and Raffles Japanese Clinic.   He has about 13 
years of experience in the healthcare industry.   
Prior to joining Raffles Medical Group in May 
2017, he was the President of Healthway Medical 
Corporation Ltd in 2016, and Chief Executive 
Officer of Pacific Healthcare Holdings Ltd from 
2014 to 2016.  

Mr Wong ran a healthcare consultancy advising 
private equity clients looking at healthcare 
acquisitions in Asia from 2009 to 2013.   He was 
also Group Vice President, Business Development 
and Strategy at Parkway Holdings Ltd from 2007 
to 2009, and helmed the healthcare portfolio at 
Khazanah Nasional Bhd from 2005 to 2007.   

Mr Wong is a Chartered Accountant. He 
graduated from the University of Adelaide with 
a Bachelor of Economics, and worked with KPMG 
in Australia upon graduation.

12  Ms Wu Choy Siong
Director, Raffles Medical International

Ms Wu is the director of Raffles Medical 
International responsible for the business 
operations in Hong Kong and developmental 
projects in China. She concurrently holds the 
position of Deputy General Manager for Raffles 
Hospital and is responsible for ambulatory and 
commercial operations.

She joined the Group in 2012 as Director of 
Raffles Medical clinics, managing operations of 
outpatient clinics island-wide. In 2014, Ms Wu 
relocated to Hong Kong as the General Manager 
of Raffles Medical Hong Kong. She returned to 
Singapore in 2017.

Prior to joining the Group, she was the Chief 
Operating Officer of Maccine Pte Ltd, a biomedical 
contract research organisation in Singapore.

Ms Wu graduated from the University of Toronto 
with a Bachelor degree in Chemical Engineering. 
She also has a Master of Science in Operations 
Research from Georgia Institute of Technology 
and a Master of Business Administration from 
Nanyang Technological University.
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Dr Alfred Loh
Senior Clinical Director  
Raffles Medical

Prof Walter Tan
Medical Director 
Raffles Hospital

Dr Wilson Wong
Medical Director  
Raffles Medical

Dr Yang Ching Yu
Medical Director 
Raffles Hospital

Dr Onishi Yoichi
Medical Director 
Raffles Japanese Clinic

Dr Chng Shih Kiat
Medical Director 
Raffles Medical

Dr Lee Jong Jian
Medical Director 
Raffles Hospital

Dr Stanley Liew
Medical Director 
Raffles Hospital

Dr Motoda Lena
Medical Director 
Raffles Japanese Clinic

Dr Lee I Wuen
Deputy Medical Director 
Raffles Hospital

Senior Physician Leaders
Expanding Our Landmark for You
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A/Prof Abdul Razakjr  
Bin Omar
Deputy Medical Director 
Raffles Hospital

Dr Michael Lee
Deputy Medical Director 
Raffles Medical

Dr Wong Wei Mon
Deputy Medical Director 
Raffles Medical

Dr Michael Wong
Deputy Medical Director 
Raffles Medical

Dr Chin Min Kwong
Deputy Medical Director 
Raffles Medical

Dr Hoo Kai Meng
Deputy Medical Director 
Raffles Medical

Dr Salleh Omar
Deputy Medical Director 
Raffles Medical

Dr Nandha Kumar
Deputy Medical Director 
Raffles Medical

Dr Melvyn Wong
Deputy Medical Director 
Raffles Medical

Senior Physician Leaders



Mrs Chan* being greeted by a patient service officer to register her particulars before consultation.

Dr Lim advising Mrs Chan on possible options she can adopt to manage her health better.

Dr Lim ensuring that Mrs Chan reaches home safely.

Re-enactment of scenes based on a true story.

* Name has been changed to protect the privacy of the person.



None of us would expect to get a ride home from a doctor 

who is seeing us for the first time. Mrs Chan, who was in 

her late 60s and a Pioneer Generation card holder, visited a 

Raffles Medical clinic as she was experiencing some giddiness and back 

pain. She was attended to by General Practioner Dr Lim Kien Sin who 

carried out some tests to diagnose her discomfort.

After collecting her medication and making payment, Mrs Chan sat 

in the clinic to rest in the hope that her giddiness would stop before 

heading home. Unfortunately, it did not. As she was the last patient of 

the day, Dr Lim was curious to see Mrs Chan still in the clinic.  

After learning about her difficulty and concerned for her safety, Dr Lim 

gently supported Mrs Chan to her feet and offered her a lift home. This 

was a small gesture to Dr Lim who felt that he was just doing what he 

could to help his patient. But this left a lasting impression on Mrs Chan.

Caring for You
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Operations Review

In 2017, Raffles Medical Group (RMG) saw the 
completion of the Raffles Hospital extension - Raffles 
Specialist Centre. The new 20-storey building would 
provide significant opportunities for the Hospital 
to expand its current range of specialist services, as 
well as healthcare training and clinical research. 

The Group also announced the investment in a 700-
bed international hospital in Chongqing, China. 
Raffles Hospital Chongqing will be opened in the 
fourth quarter of 2018. 

RMG embarked on a revamp of frontline uniforms to 
reflect the Group’s corporate branding. Launched 
in September 2017, uniforms were changed from 
blue to green, a colour associated with life, safety 
and growth. 

In 2017, the Group’s revenue was $477.6 million, a 
0.8% growth from 2016. It registered a profit after 
tax of $68.7 million, an increase of 1.1% from $67.9 
million in 2016.

Raffles Hospital
Increasing Patient Acuity
2017 was a challenging year for medical tourism in 
Singapore. Despite this, Raffles Hospital continued 
to expand as demand for advanced medical care, 
particularly in oncology, cardiology, emergency 
and intensive care services, continued to grow. New 
specialists in paediatric medicine, medical oncology, 
radiology, neonatology and haematology were 
recruited in 2017 to build up the breadth and depth 
of the hospital’s capabilities.

Raffles Hospital benefited from its ongoing 
collaboration with Mayo Clinic for complex cases 
and will focus on developing leading capabilities in 
the years ahead to serve the needs of the ageing 
population in Singapore and the region.

To increase patient awareness, Raffles Hospital 
organised two major health seminars with Channel 
NewsAsia. Each of the seminars, focusing on fertility 
and ageing, attracted more than 400 attendees. 

As part of the continued partnership with the Ministry 
of Health (MOH), Raffles Hospital’s Emergency 
Care Collaboration was extended in June 2017 for 
another five years. Under this collaboration, SCDF 
ambulances bring patients to Raffles Hospital for 
emergency medical care. This has helped improved 
patients’ access to Accident & Emergency (A & E) 
services at subsidised rates.
 
Raffles Medical Centres at Shaw Centre and Raffles 
Holland V allowed a wider group of patients to 
access specialist services outside the Raffles Hospital 
facility. To meet growing demands, paediatric 
service was added to the existing clinical mix of 
dermatology, obstetrics and gynaecology at the 
Raffles Medical Centre-Holland V.

The newly opened Raffles Specialist Centre enables us to grow the breadth and depth 
of Raffles Hospital’s services over the next few years to serve even more patients. 
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The Group registered a revenue of $477.6 million for the year ended 2017, an 
increase from $473.6 million the year before. Revenue from Hospital Services 
division and Investment Holdings grew by 2.3% and 21.1% respectively, while 
revenue from Healthcare Services division decreased 1.6%.
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In September 2017, Raffles Hospital was awarded 
the Customer Satisfaction Index of Singapore 
Recognition Award for its outstanding performance 
in customer satisfaction in the healthcare sector 
from 2007 to 2016. 
 
Investing for Future Growth
Raffles Specialist Centre – the new 20-storey 
building with two basements yields a total gross 
floor area of about 220,000 square feet and was 
developed at a total estimated cost of $310 million. 
Together with the existing hospital, the combined 
development, which yields a gross floor area of 
about 520,000 square feet, will offer opportunities 
to expand capacity, increase the breadth and depth 
of specialties in various disciplines, and to develop 
new services. There will also be more food and 
beverage options, including a food court in the 
basement, and cafes and restaurants on the first 
three levels of the building.

The development was awarded the Platinum Green 
Mark for Healthcare Facilities by the Building and 
Construction Authority in 2017.

The specialist centres constitute the initial wave of 
occupants of the new building. Occupying a total 
of six floors, these centres include Breast, Cancer, 
Children, Counselling, Diabetes & Endocrine, ENT, 
Heart, Internal Medicine, Neuroscience, Orthopaedic, 
Pain Management, Radiology, Rehabilitation, 
Surgery, Urology and Vascular Intervention. With 
Raffles Specialist Centre in operation, the existing 
Raffles Hospital building will undergo renovation 
works to refurbish and expand patient wards so as 
to meet growing demands for inpatient services.

The total development will function as a one-
stop medical hub that supports patient-centred 
and team-based care, as well as Raffles Hospital’s 
programme for growth of its clinical services, 
teaching and research activities. 

Specialist services at Orchard Road and Holland Village allowed patients to 
access specialist services at a location closer to them. Paediatric service was 
added to the existing clinical mix at the Raffles Medical Centre-Holland V.

Raffles Medical continued to serve Singaporeans who are eligible for  
the Community Health Assist Scheme (CHAS) and Pioneer Generation 
(PG) scheme through its extensive island wide network of clinics.

The Emergency Care Collaboration between Raffles Hospital and MOH continues for 
another five years to bring subsidised care to more Singaporeans.

Patients receive personalised care from our dedicated team of healthcare professionals 
that aim to support them from diagnosis to recovery. 

Raffles  Medical
Expanding Network of Services
Raffles Medical continued to bring quality healthcare 
closer to our patients with the opening of new 
clinics at Hillion Mall, Clementi Ave 3 and Changi 
Airport Terminal 4. Northpoint City re-opened in 
September 2017 after the mall’s retrofitting.

O
perations Review
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A new Japanese Service was also introduced at 
Raffles Holland V. New in-house clinics were opened 
in Dover and Tampines. 

A new MediConcierge service was introduced at 
Changi Airport Terminal 4. With a touch of a button, 
it brings real-time medical advice from doctors and 
nurses, health advisories and more to users.
 
As part of its digitalisation efforts to make 
healthcare more accessible to patients, Raffles 
Medical introduced selected medical services such 
as health screening packages and vaccinations on 
the e-commerce platform.

Operations Review

Raffles Medical launched three Primary Care Network (PCN) clusters across Singapore 
to help chronic illness patients manage their conditions better at a location 
convenient to them.

At Raffles, we care about the well-being of our patients and strive to provide the best 
service throughout their journey with us.

In 2017, Raffles Medical was appointed by the Ministry 
of Health (MOH) and the Civil Aviation Authority of 
Singapore (CAAS) to provide temperature screening 
for travellers at Changi and Seletar Airports.

Affordable Healthcare, Everywhere 
Raffles Medical continued to serve Singaporeans 
who are eligible for the Community Health Assist 
Scheme (CHAS) and Pioneer Generation (PG) 
scheme through  its extensive island wide network 
of clinics. 

The network of clinics, one of Singapore’s largest GP 
network,  will be able to care for patients with chronic 
conditions more comprehensively with the award of 
the new Primary Care Network (PCN) Scheme in 2018 
by MOH and the Agency of Integrated Care (AIC).

Providing One-Stop Corporate Solutions
RafflesOne continued to be the key corporate 
healthcare solution and value proposition for 
companies partnering RMG for their healthcare, 
group insurance and benefits administration 
needs. RafflesOne helped many companies better 
manage their healthcare costs and productivity, 
mitigate occupational health risks and improve 
overall wellness among their employees through its 
integrated and one-stop partnership model.

More new companies in the financial, transport, 
retail, food and beverage, services and 
government  sectors were added to RMG’s client 
portfolio in 2017.

In recognition of its quality corporate solutions, 
RMG emerged as the winner in the Best Corporate 
Healthcare category in the HRM Asia Readers’ 
Choice Awards 2017, for the fourth consecutive year 
since its inception.

Raffles Dental
Increasing Operating Capacity
Raffles Dental welcomed seven new dental surgeons 
in 2017, increasing its capacity to serve a larger 
volume of patients after office hours at Raffles 
Hospital and its regional centres. 

To meet the growing demand for more complex 
dental work in the general practice setting, Raffles 
Dental invested in training to equip its dentists with 
skills to better serve the needs of its patients. 
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Raffles Chinese 
Medicine

Extending Awareness and Outreach
Raffles Chinese Medicine (RCM) is a one-stop centre 
with key strengths in fertility, pain management, 
cancer complementary care, stroke aftercare 
and chronic ailments.  In 2017, RCM celebrated 
the opening of its new clinic in Raffles Holland V 
with invitations to residents and corporate clients 
for TCM talks and demonstration. This led to an 
increase in awareness and demand for TCM services. 

To support its operations and future growth, RCM 
has enrolled three new physicians to strengthen its 
team of TCM professionals. In the coming year, RCM 
will also be participating in outreach programmes 
to raise awareness and help those living with 
chronic illness to better manage their condition.

Raffles Health
Progression and Digitalisation 
Raffles Health brought consumer healthcare to 
the e-commerce platform in 2017. The online  
(www.raffleshealth.com) and various stores located 
in Raffles Hospital, Raffles Medical clinics and Raffles 
Holland V work together to provide consumers a 
convenient and consistent shopping experience. 

Raffles Health boosted its social and digital focus 
by adding new expertise to their marketing team 
that helped to build their online presence. Raffles 
Health will continue to increase investment in 
digital marketing while developing new products to 
help people lead healthier lives. 

Raffles Chinese Medicine continues to build on their key strengths in fertility,  
pain management, cancer complementary care, stroke aftercare and chronic 
ailments, by strengthening its team of TCM physicians.

Raffles Health’s e-commerce platform and its retail outlets provide a convenient and 
consistent shopping experience for its customers.

O
perations Review

Raffles Medical introduced selected medical services 
such as health screening packages and vaccinations 
on the e-commerce platform to make healthcare 
more accessible to patients.
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Raffles Health 
Insurance

Maintaining Quality Services
Raffles Health Insurance (RHI) was affected by 
unfavourable claim situation from Global Medical 
Insurance and pricing pressure from the group 
insurance business. Despite the circumstances, RHI 
focused on growing its client base and managed 
to secure more corporate accounts for third party 
administrative services.

Raffles Healthcare 
Institute

Breaking Boundaries, Opening Doors
Raffles Healthcare Institute (RHI) expanded its 
training programmes to international students and 
external participants.  

In 2017, a total of 94 international students from nine 
universities and colleges in Korea, Japan, Australia, 
Taiwan, Hong Kong and China attended the 
Institute’s overseas nursing education programme. 
This programme exposed the international 
nursing students to an integrated approach 
to clinical reasoning and analytical skills to 
recognise and evaluate patient outcomes. It 
includes a hospital tour to complement overseas 
academic education with observational insights

to clinical nursing practice in a private hospital, 
and exposure to private sector standards of 
service excellence and business management. 

On the local front, the Institute availed its 
training programmes to corporate clients as well 
as healthcare professionals. There was a total of 
more than 4,000 participants in the Institute’s 
life support courses such as Basic Cardiac Life 
Support, Automated External Defibrillator, First Aid 
Awareness, and Standard First Aid.

Training partnerships were also established with 
major clients including Organs of State and 
Statutory Boards such as People’s Association, 
Supreme Court, Family Justice Court, tertiary 
educational institutions such as Ngee Ann 
Polytechnic, Republic Polytechnic, and Pioneer 
Junior College, large multi-national corporations 
such as the SIA Group and Procter & Gamble, and 
other enterprises such as BASF, ENI, SG Petroleum 
and Yinson.

Apart from providing customised training solutions 
for the clients, these partnerships involved 
the provision of value-added services such as 
training consultancy, developing an Emergency 
Preparedness and Readiness plan, and coordinating 
industrial wellness programmes.

The local outreach and international exchange 
programme exemplify the enduring commitment 
of the Institute to contribute to the development of 
healthcare professionals, with the goal of improving 
the quality of healthcare. 

Operations Review

Raffles Healthcare Institute contributes to the training of local and foreign 
healthcare professionals to support the Group’s growing manpower 
development needs.

Our collaboration with Mayo Clinic focuses on developing capabilities in the 
years ahead to serve the healthcare needs in Singapore and the region.
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Raffles  Medical
 International

Strengthening Presence and Growth
Now present in six major cities in China, Raffles Medical 
continue to expand its services in international family 
medicine, specialist care (obstetrics and gynaecology, 
dermatology, paediatrics, ENT, ophthalmology), 
dentistry, health screening and mental health to 
allow locals, corporate clients and those who travel 
extensively in Asia to access the trusted Raffles 
Medical brand of care. 

Construction of the 700-bed Raffles Hospital 
Chongqing and 400-bed Raffles Hospital Shanghai 
are progressing well. These hospitals are scheduled to 
be opened in the fourth quarter of 2018 and second 
half 2019 respectively. The Group has begun the 
recruitment exercise for Raffles Hospital Chongqing.

Raffles Medical Hong Kong’s operations expanded 
with the addition of two company clinics at a leading 
bank in Hong Kong. It also relocated its clinic in Tai 
Koo Place on Hong Kong Island to Tsim Sha Tsui in 
Kowloon. The clinic would focus on specialist services 
with Dr Peter Tong, Consultant Endocrinologist and 
Medical Director.

In IndoChina, Raffles Medical has strengthened its 
operations and service levels with the recruitment 
of additional foreign doctors and investments in  
new medical equipment.   It will continue to build  
upon the Group’s core strength in corporate  
healthcare, offering a regional network for its 
clients, both onshore and offshore.

Raffles Holland  V
A Holistic Lifestyle Experience
Raffles Holland V, being fully occupied, celebrated 
its first year anniversary in 2017. Focused on 
health and wellness, the mall caters to locals and 
expatriates living around the area with tenants 
such as Raffles Medical, Virgin Active, Finding’s 
Education, DBS Bank, Taste by Swiss Butchery, 
Sushi Tei, Hoshino, Soup Restaurant and Da  
Paolo Gastronomia. 
 
As part of the mall’s efforts to add vibrancy 
to the shopper’s experience, decorations and 
performances were planned during the festive 
seasons such as Christmas and Chinese New Year.

Raffles Hospital Chongqing, located at the Liangjiang New Area in Chongqing,  
is scheduled to open in the fourth quarter of 2018.

Beyond Singapore, the Raffles brand of care is now 
present in five countries and 13 cities in Asia.

O
perations Review
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Caregivers and persons with dementia enjoying a sing-along session with 
RMG volunteers at a Memories Café outreach event. 

On 28 August 2017, RMG signed a MOU with NKF to set up a Raffles-NKF  
Renal Wellness Centre and Raffles-NKF Peritoneal Dialysis & Wellness Centre

Corporate  
Social Responsibility

At RMG, we believe that sustainability considerations 
support our overall vision. We are committed to 
managing the performance of key environmental, 
social and governance (ESG) factors which have 
the most significant implications to our business 
success, and where we can create positive impact. 
 
The Board has assigned the responsibility for 
monitoring and overseeing the Company’s 
sustainability efforts to the Sustainability Reporting 
Committee. The Committee comprises senior 
executives from major functions who provide the 
direction for reporting. It reviews, assesses and 
determines the sustainability context, material 
topics, scope, boundary, and prioritisation of 
issues included in the report. It takes in formal and 
informal feedback from both internal and external 
stakeholders throughout the year to determine 
the material issues in the report. The Committee is 
supported by a cross-functional team that gathers 
and verifies the data. 

The Sustainability Reporting Committee has been 
involved in the determination of RMG’s key ESG 
factors, and intends to publish a sustainability 
report describing the management, performance 
and targets in relation to these key ESG factors in 
2018. This will be RMG’s inaugural Sustainability 
Report and will be aligned to SGX-ST’s Listing 
Rules – Sustainability Reporting Guide. It should 
be read in conjunction with our Annual Report,  
here presented. 

CHARITY AND COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
RMG strives to be a good corporate citizen and has developed 
various Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) programmes over the 
years. One such initiative is the creation of a charity organisation, 
Asian Medical Foundation (AMF), in 2003. AMF was initially 
founded by a group of doctors and nurses from RMG. It reaches 
out by serving the medical and healthcare needs of the poor and 
the under-privileged in the Singapore community. Beyond AMF, 
RMG also supports various worthy causes. 

Pledge of $1 million by RMG to the National Kidney Foundation
As part of the Group’s 40th anniversary in 2016, RMG pledged a 
donation of $1 million to the National Kidney Foundation (NKF). 
The donation will go towards the setting up of the Raffles-NKF 
Renal Wellness Centre at Raffles Specialist Centre as well as a 
Raffles-NKF Peritoneal Dialysis & Wellness Centre at Block 109 
Whampoa Road.

RMG and NKF signed the Memorandum of Understanding on the two 
centres on  28 August 2017. Of the pledged donation, $400,000 was 
disbursed in August 2017 for the Raffles-NKF Peritoneal Dialysis &  
Wellness Centre. 

Memories Café
RMG through AMF continued to support the Alzheimer’s Disease 
Association (ADA) for the second year through the Memories 
Café. Started in May 2016, this social event provides a change in 
environment for caregivers and persons with dementia (PWD) to 
share their experiences in a safe and supportive setting. In the 
first hour of the programme, community artists, volunteers and 
staff lead in activities such as sing-along sessions and musical 
performances. This is followed by an hour of social interaction 
over drinks and snacks among PWD, caregivers and customers at 
a café.

Sustainability  
Statement
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Zion Home for the Aged
The Zion Home for the Aged is a shelter and home for aged females 
that was established in 1979 by Zion Presbyterian Church. Since 
June 2015, doctors and TCM physicians from RMG have visited the 
Zion Home for the Aged on a monthly basis to provide medical 
consultations, acupuncture service and advice for the residents. 
When necessary, elderly patients who require further specialist 
consultations are referred to Raffles Hospital for X-rays, laboratory 
tests and medication by specialist doctors at no expense. 

PCF Sparklecare
RMG staff makes monthly visits to two PCF Sparklecare centres in 
Simei and Yew Tee. While there, they interviewed, consulted and 
examined the elderly dementia and stroke patients together with 
PCF’s physiotherapists and occupational therapists to determine 
adjustments with their rehabilitation programmes onsite.
  
MINDful Healthy Eating Programme
RMG’s dietitians developed a month long programme for 
Movement for the Intellectually Disabled of Singapore (MINDS) 
Woodlands. The programme aimed to equip special needs children 
with healthy eating knowledge as well as basic cooking skills - life 
skills that can benefit them. 

Raffles Gives Back
Responding to call for donation of equipment and items for Zion 
Home for the Aged and Bethesda Care and Counselling Services 
Centre, the enthusiastic staff of RMG raised $8,440 under the 
auspice of AMF in just two days.  

Health Screening
As colorectal cancer continued to be one of the leading cancers 
in Singapore, RMG offered free Faecal Occult Blood Test (FOBT) 
kits to persons aged 50 years and above in 2017. The kit could 
be collected from Raffles Hospital and all Raffles Medical clinics 
island wide. A total of 130 persons underwent the screening. Those 
who are found to have blood in their stools are encouraged to 
further do a colonoscopy or gastroscopy with packages that can 
be fully covered by Medisave.

In conjunction with Breast Cancer Awareness Month in October 
2017, RMG offered discounted mammogram screening packages. A 
total of 3,392 packages were taken up between 1 October 2017 and  
31 January 2018. 

Community Outreach
RMG doctors and nurses regularly engage in community outreach 
activities such as conducting basic health screening sessions, 
giving health education talks and advice on healthy ageing to 
senior citizens and distributing masks at community centres in 
various parts of Singapore. Participants who attend the talks are 
encouraged to share their knowledge among their social circles, 
thereby raising the awareness of healthy ageing in the community. 
Some of the doctors are also involved in running clinics for foreign 
workers on a regular basis.

EDUCATION
Scholarship
We provide a wide range of scholarships and sponsorships for 
both pre-service and in-service employees. This has raised the 
knowledge and skill level of the workforce as a whole, leading to 
better patient experience and outcomes. 

Since its inception in 2012, the Group’s Scholarship programme 
has been extended to 32 students. From 2016 to 2021, another 
$4.2 million has been set aside for 40 additional scholarships 
that will be given to both local and foreign students to pursue 
nursing, pharmacy, diagnostic radiography, occupational therapy 
or business management courses.

In addition, the Group has granted scholarships and bursaries as 
well as invested in employees pursuing degree courses, master 
programmes as well as other upgrading training over the years.

Bursary Award
Introduced in 2011, the Raffles Medical Group Bursary provides 
financial assistance to the Group’s employees for their children’s 
education to give them a head start in their life and career. Since 
then, a total of 66 bursaries have been awarded, benefitting a 
total of 47 staff and 66 children.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Our doctors provide regular medical consultation to residents from the 
Zion Home for the Aged.

Children of RMG employees and recipients of the RMG Bursary Award 
2017 gather to pose for a photo.
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Professional Governance

Medical Board
Dr Loo Choon Yong (Advisor) 
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Dr Alfred Loh
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Dr Yang Ching Yu (Chairman)

Dr Alfred Loh
Dr Stanley Liew
A/Prof Abdul Razakjr Bin Omar
Professor Walter Tan (Ex-Officio)

Ethics Committee
Dr Lee Jong Jian (Chairman) 
Professor Walter Tan 
Professor Nambiar Rajmohan
A/Prof Chew Chin Hin
A/Prof Mary Rauff
Dr Alfred Loh
Dr Lee I Wuen
Reverend Dr Isaac Lim 
Mr Mike Barclay
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Quality Committee
Dr Alfred Loh (Chairman)

Dr Stanley Liew (Co-Chairman)

Dr Kenneth Wu 
Professor Walter Tan 
Dr Yang Ching Yu
Dr Edgar Kieu
Mr Lee Meng Tuck 
Ms Lilian Yew
Mr Heng Wee Khim
Ms Yee Earn Hwa
Ms Kartini Sameejan
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Mr Jonathan Low
Mr Clarence Tan (Secretary)

Medical Audit Committee
Dr Chan Choong Chee (Chairman)

Dr Teo Sek Khee (Co-Chairman)

Dr Ng Wai Lin
Dr Tan Mein Chuen
Dr Daryl Tan
Dr Chng Shih Kiat
Dr Chong Yong Yeow
Ms Lilian Yew
Ms Kartini Sameejan
Ms Premalatha Perumal (Secretary)

Surgical Audit Committee
Dr JJ Murugasu (Chairman)

Dr Yang Ching Yu (Co-Chairman)

Dr Lee Jong Jian 
Dr Lee I Wuen 
Dr Eric Teh
Dr Lim Yeow Wai 
Dr Lim Kok Bin
Dr Manish Taneja 
Dr Ganesan Naidu 
Ms Teo Poh Lin
Dr Alfred Loh (Ex-Officio) 

Professor Walter Tan (Ex-Officio) 
Ms Kartini Sameejan
Ms Gamboa Maika Cortez (Secretary)

Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee
Dr Yang Ching Yu (Chairman)
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Dr Joshua Kua
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Infection Control Committee
Dr Teo Sek Khee (Chairman)

Dr Yvonne Loh (Co-Chairman)

Dr Changa Kurukularatne (Advisor)

Dr Wong Kutt Sing
Dr Lynette Ngo 
Dr Edgar Kieu 
Ms Ong Suat Kien
Ms Lee Lai Fun
Mr Heng Wee Khim
Ms Tee Yen Yen
Ms Jaslyn Yeo
Ms Catherine Soo
Ms Cheng Lee Hong
Mr Zulkifli Bin Ismail
Ms Michelle Chua
Ms Kartini Sameejan
Ms Danapalan Anbuselvi
Ms Cassandra Angelica R. Cuvin (Secretary)

Operating Theatre Committee
Dr Eric Teh (Chairman)

Dr Lee I Wuen (Co-Chairman)

Dr Yang Ching Yu 
Dr Lee Jong Jian 
Dr Stephen Lee 
Dr Lim Yeow Wai
Dr David Wong
Dr Sheila Loh 
Dr Lim Kok Bin 
Dr Ho Kok Yuen
Ms Kartini Sameejan
Ms Teo Poh Lin
Ms Lee Lay Tin (Secretary)

Blood Transfusion & Tissue Review Committee
Dr Yvonne Loh (Chairman)

Dr Nicholas Goh (Co-Chairman)

Dr Ekachai Danpanich 
Ms Sadiah Mohd Yusof 
Ms Fa’eezah Bte Hamzah 
Ms Sarina Bte Saleh
Ms Nurhayati Binte Mohd Dali
Ms Louisa Chew (Secretary)

Patient Case Review Committee
Dr Ng Chin (Chairman)

Dr Chong Yong Yeow (Co-Chairman)

Dr Amitabh Monga
Ms Liu Wei Wei
Mr Andrew Lum
Ms Ong Suat Kien
Mr Lim Hun Teck
Ms Fa’eezah Bte Hamzah (Secretary)

Critical Care Committee
Dr Chan Choong Chee (Chairman)

Dr Steve Yang (Co-Chairman)

Dr Teo Swee Guan 
Dr Wong Kutt Sing 
Dr Tan Mein Chuen 
Ms Lilian Yew
Ms Mary Jane Mendoza Sangalang
Ms Tee Yen Yen (Secretary)

Transplant Committee
Dr Stanley Liew (Chairman)

Dr Ekachai Danpanich (Co-Chairman)

Dr Lim Kok Bin 
Dr Wong Jen San 
Dr Amitabh Monga 
Dr Changa Kurukularatne
Dr Lim Yun Chin
Dr Yvonne Loh 
Ms Zenia Alipoyo Pabualan
Ms Francisca Benjamin
Mr Clarence Tan
Mr Jonathan Low (Secretary)

Trauma Committee
Dr Ganesan Naidu (Chairman)

Dr Goh E-Shaun (Co-Chairman)

Dr Tan Hsiang Lung
Dr David Choy
Dr Steve Yang
Dr Wong Jen San
Ms Chee Lay Choo
Ms Kartini Sameejan
Ms Ong Suat Kien
Ms Magdalene Lee
Ms Lim Li Sar
Ms Than Sook Ling
Mr Eugene Lam (Secretary)

Medical Board
Dr Loo Choon Yong (Advisor)

Dr Wilson Wong (Chairman)

Dr Chng Shih Kiat (Co-Chairman)

Dr Alfred Loh
Dr Michael Lee
Dr Michael Wong

Dr Wong Wei Mon
Dr Chin Min Kwong
Dr Hoo Kai Meng
Dr Salleh Omar
Dr Nandha Kumar
Dr Melvyn Wong
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PRINCIPLE 1: THE BOARD’S CONDUCT OF ITS AFFAIRS
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�ll direc;ors e?ercise due dili+e2ce a2d i2depe2de2; /ud+e1e2; i2 deali2+ >i;, ;,e #usi2ess aøairs o( ;,e �o1pa2@ a2d are o#li+ed 
;o ac; i2 +ood (ai;, a2d ;o ;a0e o#/ecধ=e decisio2s i2 ;,e i2;eres; o( ;,e �o1pa2@W �,e �oard is accou2;a#le ;o s,are,olders a2d 
respo2si#le (or ;,e lo2+f;er1 success o( ;,e RMG a2d i;s su#sidiaries l;,e GroupmW �,e pri1ar@ (u2cধo2 o( ;,e �oard is ;oV

lam pro=ide e2;repre2eurial leaders,ipT +uide ;,e (or1ulaধo2 o( ;,e GroupZs o=erall lo2+f;er1 s;ra;e+ic pla2s a2d per(or1a2ce 
o#/ecধ=esT e2sure ade7ua;e )2a2cial a2d ,u1a2 resources are i2 place (or ;,e Group ;o 1ee; i;s o#/ecধ=esU

l#m  es;a#lis, a (ra1e>or0 o( prude2; a2d eøecধ=e co2;rols >,ic, e2a#les ris0s ;o #e assessed a2d 1a2a+edT i2cludi2+ sa(e+uardi2+ 
o( s,are,oldersZ i2;eres;s a2d ;,e GroupZs asse;sU

lcm      1o2i;or ;,e per(or1a2ce o( ;,e 1a2a+e1e2;U

ldm ide2ধ(@ ;,e 0e@ s;a0e,older +roups a2d reco+2ise ;,a; ;,eir percepধo2s aøec; ;,e GroupZs repu;aধo2U

lem se; ;,e GroupZs =alues a2d s;a2dards li2cludi2+ e;,ical s;a2dardsmT a2d e2sure ;,a; o#li+aধo2s ;o s,are,olders a2d o;,er 
s;a0e,olders are u2ders;ood a2d dul@ 1e;U a2d

l(m co2sider sus;ai2a#ili;@ issues suc, as e2=iro21e2;al a2d social (ac;ors as par; o( i;s s;ra;e+ic (or1ulaধo2W

�irec;ors 1us; a=oid si;uaধo2s i2 >,ic, ;,eir o>2 perso2al or #usi2ess i2;eres;s direc;l@ or i2direc;l@ co2*ic;T or appear ;o co2*ic;T 
>i;, ;,e i2;eres;s o( RMGW �,ere a �irec;or ,as a co2*ic; o( i2;eres;T or i; appears ;,a; ,ecs,e 1i+,; ,a=e a co2*ic; o( i2;eres;T 
i2 relaধo2 ;o a2@ 1aħerT ,ecs,e s,ould i11edia;el@ declare ,isc,er i2;eres; a; a 1eeধ2+ o( ;,e �irec;ors or se2d a 2oধce ;o ;,e 
�o1pa2@ co2;ai2i2+ de;ails o( ,isc,er i2;eres; a2d ;,e co2*ic;T a2d recuse ,i1sel(c,ersel( (ro1 parধcipaধ2+ i2 a2@ discussio2 a2d 
decisio2 o2 ;,e 1aħerW Maħers ;,a; re7uire ;,e �oardZs appro=al i2 li2e >i;, +uideli2es se; (or;, #@ ;,e �oard areV

lam  �,e appro=al o( 7uar;erl@ resul;s a22ou2ce1e2;sU

l#m  �,e appro=al o( ;,e a22ual accou2;sU
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Expanding Our Landmark for You

PRINCIPLE 1: THE BOARD’S CONDUCT OF ITS AFFAIRS (CONT’D)

(c)  The declaration of interim dividends and proposal of final dividends;

(d)  Convening of Shareholders’ Meetings;

(e)  The approval of corporate strategy and direction of the Group; 

(f)  Material acquisitions or disposals;

(g) Major capital expenditures;

(h) Succession plans, including appointment and compensation for Directors;

(i) The approval of transactions involving a conflict of interest for a substantial shareholder or a Director or interested person 
transactions; and

(j) The appointment of new Directors.

All other matters are delegated to Committees whose actions are reported to and monitored by the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in the execution of its duties, the Board has delegated specific functions to the following Committees, each of 
which has its own Terms of Reference:

(a)  Nomination & Compensation Committee (NCC); and

(b)  Audit & Risk Committee (ARC).

INDUCTION AND TRAINING OF DIRECTORS

There is an induction for incoming Directors joining the Board in the discharge of their duties and to introduce the Group’s business 
and governance practices and arrangements, amongst others. Upon appointment, a new Director receives a formal letter on the 
director’s duties, responsibilities and disclosure obligations as a Director. As part of the induction programme, the new Director 
gains an understanding of the Group’s management, business and governance practices through induction briefings by members of 
Senior Management of the Group’s various businesses and support functions. The Group will also arrange for the new director to 
attend training in areas such as accounting, legal as appropriate.

Any regulatory changes with a material impact on either the Group or the Directors, the Management will update the Directors 
during the Board meetings. The Company Secretary also briefs the Directors on key regulatory changes, while KPMG LLP, the 
Company’s external auditors (the External Auditors) briefed the ARC on key amendments to the accounting standards.

The Directors are advised and encouraged to attend relevant training programmes conducted by the Singapore Institute of 
Directors (SID) and those courses which SID offer in partnership with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority, Institute 
of Singapore Chartered Accountants and Singapore Management University. The Company is responsible for arranging and funding 
the training of directors. The directors are provided with continuing education in areas such as directors’ duties and responsibilities, 
corporate and risk governance, changes in financial reporting standards, changes in the Companies Act, continuing listing obligations 
and industry–related matters, so as to update and refresh them on matters that may affect or enhance their performance as board or 
board committee members. Directors may at any time request for further explanation, briefing or informal discussion on any aspects 
related to the Group’s operations.

If a director were unable to attend a board or board committee meeting, he or she would still receive all the papers and materials 
for discussion at that meeting.  He or she would review them and advise the Chairman or board committee Chairman of his or her 
views and comments on the matters to be discussed, so that they may be conveyed to other members at the meeting.
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PRINCIPLE 1: THE BOARD’S CONDUCT OF ITS AFFAIRS (CONT’D)

ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS

�,e ;a#le #elo> se;s ou; ;,e aħe2da2ce a; 1eeধ2+s co2=e2ed duri2+ ;,e course o( ;,e )2a2cial @earV

Directors’ Details

Name of Director
Independent (I)/ 
Non-Independent  
(NI)

Executive (E)/  
Non-Executive 
(NE)

Assessment of  
Directors’  

Independence 
Status

Meeting Attendance Report
 Chair of the Committee
 Member of the Committee

Independence 
status under the 

CCG 2012 AGM Board ARC NCC

�r �oo �,oo2 �o2+ �
 	 �o �c� �c� g g

Mr �o, �o, �io2+ 
 �	 �es �c� �c� �c� �c�

Mr �ee �ec0 �oo2 
 �	 �es �c� �c� �c� g

Mr 	ric �2+ �ei0 �i1 l�m 
 �	 �es �c� �c� �c� �c�

�r �ee �e2+ Geo0 l�m 
 �	 �es �c� �c� g �c�

�ro(essor �i1 �i2 
 �	 �es �c� �c� g �c�

Mr Ra@1o2d �i1 �ia2+ �ea; 
 �	 �es �c� �c� �c� g

Mr �i1 �e2+ �,ee 
 �	 �es �c� �c� g g

Mr �a2 �oo �a2 �
 	 �o �c� �c� g g

Mr �li=ier �i1 �se G,o> �
 �	 �es �c� �c� g g

Notes:
l�m Mr 	ric �2+ �ei0 �i1 >as appoi2;ed as ;,e �,air1a2 o( ;,e ��� >i;, eøec; (ro1 �� �pril ����W Mr �2+ ceased ;o #e a Me1#er o( ;,e �R� >i;, eøec; (ro1 �� 

�pril ����W

l�m �r �ee �e2+ Geo0 ceased ;o #e ;,e �,air1a2 o( ��� >i;, eøec; (ro1 �� �pril ����W

PRINCIPLE 2: BOARD COMPOSITION AND GUIDANCE

There should be a strong and independent element on the Board, which is able to exercise objective judgement on corporate 
affairs independently, in particular, from Management and 10% shareholders. No individual or small group of individuals should 
be allowed to dominate the Board’s decision making.

�,e 2a1es o( ;,e �irec;ors o( ;,e �o1pa2@ i2 oăce as a; ;,e da;e o( ;,is Repor; are se; ou; o2 pa+e �¤W 
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PRINCIPLE 2: BOARD COMPOSITION AND GUIDANCE (CONT’D)

As at the date of this Report, the Board comprises eleven suitably qualified members:

Name of Director Date of First
Appointment

Nature of
Appointment

Date of Last 
Re-election as 

Director
Position Held 
on the Board

Other
Functions

Dr Loo Choon Yong 16/05/1989 Executive and   
Non-Independent 19/04/2017 Chairman Nil

Mr Koh Poh Tiong 03/10/2011 Non-Executive and 

Independent 19/04/2017 Lead Independent 
Director

Members of  
ARC and NCC

Mr Kee Teck Koon 03/01/2012 Non-Executive and 

Independent 19/04/2017 Director Chairman of ARC

Mr Eric Ang Teik Lim (1) 24/04/2015 Non-Executive and 

Independent 20/04/2016 Director Chairman of NCC

Dr Wee Beng Geok (2) 27/11/2000 Non-Executive and 

Independent 20/04/2016 Director Member of NCC

Professor Lim Pin 19/02/2001 Non-Executive and
Independent 20/04/2016 Director Member of NCC

Mr Raymond Lim Siang Keat 25/04/2013 Non-Executive and
Independent 19/04/2017 Director Member of ARC

Mr Lim Beng Chee 23/07/2015 Non-Executive and
Independent 20/04/2016 Director Nil

Mr Tan Soo Nan 28/07/2000 Executive and
Non-Independent 23/04/2015 Director Nil

Mr Olivier Lim Tse Ghow 01/10/2014 Non-Executive and
Non-Independent 23/04/2015 Director Nil

Dr Sarah Lu Qinghui (3) 20/02/2018 Non-Executive and
Non-Independent – Director Nil

Notes:
(1) Mr Eric Ang Teik Lim was appointed as the Chairman of the NCC with effect from 25 April 2017. Mr Ang ceased to be a Member of the ARC with effect from 25 

April 2017.

(2) Dr Wee Beng Geok ceased to be the Chairman of NCC with effect from 25 April 2017.

(3) Dr Sarah Lu Qinghui was appointed as Non-Executive and Non-Independent Director on 20 February 2018. Dr Lu is the daughter of Dr Loo Choon Yong, 
Executive Chairman of the Company.

Particulars of the interests of Directors who held office at the end of the financial year in shares, debentures, warrants and share 
options in the Company and in related corporations (other than wholly-owned subsidiaries) are set out in the Directors’ Statement.

INDEPENDENT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD
 

The Nomination & Compensation Committee (NCC) is responsible for reviewing the independence of each Director based on the 
guidelines set out in the Code. The Board conducts the review annually and requires each Non-Executive Director to confirm, 
on an annual basis, that there are no material relationships which would render him or her non-independent. The confirmations 
are reviewed by the NCC during which the NCC also considers their respective independent contributions at Board meetings. 
Thereafter, the matter is presented to the Board for it to make a determination taking into account the views of the NCC.
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PRINCIPLE 2: BOARD COMPOSITION AND GUIDANCE (CONT’D)

INDEPENDENT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD (CONT’D)

�,e �oard co2curred >i;, ;,e =ie>s o( ;,e ��� ;,a; all ;,e 
2depe2de2; �irec;ors o( ;,e �o1pa2@ are  co2sidered [
2depe2de2;\ 
as ;,e@ ,a=e 2o relaধo2s,ip >i;, ;,e �o1pa2@T i;s rela;ed corporaধo2sT i;s ��¦ s,are,olders or i;s oăcers ;,a; could i2;er(ereT or 
#e reaso2a#l@ percei=ed ;o i2;er(ereT >i;, ;,e e?ercise o( ;,e #usi2ess /ud+e1e2; (or ;,e #es; i2;eres;s o( ;,e Group as a >,oleW 
�,ere are 2o �irec;ors >,o are dee1ed i2depe2de2; #@ ;,e �oardT 2o;>i;,s;a2di2+ ;,e e?is;e2ce o( a relaধo2s,ip i2 ;,e �ode ;,a; 
>ould o;,er>ise dee1 ,i1c,er 2o; ;o #e i2depe2de2;W 

�,e �oard also co2sidered >,e;,er Mr �o, �o, �io2+T Mr �ee �ec0 �oo2T Mr 	ric �2+ �ei0 �i1T �r �ee �e2+ Geo0T �ro(essor 
�i1 �i2T Mr Ra@1o2d �i1 �ia2+ �ea; a2d Mr �i1 �e2+ �,ee ,ad de1o2s;ra;ed i2depe2de2ce o( c,arac;er a2d /ud+e1e2; i2 ;,e 
disc,ar+e o( ,is or ,er respo2si#iliধes as �irec;ors o( ;,e �o1pa2@ i2 ;,e @ear ����T a2d is saধs)ed ;,a; eac, o( ;,e1 ,ad ac;ed 
>i;, i2depe2de2; /ud+e1e2;W 	ac, o( ;,e1 ,ad also recused ,i1sel( or ,ersel( (ro1 parধcipaধ2+ i2 a2@ �oard deli#eraধo2 o2 a2@ 
;ra2sacধo2s ;,a; could po;e2ধall@ ,a=e +i=e2 rise ;o a co2*ic; o( i2;eres;W �,e �oard ;,ere(ore co2siders ;,a; ;,e relaধo2s,ips a2d 
circu1s;a2ces se; ou; a#o=e did 2o; i1pair ;,eir i2depe2de2ce a2d o#/ecধ=i;@W

�,e �oard is o( ;,e )r1 =ie> ;,a; �r �ee a2d �ro(essor �i1 ,a=e co2;ri#u;ed eøecধ=el@ #@ pro=idi2+ i1parধal a2d au;o2o1ous 
=ie>sT ad=ice a2d /ud+e1e2;T a2d i2 ;,e 1a22er i2 >,ic, ;,e@ disc,ar+e ;,eir respo2si#iliধes as �irec;orsW �,ese �irec;ors ,a=e 
also de1o2s;ra;ed o#/ecধ=i;@ i2 c,arac;er a2d /ud+e1e2; i2 ;,e disc,ar+e o( ;,eir duধes as �irec;ors o( ;,e �o1pa2@W �espi;e ;,e 
le2+;, o( ;e2ureT ;,e �oard is ;,us saধs)ed ;,a; #o;, �r �ee a2d �ro(essor �i1 are co2sidered i2depe2de2;W �,eir roles are 2o2f
e?ecuধ=e i2 2a;ure a2d ;,e@ are also 2o; i2=ol=ed i2 ;,e da@f;ofda@ #usi2ess a2d operaধo2s o( ;,e GroupW �=er ধ1eT ;,e@ ,a=e also 
de=eloped i2depe2de2; a2d i2=alua#le i2si+,;s i2;o ;,e GroupZs Ma2a+e1e2;W �,e leaders,ip 7ualiধes as >ell as deep 02o>led+e 
re1ai2 i1por;a2; (or ;,e Group a2d ;,e �o1pa2@W 
2 addiধo2T ;,ere is 2o associaধo2 >i;, Ma2a+e1e2; ;,a; could co1pro1ise 
;,eir i2depe2de2ceT a2d ;,a; ;,ere(oreT �r �ee a2d �ro(essor �i1 re1ai2 i2depe2de2;W 

�2 ;,e #asis o( ;,e declaraধo2s o( i2depe2de2ce pro=ided #@ ;,e �irec;ors a2d ;,e +uida2ce i2 ;,e �odeT ;,e �oard ,as de;er1i2ed 
;,a; �r �oo �,oo2 �o2+T Mr �a2 �oo �a2T Mr �li=ier �i1 �se G,o> a2d �r �ara, �u �i2+,uiT are ;,e �o2f
2depe2de2; �irec;ors o( 
;,e �o1pa2@W

�,e �oard co2siders i;s �o2f	?ecuধ=e �irec;ors ;o #e o( suăcie2; cali#re a2d 2u1#erW �,eir =ie>s are o( suăcie2; >ei+,; ;,a; 2o 
i2di=idual or s1all +roup ca2 do1i2a;e ;,e �oardZs decisio2f1a0i2+ processesW �,e �o2f	?ecuধ=e �irec;ors ,a=e 2o )2a2cial or 
co2;rac;ual i2;eres;s i2 ;,e Group o;,er ;,a2 #@ >a@ o( ;,eir (eesT s,are,oldi2+s a2d parধcipaধo2 i2 ;,e 	1plo@eesZ �,are �pধo2 
�c,e1es o( ;,e �o1pa2@ as se; ou; i2 ;,e �irec;orsZ �;a;e1e2;W 

�s �o2f	?ecuধ=e 1e1#ers o( ;,e �oardT ;,e �irec;ors e?ercise 2o 1a2a+e1e2; (u2cধo2s i2 ;,e �o1pa2@ or a2@ o( i;s su#sidiariesW 
�l;,ou+, all ;,e �irec;ors are e7uall@ respo2si#le (or ;,e per(or1a2ce o( ;,e GroupT ;,e role o( ;,e �o2f	?ecuধ=e �irec;ors is 
parধcularl@ i1por;a2; i2 e2suri2+ ;,a; ;,e s;ra;e+ies proposed #@ Ma2a+e1e2; are (ull@ discussed a2d ri+orousl@ e?a1i2ed #@ 
;a0i2+ i2;o accou2; ;,e lo2+f;er1 i2;eres;sT 2o; o2l@ (ro1 ;,e perspecধ=e o( all s,are,oldersT #u; also o;,er s;a0e,olders i2 >,ic, 
;,e Group co2duc;s i;s #usi2essW 
2 addiধo2T ;,e �o2f	?ecuধ=e �irec;ors also re=ie> a2d 1o2i;or ;,e per(or1a2ce o( Ma2a+e1e2; 
i2 1eeধ2+ +oals a2d o#/ecধ=esW  

�,e �oard a2d ;,e ��� re+ularl@ e?a1i2e ;,e �oardZs siAe a2dT >i;, a =ie> ;o de;er1i2e ;,e i1pac; o( ;,e 2u1#er upo2 eøecধ=e2essT 
decide o2 a2 appropria;e siAe (or ;,e �oardT ;a0i2+ i2;o accou2; ;,e scope a2d 2a;ure o( ;,e GroupZs operaধo2sW �,e �oard a2d 
��� ;a0e i2;o accou2;T i2;er aliaT ;,e �irec;orsZ co2;ri#uধo2sT areas o( e?perধse a2d scope o( >or0 o2 a2 a22ual #asis i2 e=aluaধ2+ 
>,e;,er ;,e �oardZs co1posiধo2 is ade7ua;eW �,e �oard a2d ��� are saধs)ed ;,a; ;,e curre2; �oardZs siAe a2d co1posiধo2 are 
appropria;e (or ;,e Group ;o (acili;a;e i2depe2de2; a2d eøecধ=e decisio2 1a0i2+W 

�,e �oard co1posiধo2 re*ec;s di=ersi;@ o( s0illsT e?perie2ceT +e2der a2d 02o>led+e o( ;,e GroupW �uc, di=ersi;@ >ill pro=ide a 
>ider ra2+e o( perspecধ=esT s0ills a2d e?perie2ceT >,ic, >ill allo> �oard 1e1#ers ;o #eħer ide2ধ(@ possi#le ris0sT raise c,alle2+i2+ 
7uesধo2s a2d co2;ri#u;e ;o pro#le1fsol=i2+W �,is >illT i2 ;ur2T e2a#le ;,e �oard ;o #eħer +uide a2d ad=ise Ma2a+e1e2; (ro1 ;,is 
#roader perspecধ=e a2d co2;ri#u;e ;o 1ore eøecধ=e decisio2f1a0i2+ ;o assis; ;,e Group i2 ac,ie=i2+ i;s s;ra;e+ic o#/ecধ=esW �ll 
�oard appoi2;1e2;s are 1ade #ased o2 1eri;T i2 ;,e co2;e?; o( ;,e s0illsT e?perie2ceT i2depe2de2ce a2d 02o>led+e >,ic, ;,e 
�oard as a >,ole re7uires ;o #e eøecধ=eW 
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PRINCIPLE 2: BOARD COMPOSITION AND GUIDANCE (CONT’D)

INDEPENDENT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD (CONT’D)

In this respect, the NCC recognises the merits of gender diversity in relation to the composition of the Board and, in identifying 
suitable candidates for a new appointment to the Board, would ensure that female candidates are included for consideration. 
Having said that, gender is but one aspect of diversity and new directors will continue to be selected based on objective criteria set 
as part of the process for appointment of new directors and Board succession planning. In 2017, there was one female director out 
of a total of ten directors. 

The Board has carried out the assessment of each of its Directors for the year 2017 and the paragraphs below set out the outcome 
of the assessment.

Mr Koh Poh Tiong is a Non-Executive and Non-Independent Director of Fraser & Neave Limited, a Non-Executive and Independent 
Director of SATS Ltd, Delfi Limited, as well as Chairman of Bukit Sembawang Estates Limited, Times Publishing Limited and Yunnan 
Yulinquan Liquor Co Ltd. Mr Koh’s roles in all the appointments are non-executive in nature and he is not involved in the business 
operations of the companies. Mr Koh is also an Independent Director of Great Eastern Life Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad and Great 
Eastern General Insurance (Malaysia) Berhad. Mr Koh is a Non-Executive and Non-Independent Director and Advisor of Fraser and 
Neave Limited. Mr Koh is considered independent of management and business relationships with the Company.  

Mr Kee Teck Koon is a Non-Executive Director of CapitaLand Limited and NTUC Income Insurance Co-operative Limited, Mandai 
Safari Park Holdings Pte Ltd and Lien Foundation and Non-Executive Chairman of Changi Airports International Pte. Ltd. Mr Kee’s 
roles in all the above appointments are non-executive in nature and he is not involved in the day-to-day conduct of business of 
the companies. Mr Kee is also appointed as Executive Director of NTUC Enterprise Co-operative Limited. Mr Kee is considered 
independent of management and business relationships with the Company. 

Mr Eric Ang Teik Lim is appointed as Senior Executive Advisor by DBS Bank Ltd (DBS) which provides banking services to the Group. 
The Board considers that the transactions with DBS were carried out in the ordinary course of business, on normal commercial terms 
and at arm’s length basis. In addition, the services were not material in the context of all the services that the Group received from its 
banks in 2017 and the payments made to DBS were also not material relative to the revenue of DBS in 2017. 

Mr Ang is also appointed as Non-Executive and Independent Director of Sembcorp Marine Ltd, a Director of Changi Airport Group 
(Singapore) Pte Ltd, Surbana Jurong Private Limited, DBS Foundation Ltd, NetLink NBN Management Pte Ltd, Co-Chairman of the 
SGX Disciplinary Committee and a Vice-Chairman of Community Chest. These roles are non-executive and advisory in nature, do 
not pose any conflict of interest for Mr Ang,  and he is not involved in the day-to-day conduct of the business of the companies. Mr 
Ang is considered independent of management and business relationships with the Company. 

Mr Raymond Lim Siang Keat is a Non-Executive and Independent Director of Hong Leong Finance Limited and Non-Executive 
Director of Swire Properties Limited. Mr Lim’s role in these appointments are non-executive in nature, and he is not involved in the 
business operations of the companies. Mr Lim is also appointed as the Executive Chairman of APS Asset Management Pte Ltd and a 
Senior Advisor of John Swire & Sons (Hong Kong) Ltd. Mr Lim is considered independent of management and business relationships 
with the Company. 

Mr Lim Beng Chee is appointed as a Non-Executive Director of WIND Group Pte Ltd and SCPG Holdings Co Ltd. Mr Lim’s roles in all 
the appointments are non-executive in nature and he is not involved in the day to day conduct of business of the companies. Mr Lim 
is also appointed as Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director of Shangri-La Asia Limited. Mr Lim is considered independent 
of management and business relationships with the Company. 

Dr Wee Beng Geok and Professor Lim Pin have served for a continuous period of more than 9 years. In compliance with the 
guidelines, the independence of the two Directors has been subjected to rigorous review by the Board, which included a self-
assessment by Dr Wee and Professor Lim, and a substantive assessment by the NCC. Among other things, the NCC takes into 
account whether a Director’s long term relationship with Management could interfere, or be reasonably perceived to interfere, with 
the exercise of the Director’s independent judgement with a view to the best interests of the Company. Both Dr Wee and Professor 
Lim are considered independent of management and business relationships with the Company. 



C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 G
o

v
e

rn
a
n

c
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t

Corporate Governance Statement

39

 Raffles Medical Group  Annual Report 2017

PRINCIPLE 3: CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN)

There should be a clear division of responsibilities between the leadership of the Board and the executives responsible for 
managing the Company’s business. No one individual should represent a considerable concentration of power.

�,e 	?ecuধ=e �,air1a2 is �r �oo �,oo2 �o2+T >,o is respo2si#le (or ;,e o=ersi+,; o( ;,e da@f;ofda@ operaধo2s o( ;,e Group 
a2d co2curre2;l@ e?ercises co2;rol o=er ;,e 7uali;@T 7ua2ধ;@ a2d ধ1eli2ess o( i2(or1aধo2 *o> #e;>ee2 Ma2a+e1e2; a2d ;,e 
�oardW �,e 	?ecuধ=e �,air1a2 leads ;,e �oard ;o e2sure i;s eøecধ=e2ess o2 all aspec;s o( i;s role #@ e2coura+i2+ co2s;rucধ=e 
relaধo2sT seষ2+ ;,e a+e2da a2d e2suri2+ ;,a; ade7ua;e ধ1e are a=aila#le (or ;,e discussio2 o( all i;e1sT pro1oধ2+ a cul;ure 
o( ope22ess a2d de#a;e a; ;,e �oardT e2suri2+ ;,a; ;,e �irec;ors recei=e co1ple;eT ade7ua;e a2d ধ1el@ i2(or1aধo2T e2suri2+ 
eøecধ=e co11u2icaধo2 >i;, s,are,olders a2d (acili;aধ2+ ;,e eøecধ=e co2;ri#uধo2 o( ;,e 2o2fe?ecuধ=e 
2depe2de2; �irec;ors 
as >ell as pro1oধ2+ ,i+, s;a2dards o( corpora;e +o=er2a2ceW 

�,e �o1pa2@ does 2o; ,a=e a separa;e �,ie( 	?ecuধ=e �ăcerW �l;,ou+, i; is a de=iaধo2 (ro1 ;,e �ode >,ic, pro=ides ;,a; ;,ere 
s,ould #e a clear di=isio2 o( respo2si#iliধes #e;>ee2 ;,e leaders,ip o( ;,e �oard a2d ;,e e?ecuধ=es respo2si#le (or 1a2a+i2+ ;,e 
�o1pa2@Zs #usi2essT ;,e �oard co2siders ;,e curre2; leaders,ip s;ruc;ure ;o #e opধ1alW

�,e �oard is o( ;,e opi2io2 ;,a; i; is a#le ;o #e2e); (ro1 a2 acধ=e �,air1a2 >,o is 02o>led+ea#le a#ou; ;,e #usi2ess o( ;,e 
�o1pa2@T a2d is ;,ere#@ #eħer a#le ;o +uide discussio2sW �e is capa#le o( e2suri2+ ;,a; ;,e �oard is properl@ #rie(ed i2 a ধ1el@ 
1a22er o2 perধ2e2; issues a2d de=elop1e2;sW �,e �oard o#;ai2s ;,e i2depe2de2; =ie>s (ro1 i;s 
2depe2de2; �irec;orsW �,e 
�,air1a2 leads ;,e e=aluaধo2 o( ;,e �e2ior Ma2a+e1e2; per(or1a2ce a2d >or0s >i;, ;,e �e2ior Ma2a+e1e2; i2 o=erseei2+ 
;ale2; 1a2a+e1e2; ;o e2sure ;,a; ro#us; successio2 pla2s are i2 place (or ;,e se2ior leaders,ip ;ea1W �,e �,air1a2 es;a#lis,es ;,e 
#ou2daries o( ris0 u2der;a0e2 #@ ;,e Group a2d e2sure ;,a; +o=er2a2ce s@s;e1s a2d processes are i2 place a2d re+ularl@ e=alua;edW

�ll 1a/or decisio2s 1ade #@ ;,e 	?ecuধ=e �,air1a2 are re=ie>ed #@ ;,e �oardW �is per(or1a2ce a2d re1u2eraধo2 are re=ie>ed 
periodicall@ #@ ;,e ���W �,e �oard #elie=es ;,a; ;,ere are ade7ua;e sa(e+uards i2 place a+ai2s; ,a=i2+ a ce2;ralisaধo2 o( po>er 
a2d au;,ori;@ i2 a si2+le i2di=idualW �,ese sa(e+uards i2clude ;,e appoi2;1e2; o( a �ead 
2depe2de2; �irec;orT ,a=i2+ 
2depe2de2; 
�irec;ors (or1ed ;,e 1a/ori;@ o( ;,e �oard a2d ;,e ��� #ei2+ co1posed o( o2l@ 
2depe2de2; �irec;orsW 

�ddiধo2all@T ;,e Ge2eral Ma2a+ers o( eac, #usi2ess u2i; are also respo2si#le (or ;,e e?ecuধo2 o( ;,e GroupZs s;ra;e+ies a2d 
policiesW �,e@ are also accou2;a#le ;o ;,e �oard (or ;,e co2duc; a2d per(or1a2ce o( ;,eir respecধ=e #usi2ess operaধo2sW 

LEAD INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr �o, �o, �io2+ >as appoi2;ed #@ ;,e �oard as ;,e �ead 
2depe2de2; �irec;or si2ce � �a2uar@ ����W �,e (u2cধo2 o( ;,e �ead 

2depe2de2; �irec;or is ;o ser=e i2 a lead capaci;@ ;o coordi2a;e ;,e acধ=iধes o( ;,e �o2f	?ecuধ=e �irec;ors i2 circu1s;a2ces 
>,ere i; >ould #e i2appropria;e (or ;,e 	?ecuধ=e �,air1a2 ;o ser=e i2 suc, capaci;@T a2d ;o assis; ;,e 	?ecuধ=e �,air1a2 a2d ;,e 
�oard ;o e2sure eøecধ=e corpora;e +o=er2a2ce i2 1a2a+i2+ ;,e aøairs o( ;,e �oard a2d ;,e �o1pa2@W 

�,e role o( ;,e �ead 
2depe2de2; �irec;or i2cludes 1eeধ2+ >i;, ;,e �o2f	?ecuধ=e �irec;ors >i;,ou; ;,e 	?ecuধ=e �,air1a2 
prese2; ;o appraise ;,e 	?ecuধ=e �,air1a2Zs per(or1a2ce a2d o2 suc, o;,er occasio2s as are dee1ed appropria;eW �e >ould #e 
a=aila#le ;o s,are,olders >,o ,a=e co2cer2s o2 1aħersT (or >,ic, co2;ac; ;,rou+, ;,e 2or1al c,a22els o( ;,e 	?ecuধ=e �,air1a2T 
;,e �,ie( 
i2a2cial �ăcer l�
�m or ;,e Group 
i2a2cial �o2;roller lG
�m ,a=e (ailed ;o resol=e ;,e issues or (or >,ic, suc, co2;ac; 
is i2appropria;eW �e >ould pro=ide (eed#ac0 ;o ;,e 	?ecuধ=e �,air1a2 ađer suc, 1eeধ2+sW  
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PRINCIPLE 4: BOARD MEMBERSHIP

There should be a formal and transparent process for the appointment and re-appointment of Directors to the Board. 

The Company has established a NCC to, among other things, make recommendations to the Board on all Board appointments, re-
appointments and oversee the Board and key management personnel’s succession and leadership development plans.

The key memberships and responsibilities of the NCC are set out on pages 42 to 44.

Process for selection and appointment of new directors

The NCC is responsible for identifying candidates and reviewing all nominations for the appointments of new Directors. When 
an existing Director chooses to retire or the need for a new Director arises, either to replace a retiring Director or to enhance 
the Board’s strength, the NCC, in consultation with the Board, evaluates and determines the selection criteria so as to identify 
candidates with the appropriate expertise and experience for the appointment as the new Director. The NCC seeks potential 
candidates widely and beyond Directors/Management recommendations and is empowered to engage external parties, such as 
professional search firms, to undertake research on or assessment of candidates as it deems necessary. 

Criteria for Appointment of New Directors

All new appointments are subject to the recommendation of the NCC based on the following objective criteria:

(1) Integrity

(2) Character, business experience and acumen

(3) Diversity – Possess core competencies that meet the needs of the Company and complement the skills and competencies of 
the existing Directors on the Board

(4) Able to commit time and effort to carry out duties and responsibilities effectively

(5) Track record of making good decisions 

(6) Experience in high-performing companies

Re-nomination and Re-appointment of Directors

The NCC is also charged with the responsibility of re-appointment having regard to the Director’s contribution and performance 
(such as attendance, preparedness, participation and candour). 

All Directors, including the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, submit themselves for re-appointment at regular intervals of at 
least once every three years. In accordance with the Company’s Constitution, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if 
their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not greater than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at 
every annual general meeting of the Company. Any Director appointed by the Board during the financial year shall hold office only 
until the next annual general meeting. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. In appointing and recommending the re-
election of Directors, the Board considers the range of skills and experience required in light of: 

(a)  The geographical spread and diversity of the Group’s businesses;

(b)  The strategic direction and progress of the Group;

(c)  The current composition of the Board; and

(d)  The need for independence.
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PRINCIPLE 4: BOARD MEMBERSHIP (CONT’D)

Multiple Board Representation

�,ere a �irec;or ,as 1ulধple �oard represe2;aধo2sT ;,e ��� >ill e=alua;e >,e;,er or 2o; ;,e �irec;or is a#le ;o a2d ,as #ee2 
ade7ua;el@ carr@i2+ ou; ,is or ,er duধes as a �irec;or o( ;,e �o1pa2@W  

�,e ��� ;a0es i2;o accou2;T a1o2+ o;,er ;,i2+sT i2 i;s a22ual re=ie> o( eac, �irec;orZs a#ili;@ ;o co11i; ধ1e ;o ;,e aøairs 
o( ;,e �o1pa2@T ;,e aħe2da2ce records o( ;,e �irec;ors a; 1eeধ2+s o( ;,e �oard a2d �oard �o11iħeeT ;,e co1peধ2+ ধ1e 
co11i;1e2;s (aced #@ a2@ suc, i2di=idual >i;, 1ulধple #oard 1e1#ers,ips as >ell as ;,eir pri2cipal co11i;1e2;sW 

�,e ��� is saধs)ed ;,a; eac, o( ;,e �irec;ors is a#le ;o de=o;e ade7ua;e ধ1e ;o carr@ ou; ,is duধes as �irec;orW �,e �oard ,as 
co2sideredT a2d se; as a +uide ;,a; �irec;ors s,ould 2o; #e represe2;ed o2 1ore ;,a2 si? #oards lis;ed o2 a2@ 	?c,a2+e le?cludi2+ 
2o1i2ee direc;ors,ip o( lis;ed co1pa2ies (or >,ic, ;,e �irec;or is a2 e1plo@eemW �,e �oard #elie=es ;,a; ;,e capaci;@ o( eac, 
�irec;or i2 re+ards ;o ;,e 2u1#er o( lis;ed co1pa2@ direc;ors,ips is speci)c ;o ,is circu1s;a2ceW �,e direc;ors,ips co11i;1e2;s o( 
eac, �irec;or (or ;,e curre2; a2d precedi2+ ;,ree )2a2cial @ears are lis;ed i2 ;,e �22ual Repor;W  �,e �o1pa2@ does 2o; ,a=e a2@ 
al;er2a;e direc;ors o2 i;s �oardW 

�e@ i2(or1aধo2 re+ardi2+ ;,e �irec;ors is se; ou; o2 pa+es ¥ ;o ��T �¤T ¤� ;o ¤� o( ;,e �22ual Repor;W

PRINCIPLE 5: BOARD PERFORMANCE

There should be a formal annual assessment of the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and its board committees and the 
contribution by each Director to the effectiveness of the Board.

�,e ��� re=ie>s ;,e �oardZs per(or1a2ce o2 a2 a22ual #asisT #ased o2 per(or1a2ce cri;eria as a+reed #@ ;,e �oardT a2d decides 
,o> ;,is 1a@ #e e=alua;edW �,e �oard ,as i1ple1e2;ed a process (or assessi2+ ;,e eøecধ=e2ess o( ;,e �oard as a >,oleT i;s �oard 
�o11iħees a2d (or assessi2+ ;,e co2;ri#uধo2 #@ ;,e �irec;ors ;o ;,e eøecধ=e2ess o( ;,e �oardW �,is process i2cludes ,a=i2+ 
�irec;ors co1ple;e a �uesধo22aire see0i2+ ;,eir =ie>s o2 =arious aspec;s o( �oard per(or1a2ceT suc, as �oard co1posiধo2T 
i2(or1aধo2T process a2d accou2;a#ili;@W �,e �o1pa2@ �ecre;ar@T co1piles ;,e �irec;orsZ respo2ses ;o ;,e �uesধo22aire i2;o a 
co2solida;ed repor;W �,e repor; is re=ie>ed #@ ;,e ��� a2d also s,ared >i;, ;,e e2ধre �oardW 

�uri2+ ;,e @ear ����T ;,e �uesধo22aire o2 ;,e per(or1a2ce o( ;,e �oard a2d �oard �o11iħees >as re=ie>ed #ased o2 #es; 
pracধces o2 #oard e=aluaধo2 a2d re=ised ;o ;a0e i2;o co2sideraধo2 0e@ issues a2d areas ;,e �oard >a2;ed ;o (ocus o2W �,e 
�uesধo22aire >as co1ple;ed #@ �irec;orsT a2d re=ie>ed #@ ;,e ��� a2d ;,e2 ;,e �oardW �,e ��� assessed ;,e per(or1a2ce 
o( ;,e �oard as a >,oleT ;a0i2+ i2;o accou2; ;,e �oardZs co1posiধo2 a2d siAeT access ;o i2(or1aধo2T processesT accou2;a#ili;@T 
s;a2dard o( co2duc; a2d per(or1a2ce o( ;,e pri2cipal (u2cধo2s a2d )duciar@ duধesT a2d +uida2ce ;o a2d co11u2icaধo2 >i;, ;,e 
Ma2a+e1e2;W 


2(or1al re=ie>s o( ;,e �oardZs collecধ=e per(or1a2ce are co2duc;ed o2 a re+ular #asis #@ ;,e ��� >i;, i2pu;s (ro1 ;,e o;,er 
�irec;ors a2d ;,e 	?ecuধ=e �,air1a2W �; ;,is s;a+eT ;,e �oard co2siders i; 1ore appropria;e ;o (ocus o2 ;,e �oard per(or1a2ce 
collecধ=el@ i2 i;s appraisal processW 

PRINCIPLE  6: ACCESS TO INFORMATION

In order to fulfil their responsibilities, Directors should be provided with complete, adequate and timely information prior to Board 
Meetings and on an on-going basis so as to enable them to make informed decisions to discharge their duties and responsibilities. 

�,e �o1pa2@ reco+2ises ;,e i1por;a2ce o( pro=idi2+ ;,e �oard >i;, rele=a2; i2(or1aধo2 o2 a ধ1el@ #asis prior ;o �oard 1eeধ2+s 
a2d o2 a2 o2+oi2+ #asisT ;o e2a#le ;,e �irec;ors ;o 1a0e i2(or1ed decisio2s ;o disc,ar+e ;,eir duধes a2d respo2si#iliধesW  
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PRINCIPLE  6: ACCESS TO INFORMATION (CONT’D)

The Board meets regularly at Board meetings. At each Board meeting, the General Managers of each division will provide updates 
on the Group’s business and operations, CFO and GFC will also present the financial performance. Presentations in relation to 
specific business areas are also made by General Managers and external consultants or experts, if required. This allows the Board 
to develop a good understanding of the progress of the Group’s business as well as the issues and challenges facing the Group, and 
also promotes active engagement with the key executives of the Group. 

The Management provides the Board with quarterly financial and related reports as well as quarterly summary data comparing 
key financial metrics relative to the budget and results from prior periods. In respect of budgets and financial results, any material 
variance between the projections and actual results are disclosed and explained. 

All Directors have unrestricted access to the Company’s records and information and receive financial and related reports from 
Management. Directors also liaise with Management as required and may consult with other employees in order to seek additional 
information when needed.

In addition, the Directors have separate and independent access to Senior Management and the Company Secretary at all times. The 
Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring that the established procedures and relevant statutes and regulations 
have been complied with. The Company Secretary attends all the Board Meetings held and her appointment and removal is subject 
to the Board’s approval. 

Each and every Director has the right to seek independent legal and other professional advice, at the Company’s expense, concerning 
any aspect of the operations or undertakings of the Group in order to fulfil their duties and responsibilities as Directors. 

PRINCIPLE 7: PROCEDURES FOR DEVELOPING REMUNERATION POLICIES

There should be a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on executive remuneration and for fixing the 
remuneration packages for individual Directors. No Director should be involved in deciding his own remuneration. 

Matters concerning remuneration and compensation packages for Senior Management and the Executive Chairman are determined 
and reviewed by the NCC giving due regard to the financial and commercial health and business needs of the Group. The NCC is 
fully made up of Independent and Non-Executive Directors. The independence of the NCC is further enhanced by having the Lead 
Independent Director as one of the members of the NCC. No Director is involved in deciding his own remuneration. 

NOMINATION & COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Company has adopted the functions of the nominating and remuneration committees to be performed by the NCC as a single 
Board Committee. The scope and responsibilities of the NCC are set out in the terms of reference approved by the Board which 
include the following: 

(a) Make recommendations to the Board for approval on matters relating to the:

(i) Review of the Board’s succession plans for Directors, including the Executive Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer;

(ii) Development of a process for evaluation of the performance of the Board, its Board Committee and Directors;

(iii) Review of training and professional development programmes for the Directors;

(iv) Recommendation on the appointment and re-appointment of Directors; and

(v) Determination of a framework or broad policy for the remuneration of the Directors. 

(b) Review the structure, size and composition (including skills, qualification, experience and diversity) of the Board and Board 
Committees, recommend changes, if any, to the Board.
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PRINCIPLE 7: PROCEDURES FOR DEVELOPING REMUNERATION POLICIES (CONT’D)

NOMINATION & COMPENSATION COMMITTEE (CONT’D)

lcm Reco11e2daধo2 o( 1e1#ers,ip o( �oard �o11iħees ;o ;,e �oardW

ldm Re=ie> ;,e i2depe2de2; s;a;us o( �o2f	?ecuধ=e �irec;ors a2d ;,e �l;er2a;e �irec;orT i( applica#leT a22uall@T or >,e2 
2ecessar@T alo2+ >i;, issues o( co2*ic; o( i2;eres;W 

lem Reco11e2daধo2 ;o ;,e �oard (or re1o=al a2d refappoi2;1e2; o( �o2f	?ecuধ=e �irec;or a; ;,e e2d o( ,is ;er1 i( ;,e 
appoi2;1e2; is su#/ec; ;o ;e2ureW 
; 1a@ also 1a0e reco11e2daধo2s (or ;,e refelecধo2 o( �irec;ors u2der ;,e pro=isio2s 
o( ;,e �o1pa2@Zs �o2sধ;uধo2 o2 ;,e polic@ o2 reধre1e2; #@ ro;aধo2W 
2 1a0i2+ ;,ese reco11e2daধo2sT ;,e ��� s,ould 
co2sider ;,e �irec;orZs per(or1a2ceT co11i;1e2; a2d ,is a#ili;@ ;o co2ধ2ue co2;ri#uধ2+ ;o ;,e �oardW 

l(m �eep up ;o da;e >i;, de=elop1e2;s i2 corpora;e +o=er2a2ce i2iধaধ=esT c,a2+es ;o rele=a2; le+islaধo2sT s;ra;e+ic issues a2d 
co11ercial c,a2+es ;,a; 1a@ aøec; ;,e �o1pa2@ a2d ;,e i2dus;r@ i2 >,ic, i; opera;esW 

l+m �ssis; ;,e �oard >i;, respo2si#iliধes >i;, re+ard ;o re1u2eraধo2 a2d ;ale2; 1a2a+e1e2;V

lim �a0e i2;o accou2; all rele=a2; le+al a2d re+ula;or@ re7uire1e2;sT i2cludi2+ ;,e pri2ciples a2d +uideli2es o( ;,e �odeT 
>,e2 de;er1i2i2+ ;,e �o1pa2@Zs re1u2eraধo2 policiesW 
2 doi2+ soT i; s,ould also co2sider ;,e �o1pa2@Zs ris0 appeধ;e 
a2d e2sure ;,e policies are ali+2ed ;o lo2+f;er1 +oalsU 

liim �e; ;,e re1u2eraধo2 (ra1e>or0 (or �irec;ors l#o;, 	?ecuধ=e a2d �o2f	?ecuধ=e �irec;orsmT �	� a2d �e@ Ma2a+e1e2; 
�erso22elsW �o �irec;or or 1a2a+er s,all #e i2=ol=ed i2 a2@ decisio2s as ;o ;,eir o>2 re1u2eraধo2W �,e �oard s,ould 
reco11e2d �o2f	?ecuধ=e �irec;orsZ (ees (or s,are,oldersZ appro=alU 

liiim Re=ie> ;,e o2+oi2+ appropria;e2ess a2d rele=a2ce o( ;,e �o1pa2@Zs re1u2eraধo2 polic@U

li=m �#;ai2 relia#leT upf;ofda;e i2(or1aধo2 o2 ;,e re1u2eraধo2 pracধces o( o;,er co1pa2ies a2d ;,e rele=a2; 1ar0e; 
#e2c,1ar0s ;,rou+, ;,e appoi2;1e2; o( e?;er2al co2sul;a2;sW �uc, i2(or1aধo2 ca2 also #e o#;ai2ed #@ co11issio2i2+ 
or purc,asi2+ a2@ appropria;e repor;sT sur=e@s or i2(or1aধo2W �,ese >ill #e a; ;,e e?pe2se o( ;,e �o1pa2@T su#/ec; ;o 
;,e #ud+e;ar@ co2s;rai2;s i1posed #@ ;,e �oardU 

l=m �=ersee a2@ 1a/or c,a2+es i2 e1plo@ee #e2e);s or re1u2eraধo2 s;ruc;uresU

l=im Re=ie> ;,e desi+2 o( all lo2+f;er1 a2d s,or;f;er1 i2ce2ধ=e pla2s (or appro=al #@ ;,e �oard a2d s,are,oldersU 

l=iim �,e2 re7uiredT re=ie> ;,e co2;rac;ual ;er1s a2d a2@ ;er1i2aধo2 pa@1e2;s are (air ;o ;,e i2di=idual a2d ;,e �o1pa2@W 
�oor per(or1a2ce s,ould 2o; #e re>ardedU 

l=iiim �=ersee a2d colla#ora;e >i;, 	?ecuধ=e �irec;ors o2 ;,e ;ale2; 1a2a+e1e2; a2d successio2 pla22i2+ 1aħers (or 
e?ecuধ=esU a2d 

li?m �or0 a2d liaiseT as 2ecessar@ >i;, all o;,er �oard �o11iħees o2 a2@ o;,er 1aħer co22ec;ed >i;, re1u2eraধo2W

l,m Re=ie> ;,e desi+2 o( all 	1plo@ee �,are �pধo2 �c,e1es appro=ed #@ ;,e �oard a2d ;,e s,are,oldersW 
or a2@ suc, sc,e1esT 
i; s,all de;er1i2e eac, @earT >,e;,er a>ards >ill #e 1adeT a2d i( soT ;,e o=erall a1ou2; o( suc, a>ardsT ;,e i2di=idual a>ards 
;o eli+i#le perso2s a2d ;,e per(or1a2ce ;ar+e;s ;o #e usedW

lim 	1po>ered ;o dele+a;e ;o 	?ecuধ=e �,air1a2 or �o1pa2@ �ecre;ar@ ;o appro=e a2d release suc, a22ou2ce1e2;s i2 
relaধo2 ;o ;,e ad1i2is;raধo2 o( ;,e 	1plo@ee �,are �pধo2 �c,e1es ;,a; are re7uired (or ;,e co1plia2ce >i;, ;,e �i2+apore 
	?c,a2+e �ecuriধes �radi2+ �i1i;ed l�G�f��m �isধ2+ Ma2ualW
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Expanding Our Landmark for You

PRINCIPLE 7: PROCEDURES FOR DEVELOPING REMUNERATION POLICIES (CONT’D)

NOMINATION & COMPENSATION COMMITTEE (CONT’D)

The Chairman of the NCC is Independent Director, Mr Eric Ang Teik Lim. The other members are Lead Independent Director, Mr 
Koh Poh Tiong, Independent Directors, Professor Lim Pin and Dr Wee Beng Geok, all having managed large organisations and 
Professor Lim Pin, having been the past Chairman of the National Wages Council, are all knowledgeable and experienced in the 
field of executive compensation. 

The NCC seeks expert advice and views on remuneration and governance matters from both within and outside the Group as 
appropriate. By drawing on a pool of independent consultants for diversified views and specific expertise, the NCC ensures that 
existing relationship, if any, between the Group and its appointed remuneration consultants will not affect the independence and 
objectivity of the remuneration consultants.

PRINCIPLE 8: LEVEL AND MIX OF REMUNERATION

The level and structure of remuneration should be aligned with the long-term interest and risk policies of the Company, and 
should be appropriate to attract, retain and motivate (a) the Directors to provide good stewardship of the Company, and (b) key 
management personnel to successfully manage the Company. However, companies should avoid paying more than is necessary 
for this purpose.

The Group’s remuneration policy is to provide compensation packages at market rates to reward successful performance and 
attract, retain and motivate Senior Management and Directors. Remuneration packages are based on the performance of the Group 
as well as the individual. In determining the remuneration packages, the NCC takes into consideration industry practices and norms 
in compensation. The Directors and Senior Management are eligible for share options under the RMG (2010) Share Option Scheme. 

The NCC determines and reviews the remuneration packages for the Executive Chairman and Senior Management based on the 
Group’s remuneration policy. The NCC consists fully of Independent Directors. The objectivity of the NCC is further enhanced by 
the inclusion of the Lead Independent Director as a key member of the committee. Through the use of contractual provisions, the 
Group may exercise its discretion, to reclaim incentive components of remuneration from the relevant management personnel in 
exceptional circumstances of misstatement of financial results, or of misconduct resulting in financial loss to the Company. 

The NCC reviews and makes recommendations to the Board in relation to Directors’ fees. The Directors’ fees to be paid to the 
Directors are recommended for shareholders’ approval annually. The fees are structured on the basis that Directors with additional 
duties as members or Chairmen of Board Committees would receive a higher portion of the total fees. 

PRINCIPLE 9: DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION

Every Company should provide clear disclosure of its remuneration policies, level and mix of remuneration,  and the procedure for 
setting remuneration in the Company’s Annual Report. It should provide disclosure in relation to its remuneration policies to enable 
investors to understand the link between remuneration paid to Directors and key management personnel, and performance. 

The Group adopts a performance-based remuneration framework that is linked to its growth and profitability. The level and mix of 
remuneration awarded to the Management and Directors are flexible and responsive to the market conditions. It also takes into 
account the performance of the individual as well as the performance of the business units within the Group. 
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PRINCIPLE 9: DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION (CONT’D)

�e;ails o( �irec;orsZ re1u2eraধo2 (or ;,e @ear e2ded �� �ece1#er ���� are se; ou; #elo>V

Remuneration Band Number of Directors

2017 (2) 2016 (1)

����T��� a2d a#o=e � �
����T��� a2d #elo> ����T��� � �
�elo> ����T��� ¥ ¥

�� ��
Notes:
l�m 
2cludes �irec;orZs re1u2eraধo2 paid ;o Mr 	ric �2+ �ei0 �i1T >,o >as appoi2;ed as �,air1a2 o( ;,e �o1i2aধo2 a2d �o1pe2saধo2 �o11iħee o2 �� �pril ����W

l�m �r �ara, �u �i2+,ui >as appoi2;ed ;o ;,e �oard o2 �� 
e#ruar@ ���¥W

�,ils; ;,e �ode reco11e2ds ;,a; ;,e �o1pa2@ (ull@ disclose ;,e re1u2eraধo2 o( eac, i2di=idual �irec;or a2d ;,e �,ie( 	?ecuধ=e 
�ăcer o2 a 2a1ed #asisT ;,e �o1pa2@ ,asT +i=e2 ;,e se2siধ=i;@ o( re1u2eraধo2 1aħersT op;ed 2o; ;o disclose ;,e ;o;al re1u2eraধo2 
o( eac, i2di=idual �irec;or i2 dollar ;er1s ;o 1ai2;ai2 co2)de2ধali;@ o( ;,e re1u2eraধo2 pac0a+es o( ;,ese �irec;orsW 
or ;,e sa1e 
reaso2sT ;,e �o1pa2@ also does 2o; pro=ide a2 upper li1i; ;o ;,e re1u2eraধo2 #a2d o( [����T��� a2d a#o=e\W 

� su11ar@ o( ;,e co1pe2saধo2 (or eac, i2di=idual �irec;or (or ;,e @ear e2ded �� �ece1#er ���� is as (ollo>sV

Name of Director Salary (1)

%
Bonus (2)

%
Director’s Fees

%

Share Options 
Grant

%

Total 
Compensation

%
$500,000 and above
�r �oo �,oo2 �o2+ 
	?ecuধ=e �,air1a2 a2d �o2f
2depe2de2;

� �� g g ���

$250,000 and below $500,000
Mr �a2 �oo �a2
	?ecuধ=e a2d �o2f
2depe2de2;

¤� �� �� �� ���

Below $250,000
Mr �o, �o, �io2+
�o2f	?ecuধ=e a2d 
2depe2de2;

g g ¤� 33 ���

Mr �ee �ec0 �oo2
�o2f	?ecuধ=e a2d 
2depe2de2;

g g ¤� �¤ ���

Mr 	ric �2+ �ei0 �i1
�o2f	?ecuধ=e a2d 
2depe2de2;

g g ��� f ���

�r �ee �e2+ Geo0
�o2f	?ecuধ=e a2d 
2depe2de2;

g g ¤� �� ���

�ro(essor �i1 �i2
�o2f	?ecuধ=e a2d 
2depe2de2;

g g ¤� �� ���

Mr Ra@1o2d �i1 �ia2+ �ea;
�o2f	?ecuধ=e a2d 
2depe2de2;

g g ¤� �� ���

Mr �i1 �e2+ �,ee
�o2f	?ecuধ=e a2d 
2depe2de2;

g g �¤ �� ���

Mr �li=ier �i1 �se G,o>
�o2f	?ecuধ=e a2d �o2f
2depe2de2;

g g ¤� �� ���

Notes:
l�m �,e salar@ a1ou2; s,o>2 is i2clusi=e o( allo>a2ces a2d s;a;u;or@ co2;ri#uধo2s ;o ;,e �e2;ral �ro=ide2; 
u2dW

l�m �,e #o2us a1ou2; s,o>2 is i2clusi=e o( s;a;u;or@ co2;ri#uধo2s ;o ;,e �e2;ral �ro=ide2; 
u2dW
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PRINCIPLE 9: DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION (CONT’D)

KEY EXECUTIVES’ REMUNERATION

The Group’s remuneration policy is one that seeks to ensure that the remuneration offered is competitive and sufficient to attract, 
retain and motivate Directors and key management personnel (KMPs) to achieve the Company’s business vision and create 
sustainable value for its stakeholders. 

The remuneration policy adopted by the Group comprises a fixed component, monthly variable component and a performance 
related variable component. The fixed and monthly variable component is in the form of a base salary, fixed allowances and 
compulsory employer contributions to an employee’s Central Provident Fund. The performance related variable component is in 
the form of bonus and awards under the Raffles Medical Group (2010) Share Option Scheme (RMG 2010 Scheme) and depends 
on the relative performance of the Group, business units and the performance of each individual Executive Director and KMPs, 
allowing for the alignment of their interests with that of Shareholders. Key information on the RMG 2010 Scheme is set out on 
Pages 64 to 67 of the Annual Report.

The Directors receive Directors’ fees, in accordance with their contributions, taking into account factors such as effort, time spent 
and the individual responsibilities of the respective Directors. The Directors’ fees are recommended by the NCC and endorsed by 
the Board for approval of Shareholders of the Company at the AGM. Each member of NCC abstains from making a recommendation 
of his/her remuneration. 
 

The Code requires the remuneration of at least the top five key executives, who are not in the capacity of a Director or the Chief 
Executive Officer within bands of $250,000, to be disclosed. However, due to commercial sensitivities, the Company believes that 
the disclosure of the remuneration of individual executives is disadvantageous to the business interest and long-term performance 
of the Group, especially in a highly competitive industry. 

The Company had also not disclosed the total remuneration paid to its top five key executives (who are not Directors or the Chief 
Executive Officer) on a named basis or in aggregate, having regard to the sensitive and confidential nature of key executives’ 
remuneration matters and to ensure the Company’s competitive advantage in the retention of its key executives. 

During the financial year under review, there are no employees in the Group who are the immediate family members of a Director 
or the Chief Executive Officer.

PRINCIPLE 10: ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board should present a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects.

The Group prepares its financial statements in accordance with the Singapore Financial Reporting Standards. In presenting its 
quarterly and full year financial results to shareholders, the Board aims to provide to the shareholders a balanced and comprehensive 
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects. 

In line with the Listing Rules of the SGX-ST, the Board provides a negative assurance statement to the shareholders in its quarterly 
financial statements, announcements, confirming to the best of its knowledge that nothing had come to the attention of the Board 
which might render the financial statements false or misleading in any material aspect. The Company also keeps its shareholders, 
stakeholders and analysts informed of the performance and changes in the Group or its business which would likely to materially 
affect the price or value of the Company’s securities on a timely and consistent basis, so as to assist shareholders and investors in 
their investment decision.

The Group, where appropriate, has taken adequate steps to ensure that the Company complies with its disclosure obligations under 
the listing manual. By fulfilling the statutory reporting requirements, the Group hopes to maintain shareholders’ confidence and 
trust the capability and integrity of the Company. 
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PRINCIPLE 10: ACCOUNTABILITY (CONT’D)

�s ,as #ee2 i2;roduced earlierT ;,e ��� a2d ;,e �R� ,a=e #ee2 dele+a;ed speci)c (u2cধo2s ;o assis; ;,e �oard i2 ;,e e?ecuধo2 
o( i;s duধesW

NOMINATION & COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

�,e co1posiধo2 o( ;,e ��� a2d i;s dele+a;ed duধes are se; ou; i2 ;,e secধo2 u2der �ri2ciple � o( ;,is �;a;e1e2;W

AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE

�,e co1posiধo2 o( ;,e �R� a2d i;s dele+a;ed duধes are se; ou; i2 ;,e secধo2s u2der �ri2ciples �� ;o �� o( ;,is �;a;e1e2;W

PRINCIPLE 11: RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for the governance of risk. The Board should ensure that Management maintains a sound system of 
risk management and internal controls to safeguard shareholders’ interests and the Company’s assets, and should determine the 
nature and extent of the significant risks which the Board is willing to take in achieving its strategic objectives.

�,e �irec;ors reco+2ise ;,a; ;,e@ ,a=e ;,e o=erall respo2si#ili;@ ;o e2sure accura;e )2a2cial reporধ2+ a2d ade7ua;e s@s;e1 o( 
i2;er2al co2;rols (or ;,e GroupT i2cludi2+ )2a2cialT operaধo2alT co1plia2ceT i2(or1aধo2 ;ec,2olo+@ co2;rols a2d ris0 1a2a+e1e2; 
policies a2d s@s;e1sW �,is respo2si#ili;@ ,as #ee2 dele+a;ed ;o ;,e �R� >,ose ;er1s o( re(ere2ce also i2clude ;,e (ollo>i2+ (u2cধo2V 

�=ersee Ris0 Ma2a+e1e2; a2d 
2;er2al �o2;rols li2 relaধo2 ;o 
i2a2cialT �peraধo2alT �o1plia2ce a2d 
2(or1aধo2 �ec,2olo+@ 
�o2;rolsm

lim Re=ie> ;,e GroupZs le=els o( ris0 ;olera2ce a2d ris0 policiesT a2d o=ersee Ma2a+e1e2; i2 ;,e desi+2T i1ple1e2;aধo2 a2d 
1o2i;ori2+ o( ;,e ris0 1a2a+e1e2; a2d i2;er2al co2;rol s@s;e1sU 

liim Re=ie> ;,e GroupZs ris0 pro)le c ris0 das,#oard o2 a re+ular #asis ;o u2ders;a2d ;,e si+2i)ca2; ris0s (aci2+ ;,e Group a2d ,o> 
;,e@ are #ei2+ 1iধ+a;edU 

liiim �; leas; a22uall@T re=ie> ;,e ade7uac@ a2d eøecধ=e2ess o( ;,e ris0 1a2a+e1e2; a2d i2;er2al co2;rol s@s;e1s >i;, respec; 
;o )2a2cialT operaধo2alT co1plia2ce a2d i2(or1aধo2 ;ec,2olo+@ co2;rolsW �,is 1a@ i2clude re=ie>i2+ Ma2a+e1e2; a2d c or 
assura2ce pro=ider repor;s ;o ,i+,li+,; si+2i)ca2; )2di2+s a2d reco11e2daধo2sT i2clusi=e o( Ma2a+e1e2;Zs respo2sesU 

li=m Re=ie> ;,e assura2ce pro=ided #@ ;,e �,ie( 	?ecuধ=e �ăcer l�	�m a2d �,ie( 
i2a2cial �ăcer l�
�m c Group 
i2a2cial 
�o2;roller lG
�m re+ardi2+ ;,e eøecধ=e2ess o( ris0 1a2a+e1e2; a2d i2;er2al co2;rolsU 

l=m Re=ie> repor; re+ardi2+ ;,e ade7uac@ a2d eøecধ=e2ess o( ris0 1a2a+e1e2; a2d i2;er2al co2;rol s@s;e1s ;o ;,e �oardU 

l=im Re=ie> disclosures i2 ;,e �22ual Repor; relaধ2+ ;o ;,e ade7uac@ a2d eøecধ=e2ess o( ;,e ris0 1a2a+e1e2; a2d i2;er2al 
co2;rol s@s;e1sU a2d 

l=iim Re=ie> ;,e GroupZs procedures (or de;ecধ2+ (raud a2d >,is;lef#lo>i2+T a2d e2sure ;,a; arra2+e1e2;s are i2 place #@ >,ic, 
s;aø o( ;,e Group a2d a2@ o;,er perso2s 1a@T i2 co2)de2ceT raise co2cer2s a#ou; possi#le i1proprieধes i2 1aħers o( )2a2cial 
reporধ2+T )2a2cial co2;rolT or a2@ o;,er 1aħersW 
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PRINCIPLE 11: RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS (CONT’D)

The Group has adopted an entity-wide risk assessment framework to enhance its risk management capabilities. The framework 
provides a holistic overview of the Group’s risk profile by identifying key risks, control measures, risk tolerance, risk ownership 
and assurance on residual risk. At least annually, the framework are reviewed by the ARC and approved by the Board. This allows 
the Group to address the ongoing changes and the challenges in the business environment, reduces uncertainties and facilitates 
the shareholder value creation process. Key risks, control measures and management actions are identified by Management and 
reviewed annually by the ARC. The Board, through the ARC and Management continues to improve and enhance the risk assessment 
framework.  

The Board also reviews the Group’s business and operational activities to identify areas of significant business risks as well as 
the measures in place to control and mitigate these risks within the Group’s policies and business strategies. The risk assessment 
exercise also includes identifying and assessing key risk areas of the Group such as financial, operational, compliance and information 
technology risks based on the feedback of the Internal Auditors and External Auditors.  

The Board, together with ARC, also oversees the Management in implementing the risk management and internal control systems 
and are responsible for governance of risk management and determining the Group’s levels of risk tolerance and risk policies. There 
are also consultations with the external auditors and internal auditors to determine the risk tolerance level and corresponding risk 
policies. 

The Group has compiled a report on its risk profile which summarises the material risks faced by the Group and the countermeasures 
in place to manage or mitigate those risks for the review by the ARC and the Board annually. The report provides an overview of 
the Group’s key risks, the appropriate risk tolerance limits set for the respective risks, the key personnel responsible for each 
identified risk type and the various mechanisms in place. It allows the Group to address the ongoing changes and the challenges 
in the business environment, reduces uncertainties and facilitates the shareholder value creation process. On an annual basis, the 
internal audit function prepares the internal audit plan taking into consideration the risks identified which is approved by the ARC. 

During the financial year under review, the ARC had reviewed the reports submitted by the internal auditors relating to the audits 
conducted to assess the adequacy and the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and the internal control systems put 
in place, including financial, operational, compliance and information technology controls systems. Any material, non-compliance 
or lapses in internal controls, together with recommendation for improvement to the ARC. A copy of the report is also issued to 
the relevant department for its follow-up action. The timely and proper implementation of all required corrective, preventive or 
improvement measures are closely monitored. In addition, major control weaknesses in financial reporting identified in the course 
of the statutory audit, if any, are highlighted by the external auditors to the ARC. 

Based on the work performed by the internal auditors, the statutory audit by the external auditors and reviews performed by 
Management, the Board, with the concurrence of the ARC, is of the opinion that the Group has adequate and effective risk 
management systems and internal controls in place to mitigate critical and significant risks in the following areas: Financial, 
Operational, Compliance and Information Technology Risks. 

While no system can provide absolute assurance against material loss or financial misstatement, the Group’s internal financial 
controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, that proper accounting records are maintained, 
and that the financial information used within the business and for publication is reliable. In reviewing these controls, the Directors 
have had regard to the risks to which the business is exposed, the likelihood of such risks occurring and the costs of protecting 
against them. 

The Directors have also received assurance from the Executive Chairman, CFO and the GFC that the Group’s financial records have 
been properly maintained and that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the Group’s operations and finances, as well 
as the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal controls systems. 
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PRINCIPLE 12: AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board should establish an Audit Committee with written terms of reference which clearly set out its authority and duties.

�,e �R� is c,aired #@ Mr �ee �ec0 �oo2 a2d co1prises Mr �o, �o, �io2+T ;,e �ead 
2depe2de2; �irec;or a2d Mr Ra@1o2d �i1 
�ia2+ �ea;W �ll 1e1#ers o( ;,e �R� are �o2f	?ecuধ=e a2d 
2depe2de2; �irec;orsW �ll ;,e �R� 1e1#ers are acধ=el@ i2=ol=ed i2 
=arious o;,er co11ercial or+a2isaধo2sT a2d ,a=e i2=alua#le a2d rece2; rela;ed )2a2cial 1a2a+e1e2; e?perie2ce ;o disc,ar+e 
�R�Zs (u2cধo2sW �o2e o( ;,e �R� 1e1#ers >ere pre=iousl@ par;2ers or �irec;ors o( ;,e e?;er2al audi;orsT ��MG ���T >i;,i2 ;,e 
pre=ious �� 1o2;,s 2or does a2@ o( ;,e �R� 1e1#ers ,old a2@ )2a2cial i2;eres; i2 ��MG ���W  

�,e �R� 1e1#ers 1ee; ;,e GroupZs i2;er2al a2d e?;er2al audi;orsT >i;,ou; ;,e prese2ce o( Ma2a+e1e2;T o2ce a @ear ;o re=ie> 
accou2ধ2+T audiধ2+ a2d )2a2cial reporধ2+ 1aħersW �,is is ;o e2sure ;,a; a2 eøecধ=e co2;rol e2=iro21e2; is 1ai2;ai2ed i2 
;,e GroupW �,e �R� also 1o2i;ors proposed c,a2+es i2 accou2ধ2+ policies a2d discusses ;,e accou2ধ2+ i1plicaধo2s o( 1a/or 
;ra2sacধo2sW 
2 addiধo2T ;,e �R� also ad=ises ;,e �oard re+ardi2+ ;,e ade7uac@ o( ;,e GroupZs i2;er2al co2;rols a2d ;,e co2;e2;s 
a2d prese2;aধo2 o( i;s 7uar;erl@ a2d a22ual )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;sW

�peci)call@T ;,e respo2si#iliধes o( ;,e �R� i2cludeV

lam    �=ersee 
i2a2cial Reporধ2+

lim Mo2i;or ;,e i2;e+ri;@ o( ;,e )2a2cial i2(or1aধo2 pro=ided #@ ;,e GroupT i2 parধcular #@ re=ie>i2+ ;,e rele=a2ce a2d 
co2sis;e2c@ o( ;,e accou2ধ2+ s;a2dards used #@ ;,e su#sidiaries a2d ;,e GroupU

liim �ssessT a2d c,alle2+eT >,ere 2ecessar@T ;,e accurac@T co1ple;e2essT a2d co2sis;e2c@ o( )2a2cial i2(or1aধo2 #e(ore 
su#1iষ2+ ;o ;,e �oard (or appro=al or 1ade pu#licU a2d

liiim Re=ie> ;,e assura2ce pro=ided #@ ;,e �	� a2d �
� c G
� re+ardi2+ ;,e )2a2cial records #ei2+ properl@ 1ai2;ai2ed 
a2d ;,e )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;s +i=i2+ a ;rue a2d (air =ie> o( ;,e GroupZs operaধo2s a2d )2a2cesW 

l#m    �=ersee 	?;er2al �udi;

lim �=ersee ;,e GroupZs relaধo2s >i;, ;,e e?;er2al audi;orlsmU

liim Re=ie> ;,e per(or1a2ce o( ;,e e?;er2al audi;orlsmT ;o (acili;a;e ;,e selecধo2T appoi2;1e2;T refappoi2;1e2;T a2d 
resi+2aধo2U 

liiim Mo2i;or a2d assess a22uall@ ;,e e?;er2al audi;orlsmZ i2depe2de2ce or o#/ecধ=i;@ is 2o; i1pairedU 

li=m Re=ie> ;,e audi; represe2;aধo2 leħer a2d ;,e e?;er2al audi;orlsmZ Ma2a+e1e2; leħer ;o assess >,e;,er i; is #ased o2 a 
+ood u2ders;a2di2+ o( ;,e GroupZs #usi2essT a2d 1o2i;or ;,e respo2si=e2ess o( Ma2a+e1e2; ;o ;,e reco11e2daধo2s 
1adeU 

l=m 	s;a#lis, 1eeধ2+s >,e2e=er dee1ed 2ecessar@ >i;, ;,e e?;er2al audi;orlsm ;o discuss 1aħers ;,a; ;,e �o11iħee or 
audi;ors #elie=e s,ould #e discussed pri=a;el@U a2d 

l=im  	2sure ;,a; ;,e e?;er2al audi;orlsm ,a=e direc; a2d u2res;ric;ed access ;o ;,e �,air1a2 o( ;,e �o11iħee a2d ;,e 
�,air1a2 o( ;,e �oardW 



C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 G
o

v
e

rn
a
n

c
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t

Corporate Governance Statement

50

Expanding Our Landmark for You

PRINCIPLE 12: AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONT’D)

(c)    Oversee Compliance

(i) Review the effectiveness of the system for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations and the results of 
Management’s investigation and follow up of any instances of non-compliance; 

(ii) Monitor the processes for addressing complaints made regarding accounting, internal controls and / or auditing matters; 

(iii) Clarify the Group’s code of conduct and process for disseminating requirements across all Group personnel and 
monitoring levels of compliance; and 

(iv)  Maintain open communication with and receive periodic reports from Management and Group legal counsel regarding 
compliance matters. 

(d) Oversee Interested Persons Transactions (IPTs)

(i) Review IPTs to consider whether they are on normal commercial terms and are not prejudicial to the interests of the 
Group or its minority shareholders; 

(ii) Review methods or procedures used for determining that such transactions are or will be carried out on normal 
commercial terms and not prejudicial to the issuer or its minority shareholders; and 

(iii) Receive reports from Management and Internal Audit regarding IPTs. Report to shareholders on IPTs as required by the 
Listing Manual. 

The other delegated duties of the ARC can be found under Principles 11 and 13 of this Statement.

The ARC is authorised to investigate any matter within its Terms of Reference as approved by the Board, and has full access to 
Management and also full discretion, to invite any Director or Executive Officer to attend its meetings, as well as reasonable 
resources to enable it to discharge its functions properly.

In exercise of its responsibilities, the ARC undertook a review of the independence of our external auditors, KPMG LLP (KPMG) 
to assess that the objectivity of the auditors is not impaired. In its assessment, the ARC deliberated on the Group’s relationship 
with KPMG and the processes, policies and safeguards adopted by KPMG relating to audit independence. The ARC also took into 
consideration the nature and volume of the provision of non-audit services in 2017 as well as the corresponding fees for prior years. 
Based on the review, the ARC is of the opinion that KPMG is, and is perceived to be, independent for the purpose of the Group’s 
statutory financial audit. 

The fees paid to KPMG are set out on Page 130 of the Annual Report. 

The Group has put in place a whistle-blowing policy. This policy provides well-defined and accessible channels through which 
employees, in confidence and good faith, without fear of reprisal, may report concerns about possible improprieties in matters of 
financial reporting or other matters within the Group. Details of the policy are posted on the Group’s intranet for employees’ easy 
reference. 
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PRINCIPLE 13: INTERNAL AUDIT

The Company should establish an effective internal audit function that is adequately resourced and independent of the activities 
it audits.

�,e Group ,as a2 i2;er2al audi; l
�m (u2cধo2 ;,a; is i2depe2de2; o( ;,e acধ=iধes i; audi;sW �,e i2;er2al audi;ors repor; ;o ;,e 
�,air1a2 o( ;,e �R� (u2cধo2all@ a2d ;o a2 	?ecuধ=e �irec;or ad1i2is;raধ=el@W 

�,e depar;1e2; per(or1i2+ ;,e 
� (u2cধo2 ,as adop;ed a2d co1plied >i;, ;,e �;a2dards (or ;,e �ro(essio2al �racধce o( 
2;er2al 
�udiধ2+ #@ �,e 
2sধ;u;e o( 
2;er2al �udi;orsW 
; opera;es >i;,i2 ;,e (ra1e>or0 s;a;ed i2 i;s 
� �,ar;erT >,ic, is appro=ed #@ 
;,e �R�W 
; adop;s a ris0f#ased audi; 1e;,odolo+@ ;o de=elop i;s audi; pla2s >,ic, ali+2 i;s acধ=iধes ;o 0e@ ris0s across ;,e 
GroupW �ased o2 ris0 assess1e2;s per(or1edT +rea;er (ocus a2d appropria;e re=ie> i2;er=als are se; (or ,i+,er ris0 acধ=iধes a2d 
1a;erial i2;er2al co2;rolsT i2cludi2+ co1plia2ce >i;, ;,e GroupZs policiesT procedures a2d re+ula;or@ respo2si#iliধesW �,e 
� pla2s 
are re=ie>ed a2d appro=ed #@ ;,e �R�W 

�,e �R� >ill e2sure ;,a; ;,e depar;1e2; per(or1i2+ ;,e 
� (u2cধo2 ,as ade7ua;e resources a2d appropria;e s;a2di2+ >i;,i2 ;,e 
Group ;o per(or1 i;s (u2cধo2 eøecধ=el@T i2cludi2+ ;,e assess1e2; o( ;,e audi;orsZ relaধo2s,ip >i;, e?;er2al audi;ors a2d ;,e 
audi;orsZ i2depe2de2ce o( ;,e areas re=ie>edW �ddiধo2all@T ;,e �R� also carries ou; ;,e (ollo>i2+ (u2cধo2sV 

�=ersee 
�

lam Mo2i;or a2d assess ;,e role a2d eøecধ=e2ess o( ;,e 
� (u2cধo2 li2cludi2+ ;,e 
� �,ar;erT pla2sT acধ=iধesT s;aă2+T #ud+e;T 
resourcesT a2d or+a2isaধo2al s;ruc;ure o( ;,e 
� (u2cধo2mU 

l#m Re=ie> ;,e 
� pro+ra11e a2d repor;s o2 a periodic #asis a2d 1o2i;or Ma2a+e1e2;Zs respo2si=e2ess ;o ;,e )2di2+s a2d 
reco11e2daধo2sU 

lcm 	2sure ;,a; ;,e �ead o( 
� ,as direc; a2d u2res;ric;ed access ;o ;,e �,air1a2 o( ;,e �oard a2d �o11iħeeT a2d is a#le ;o 
1ee; separa;el@ a2d pri=a;el@ ;o discuss 1aħers c co2cer2sU a2d 

ldm �arধcipa;e i2 ;,e appoi2;1e2;T replace1e2; or dis1issal o( ;,e �ead o( 
�W 

�o e2sure ;,a; i2;er2al audi;s are per(or1ed #@ co1pe;e2; pro(essio2alsT ;,e Group recrui;s a2d e1plo@s sui;a#l@ 7uali)ed 
pro(essio2al s;aø >i;, ;,e re7uisi;e s0ill se;s a2d e?perie2ceW �,e Group (ur;,er i2=es;s i2 ;,e ;rai2i2+ a2d de=elop1e2; o( 

2;er2al �udi; ;o e2sure ;,a; ;,eir pro(essio2al co1pe;e2ce is 1ai2;ai2edW �,e �R� appro=es ;,e ,iri2+T re1o=alT e=aluaধo2 a2d 
;,e re1u2eraধo2 o( ;,e 
2;er2al �udi;orsW �,e 
2;er2al �udi;ors ,a=e u2(eħered access ;o all ;,e GroupZs docu1e2;sT recordsT 
properধesT perso22el a2d ;,e �R�W 

PRINCIPLE 14: SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Companies should treat all shareholders fairly and equitably, and should recognise, protect and facilitate the exercise of 
shareholders’ rights, and continually review and update such governance arrangements. 

�,e GroupZs ro#us; corpora;e +o=er2a2ce cul;ure a2d a>are2ess pro1o;e (air a2d e7ui;a#le ;rea;1e2; o( all s,are,oldersW �ll 
s,are,olders e2/o@ speci)c ri+,;s u2der ;,e �i2+apore �o1pa2ies �c; a2d ;,e �o1pa2@Zs �o2sধ;uধo2W �ll s,are,olders are ;rea;ed 
(airl@ a2d e7ui;a#l@W �,ese ri+,;s i2cludeT a1o2+s; o;,ersT pecu2iar@ ri+,;sT (or e?a1pleT ;,e ri+,; ;o parধcipa;e i2 pro); dis;ri#uধo2s 
a2d 1e1#ers,ip ri+,;s suc, as ;,e ri+,; ;o parধcipa;e i2 +e2eral 1eeধ2+s a2d ;,e ri+,; ;o e?ercise ;,eir =oধ2+ ri+,;sW �2der ;,e 
�o1pa2@Zs �o2sধ;uধo2T ordi2ar@ s,are,olders are e2ধ;led ;o aħe2d a2d =o;e a; ;,e �22ual Ge2eral Meeধ2+ #@ perso2 or pro?@W 

�,are,olders are i2(or1ed o( s,are,oldersZ 1eeধ2+s ;,rou+, 2oধces co2;ai2ed i2 a22ual repor;s or circulars se2; ;o all s,are,oldersW 
�,ese 2oধces are also pu#lis,ed i2 ;,e 2e>spapers a2d pos;ed o2 ;,e �G��	�W  
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PRINCIPLE 14: SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS (CONT’D)

The Company, when permitted under the Company’s Constitution, may allow corporations which provide nominee or custodial 
services to appoint more than two proxies so that shareholders, who hold shares in such corporations can attend and participate in 
general meetings as proxies. 

The Group respects the equal information rights of all shareholders and is committed to the practice of fair, transparent and timely 
disclosure. All price-sensitive information is publicly released prior to any sessions with individual investors or analysts. 

PRINCIPLE 15: COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Companies should actively engage their shareholders and put in place an investor relations policy to promote regular, effective 
and fair communication with shareholders. 

In line with continuous disclosure obligations of the Company, pursuant to the SGX-ST Listing Rules and the Singapore Companies 
Act, the Board’s policy is that the Company’s shareholders are informed of all major developments that impact the Group.

A dedicated Investor Relations (IR) team supports the Executive Chairman in maintaining a close and active dialogue with the 
investment community throughout the year, responding diligently and promptly to all enquiries, analysts and other interested 
parties. In addition, the Group’s IR website at www.rafflesmedicalgroup.com/investor-relations acts as another avenue for the 
investment community to submit their feedback and questions.

Where there is an inadvertent disclosure made to a select group, the Company will make the same disclosure publicly as soon as 
practicable. Communication is made through:

(a) Annual reports that are prepared and issued to all shareholders. The Board makes every effort to ensure that the annual 
report includes all relevant information about the Group, including future developments and other disclosures required by the 
Singapore Companies Act, Singapore Financial Reporting Standards and the SGX-ST Listing Manual;

(b) Financial statements containing a summary of the financial information and affairs of the Group for the period; 

(c)  Notices of and explanatory memoranda for Annual General Meetings (AGM) and Extraordinary General Meetings;

(d)  Media and analyst briefings for the Group’s quarterly and annual results as well as other briefings, as appropriate; 

(e)  Media releases on the major developments of the Group;

(f) Disclosures to the SGX-ST; and

(g) The Group’s IR website is where shareholders can access information on the Group. The website provides, inter alia, corporate 
announcements, media releases, annual reports, analysts’ coverage and a profile of the Group.

The Group’s IR activities promote regular, effective and fair communication with shareholders and the investment community. 
Briefing sessions for the media and analysts are conducted when quarterly results are released. All media statements and 
quarterly financial statements are published on SGXNet and subsequently on the Group’s website. 
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PRINCIPLE 15: COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (CONT’D)

�uri2+ ;,e @ear ����T ;,e 
R ;ea1 alo2+ >i;, �e2ior Ma2a+e1e2; e2+a+ed 1ore ;,a2 ��� local a2d (orei+2 i2sধ;uধo2al e2ধধes 
;,rou+, parধcipaধo2 i2 � localT � s1allf+roup a2d �� i2f,ouse 1eeধ2+sT >,ic, i2cluded ;,e (ollo>i2+ e=e2;s ,eld i2 �i2+aporeV 

Month Event Organiser


e#ruar@ 
� ���¤ �os;fResul;s �u2c,eo2 R��
March 
2=es; ��	�� ���� Ma@#a20 �i1 	2+
�pril �� ���� �os;fResul;s �u2c,eo2 �ai>a
�ul@ �� ���� �os;fResul;s �u2c,eo2 �redi; �uisse
�ep;e1#er �G�c��� �ic0ers �eal;,care �orpora;e �a@ �G� { ��� �ic0ers

�c;o#er
�sia2 Ge1s �o2(ere2ce ���� ��� �a@ �ia2
�� ���� �os;fResul;s �u2c,eo2 �ai>a

�,e �o1pa2@ ;ar+e;s is ;o pro=ide a sus;ai2a#le di=ide2d pa@ou;W �,e (or1T (re7ue2c@ a2d a1ou2; o( di=ide2ds declared eac, @ear 
>ill ;a0e i2;o co2sideraধo2 ;,e GroupZs pro); +ro>;,T cas, posiধo2T posiধ=e cas, *o> +e2era;ed (ro1 operaধo2sT pro/ec;ed capi;al 
re7uire1e2;s (or #usi2ess +ro>;, a2d o;,er rele=a2; (ac;ors as ;,e �oard 1a@ dee1 appropria;eW 

�,e �oard o( �irec;ors ,as proposed a )2al di=ide2d o( �W�� �i2+apore ce2;s per ordi2ar@ s,are (or ;,e )2a2cial @ear e2ded �� 
�ece1#er ����T >,ic, is su#/ec; ;o ;,e appro=al #@ ;,e s,are,olders a; ;,e (or;,co1i2+ �GM o( ;,e �o1pa2@W

PRINCIPLE 16: CONDUCT OF SHAREHOLDER MEETINGS

Companies should encourage greater shareholder participation at general meetings of shareholders, and allow shareholders the 
opportunity to communicate their views on various matters affecting the Company.

�,are,olders are e2coura+ed ;o aħe2d ;,e �GM ;o e2sure a ,i+, le=el o( accou2;a#ili;@ a2d ;o s;a@ i2(or1ed o( ;,e GroupZs 
s;ra;e+ies a2d +oalsW �,e �GM is ;,e pri2cipal (oru1 (or dialo+ue >i;, s,are,oldersW 

�,e 2oধce o( ;,e �GM is despa;c,ed ;o s,are,oldersT ;o+e;,er >i;, e?pla2a;or@ 2o;es or a circular o2 i;e1s o( special #usi2essT a; 
leas; �� da@s #e(ore ;,e 1eeধ2+W �,e �oard >elco1es 7uesধo2s (ro1 s,are,olders >,o ,a=e a2 oppor;u2i;@ ;o raise issues a; ;,e 
�GMW �,e �,air1e2 o( ;,e �R� a2d ;,e ��� are 2or1all@ a=aila#le a; ;,e 1eeধ2+ ;o a2s>er ;,ose 7uesধo2s relaধ2+ ;o ;,e >or0 
o( ;,ese �o11iħeesW �,e e?;er2al audi;ors are 2or1all@ a=aila#le ;o address s,are,oldersZ 7ueries a#ou; ;,e co2duc; o( ;,e audi; 
a2d ;,e preparaধo2 a2d co2;e2; o( ;,e audi;orsZ repor;W 

	ac, i;e1 o( special #usi2ess i2cluded i2 ;,e 2oধce o( ;,e �GM is acco1pa2iedT >,ere appropria;eT #@ a2 e?pla2aধo2 (or ;,e 
proposed resoluধo2W �epara;e resoluধo2s are proposed (or su#s;a2ধall@ separa;e issues a; ;,e 1eeধ2+W 

�ll resoluধo2s a; +e2eral 1eeধ2+s are =o;ed #@ poll so as ;o #eħer re*ec; ;,e s,are,oldersZ i2;eres;s a2d e2sure +rea;er ;ra2spare2c@W 
RMG uses elec;ro2ic poll =oধ2+ de=ices ;o re+is;er ;,e =o;es o( s,are,olders >,o aħe2d ;,e +e2eral 1eeধ2+sW 

�,e �o1pa2@ appoi2;s a2 i2depe2de2; e?;er2al par;@ as scruধ2eer (or ;,e elec;ro2ic poll =oধ2+ processW �rior ;o ;,e +e2eral 
1eeধ2+T ;,e scruধ2eer >ill re=ie> ;,e pro?ies a2d ;,e elec;ro2ic poll =oধ2+ s@s;e1T a2d aħe2ds a; ;,e pro?@ =eri)caধo2 processT 
;o e2sure ;,a; ;,e pro?@ a2d poll =oধ2+ i2(or1aধo2 is co1piled correc;l@W  
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PRINCIPLE 16: CONDUCT OF SHAREHOLDER MEETINGS (CONT’D)

During the general meeting, the scrutineer attends to ensure that the polling process is properly carried out. The rules, including 
the voting process, were explained by the scrutineers at such general meetings. Votes cast, for or against and the respective 
percentages, on each resolution are tallied and displayed ‘live’ on-screen to shareholders immediately at the general meetings. The 
total number of votes cast for or against the resolutions and the respective percentages are also announced on SGXNet after the 
general meetings.

Minutes of the AGM, recording the substantial and relevant comments made and questions raised, are prepared and made available 
to shareholders upon request.   
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MATERIAL CONTRACTS 

�,ere are 2o 1a;erial co2;rac;s e2;ered i2;o #@ ;,e �o1pa2@ or a2@ o( i;s su#sidiaries i2=ol=i2+ ;,e i2;eres;s o( ;,e �,ie( 	?ecuধ=e 
�ăcerT a2@ �irec;or or co2;rolli2+ s,are,olderW  

DEALINGS IN SECURITIES 


2 co1plia2ce >i;, Rule ����l��m o( ;,e �G�f�� �isধ2+ Ma2ualT ;,e Group ,as i2 place a polic@ >,ic, pro,i#i;s deali2+s i2 
;,e �o1pa2@Zs securiধes #@ all oăcers o( ;,e �o1pa2@ a2d i;s su#sidiariesT duri2+ ;,e periods co11e2ci2+ � >ee0s prior ;o 
;,e a22ou2ce1e2; o( ;,e GroupZs )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;s (or eac, o( ;,e )rs; � 7uar;ers o( i;s )2a2cial @ear a2d � 1o2;, prior ;o 
;,e a22ou2ce1e2; o( ;,e GroupZs (ull @ear )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;s a2d e2di2+ o2 ;,e da;e o( ;,e a22ou2ce1e2; o( suc, )2a2cial 
s;a;e1e2;sW �irec;orsT e?ecuধ=e oăcers a2d a2@ o;,er perso2s as de;er1i2ed #@ Ma2a+e1e2; >,o 1a@ possess u2pu#lis,ed 
1a;erial pricefse2siধ=e i2(or1aধo2 o( ;,e Group lrele=a2; perso2smT are also re1i2ded ;o o#ser=e i2sider ;radi2+ la>s a; all ধ1esT 
a2d 2o; ;o deal i2 ;,e �o1pa2@Zs securiধes >,e2 i2 possessio2 o( a2@ pricefse2siধ=e a2d co2)de2ধal i2(or1aধo2 re+ardi2+ 
;,e GroupT or o2 s,or;f;er1 co2sideraধo2sW � re1i2der is circula;ed ;o �irec;orsT e?ecuধ=e oăcers a2d rele=a2; perso2s o( ;,e 
�o1pa2@ a2d i;s su#sidiaries e=er@ 7uar;er #e(ore ;,e co11e2ce1e2; o( ;,e period duri2+ >,ic, deali2+s i2 ;,e �o1pa2@Zs 
securiধes are pro,i#i;ed a2d ;o ;,ose >i;, access ;o pricefse2siধ=e a2d co2)de2ধal i2(or1aধo2W �ll �irec;ors o( ;,e �o1pa2@ a2d 
i;s su#sidiaries are re7uired ;o repor; all deali2+s ;o ;,e �o1pa2@ �ecre;ar@W 

INTERESTED PERSONS TRANSACTIONS

�,e �o1pa2@ ,as es;a#lis,ed procedures ;o e2sure ;,a; all ;ra2sacধo2s >i;, 
2;eres;ed �erso2s are repor;ed ;o ;,e �R� o2 a 
7uar;erl@ #asisW �,e �R� ,as re=ie>ed ;,e 
2;eres;ed �erso2s �ra2sacধo2s l
��sm e2;ered i2;o duri2+ ;,e )2a2cial @ear #@ ;,e 
�o1pa2@W 


2 co1plia2ce >i;, �isধ2+ Ma2ual o( ;,e �G�f��T ;,e �o1pa2@ co2)r1s ;,a; 
��s did 2o; e?ceed ����T��� duri2+ ;,e )2a2cial 
@ear e2ded �� �ece1#er ����W

Additional Information Required By the Singapore 
Exchange Securities Trading Limited (SGX–ST)

�ddiধo2al 
2(or1
aধo2 Re7uired  #@ �G

�f��
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ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors is responsible for the governance of risks within the Group. Annually, the Board reviews and approves the 
risk appetite of the Group, which sets to outline the nature and extent of material risks that the Group is willing to accept to achieve 
its strategic and business objectives. 

With guidance from the ARC, the Board oversees Management on maintaining a sound system of internal controls and risk 
management, thereby, improve decision-making at both the operational and strategic levels of the Group. The Group’s Clinical 
Leaders and the ARC govern clinical and corporate risks respectively. 

The Group adopts the Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework to coordinate the different elements in an enterprise to 
manage risks effectively, and to protect stakeholders’ interest. The framework had been adapted to meet the Group’s evolving 
needs, providing a comprehensive and systematic approach to identify significant risks, evaluate risk tolerance, and to facilitate and 
develop risk policies across the Group.  

Enterprise Risk Management Framework 

The 4 pillars of our ERM framework are: Board and Management Involvement, Risk Assessment and Management, Training and 
Communication, and Independent Assurance.

BOARD AND MANAGEMENT INVOLVEMENT
•   Set the approach on risk governance

•   Review and approve risk appetite
•   Provide oversight on internal controls and risk management

 RISK ASSESSMENT & MANAGEMENT

Identification & Assessment Response Monitoring & Reporting

•

•

Risk appetite & heat map
Entity Risk Assessment

•

•

•

•

Avoid
Mitigate
Share
Accept

•

•

Risk reporting 
Risk indicators

TRAINING & COMMUNICATION
• Instil a culture of risk awareness 

and accountability
• Promote accountability

INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE
• Internal Audit
• External Audit

Strategic Risk

Market and Competition

Even with our long-standing history in the healthcare industry, the Group recognises that there remains a great need to continue to 
strengthen its competitiveness to retain its market share, yet remain cost-effective for stakeholders. This comes amidst increasing 
competition from both key players and new entrants in the healthcare industry.

The expanding regional presence of the Group also further reinforces the need to have a keen sense of awareness of the diverse 
markets in Asia, and how they are evolving, in order to facilitate longer-term growth for the Group.

Risk Management
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ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

Operational Risk

Environment, Health & Safety (EHS)

�,e Group co2ধ2uousl@ s;ri=es ;o 1ai2;ai2 ,i+, le=els o( e2=iro21e2;alT ,eal;,T a2d sa(e;@ s;a2dards i2 our da@f;ofda@ operaধo2sT 
(or ;,e i2;eres;s o( our =arious s;a0e,oldersW �e see0 ;o 1iধ+a;e our 	�� ris0s >i;, accredi;aধo2s #@ locall@ a2d i2;er2aধo2all@ 
reco+2ised s;a2dardsW �ur >or0place sa(e;@ a2d ,eal;, policies ,a=e #ee2 cerধ)ed #@ ;,e �or0place �a(e;@ a2d �eal;, �ou2cil ;o 
,a=e aħai2ed �iA��
	 �e=el � s;a2dardsW �ur ,ospi;al ,as also recei=ed i2;er2aধo2al accredi;aধo2 accordi2+ ;o �oi2; �o11issio2 

2;er2aধo2al l��
m �ospi;al �;a2dardsW

Compliance Risk

Laws, Regulations & Compliance

Mos; o( ;,e GroupZs #usi2esses a2d pro/ec;s re7uire lice2ses a2d +o=er21e2; appro=alsT >,ic, could #e su#/ec; ;o c,a2+i2+ 
re7uire1e2;s a2d re+ulaধo2sW 
ur;,er1oreT up,oldi2+ e;,ical s;a2dards is a cor2ers;o2e o( our 1edical pracধceW 
2 a=oida2ce o( 
;,e ris0 o( 2o2fco1plia2ceT ;,e Group closel@ 1o2i;ors de=elop1e2;s i2 s;a2dards a2d re+ulaধo2s locall@T re+io2all@T a2d +lo#all@W 
�,ere 2ecessar@T ;,e Group >ill e2+a+e >i;, ;,e rele=a2; au;,oriধes a2d su#/ec; 1aħer e?per;s re1ai2 a#reas; o( suc, c,a2+esW

Fraud & Corruption 

�,e Group reco+2ises ;,e 2eed ;o 1a2a+e i;s e?posure ;o corrupধo2 ris0 ;,rou+, +ood corpora;e +o=er2a2ceT #usi2ess e;,ics a2d 
s;ro2+ i2;er2al co2;rols i2 our #usi2ess processesW �,ile co2;rol 1easures ca2 pro=ide reaso2a#le assura2ce a2d sa(e+uardsT so1e 
ris0 o( (raud >ill al>a@s re1ai2W �s suc,T ;,e Group is co11iħed ;o proceed >i;, ;,e 2ecessar@ i2=esধ+aধo2s a2d discipli2ar@ 
acধo2s o2 ac;s relaধ2+ ;o (raud a2d corrupধo2W 

Financial Risk

Gi=e2 ;,e GroupZs re+io2al e?pa2sio2T ;,e Group is e?posed ;o )2a2cial ris0s i2cludi2+ credi;T li7uidi;@T (orei+2 curre2c@ a2d i2;eres; 
ra;e ris0sW �,e Group co2ধ2ues ;o place (ocus o2 ide2ধ(@i2+ a2d 1o2i;ori2+ )2a2cial ris0s proacধ=el@ ;o e2sure ;,a; ris0s are #ei2+ 
>ellf1a2a+ed a2d 1iধ+a;ed ;,rou+,ou; ;,e local a2d o=erseas operaধo2sW  


or 1ore i2(or1aধo2 o2 ;,e GroupZs 
i2a2cial Ris0 Ma2a+e1e2;T please re(er ;o �o;e �¤V 
i2a2cial 
2s;ru1e2;s ;o ;,e 
i2a2cial 
�;a;e1e2;sW 

Information Technology Risk

Data Security

�a;a 1a2a+e1e2; a2d pro;ecধo2 is para1ou2; +i=e2 ;,e 2a;ure o( ;,e i2(or1aধo2 ;,a; ;,e Group ,a2dlesT a2d �erso2al �a;a 
�ro;ecধo2 �c; l����m re7uire1e2;sW �,e Group 1us; pro;ec; res;ric;edT co2)de2ধal or se2siধ=e da;a (ro1 loss a2d 1isuse ;o a=oid 
repu;aধo2 da1a+e a2d ;o a=oid ad=erse i1pac; ;o our cus;o1ersW �o 1iধ+a;e ;,e ris0 o( da;a #reac,esT ;,e Group ,as es;a#lis,ed 
policies a2d co2;rol 1easuresT i2cludi2+ rei2(orce1e2;s ;o 
� i2(ras;ruc;ure a2d s;aø educaধo2W 	=e2 >i;, ;,e policies a2d co2;rol 
1easuresT ;,e Group also ac02o>led+es ;,a; our co2;rols 1a@ #e u2a#le ;o e?,ausধ=el@ ,a2dle all (or1s o( 1alicious aħac0sW  

Risk Management
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ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

Information Technology Risk (cont’d)

Information Technology Systems

Flexible, nimble and reliable IT systems are essential in order to fulfil the Group’s overall business strategies. We rely extensively on 
IT systems for day to day operations across our various business functions, to provide better value to our customers. In ensuring the 
reliability of our IT systems, we also strive to improve our business continuity, communication, and recovery processes. On top of 
the Group security measures, the Group has engaged external IT Security Specialist to provide Security Operations Centre services 
to help in IT security monitoring and providing of cyber security advisory.  To adapt to technological advances, the Group seeks to 
continue to invest in upgrading our systems, which may consequently incur significant capital expenditures. 

Further details on the Group’s risk governance framework and risk management policies are set out in Principle 11: Risk Management 
and Internal Controls.  

  

Risk Management
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We are pleased to submit this annual report to the members of the Company together with the audited financial statements for the 
financial year ended 31 December 2017.

In our opinion:

(a) the financial statements set out on pages 74 to 142 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of 
the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2017 and the financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of 
the Group for the year ended on that date in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50 and 
Singapore Financial Reporting Standards; and 

(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and 
when they fall due.

The Board of Directors has, on the date of this statement, authorised these financial statements for issue.

Directors

The directors in office at the date of this statement are as follows:

Dr Loo Choon Yong
Mr Koh Poh Tiong
Mr Kee Teck Koon
Mr Eric Ang Teik Lim
Dr Wee Beng Geok
Professor Lim Pin
Mr Raymond Lim Siang Keat
Mr Lim Beng Chee
Mr Tan Soo Nan
Mr Olivier Lim Tse Ghow
Dr Sarah Lu Qinghui   (Appointed on 20 February 2018)

Directors’ interests

According to the register kept by the Company for the purposes of Section 164 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the Act), 
particulars of interests of directors who held office at the end of the financial year (including those held by their spouses and infant 
children) in shares, debentures, warrants and share options in the Company and in a related corporation are as follows:

Holdings in the name of  
the director, spouse or  

infant children

Other holdings in which  
the director is deemed to  

have an interest

The Company
At beginning
of the year

At end
of the year

At beginning
of the year

At end
of the year

Ordinary Shares

Dr Loo Choon Yong 175,274,270 177,360,868 722,912,534 731,518,636
Mr Koh Poh Tiong 420,000 516,071 – –
Mr Kee Teck Koon 60,000 60,714 – –
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Directors’ interests (cont’d)

Holdings in the name of  
the director, spouse or  

infant children

Other holdings in which  
the director is deemed to  

have an interest

The Company
At beginning
of the year

At end
of the year

At beginning
of the year

At end
of the year

Ordinary Shares

�r �ee �e2+ Geo0 �T���T��� �T���T��� g g
�ro(essor �i1 �i2 �T���T��� �T���T��� g g
Mr Ra@1o2d �i1 �ia2+ �ea; g ���T��� g g
Mr �a2 �oo �a2 �T��¤T��� �T��¤T��� g g
Mr �li=ier �i1 �se G,o> ���T��� ���T��� g g

The Company
At beginning
of the year

At end
of the year

Option price
per share

Date  
of grant

Options to subscribe for ordinary shares

Mr �o, �o, �io2+ ��T��� g ��W�� ��c��c����
���T��� ���T��� ��W�� ��c��c����
���T��� ���T��� ��W�� ��c��c���¤

g ���T��� ��W�� ��c��c����

Mr �ee �ec0 �oo2 �¥�T��� �¥�T��� ��W�� ��c��c����
���T��� ���T��� ��W�� ��c��c����
���T��� ���T��� ��W�� ��c��c����
���T��� ���T��� ��W�� ��c��c���¤

g ��T��� ��W�� ��c��c����

�r �ee �e2+ Geo0 ���T��� g ��W�¥ ��c��c����
���T��� ���T��� ��W�� ��c��c����
���T��� ���T��� ��W�� ��c��c����
���T��� ���T��� ��W�� ��c��c����
���T��� ���T��� ��W�� ��c��c���¤

g ��T��� ��W�� ��c��c����

�ro(essor �i1 �i2 ��T��� ��T��� ��W�� ��c��c����
�¥�T��� �¥�T��� ��W�� ��c��c����

��T��� ��T��� ��W�� ��c��c���¤
g ��T��� ��W�� ��c��c����

Mr Ra@1o2d �i1 �ia2+ �ea; ���T��� g ��W�� ��c��c����
�¥�T��� �¥�T��� ��W�� ��c��c����

��T��� ��T��� ��W�� ��c��c���¤
g ��T��� ��W�� ��c��c����
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Directors’ interests (cont’d)

The Company
At beginning
of the year

At end
of the year

Option price
per share

Date  
of grant

Options to subscribe for ordinary shares

Mr Lim Beng Chee 45,000 45,000 $1.50 01/04/2016
– 50,000 $1.42 03/04/2017

Mr Tan Soo Nan 240,000 – $0.78 02/04/2012
240,000 240,000 $1.09 01/04/2013
240,000 240,000 $1.07 01/04/2014
210,000 210,000 $1.31 01/04/2015
150,000 150,000 $1.50 01/04/2016

– 100,000 $1.42 03/04/2017

Mr Olivier Lim Tse Ghow 60,000 60,000 $1.31 01/04/2015
90,000 90,000 $1.50 01/04/2016

– 50,000 $1.42 03/04/2017

On 11 May 2016, the Company completed a proposed share split of every one (1) existing share held by Shareholders into three 
(3) shares in the capital of the Company (Share Split). The options in the Company granted in 2012 to 2014 are exercisable during 
a period commencing 12 months from the Date of Grant for the first 90,000 shares (post Share Split), 24 months from the Date 
of Grant for the next 90,000 shares (post Share Split) and the balance after 36 months and expires at the end of 60 months from 
the Date of Grant. The options in the Company granted in 2015 and 2016 are exercisable during a period commencing 24 months 
from the Date of Grant for the first 60,000 shares (post Share Split), 36 months from the Date of Grant for the next 60,000 shares 
(post Share Split) and the balance after 48 months and expires at the end of 60 months from the Date of Grant. The options in 
the Company granted in 2017 are exercisable during a period commencing 24 months from the Date of Grant for the first 20,000 
shares, 36 months from the Date of Grant for the next 20,000 shares and the balance after 48 months and expires at the end of 60 
months from the Date of Grant. 

By virtue of Section 7 of the Act, Dr Loo Choon Yong is deemed to have interests in the other subsidiaries of Raffles Medical 
Holdings Pte Ltd, at the beginning and at the end of the financial year.

Holdings in the name of  
the director, spouse or  

infant children

Other holdings in which  
the director is deemed to  

have an interest

Immediate Holding Company
At beginning
of the year

At end
of the year

At beginning
of the year

At end
of the year

Ordinary Shares

Raffles Medical Holdings Pte Ltd
Dr Loo Choon Yong 100,000 112,500 – –

Except as disclosed in this statement, no director who held office at the end of the financial year had interests in shares, debentures, 
warrants or share options of the Company, or of related corporations, either at the beginning of the financial year or at the end of 
the financial year.

There were no changes in any of the above mentioned interests in the Company between the end of the financial year and 21 
January 2018.

Except as disclosed under the “Share Options” section of this statement, neither at the end of, nor at any time during the financial 
year, was the Company a party to any arrangement whose objects are, or one of whose objects is, to enable the directors of the 
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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Share options

Employees’ Share Option Scheme

Raffles Medical Group (2000) Share Option Scheme

l�m �2 �� �c;o#er ����T ;,e s,are,olders o( ;,e �o1pa2@ appro=ed ;,e Raffles Medical Group l����m �,are �pধo2 �c,e1e 
lRMG ���� �c,e1em a; ;,e 	?;raordi2ar@ Ge2eral Meeধ2+W �e;ails o( ;,e RMG ���� �c,e1e >ere se; ou; i2 ;,e �irec;orsZ 
Repor; (or ;,e )2a2cial @ear e2ded ��  �ece1#er ����W

l�m �,e RMG ���� �c,e1e >as ad1i2is;ered #@ ;,e �o1i2aধo2 { �o1pe2saধo2 �o11iħee l�o11iħeem co1prisi2+ ;,e 
(ollo>i2+ direc;orsV

Mr 	ric �2+ �ei0 �i1
Mr �o, �o, �io2+
�r �ee �e2+ Geo0
�ro(essor �i1 �i2

 �r �oo �,oo2 �o2+ is 2o; a parধcipa2; i2 ;,e sc,e1eW

l�m �o addiধo2al opধo2s >ere +ra2;ed pursua2; ;o ;,e RMG ���� �c,e1e (or ;,e )2a2cial @ear e2ded �� �ece1#er ����W 

l�m �s a; �� �ece1#er ����T ou;s;a2di2+ opধo2s ;o ;a0e up u2issued ordi2ar@ s,ares i2 ;,e �o1pa2@ u2der ;,e RMG ���� 
�c,e1e >ere as (ollo>sV

Date of grant 
of options

Exercise
price per  

share*

Options 
outstanding at

1 January 2017*
Options  

exercised*

Options 
forfeited/ 
expired*

Options 
outstanding at
31 December 

2017*

Number 
of option  
holders at

31 December 
2017

��c��c���� ��W�¥ ��¤T��� ��¥T��� �¥T��� g g
��c��c���¥ ��W�� ���T��� ���T��� �T��� ���T��� ��
��c��c���� ��W�¤ �T��¤T��� ¤��T��� ��T��� ¥��T��� �¥
��c��c���� ��W�� �T���T��� �¤�T��� g �T���T��� �¤

�T�¤�T��� �T¤¤�T��� ���T��� �T�¤�T���
r �đer ad/us;1e2; (or �,are �pli;W

l�m �i2ce ;,e co11e2ce1e2; o( ;,e �c,e1eT 2o opধo2s ,a=e #ee2 +ra2;ed ;o co2;rolli2+ s,are,olders o( ;,e �o1pa2@ a2d ;,eir 
associa;ed co1pa2ies a2d pare2; +roup e1plo@eesW �o parধcipa2; ,as recei=ed �¦ or 1ore o( ;,e ;o;al 2u1#er o( opধo2s 
a=aila#le u2der ;,e �c,e1eW �,ere is 2o discou2; +ra2;ed ;o ;,e su#scripধo2 price o( ;,e opধo2 co1pared ;o ;,e las; deal; 
price (or ;,ree co2secuধ=e 1ar0e; da@s precedi2+ ;o ;,e da;e o( ;,e opধo2W 

l¤m �,e (ollo>i2+ are de;ails o( opধo2s +ra2;ed ;o �irec;orsV

Name of directors

Aggregate options
granted since 

commencement of Scheme 
to 31 December 2017*

Aggregate options
exercised since 

commencement of Scheme 
to 31 December 2017*

Aggregate options 
outstanding 

as at 31 December 2017*

�r �ee �e2+ Geo0 �T���T��� �T���T��� g
Mr �a2 �oo �a2 �T���T��� �T���T��� g
�ro(essor �i1 �i2 �T���T��� �T���T��� g
�o;al ��T���T��� ��T���T��� g
r �đer ad/us;1e2; (or �,are �pli;W
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Share options (cont’d)

Employees’ Share Option Scheme (cont’d)

Raffles Medical Group (2000) Share Option Scheme (cont’d)

(7) Statutory information regarding the above options is as follows:

(a) Options are exercisable in whole or in part:

(i) in relation to shares for which the subscription price is determined on market value, a period commencing on 
such date in respect of such proportion of the option amount as the Committee may prescribe (but which shall in 
any event be no earlier than the date immediately after the first anniversary of the Date of Grant) and ending on 
the date immediately before the tenth anniversary of such Date of Grant for an employee and ending on the date 
immediately before the fifth anniversary of such Date of Grant for a non-employee; and 

(ii) in relation to shares for which the subscription price is determined at a discount to market value, a period 
commencing on such date in respect of such proportion of the option amount as the Committee may prescribe 
(but which shall in any event be no earlier than the date immediately after the second anniversary of the Date of 
Grant) and ending on the date immediately before the tenth anniversary of such Date of Grant for an employee 
and ending on the date immediately before the fifth anniversary of such Date of Grant for a non-employee.

(b) The number of shares which may be acquired by a participant and the exercise price are subject to adjustment, by reason 
of any issue of additional shares in the Company by way of rights or capitalisation of profits or reserves made which an 
option remains unexercised. 

Raffles Medical Group (2010) Share Option Scheme

(1) At the Annual General Meeting held on 30 April 2010, the shareholders of the Company adopted the Raffles Medical Group 
(2010) Share Option Scheme (RMG 2010 Scheme) for the Company. The existing RMG 2000 Scheme was concurrently 
terminated. The termination of the RMG 2000 Scheme will, however, not affect the subscription rights comprised in options 
granted pursuant to the RMG 2000 Scheme prior to the termination. Such options will continue to be exercisable in accordance 
with the rules of the RMG 2000 Scheme. However, no further options will be granted under the RMG 2000 Scheme. 

(2) Under the terms of the RMG 2010 Scheme, the committee (Committee) of directors administrating the Scheme may make 
offers of the grant of options to eligible persons to subscribe for shares at a subscription price set at the market price or at a 
discount of the market price on the capital of the Company, subject inter alia to the following: 

(a) the aggregate number of shares over which options may be granted when added to the number of shares issued and 
issuable in respect of all options granted under the RMG 2010 Scheme and in respect of all other share-based incentive 
schemes of the Company (if any), shall not exceed 15% of the total issued shares (excluding treasury shares) of the 
Company on the date preceding the offer date of an option. 

(b) the number of shares to be offered to any Group employee in accordance with the RMG 2010 Scheme shall be 
determined at the absolute discretion of the Committee, who shall take into account (where applicable) criteria such 
as rank, responsibilities, past performance, length of service, contributions to the Group and potential for future 
development of that Group employee, provided that in relation to Controlling Shareholder(s) or their Associates: 

(i) the aggregate number of shares which may be offered by way of grant of options to Group employees who are 
Controlling Shareholder(s) and/or their Associates shall not exceed 25% of the total number of shares available 
under the RMG 2010 Scheme; and 

(ii) the aggregate number of shares which may be offered by way of grant of options to each Group employee who is 
a Controlling Shareholder or his Associate shall not exceed 10% of the total number of shares available under the 
RMG 2010 Scheme. 
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Share options (cont’d) 

Employees’ Share Option Scheme (cont’d)

Raffles Medical Group (2010) Share Option Scheme (cont’d)

l�m �u#/ec; ;o a2@ ad/us;1e2; pursua2; ;o a2@ =ariaধo2 o( ;,e s,are capi;al o( ;,e �o1pa2@T ;,e su#scripধo2 price (or eac, s,are 
u2der ;,e RMG ���� �c,e1e s,all #eV

lam a price e7ual ;o ;,e a=era+e o( ;,e las; deal; prices (or a s,areT as de;er1i2ed #@ re(ere2ce ;o ;,e dail@ oăcial lis; or 
o;,er pu#licaধo2 pu#lis,ed #@ ;,e �i2+apore 	?c,a2+e �ecuriধes �radi2+ �i1i;ed (or ;,e ;,ree co2secuধ=e 1ar0e; da@s 
i11edia;el@ precedi2+ ;,e oøer da;e o( ;,a; opধo2T rou2ded up ;o ;,e 2eares; >,ole ce2;T pro=ided ;,a; i2 ;,e case 
o( a Mar0e; �rice �pধo2 ;,a; is proposed ;o #e +ra2;ed ;o a �o2;rolli2+ �,are,older or a2 �ssocia;e o( a �o2;rolli2+ 
�,are,olderT ;,e �u#scripধo2 �rice (or eac, s,are s,all #e e7ual ;o ;,e a=era+e o( ;,e las; deal; pricelsm (or a s,areT as 
de;er1i2ed #@ re(ere2ce ;o ;,e dail@ oăcial lis; pu#lis,ed #@ ;,e �i2+apore 	?c,a2+e �ecuriধes �radi2+ �i1i;edT (or 
;,e ;,ree co2secuধ=e 1ar0e; da@s i11edia;el@ precedi2+ ;,e la;es; pracধca#le da;e prior ;o ;,e da;e o( a2@ circularT 
leħer or 2oধce ;o ;,e �,are,olders proposi2+ ;o see0 ;,eir appro=al o( ;,e +ra2; o( suc, opধo2s ;o suc, �o2;rolli2+ 
�,are,older a2dcor �ssocia;e o( a �o2;rolli2+ �,are,olderU or  

l#m ;,e discou2;ed =alue o( ;,e s,are price de;er1i2ed u2der lam a#o=eT pro=ided ;,a; ;,e 1a?i1u1 discou2; s,all 2o; 
e?ceed ��¦ o( lam a#o=eU a2d

lcm ;,e prior appro=al o( ;,e s,are,olders o( ;,e �o1pa2@ i2 +e2eral 1eeধ2+ s,all ,a=e #ee2 o#;ai2ed (or ;,e 1a0i2+ 
o( oøers a2d +ra2;s o( opধo2s a; a discou2; 2o; e?ceedi2+ ;,e 1a?i1u1 discou2; i2 a separa;e resoluধo2 l(or ;,e 
a=oida2ce o( dou#;T suc, prior appro=al s,all #e re7uired ;o #e o#;ai2ed o2l@ o2ce a2dT o2ce o#;ai2edT s,allT u2less 
re=o0edT au;,orise ;,e 1a0i2+ o( oøers a2d +ra2;s o( opধo2s u2der ;,e RMG ���� �c,e1e a; suc, discou2; (or ;,e 
duraধo2 o( ;,e RMG ���� �c,e1emU or

ldm ;,e prior appro=al o( ;,e s,are,olders o( ;,e �o1pa2@ i2 +e2eral 1eeধ2+ s,all ,a=e #ee2 o#;ai2ed (or ;,e discou2; 
e?ceedi2+ ��¦ o( ;,e 1ar0e; price i( i; is prescri#ed or per1iħed (or ;,e ধ1e #ei2+ #@ ;,e �i2+apore 	?c,a2+e �ecuriধes 
�radi2+ �i1i;edW

l�m �2der ;,e RMG ���� �c,e1eT a2 opধo2 1a@ #e e?ercised i2 >,ole or i2 par; o2l@ i2 respec; o( �T��� s,ares or a2@ 1ulধple 
;,ereo(V

lam i2 relaধo2 ;o s,ares (or >,ic, ;,e su#scripধo2 price is de;er1i2ed o2 1ar0e; =alueT duri2+ ;,e period co11e2ci2+ ađer 
;,e )rs; a22i=ersar@ o( ;,e oøer da;e a2d e?piri2+ o2 ;,e ;e2;, a22i=ersar@ o( suc, oøer da;eU a2d 

l#m i2 relaধo2 ;o s,ares (or >,ic, ;,e su#scripধo2 price is de;er1i2ed a; a discou2; ;o ;,e 1ar0e; =alueT duri2+ ;,e period 
co11e2ci2+ ađer ;,e seco2d a22i=ersar@ o( ;,e oøer da;e a2d e?piri2+ o2 ;,e ;e2;, a22i=ersar@ o( suc, oøer da;eW 

�a=e ;,a; ;,e opধo2 period (or a2 opধo2 +ra2;ed ;o a parধcipa2;T >,o is a 2o2fe?ecuধ=e direc;or li2cludi2+ i2depe2de2; 
direc;orm o( a2@ 1e1#er o( ;,e Group or a per1a2e2; par;fধ1e =isiধ2+ co2sul;a2; specialis; co2;rac;ed or e2+a+ed (or ser=ice 
o2 a re+ular #asis #@ ;,e Group #u; >,ose ,ours o( >or0 is 2o; (ullfধ1eT s,all e?pire o2 ;,e )đ, a22i=ersar@ o( ;,e �a;e o( 
Gra2;W 

l�m �,e RMG ���� �c,e1e s,all co2ধ2ue ;o #e i2 (orce a; ;,e discreধo2 o( ;,e �o11iħeeT su#/ec; ;o a 1a?i1u1 period o( ;e2 
@ears (ro1 �� �pril ���� pro=ided al>a@s ;,a; ;,e RMG ���� �c,e1e 1a@ co2ধ2ue #e@o2d ;,e a#o=e sধpula;ed period >i;, 
;,e appro=al o( ;,e s,are,olders #@ ordi2ar@ resoluধo2 i2 +e2eral 1eeধ2+ a2d a2@ o( ;,e rele=a2; au;,oriধes >,ic, 1a@ ;,e2 
#e re7uiredW 

l¤m �,e RMG ���� �c,e1e is ad1i2is;ered #@ a co11iħee co1prisi2+ �irec;ors o( ;,e �o1pa2@ dul@ au;,orised a2d appoi2;ed 
#@ ;,e �oard ;o ad1i2is;er ;,e RMG ���� �c,e1eW 
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Share options (cont’d) 

Employees’ Share Option Scheme (cont’d)

Raffles Medical Group (2010) Share Option Scheme (cont’d) 

(7) The Committee, at the date of this statement, administering the RMG 2010 Scheme comprises the following directors:

Mr Eric Ang Teik Lim
Mr Koh Poh Tiong
Dr Wee Beng Geok
Professor Lim Pin

(8) On 3 April 2017, additional options were granted pursuant to the RMG 2010 Scheme to subscribe for ordinary shares at an 
exercise price of $1.42 as follows: 

Company

Number 
of Shares

Directors of the Company and Executive Directors of the subsidiaries 1,065,000
Other participants 3,935,000

5,000,000

(9) Since the commencement of the Scheme, no options have been granted to controlling shareholders of the Company and their 
associated companies and parent group employees. No participant has received 5% or more of the total number of options 
available under the Scheme. There is no discount granted to the subscription price of the option compared to the last dealt 
price for three consecutive market days preceding to the date of the option.

(10) As at 31 December 2017, outstanding options to take up unissued ordinary shares in the Company under the RMG 2010 
Scheme were as follows:

Date of grant 
of options

Exercise
price

per share*

Options 
outstanding at  

1 January 2017*
Options  
granted*

Options 
exercised*

Options 
forfeited/ 
expired*

Options 
outstanding

at 31 December 
2017*

Number 
of option 
holders  

at 31 
December 

2017

01/04/2011 $0.73 3,306,000 – 501,000 6,000 2,799,000 80
02/04/2012 $0.78 6,884,000 – 1,460,000 3,000 5,421,000 134
01/04/2013 $1.09 10,127,000 – 1,020,000 45,000 9,062,000 221
01/04/2014 $1.07 12,456,000 – 1,218,000 297,000 10,941,000 280
01/04/2015 $1.31 14,634,000 – 538,000 – 14,096,000 407
01/04/2016 $1.50 10,437,000 – – – 10,437,000 336
03/04/2017 $1.42 – 5,000,000 – 37,000 4,963,000 392

57,844,000 5,000,000 4,737,000 388,000 57,719,000

* After adjustment for Share Split.  
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Share options (cont’d) 

Employees’ Share Option Scheme (cont’d)

Raffles Medical Group (2010) Share Option Scheme (cont’d) 

l��m �,e (ollo>i2+ are de;ails o( opধo2s +ra2;ed ;o �irec;orsV

Name of director

Options 
granted for 

financial
year ended

31 December 
2017

Aggregate 
options

granted since 
commencement

of Scheme to
31 December 

2017*

Aggregate 
options

exercised since 
commencement 

of Scheme to
31 December 

2017*

Aggregate 
options 

outstanding
as at

31 December 
2017*

Mr �o, �o, �io2+ ���T��� ¥¥�T��� ���T��� �¤�T���
Mr �ee �ec0 �oo2 ��T��� ¥¥�T��� ¤�T��� ¥��T���
�r �ee �e2+ Geo0 ��T��� �T���T��� ���T��� ¥¥�T���
Mr �a2 �oo �a2 ���T��� �T���T��� ���T��� ���T���
�ro(essor �i1 �i2 ��T��� �T���T��� ¤¤�T��� ���T���
Mr Ra@1o2d �i1 �ia2+ �ea; ��T��� ���T��� ���T��� ���T���
Mr �li=ier �i1 �se G,o> ��T��� ���T��� g ���T���
Mr �i1 �e2+ �,ee ��T��� ��T��� g ��T���
�o;al ���T��� ¤T���T��� �T���T��� �T���T���

r �đer ad/us;1e2; (or �,are �pli;W  

�a=e as disclosed a#o=eT ;,ere >ere 2o u2issued s,ares o( ;,e �o1pa2@ or i;s su#sidiaries u2der opধo2s +ra2;ed #@ ;,e 
�o1pa2@ or i;s su#sidiaries as a; ;,e e2d o( ;,e )2a2cial @earW

�,e opধo2s +ra2;ed #@ ;,e �o1pa2@ do 2o; e2ধ;le ;,e ,olders o( ;,e opধo2sT #@ =ir;ue o( suc, ,oldi2+T ;o a2@ ri+,;s ;o 
parধcipa;e i2 a2@ s,are issue o( a2@ o;,er co1pa2@W

Audit & Risk Committee

�,e 1e1#ers o( ;,e �udi; { Ris0 �o11iħee duri2+ ;,e @ear a2d a; ;,e da;e o( ;,is s;a;e1e2; are as (ollo>sV

• Mr �ee �ec0 �oo2 l�,air1a2mT �o2f	?ecuধ=e �irec;or
j  Mr �o, �o, �io2+T �o2f	?ecuধ=e �irec;or 
j  Mr Ra@1o2d �i1 �ia2+ �ea;T �o2f	?ecuধ=e �irec;or 

�,e �udi; { Ris0 �o11iħee per(or1s ;,e (u2cধo2s speci)ed i2 �ecধo2 ���� o( ;,e �c;T ;,e �G� �isধ2+ Ma2ual a2d ;,e �ode o( 
�orpora;e Go=er2a2ceW

�,e �udi; { Ris0 �o11iħee ,as ,eld (our 1eeধ2+s si2ce ;,e las; direc;orsZ s;a;e1e2;W 
2 per(or1i2+ i;s (u2cধo2sT ;,e �udi; { 
Ris0 �o11iħee 1e; >i;, ;,e �o1pa2@Zs e?;er2al a2d i2;er2al audi;ors ;o discuss ;,e scope o( ;,eir >or0T ;,e resul;s o( ;,eir 
e?a1i2aধo2 a2d e=aluaধo2 o( ;,e �o1pa2@Zs i2;er2al accou2ধ2+ co2;rol s@s;e1W
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Audit & Risk Committee (cont’d)

The Audit & Risk Committee also reviewed the following:

•  assistance provided by the Company’s officers to the external and internal auditors;

•  quarterly financial information and annual financial statements of the Group and the Company prior to their submission to the 
directors of the Company for adoption; and

•  interested person transactions (as defined in Chapter 9 of the SGX Listing Manual).

The Audit & Risk Committee has full access to management and is given the resources required for it to discharge its functions. It 
has full authority and the discretion to invite any director or executive officer to attend its meetings. The Audit & Risk Committee 
also recommends the appointment of the external auditors and reviews the level of audit and non-audit fees.

The Audit & Risk Committee is satisfied with the independence and objectivity of the external auditors and has recommended 
to the Board of Directors that the auditors, KPMG LLP, be nominated for re-appointment as auditors at the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting of the Company.

In appointing our auditors for the Company and subsidiaries, we have complied with Rules 712 and 715 of the SGX Listing Manual.

Auditors

The auditors, KPMG LLP, have indicated their willingness to accept re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr Loo Choon Yong
Chairman

Mr Kee Teck Koon
Director

24 February 2018
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Members of the Company
Raffles Medical Group Ltd

Report on the audit of the financial statements

�pi2io2

�e ,a=e audi;ed ;,e )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;s o( Raffles Medical Group �;d l;,e �o1pa2@m a2d i;s su#sidiaries l;,e GroupmT >,ic, 
co1prise ;,e co2solida;ed s;a;e1e2; o( )2a2cial posiধo2 o( ;,e Group a2d ;,e s;a;e1e2; o( )2a2cial posiধo2 o( ;,e �o1pa2@ as 
a; �� �ece1#er ����T ;,e co2solida;ed s;a;e1e2; o( pro); or lossT co2solida;ed s;a;e1e2; o( co1pre,e2si=e i2co1eT co2solida;ed 
s;a;e1e2; o( c,a2+es i2 e7ui;@ a2d co2solida;ed s;a;e1e2; o( cas, *o>s o( ;,e Group (or ;,e @ear ;,e2 e2dedT a2d 2o;es ;o ;,e 
)2a2cial s;a;e1e2;sT i2cludi2+ a su11ar@ o( si+2i)ca2; accou2ধ2+ policies as se; ou; o2 pa+es �� ;o ���W 


2 our opi2io2T ;,e acco1pa2@i2+ co2solida;ed )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;s o( ;,e Group a2d ;,e s;a;e1e2; o( )2a2cial posiধo2 o( ;,e 
�o1pa2@ are properl@ dra>2 up i2 accorda2ce >i;, ;,e pro=isio2s o( ;,e �i2+apore �o1pa2ies �c;T �,ap;er �� l;,e �c;m a2d 

i2a2cial Reporধ2+ �;a2dards i2 �i2+apore l
R�sm so as ;o +i=e a ;rue a2d (air =ie> o( ;,e co2solida;ed )2a2cial posiধo2 o( ;,e Group 
a2d ;,e )2a2cial posiধo2 o( ;,e �o1pa2@ as a; �� �ece1#er ���� a2d o( ;,e co2solida;ed )2a2cial per(or1a2ceT co2solida;ed 
c,a2+es i2 e7ui;@ a2d co2solida;ed cas, *o>s o( ;,e Group (or ;,e @ear e2ded o2 ;,a; da;eW 

�asis (or opi2io2

�e co2duc;ed our audi; i2 accorda2ce >i;, �i2+apore �;a2dards o2 �udiধ2+ l���smW  �ur respo2si#iliধes u2der ;,ose s;a2dards 
are (ur;,er descri#ed i2 ;,e Y�udi;orsZ respo2si#iliধes (or ;,e audi; o( ;,e )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;sZ secধo2 o( our repor;W  �e are 
i2depe2de2; o( ;,e Group i2 accorda2ce >i;, ;,e �ccou2ধ2+ a2d �orpora;e Re+ula;or@ �u;,ori;@ �ode o( �ro(essio2al �o2duc; 
a2d 	;,ics (or �u#lic �ccou2;a2;s a2d �ccou2ধ2+ 	2ধধes l��R� �odem ;o+e;,er >i;, ;,e e;,ical re7uire1e2;s ;,a; are rele=a2; ;o 
our audi; o( ;,e )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;s i2 �i2+aporeT a2d >e ,a=e (ul)lled our o;,er e;,ical respo2si#iliধes i2 accorda2ce >i;, ;,ese 
re7uire1e2;s a2d ;,e ��R� �odeW  �e #elie=e ;,a; ;,e audi; e=ide2ce >e ,a=e o#;ai2ed is suăcie2; a2d appropria;e ;o pro=ide a 
#asis (or our opi2io2W

�e@ audi; 1aħers

�e@ audi; 1aħers are ;,ose 1aħers ;,a;T i2 our pro(essio2al /ud+e1e2;T >ere o( 1os; si+2i)ca2ce i2 our audi; o( ;,e )2a2cial 
s;a;e1e2;s o( ;,e curre2; periodW  �,ese 1aħers >ere addressed i2 ;,e co2;e?; o( our audi; o( ;,e )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;s as a >,oleT 
a2d i2 (or1i2+ our opi2io2 ;,ereo2T a2d >e do 2o; pro=ide a separa;e opi2io2 o2 ;,ese 1aħersW 
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Report on the audit of the financial statements (cont’d)

Key audit matters (cont’d)

Impairment assessment of goodwill ($25,534,000)
(Refer to note 5 to the financial statements)
The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
The assessment of the recoverability of goodwill requires 
significant judgement in determining the forecast future 
performance of the cash generating unit to which goodwill is 
allocated. 

Management’s impairment assessment involves significant 
estimation, principally relating to the key assumptions for 
revenue growth rates, terminal growth rates and discount 
rates. The subjectivity of the principal assumptions required a 
significant amount of judgement and audit effort. 

We assessed the appropriateness of management’s 
determination of cash generating units (CGU).  

Our work focused on detailed analysis of the Group’s value-
in-use (VIU) calculations and we challenged the assumptions 
used by the Group in conducting the impairment review.  

Our procedures for challenging management’s key assumptions 
included:  
•  developing independent expectations for the key 

assumptions driving the cash flow projections, in particular 
discount rates, and comparing the independent expectations 
to those used by the Group;  

•  challenging key assumptions for revenue growth rates and 
terminal growth rates with reference to economic and 
industry forecasts;  

•  assessing the historical accuracy of the Group’s estimates in 
the previous period; and

•  performing sensitivity analysis around the key assumptions 
including revenue growth rates and discount rates to assess 
the extent of the change that would be required for the 
assets to be impaired.

We also assessed whether the Group’s disclosures about the 
CGU’s key assumptions used and sensitivity of the outcome 
of the impairment assessment to changes in key assumptions 
reflected the risks inherent in the valuation of goodwill.

Our findings
We concluded that the identification of CGUs was appropriate.
We found that the assumptions and resulting estimates were balanced. CGU’s key assumptions were appropriately disclosed.
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Report on the audit of the financial statements (cont’d)

�e@ audi; 1aħers lco2;Zdm

�lassi)caধo2 a2d =aluaধo2 o( i2=es;1e2; properধes l��¥�T��¥T���m 
lRe(er ;o 2o;e ¤ ;o ;,e )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;sm
�,e 0e@ audi; 1aħer �o> ;,e 1aħer >as addressed i2 our audi;
�,e Group ,as a proper;@ porĤolio a2d ;,e i2;e2ded usa+e 
o( eac, o( ;,e properধes >i;,i2 ;,is porĤolio ca2 c,a2+eW 
�lassi)caধo2 o( a2 asse; as i2=es;1e2; proper;@ is #ased o2 
,o> i; is i2iধall@ a2d su#se7ue2;l@ usedT a2d i2;e2ধo2s (or 
(u;ure useW �ud+e1e2; is re7uired i2 de;er1i2i2+ classi)caধo2 
o( i2=es;1e2; properধesW

�,e Group e2+a+ed e?;er2al e?per;s ;o =alue i;s i2=es;1e2; 
properধes ;,a; are carried a; (air =alueW �,e =aluaধo2 o( 
i2=es;1e2; properধes is se2siধ=e ;o ;,e 0e@ assu1pধo2s 
used i2 de;er1i2i2+ ;,e cas, *o>s pro/ecধo2T capi;alisaধo2T 
discou2; a2d ;er1i2aধo2 @ield ra;esW � s1all c,a2+e i2 ;,e 
assu1pধo2 ca2 ,a=e a si+2i)ca2; i1pac; o2 ;,e =aluaধo2sW 

�e e=alua;ed ;,e classi)caধo2 o( i2=es;1e2; properধesT 
#@ e27uiri2+ ;,e Group o2 ,o> ;,e properধes are i2iধall@ 
classi)edT su#se7ue2;l@ used a2d i2;e2ধo2s (or (u;ure useW 

�e e=alua;ed ;,e co1pe;e2c@T capa#iliধes a2d o#/ecধ=i;@ 
o( ;,e e?;er2al =aluers a2d ,eld discussio2 >i;, ;,e e?;er2al 
=aluers ;o u2ders;a2d ;,eir =aluaধo2 approac, a2d #asis o( 
=aluaধo2W

�e c,alle2+ed ;,e appropria;e2ess o( ;,e 0e@ assu1pধo2s 
used #@ ;,e e?;er2al =aluersT i2cludi2+ capi;alisaধo2 ra;eT 
discou2; ra;eT ;er1i2al @ield ra;e a2d ;er1 a2d re=ersio2 ra;eT 
#@ co1pari2+ ;,e1 a+ai2s; ,is;orical ;re2ds a2d e?;er2all@ 
deri=ed da;aW

�e co2sidered ;,e appropria;e2ess o( ;,e rele=a2; disclosureW
�ur )2di2+s
�e (ou2d ;,a; ;,e classi)caধo2 o( ;,e i2=es;1e2; properধes is appropria;eW 

�,e =aluers are 1e1#ers o( +e2erall@freco+2ised pro(essio2al #odies (or =aluersW �,e =aluaধo2 1e;,odolo+ies used #@ ;,e 
e?;er2al =aluers are co1para#le ;o si1ilar proper;@ ;@pes i2 ;,e 1ar0e; a2d ;,ose used i2 ;,e prior @earsW 

�,e 0e@ assu1pধo2s used >ere appropria;e a2d 2o;ed ;o #e co1para#le ;o ,is;orical ;re2ds a2d e?;er2all@ deri=ed da;aW �e 
(ou2d ;,a; ;,e disclosures i2 ;,e )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;s are appropria;eW

�;,er 
2(or1aধo2

Ma2a+e1e2; is respo2si#le (or ;,e o;,er i2(or1aধo2 co2;ai2ed i2 ;,e a22ual repor;W  �;,er i2(or1aধo2 is de)2ed as all i2(or1aধo2 
i2 ;,e a22ual repor; o;,er ;,a2 ;,e )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;s a2d our audi;orsZ repor; ;,ereo2W 

�e ,a=e o#;ai2ed all o;,er i2(or1aধo2 prior ;o ;,e da;e o( ;,is audi;orsZ repor; e?cep; (or ;,e �,are,oldi2+s �;aধsধcsW �,e 
�,are,oldi2+s �;aধsধcs is e?pec;ed ;o #e 1ade a=aila#le ;o us ađer ;,a; da;eW 

�ur opi2io2 o2 ;,e )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;s does 2o; co=er ;,e o;,er i2(or1aধo2 a2d >e do 2o; e?press a2@ (or1 o( assura2ce 
co2clusio2 ;,ereo2W 


2 co22ecধo2 >i;, our audi; o( ;,e )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;sT our respo2si#ili;@ is ;o read ;,e o;,er i2(or1aধo2 a2dT i2 doi2+ soT co2sider 
>,e;,er ;,e o;,er i2(or1aধo2 is 1a;eriall@ i2co2sis;e2; >i;, ;,e )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;s or our 02o>led+e o#;ai2ed i2 ;,e audi;T 
or o;,er>ise appears ;o #e 1a;eriall@ 1iss;a;edW  
(T #ased o2 ;,e >or0 >e ,a=e per(or1edT >e co2clude ;,a; ;,ere is a 1a;erial 
1iss;a;e1e2; o( ;,is o;,er i2(or1aধo2T >e are re7uired ;o repor; ;,a; (ac;W �e ,a=e 2o;,i2+ ;o repor; i2 ;,is re+ardW 
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Report on the audit of the financial statements (cont’d)

Responsibilities of management and directors for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a 
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly 
authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain 
accountability of assets. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.  Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists.  Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout 
the audit.  We also: 

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
controls. 

•  Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls. 

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management. 

•  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.  If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion.  Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.  
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

•  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

•  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the 
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.  We are responsible for the direction, supervision and 
performance of the group audit.  We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

Independent Auditors’ Report
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Report on the audit of the financial statements (cont’d)

�udi;orsZ respo2si#iliধes (or ;,e audi; o( ;,e )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;s lco2;Zdm

�e co11u2ica;e >i;, ;,e direc;ors re+ardi2+T a1o2+ o;,er 1aħersT ;,e pla22ed scope a2d ধ1i2+ o( ;,e audi; a2d si+2i)ca2; audi; 
)2di2+sT i2cludi2+ a2@ si+2i)ca2; de)cie2cies i2 i2;er2al co2;rols ;,a; >e ide2ধ(@ duri2+ our audi;W 

�e also pro=ide ;,e direc;ors >i;, a s;a;e1e2; ;,a; >e ,a=e co1plied >i;, rele=a2; e;,ical re7uire1e2;s re+ardi2+ i2depe2de2ceT 
a2d ;o co11u2ica;e >i;, ;,e1 all relaধo2s,ips a2d o;,er 1aħers ;,a; 1a@ reaso2a#l@ #e ;,ou+,; ;o #ear o2 our i2depe2de2ceT 
a2d >,ere applica#leT rela;ed sa(e+uardsW 


ro1 ;,e 1aħers co11u2ica;ed >i;, ;,e direc;orsT >e de;er1i2e ;,ose 1aħers ;,a; >ere o( 1os; si+2i)ca2ce i2 ;,e audi; o( ;,e 
)2a2cial s;a;e1e2;s o( ;,e curre2; period a2d are ;,ere(ore ;,e 0e@ audi; 1aħersW  �e descri#e ;,ese 1aħers i2 our audi;orsZ repor; 
u2less ;,e la> or re+ulaধo2s preclude pu#lic disclosure a#ou; ;,e 1aħer or >,e2T i2 e?;re1el@ rare circu1s;a2cesT >e de;er1i2e 
;,a; a 1aħer s,ould 2o; #e co11u2ica;ed i2 our repor; #ecause ;,e ad=erse co2se7ue2ces o( doi2+ so >ould reaso2a#l@ #e 
e?pec;ed ;o ou;>ei+, ;,e pu#lic i2;eres; #e2e);s o( suc, co11u2icaধo2W 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements


2 our opi2io2T ;,e accou2ধ2+ a2d o;,er records re7uired #@ ;,e �c; ;o #e 0ep; #@ ;,e �o1pa2@ a2d #@ ;,ose su#sidiar@ corporaধo2s 
i2corpora;ed i2 �i2+apore o( >,ic, >e are ;,e audi;ors ,a=e #ee2 properl@ 0ep; i2 accorda2ce >i;, ;,e pro=isio2s o( ;,e �c;W 

�,e e2+a+e1e2; par;2er o2 ;,e audi; resulধ2+ i2 ;,is i2depe2de2; audi;orsZ repor; is �au �a1 �ue2W

KPMG LLP
�u#lic �ccou2;a2;s a2d
�,ar;ered �ccou2;a2;s

Singapore
�� 
e#ruar@ ���¥
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Group Company

Note 2017 2016 2017 2016

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 384,021 270,066 7,585 8,040
Intangible assets and goodwill 5 36,773 30,660 1,296 93
Investment properties 6 385,498 371,472 – –
Subsidiaries 24 – – 551,131 451,431
Deferred tax assets 7 1,025 437 – –
Trade and other receivables 8 3,060 4,711 7,663 7,658

810,377 677,346 567,675 467,222

Current assets
Inventories 9,955 9,994 2,491 2,643
Trade and other receivables 8 87,259 101,408 124,626 103,234
Cash and cash equivalents 9 98,270 111,883 5,716 32,619

195,484 223,285 132,833 138,496
Total assets 1,005,861 900,631 700,508 605,718

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Share capital 10 340,201 314,165 340,201 314,165
Reserves 10 393,849 352,223 268,350 242,894

734,050 666,388 608,551 557,059
Non-controlling interests 17,575 15,456 – –
Total equity 751,625 681,844 608,551 557,059

Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 12 38,000 16,947 – –
Trade and other payables 13 15,102 4,397 58 96
Other financial liabilities 14 1,773 8,377 – –
Deferred tax liabilities 7 4,870 4,853 899 722

59,745 34,574 957 818

Current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 12 41,204 13,451 37,262 9,518
Current tax liabilities 12,904 14,163 271 1,644
Trade and other payables 13 126,305 144,728 53,467 36,679
Other financial liabilities 14 2,941 166 – –
Insurance contract provisions 15 11,137 11,705 – –

194,491 184,213 91,000 47,841
Total liabilities 254,236 218,787 91,957 48,659
Total equity and liabilities 1,005,861 900,631 700,508 605,718

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Statements of Financial Position
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Note 2017 2016

$’000 $’000

Re=e2ue ���T�¥� ���T¤�¥
�;,er operaধ2+ i2co1e �T¥�� �T���

2=e2;ories a2d co2su1a#les used l��T�¤�m l��T���m
�urc,ased a2d co2;rac;ed ser=ices l��T���m l��T���m
�;aø cos;s l���T¤��m l���T��¤m
�epreciaধo2 o( proper;@T pla2; a2d e7uip1e2; 4 l��T�¥¥m l��T���m
�1orধsaধo2 o( i2;a2+i#le asse;s � l¤��m l���m
�peraধ2+ lease e?pe2ses l��T���m l��T���m
�;,er operaধ2+ e?pe2ses l��T��¥m l��T���m
Profit from operating activities ¥�T�¥¤ ¥�T��¤

i2a2ce i2co1e ��¤ �T��¥

i2a2ce e?pe2ses l���m l���m
Profit before tax ¥�T¥�¥ ¥�T���
�a? e?pe2se �¥ l��T���m l��T�¥�m
Profit for the year �� ¤¥T¤¤� ¤�T��¤

Profit attributable to:
�>2ers o( ;,e �o1pa2@ ��T��� ��T���
�o2fco2;rolli2+ i2;eres;s l�T��¥m l�T�¤�m
Profit for the year ¤¥T¤¤� ¤�T��¤

Earnings per share 
�asic ear2i2+s per s,are lce2;sm �� �W�� �W��
�ilu;ed ear2i2+s per s,are lce2;sm �� �W�� �W��

�,e acco1pa2@i2+ 2o;es (or1 a2 i2;e+ral par; o( ;,ese )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;sW

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

�o2solida;ed �;a;e1
e2; o( �ro); or �oss

�ear e2ded �� �ece1#er ����
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2017 2016

$’000 $’000

Profit for the year 68,661 67,946

Other comprehensive income
Item that is or may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation differences - foreign operations (169) (4,029)
Total comprehensive income for the year 68,492 63,917

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company 70,495 67,267
Non-controlling interests (2,003) (3,350)
Total comprehensive income for the year 68,492 63,917

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of  
Comprehensive Income
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Note 2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Cash flows from operating activities
�ro); (or ;,e @ear ¤¥T¤¤� ¤�T��¤
�d/us;1e2;s (orV
�1orধsaধo2 o( i2;a2+i#le asse;s ¤�� ���
�,a2+es i2 (air =alue o( i2=es;1e2; properধes l�T�¥�m l�T���m
�epreciaধo2 o( proper;@T pla2; a2d e7uip1e2; ��T�¥¥ ��T���
	7ui;@fseħled s,aref#ased pa@1e2; ;ra2sacধo2s �T��� �T¤�¤

i2a2ce e?pe2ses ��� ���

i2a2ce i2co1e l��¤m l�T��¥m
�oss o2 disposal o( proper;@T pla2; a2d e7uip1e2;T 2e; �� Ȅ
�roper;@T pla2; a2d e7uip1e2; >riħe2 oø ��� ���
�a? e?pe2se ��T��� ��T�¥�

��T��� ��T¥��
�,a2+es i2 >or0i2+ capi;alV

2=e2;ories �� l���m
�rade a2d o;,er recei=a#les �¤T��� l�¥T���m
�rade a2d o;,er pa@a#les l��T���m ��T���

2sura2ce co2;rac; pro=isio2s l�¤¥m l�T���m
�as, +e2era;ed (ro1 operaধo2s ��T��� ��T��¤
�a? paid l��T���m l��T¤��m

2;eres; paid l¤��m l���m
Net cash from operating activities ¥�T¤�� �¥T¥��

Cash flows from investing activities

2;eres; recei=ed ��� �T�¥¥
�roceeds (ro1 disposal o( proper;@T pla2; a2d e7uip1e2; �� Ȅ
�urc,ase o( proper;@T pla2; a2d e7uip1e2; l��T���m l��T���m
�c7uisiধo2 o( i2;a2+i#le asse;s l�T¥¥¥m Ȅ
�a@1e2; (or i2=es;1e2; properধes u2der de=elop1e2; l���T���m l��T�¤�m
Net cash used in investing activities l���T¤¤�m l��T���m

Cash flows from financing activities
�i=ide2ds paid ;o o>2ers o( ;,e �o1pa2@ l��T�¥�m l��T�¥�m
�i=ide2ds paid ;o 2o2fco2;rolli2+ i2;eres;s Ȅ l��¤m
�oa2 (ro1 su#sidiar@Zs 2o2fco2;rolli2+ i2;eres; ��� ¤��
�roceeds (ro1 issue o( s,ares u2der s,are opধo2 sc,e1e �T��¥ �T���
�roceeds (ro1 issue o( s,ares ;o 2o2fco2;rolli2+ i2;eres;s o( su#sidiaries �T��� Ȅ
�roceeds (ro1 #a20 loa2s ��¤T��� ��T¥¥¤
Repa@1e2; o( #a20 loa2s l�¥¤T���m l��T���m
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities ��T��� l¥T�¥¤m

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents l��T���m ��T��¤
�as, a2d cas, e7ui=ale2;s a; � �a2uar@ � ���T¥¥� ¥¤T���
	øec; o( e?c,a2+e ra;e *uc;uaধo2s o2 cas, ,eld l�¥�m l���m
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December � �¥T��� ���T¥¥�

�,e acco1pa2@i2+ 2o;es (or1 a2 i2;e+ral par; o( ;,ese )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;sW

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

�o2solida;ed �;a;e1
e2; o( �

as, 
lo>
s

�ear e2ded �� �ece1#er ����
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Expanding Our Landmark for You

These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 February 2018.

1. Domicile and activities

Raffles Medical Group Ltd (the Company) is a company incorporated in Singapore. The address of the Company’s registered 
office is 585 North Bridge Road, Raffles Hospital #11-00, Singapore 188770.

The financial statements of the Group as at and for the year ended 31 December 2017 comprise the Company and its 
subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group).

The principal activities of the Company are those relating to the operation of medical clinics, other general medical services 
and investment holdings.

The Group and the Company are the sole proprietor of the following:

Family Doctors
RafflesCare
Raffles Airport Medical Centre
Raffles Corporate Wellness
Raffles Dental Surgery
Raffles Healthcare Consultancy
Raffles Healthcare Institute
Raffles Health Screeners
Raffles Medical Management 
Raffles Medihelp
Raffles Optica
Raffles Pharmacare
Raffles Pharmacy
Raffles Solitaire
Raffles Solitaire International
Raffles Specialist Centre

The Group and the Company are the partner of the following:

Changi Medical Services LLP
Raffles International Medical Assistance LLP 

All transactions of these sole proprietorships and partnerships are reflected in the financial statements of the Company. The 
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.

The immediate and ultimate holding company during the financial year is Raffles Medical Holdings Pte Ltd, which is 
incorporated in Singapore.

2. Basis of preparation

2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (FRS).
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2. Basis of preparation (cont’d)

2.2 Basis of measurement

�,e )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;s ,a=e #ee2 prepared o2 ;,e ,is;orical cos; #asis e?cep; as o;,er>ise descri#ed i2 ;,e 2o;es #elo>W

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

�,ese )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;s are prese2;ed i2 �i2+apore dollarsT >,ic, is ;,e �o1pa2@Zs (u2cধo2al curre2c@W �ll )2a2cial 
i2(or1aধo2 prese2;ed i2 �i2+apore dollars ,a=e #ee2 rou2ded ;o ;,e 2eares; ;,ousa2dT u2less o;,er>ise s;a;edW

2.4 Use of estimates and judgements

�,e preparaধo2 o( )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;s i2 co2(or1i;@ >i;, 
R�s re7uires 1a2a+e1e2; ;o 1a0e /ud+e1e2;sT esধ1a;es a2d 
assu1pধo2s ;,a; aøec; ;,e applicaধo2 o( accou2ধ2+ policies a2d ;,e repor;ed a1ou2;s o( asse;sT lia#iliধesT i2co1e a2d 
e?pe2sesW �c;ual resul;s 1a@ diøer (ro1 ;,ese esধ1a;esW

	sধ1a;es a2d u2derl@i2+ assu1pধo2s are re=ie>ed o2 a2 o2+oi2+ #asisW Re=isio2s ;o accou2ধ2+ esধ1a;es are reco+2ised i2 
;,e period i2 >,ic, ;,e esধ1a;es are re=ised a2d i2 a2@ (u;ure periods aøec;edW


2(or1aধo2 a#ou; criধcal /ud+e1e2;s i2 appl@i2+ accou2ধ2+ policies ;,a; ,a=e ;,e 1os; si+2i)ca2; eøec; o2 ;,e a1ou2;s 
reco+2ised i2 ;,e )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;s is i2cluded i2 2o;e ¤ g classi)caধo2 o( i2=es;1e2; properধesW 


2(or1aধo2 a#ou; assu1pধo2s a2d esধ1aধo2 u2cer;ai2ধes ;,a; ,a=e a si+2i)ca2; ris0 o( resulধ2+ i2 a 1a;erial ad/us;1e2; 
>i;,i2 ;,e 2e?; )2a2cial @ear are i2cluded i2 ;,e (ollo>i2+ 2o;esV

• �o;e � a2d � g esধ1aধo2 o( use(ul li=es a2d reco=era#le a1ou2;s o( proper;@T pla2; a2d e7uip1e2; a2d 
i2;a2+i#le asse;s

• �o;e � g i1pair1e2; ;es;V 0e@ assu1pধo2s u2derl@i2+ reco=era#le a1ou2;s

• �o;e ¤ g (air =alue de;er1i2aধo2 o( i2=es;1e2; properধes

• �o;e � g uধlisaধo2 o( ;a? losses

• �o;e �� g i2sura2ce co2;rac; pro=isio2s

Measurement of fair values

� 2u1#er o( ;,e GroupZs accou2ধ2+ policies a2d disclosures re7uire ;,e 1easure1e2; o( (air =aluesT (or #o;, )2a2cial a2d 
2o2f)2a2cial asse;s a2d lia#iliধesW

�i+2i)ca2; =aluaধo2 issues are repor;ed ;o ;,e �udi; { Ris0 �o11iħeeW

�,e2 1easuri2+ ;,e (air =alue o( a2 asse; or a lia#ili;@T ;,e Group uses o#ser=a#le 1ar0e; da;a as (ar as possi#leW 
air =alues 
are ca;e+orised i2;o diøere2; le=els i2 a (air =alue ,ierarc,@ #ased o2 ;,e i2pu;s used i2 ;,e =aluaধo2 ;ec,2i7ues as (ollo>sV

• �e=el � V 7uo;ed prices lu2ad/us;edm i2 acধ=e 1ar0e;s (or ide2ধcal asse;s or lia#iliধesW

• �e=el � V i2pu;s o;,er ;,a2 7uo;ed prices i2cluded i2 �e=el � ;,a; are o#ser=a#le (or ;,e asse; or lia#ili;@T 
ei;,er direc;l@ liWeW as pricesm or i2direc;l@ liWeW deri=ed (ro1 pricesmW

• �e=el � V i2pu;s (or ;,e asse; or lia#ili;@ ;,a; are 2o; #ased o2 o#ser=a#le 1ar0e; da;a lu2o#ser=a#le 
i2pu;smW
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2. Basis of preparation (cont’d)

2.4 Use of estimates and judgements (cont’d)

Measurement of fair values (cont’d)

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the 
fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that 
is significant to the entire measurement (with Level 3 being the lowest).  

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting period during which 
the change has occurred. 

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes:

• Note 6 – investment properties

• Note 11 – employee share options

• Note 16 – financial instruments

2.5 Changes in accounting policies 

Revised standards 

The Group has applied the following amendments for the first time for the annual period beginning on 1 January 2017:

• Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to FRS 7);
• Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses (Amendments to FRS 12); and
• Clarification of the scope of FRS 112 (Improvements to FRSs 2016).

Other than the amendments to FRS 7, the adoption of these amendments did not have any impact on the current or prior 
period and is not likely to affect future periods. 

Disclosure Initiative (Amendment to FRS 7)

From 1 January 2017, as a result of the amendments to FRS 7, the Group has provided additional disclosure in relation to the 
changes in liabilities arising from financial activities for the year ended 31 December 2017.  Comparative information has not 
been presented (see note 12). 

3. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements, 
and have been applied consistently by Group entities, except as explained in note 2.5, which addresses changes in accounting 
policies. 

3.1 Basis of consolidation

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method in accordance with FRS 103 Business Combinations 
as at the date of acquisition, which is the date on which control is transferred to the Group.  
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.1 Basis of consolidation (cont’d)

Business combinations (cont’d)

�,e Group 1easures +ood>ill a; ;,e da;e o( ac7uisiধo2 asV
• ;,e (air =alue o( ;,e co2sideraধo2 ;ra2s(erredU plus
• ;,e reco+2ised a1ou2; o( a2@ 2o2fco2;rolli2+ i2;eres;s l��
m i2 ;,e ac7uireeU plus
• i( ;,e #usi2ess co1#i2aধo2 is ac,ie=ed i2 s;a+esT ;,e (air =alue o( ;,e prefe?isধ2+ e7ui;@ i2;eres; i2 ;,e ac7uireeT o=er 

;,e 2e; reco+2ised a1ou2; l+e2erall@ (air =aluem o( ;,e ide2ধ)a#le asse;s ac7uired a2d lia#iliধes assu1edW �2@ +ood>ill 
;,a; arises is ;es;ed a22uall@ (or i1pair1e2;W  

�,e2 ;,e e?cess is 2e+aধ=eT a #ar+ai2 purc,ase +ai2 is reco+2ised i11edia;el@ i2 pro); or lossW

�,e co2sideraধo2 ;ra2s(erred does 2o; i2clude a1ou2;s rela;ed ;o ;,e seħle1e2; o( prefe?isধ2+ relaধo2s,ipsW �uc, a1ou2;s 
are +e2erall@ reco+2ised i2 pro); or lossW 

�2@ co2ধ2+e2; co2sideraধo2 pa@a#le is reco+2ised a; (air =alue a; ;,e da;e o( ac7uisiধo2 a2d i2cluded i2 ;,e co2sideraধo2 
;ra2s(erredW 
( ;,e co2ধ2+e2; co2sideraধo2 ;,a; 1ee;s ;,e de)2iধo2 o( a )2a2cial i2s;ru1e2; is classi)ed as e7ui;@T i; is 2o; 
re1easured a2d seħle1e2; is accou2;ed (or >i;,i2 e7ui;@W �;,er>iseT o;,er co2ধ2+e2; co2sideraধo2 is re1easured a; (air 
=alue a; eac, reporধ2+ da;e a2d su#se7ue2; c,a2+es ;o ;,e (air =alue o( ;,e co2ধ2+e2; co2sideraধo2 are reco+2ised i2 pro); 
or lossW 

��
 ;,a; are prese2; o>2ers,ip i2;eres;s a2d e2ধ;le ;,eir ,olders ;o a proporধo2a;e s,are o( ;,e ac7uireeZs 2e; asse;s i2 
;,e e=e2; o( li7uidaধo2 are 1easured ei;,er a; (air =alue or a; ;,e ��
Zs proporধo2a;e s,are o( ;,e reco+2ised a1ou2;s o( 
;,e ac7uireeZs ide2ধ)a#le 2e; asse;sT a; ;,e da;e o( ac7uisiধo2W �,e 1easure1e2; #asis ;a0e2 is elec;ed o2 a ;ra2sacধo2f#@f
;ra2sacধo2 #asisW �ll o;,er ��
 are 1easured a; ac7uisiধo2fda;e (air =alueT u2less a2o;,er 1easure1e2; #asis is re7uired #@ 

R�sW 

�os;s rela;ed ;o ;,e ac7uisiধo2T o;,er ;,a2 ;,ose associa;ed >i;, ;,e issue o( de#; or e7ui;@ securiধesT ;,a; ;,e Group i2curs 
i2 co22ecধo2 >i;, a #usi2ess co1#i2aধo2 are e?pe2sed as i2curredW  

�,a2+es i2 ;,e GroupZs i2;eres; i2 a su#sidiar@ ;,a; do 2o; resul; i2 a loss o( co2;rol are accou2;ed (or as ;ra2sacধo2s >i;, 
o>2ers i2 ;,eir capaci;@ as o>2ers a2d ;,ere(ore 2o ad/us;1e2;s are 1ade ;o +ood>ill a2d 2o +ai2 or loss is reco+2ised i2 
pro); or lossW �d/us;1e2;s ;o ��
 arisi2+ (ro1 ;ra2sacধo2s ;,a; do 2o; i2=ol=e ;,e loss o( co2;rol are #ased o2 a proporধo2a;e 
a1ou2; o( ;,e 2e; asse;s o( ;,e su#sidiar@W 

Subsidiaries

�u#sidiaries are e2ধধes co2;rolled #@ ;,e GroupW �,e Group co2;rols a2 e2ধ;@ >,e2 i; is e?posed ;oT or ,as ri+,;s ;oT =aria#le 
re;ur2s (ro1 i;s i2=ol=e1e2; >i;, ;,e e2ধ;@ a2d ,as ;,e a#ili;@ ;o aøec; ;,ose re;ur2s ;,rou+, i;s po>er o=er ;,e e2ধ;@W 
�,e )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;s o( su#sidiaries are i2cluded i2 ;,e co2solida;ed )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;s (ro1 ;,e da;e ;,a; co2;rol 
co11e2ces u2ধl ;,e da;e ;,a; co2;rol ceasesW 

�,e accou2ধ2+ policies o( su#sidiaries ,a=e #ee2 c,a2+ed >,e2 2ecessar@ ;o ali+2 ;,e1 >i;, ;,e policies adop;ed #@ ;,e 
GroupW �osses applica#le ;o ;,e ��
 i2 a su#sidiar@ are alloca;ed ;o ;,e ��
 e=e2 i( doi2+ so causes ;,e ��
 ;o ,a=e a de)ci; 
#ala2ceW  
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Expanding Our Landmark for You

3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.1 Basis of consolidation (cont’d)

Written put option in business combination

When the Group writes a put with the non-controlling shareholder in an existing subsidiary on their equity interests in that 
subsidiary and the put option granted to the non-controlling shareholders provides for settlement in cash or in another 
financial asset by the Group, then the Group recognises a liability for the present value of the exercise price of the option. 
Subsequent to initial recognition of the financial liability, the Group has adopted an accounting policy choice to recognise the 
changes in the carrying amount of the financial liability in equity. 

NCI have present access to the returns associated with the underlying ownership interests, the Group has elected the present-
access method to account for the NCI. Under the present-access method, the interest of non-controlling shareholders that 
hold the written put option are not derecognised when the financial liability is recognised. NCI has present access to the 
returns that are the subject of the put option. 

If the put option expires unexercised, then the put liability is reversed against the other equity.

Loss of control

Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any NCI and the other components 
of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognised in profit or loss. If the 
Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, such interest is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost. 
Subsequently, it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or as an available-for-sale financial asset depending on the 
level of influence retained.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are 
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised 
gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment. 

Subsidiaries in the separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are stated in the Company’s statement of financial position at cost less accumulated impairment 
losses.

3.2 Foreign currency 

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group entities at exchange rates 
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are 
translated to the functional currencies at the exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items 
is the difference between amortised cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the year, adjusted for effective interest 
and payments during the year, and the amortised cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the 
year. 
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.2 Foreign currency (cont’d) 

Foreign currency transactions (cont’d)

�o2f1o2e;ar@ asse;s a2d lia#iliধes de2o1i2a;ed i2 (orei+2 curre2cies ;,a; are 1easured a; (air =alue are ;ra2sla;ed ;o ;,e 
(u2cধo2al curre2c@ a; ;,e e?c,a2+e ra;e a; ;,e da;e ;,a; ;,e (air =alue >as de;er1i2edW �o2f1o2e;ar@ i;e1s i2 a (orei+2 
curre2c@ ;,a; are 1easured i2 ;er1s o( ,is;orical cos; are ;ra2sla;ed usi2+ ;,e e?c,a2+e ra;e a; ;,e da;e o( ;,e ;ra2sacধo2W  

orei+2 curre2c@ diøere2ces arisi2+ o2 ;ra2slaধo2 are reco+2ised i2 pro); or lossT e?cep; (or ;,e (ollo>i2+ diøere2ces >,ic, 
are reco+2ised i2 o;,er co1pre,e2si=e i2co1e arisi2+ o2 ;,e ;ra2slaধo2 o( a )2a2cial lia#ili;@ desi+2a;ed as a ,ed+e o( ;,e 
2e; i2=es;1e2; i2 a (orei+2 operaধo2 ;o ;,e e?;e2; ;,a; ;,e ,ed+e is eøecধ=eW  

Foreign operations

�,e asse;s a2d lia#iliধes o( (orei+2 operaধo2sT e?cludi2+ +ood>ill a2d (air =alue ad/us;1e2;s arisi2+ o2 ac7uisiধo2T are 
;ra2sla;ed ;o �i2+apore dollars a; e?c,a2+e ra;es a; ;,e reporধ2+ da;eW �,e i2co1e a2d e?pe2ses o( (orei+2 operaধo2s are 
;ra2sla;ed ;o �i2+apore dollars a; e?c,a2+e ra;es a; ;,e da;es o( ;,e ;ra2sacধo2sW Good>ill a2d (air =alue ad/us;1e2;s arisi2+ 
o2 ;,e ac7uisiধo2 o( a (orei+2 operaধo2 o2 or ađer � �a2uar@ ���� are ;rea;ed as asse;s a2d lia#iliধes o( ;,e (orei+2 operaধo2 
a2d are ;ra2sla;ed a; ;,e e?c,a2+e ra;es a; ;,e reporধ2+ da;eW 
or ac7uisiধo2s prior ;o � �a2uar@ ����T ;,e e?c,a2+e ra;es a; 
;,e da;e o( ac7uisiধo2 >ere usedW 


orei+2 curre2c@ diøere2ces are reco+2ised i2 o;,er co1pre,e2si=e i2co1e a2d prese2;ed i2 ;,e (orei+2 curre2c@ ;ra2slaধo2 
reser=e l;ra2slaধo2 reser=em i2 e7ui;@W �o>e=erT i( ;,e (orei+2 operaধo2 is a 2o2f>,oll@fo>2ed su#sidiar@T ;,e rele=a2; 
proporধo2a;e s,are o( ;,e ;ra2slaধo2 diøere2ce is alloca;ed ;o ;,e ��
W �,e2 a (orei+2 operaধo2 is disposed o( suc, ;,a; 
co2;rolT si+2i)ca2; i2*ue2ce or /oi2; co2;rol is los;T ;,e cu1ulaধ=e a1ou2; i2 ;,e ;ra2slaধo2 reser=e rela;ed ;o ;,a; (orei+2 
operaধo2 is reclassi)ed ;o pro); or loss as par; o( ;,e +ai2 or loss o2 disposalW �,e2 ;,e Group disposes o( o2l@ par; o( i;s 
i2;eres; i2 a su#sidiar@ ;,a; i2cludes a (orei+2 operaধo2 >,ile re;ai2i2+ co2;rolT ;,e rele=a2; proporধo2 o( ;,e cu1ulaধ=e 
a1ou2; is reaħri#u;ed ;o ��
W �,e2 ;,e Group disposes o( o2l@ par; o( i;s i2=es;1e2; i2 a2 associa;e or /oi2; =e2;ure ;,a; 
i2cludes a (orei+2 operaধo2 >,ile re;ai2i2+ si+2i)ca2; i2*ue2ce or /oi2; co2;rolT ;,e rele=a2; proporধo2 o( ;,e cu1ulaধ=e 
a1ou2; is reclassi)ed ;o pro); or lossW 

�,e2 ;,e seħle1e2; o( a 1o2e;ar@ i;e1 recei=a#le (ro1 or pa@a#le ;o a (orei+2 operaধo2 is 2ei;,er pla22ed 2or li0el@ ;o 
occur i2 ;,e (oreseea#le (u;ureT (orei+2 e?c,a2+e +ai2s a2d losses arisi2+ (ro1 suc, a 1o2e;ar@ i;e1 ;,a; are co2sidered ;o 
(or1 par; o( a 2e; i2=es;1e2; i2 a (orei+2 operaধo2 are reco+2ised i2 o;,er co1pre,e2si=e i2co1eT a2d are prese2;ed i2 ;,e 
;ra2slaধo2 reser=e i2 e7ui;@W 

3.3 Financial instruments

Non-derivative financial assets

�,e Group i2iধall@ reco+2ises loa2s a2d recei=a#les o2 ;,e da;e ;,a; ;,e@ are ori+i2a;edW �ll o;,er )2a2cial asse;s are reco+2ised 
i2iধall@ o2 ;,e ;rade da;eT >,ic, is ;,e da;e ;,a; ;,e Group #eco1es a par;@ ;o ;,e co2;rac;ual pro=isio2s o( ;,e i2s;ru1e2;W 

�,e Group dereco+2ises a )2a2cial asse; >,e2 ;,e co2;rac;ual ri+,;s ;o ;,e cas, *o>s (ro1 ;,e asse; e?pireT or i; ;ra2s(ers 
;,e ri+,;s ;o recei=e ;,e co2;rac;ual cas, *o>s o2 ;,e )2a2cial asse; i2 a ;ra2sacধo2 i2 >,ic, su#s;a2ধall@ all ;,e ris0s a2d 
re>ards o( o>2ers,ip o( ;,e )2a2cial asse; are ;ra2s(erredT or i; 2ei;,er ;ra2s(ers 2or re;ai2s su#s;a2ধall@ all o( ;,e ris0s a2d 
re>ards o( o>2ers,ip a2d does 2o; re;ai2 co2;rol o=er ;,e ;ra2s(erred asse;sW �2@ i2;eres; i2 ;ra2s(erred )2a2cial asse;s ;,a; 
is crea;ed or re;ai2ed #@ ;,e Group is reco+2ised as a separa;e asse; or lia#ili;@W 
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Expanding Our Landmark for You

3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.3 Financial instruments (cont’d) 

Non-derivative financial assets (cont’d)

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and only 
when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or 
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets into the following categories: loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such 
assets are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, 
loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses. 

Loans and receivables comprise cash and cash equivalents, and trade and other receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and bank deposits with maturities of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Group in the management 
of its short-term commitments. 

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised initially on the trade date, which is the date that the Group becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. 

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.

Financial liabilities for contingent consideration payable in a business combination are initially measured at fair value. 
Subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in profit or loss. 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and only 
when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or 
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Non-derivative financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

Financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, and trade and other payables. 

Share capital

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised 
as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.3 Financial instruments (cont’d) 

Intra-group financial guarantees in the separate financial statements


i2a2cial +uara2;ees are )2a2cial i2s;ru1e2;s issued #@ ;,e �o1pa2@ ;,a; re7uire ;,e issuer ;o 1a0e speci)ed pa@1e2;s ;o 
rei1#urse ;,e ,older (or ;,e loss i; i2curs #ecause a speci)ed de#;or (ails ;o 1ee; pa@1e2; >,e2 due i2 accorda2ce >i;, ;,e 
ori+i2al or 1odi)ed ;er1s o( a de#; i2s;ru1e2;W 


i2a2cial +uara2;ee co2;rac;s are accou2;ed (or as i2sura2ce co2;rac;sW � pro=isio2 is reco+2ised #ased o2 ;,e �o1pa2@Zs 
esধ1a;e o( ;,e ulধ1a;e cos; o( seħli2+ all clai1s i2curred #u; u2paid a; ;,e reporধ2+ da;eW �,e pro=isio2 is assessed #@ 
re=ie>i2+ i2di=idual clai1s a2d ;es;ed (or ade7uac@ #@ co1pari2+ ;,e a1ou2; reco+2ised a2d ;,e a1ou2; ;,a; >ould #e 
re7uired ;o seħle ;,e +uara2;ee co2;rac;sW 

3.4 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement


;e1s o( proper;@T pla2; a2d e7uip1e2; are 1easured a; cos; less accu1ula;ed depreciaধo2 a2d accu1ula;ed i1pair1e2; 
lossesW 

�os; i2cludes e?pe2di;ure ;,a; is direc;l@ aħri#u;a#le ;o ;,e ac7uisiধo2 o( ;,e asse;W �,e cos; o( sel(fco2s;ruc;ed asse;s 
i2cludesV 

• ;,e cos; o( 1a;erials a2d direc; la#ourU

• a2@ o;,er cos;s direc;l@ aħri#u;a#le ;o #ri2+i2+ ;,e asse;s ;o a >or0i2+ co2diধo2 (or ;,eir i2;e2ded useU

• >,e2 ;,e Group ,as a2 o#li+aধo2 ;o re1o=e ;,e asse; or res;ore ;,e si;eT a2 esধ1a;e o( ;,e cos;s o( dis1a2;li2+ a2d 
re1o=i2+ ;,e i;e1s a2d res;ori2+ ;,e si;e o2 >,ic, ;,e@ are loca;edU a2d

• capi;alised #orro>i2+ cos;sW

�urc,ased sođ>are ;,a; is i2;e+ral ;o ;,e (u2cধo2ali;@ o( ;,e rela;ed e7uip1e2; is capi;alised as par; o( ;,a; e7uip1e2;W 

�,e2 par;s o( a2 i;e1 o( proper;@T pla2; a2d e7uip1e2; ,a=e diøere2; use(ul li=esT ;,e@ are accou2;ed (or as separa;e i;e1s 
l1a/or co1po2e2;sm o( proper;@T pla2; a2d e7uip1e2;W 

�,e +ai2 or loss o2 disposal o( a2 i;e1 o( proper;@T pla2; a2d e7uip1e2; lcalcula;ed as ;,e diøere2ce #e;>ee2 ;,e 2e; 
proceeds (ro1 disposal a2d ;,e carr@i2+ a1ou2; o( ;,e i;e1m is reco+2ised i2 pro); or lossW 

Subsequent costs

�,e cos; o( replaci2+ a co1po2e2; o( a2 i;e1 o( proper;@T pla2; a2d e7uip1e2; is reco+2ised i2 ;,e carr@i2+ a1ou2; o( ;,e 
i;e1 i( i; is pro#a#le ;,a; ;,e (u;ure eco2o1ic #e2e);s e1#odied >i;,i2 ;,e co1po2e2; >ill *o> ;o ;,e GroupT a2d i;s cos; ca2 
#e 1easured relia#l@W �,e carr@i2+ a1ou2; o( ;,e replaced co1po2e2; is dereco+2isedW �,e cos;s o( ;,e da@f;ofda@ ser=ici2+ 
o( proper;@T pla2; a2d e7uip1e2; are reco+2ised i2 pro); or loss as i2curredW 

Depreciation

�epreciaধo2 is #ased o2 ;,e cos; o( a2 asse; less i;s residual =alueW �i+2i)ca2; co1po2e2;s o( i2di=idual asse;s are assessed 
a2d i( a co1po2e2; ,as a use(ul li(e ;,a; is diøere2; (ro1 ;,e re1ai2der o( ;,a; asse;T ;,a; co1po2e2; is deprecia;ed separa;el@W
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Expanding Our Landmark for You

3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.4 Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Depreciation (cont’d)

Depreciation is recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each 
component of an item of property, plant and equipment, unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset. Leased 
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Group 
will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

Depreciation is recognised from the date that the property, plant and equipment are installed and are ready for use, or in 
respect of internally constructed assets, from the date that the asset is completed and ready for use.

Freehold land and fixed asset work in progress are not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years are as follows:

• Leasehold land 99 years, or lease term if shorter
• Properties 50 years
• Medical equipment 8 to 10 years
• Furniture and fittings 10 years
• Office equipment 5 to 10 years
• Motor vehicles 10 years
• Computers 3 to 6 years
• Renovations 6 years, or lease term if shorter
• Facilities equipment 10 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted if 
appropriate. 

Reclassification to investment property

When the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to investment property, the property is remeasured to fair value 
and reclassified accordingly. Any gain arising on remeasurement is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a 
previous impairment loss on the specific property, with any remaining gain recognised in other comprehensive income and 
presented in the revaluation reserve in equity. Any loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss. When the property is sold, 
the related amount in the revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings. 

3.5 Intangible assets and goodwill

(i) Goodwill

Goodwill that arises upon the acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. For the measurement of goodwill 
at initial recognition, see note 3.1. 

Subsequent measurement

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. 
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.5 Intangible assets and goodwill (cont’d)

(ii) Software development in progress

�,e e?pe2di;ure capi;alised (or sođ>are de=elop1e2; i2 pro+ress i2cludes ;,e cos; o( 1a;erialsT direc; la#ourT o=er,ead 
cos;s ;,a; are direc;l@ aħri#u;a#le ;o prepari2+ ;,e asse;s (or i;s i2;e2ded useW �os;s associa;ed >i;, 1ai2;ai2i2+ ;,e 
sođ>are are reco+2ised i2 pro); or loss as i2curredW

�2ce ;,e sođ>are is a=aila#le ;o useT ;,e capi;alised de=elop1e2; e?pe2di;ure is 1easured a; cos; less accu1ula;ed 
a1orধsaধo2 a2d accu1ula;ed i1pair1e2; lossesW

(iii) Other intangible assets

�;,er i2;a2+i#le asse;s ;,a; are ac7uired #@ ;,e Group a2d ,a=e )2i;e use(ul li=es are 1easured a; cos; less accu1ula;ed 
a1orধsaধo2 a2d accu1ula;ed i1pair1e2; lossesW 

(iv) Subsequent expenditure

�u#se7ue2; e?pe2di;ure is capi;alised o2l@ >,e2 i; i2creases ;,e (u;ure eco2o1ic #e2e);s e1#odied i2 ;,e speci)c 
asse; ;o >,ic, i; rela;esW �ll o;,er e?pe2di;ureT i2cludi2+ e?pe2di;ure o2 i2;er2all@ +e2era;ed +ood>ill a2d #ra2dsT is 
reco+2ised i2 pro); or loss as i2curredW 

(v) Amortisation

�1orধsaধo2 is calcula;ed #ased o2 ;,e cos; o( ;,e asse;T less i;s residual =alueW

�1orধsaধo2 is reco+2ised i2 pro); or loss o2 a s;rai+,;fli2e #asis o=er ;,e esধ1a;ed use(ul li=es o( i2;a2+i#le asse;sT 
o;,er ;,a2 +ood>illT (ro1 ;,e da;e ;,a; ;,e@ are a=aila#le (or useW �,e esধ1a;ed use(ul li=es (or ;,e curre2; a2d 
co1paraধ=e @ears are as (ollo>sV 

• Assignment fees �� @ears
• �us;o1er relaধo2s,ip � f �� @ears
• �ođ>are ¥ @ears


2;a2+i#le asse;s i2 pro+ress are 2o; a1orধsedW

�1orধsaধo2 1e;,odsT use(ul li=es a2d residual =alues are re=ie>ed a; ;,e e2d o( eac, reporধ2+ period a2d ad/us;ed 
i( appropria;eW 

3.6 Investment properties and properties under development 


2=es;1e2; properধes are properধes ,eld ei;,er ;o ear2 re2;al i2co1e or (or capi;al appreciaধo2 or (or #o;,W 
2=es;1e2; 
properধes u2der de=elop1e2; are properধes #ei2+ co2s;ruc;ed or de=eloped (or (u;ure use as i2=es;1e2; properধesW �,e@ 
are 2o; (or sale i2 ;,e ordi2ar@ course o( #usi2essT use i2 ;,e producধo2 or suppl@ o( +oods or ser=ices or (or ad1i2is;raধ=e 
purposesW  


2=es;1e2; properধes are 1easured a; cos; o2 i2iধal reco+2iধo2 a2d su#se7ue2;l@ a; (air =alue >i;, a2@ c,a2+e ;,erei2 
reco+2ised i2 pro); or lossW 
2=es;1e2; properধes u2der de=elop1e2; are 1easured a; cos; >,e2 (air =alue o( ;,e i2=es;1e2; 
properধes u2der de=elop1e2; ca22o; #e 1easured relia#l@W 
2=es;1e2; properধes u2der de=elop1e2; is accou2;ed (or usi2+ 
;,e cos; 1odel u2ধl ;,e earlier o( ;,e da;e o2 >,ic, (air =alue o( ;,e proper;@ ca2 #e 1easured relia#l@ or ;,e da;e o2 >,ic, 
;,e de=elop1e2; is co1ple;edW 
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Expanding Our Landmark for You

3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.6 Investment properties and properties under development (cont’d)

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment properties. The cost of self-
constructed investment properties include the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to 
bringing the investment properties to a working condition for their intended use and capitalised borrowing costs.

Any gain or loss on disposal of investment properties (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal 
and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profit or loss. When investment properties that were previously classified 
as property, plant and equipment are sold, any related amount included in the revaluation reserve is transferred to retained 
earnings. When the use of a property changes such that it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, its fair value at the 
date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent accounting.

Transfer to, or from, investment properties are made when there is a change in use, evidenced by:

• commencement of owner-occupation, for a transfer from investment properties to property, plant and equipment; and

• end of owner-occupation, from a transfer from property, plant and equipment to investment properties.

3.7 Leased assets

Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance 
leases. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present 
value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the 
accounting policy applicable to that asset. 

Other leases are operating leases and are not recognised in the Group’s statement of financial position. 

3.8 Inventories

Inventories, comprising mainly pharmaceutical and medical supplies, are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value. The cost of inventories is determined using the weighted average cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase and 
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion 
and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

3.9 Impairment 

Non-derivative financial assets

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss, is assessed at the end of each reporting period to determine 
whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss 
event(s) has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event(s) has an impact on the estimated future 
cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. 

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an 
amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would not consider otherwise, and indications that a debtor or issuer will 
enter bankruptcy or adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers. 
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.9 Impairment (cont’d)

Non-derivative financial assets (cont’d) 

�oa2s a2d recei=a#les

�,e Group co2siders e=ide2ce o( i1pair1e2; (or loa2s a2d recei=a#les a; #o;, a speci)c asse; a2d collecধ=e le=elW �ll 
i2di=iduall@ si+2i)ca2; loa2s a2d recei=a#les are assessed (or speci)c i1pair1e2;W �ll i2di=iduall@ si+2i)ca2; recei=a#les (ou2d 
2o; ;o #e speci)call@ i1paired are ;,e2 collecধ=el@ assessed (or a2@ i1pair1e2; ;,a; ,as #ee2 i2curred #u; 2o; @e; ide2ধ)edW 
�oa2s a2d recei=a#les ;,a; are 2o; i2di=iduall@ si+2i)ca2; are collecধ=el@ assessed (or i1pair1e2; #@ +roupi2+ ;o+e;,er loa2s 
a2d recei=a#les >i;, si1ilar ris0 c,arac;erisধcsW 


2 assessi2+ collecধ=e i1pair1e2;T ;,e Group uses ,is;orical ;re2ds o( ;,e pro#a#ili;@ o( de(aul;T ধ1i2+ o( reco=eries a2d ;,e 
a1ou2; o( loss i2curredT ad/us;ed (or 1a2a+e1e2;Zs /ud+e1e2; as ;o >,e;,er curre2; eco2o1ic a2d credi; co2diধo2s are suc, 
;,a; ;,e ac;ual losses are li0el@ ;o #e +rea;er or less ;,a2 su++es;ed #@ ,is;orical ;re2dsW 

�2 i1pair1e2; loss i2 respec; o( a )2a2cial asse; 1easured a; a1orধsed cos; is calcula;ed as ;,e diøere2ce #e;>ee2 i;s 
carr@i2+ a1ou2; a2d ;,e prese2; =alue o( ;,e esধ1a;ed (u;ure cas, *o>sT discou2;ed a; ;,e asse;Zs ori+i2al eøecধ=e i2;eres; 
ra;eW �osses are reco+2ised i2 pro); or loss a2d re*ec;ed i2 a2 allo>a2ce accou2; a+ai2s; loa2s a2d recei=a#lesW 
2;eres; o2 
;,e i1paired asse; co2ধ2ues ;o #e reco+2isedW �,e2 ;,e Group co2siders ;,a; ;,ere are 2o realisধc prospec;s o( reco=er@ o( 
;,e asse;T ;,e rele=a2; a1ou2;s are >riħe2 oøW 
( ;,e a1ou2; o( i1pair1e2; loss su#se7ue2;l@ decreases a2d ;,e decrease ca2 
#e rela;ed o#/ecধ=el@ ;o a2 e=e2; occurri2+ ađer ;,e i1pair1e2; >as reco+2isedT ;,e2 ;,e pre=iousl@ reco+2ised i1pair1e2; 
loss is re=ersed ;,rou+, pro); or lossW 

Non-financial assets

�,e carr@i2+ a1ou2;s o( ;,e GroupZs 2o2f)2a2cial asse;sT o;,er ;,a2 i2=es;1e2; properধesT i2=e2;ories a2d de(erred ;a? 
asse;sT are re=ie>ed a; eac, reporধ2+ da;e ;o de;er1i2e >,e;,er ;,ere is a2@ i2dicaধo2 o( i1pair1e2;W 
( a2@ suc, i2dicaধo2 
e?is;sT ;,e2 ;,e asse;Zs reco=era#le a1ou2; is esধ1a;edW 
or +ood>illT a2d i2;a2+i#le asse;s ;,a; ,a=e i2de)2i;e use(ul li=es 
or ;,a; are 2o; @e; a=aila#le (or useT ;,e reco=era#le a1ou2; is esধ1a;ed eac, @ear a; ;,e sa1e ধ1eW �2 i1pair1e2; loss 
is reco+2ised i( ;,e carr@i2+ a1ou2; o( a2 asse; or i;s rela;ed cas,f+e2eraধ2+ u2i; l�G�m e?ceeds i;s esধ1a;ed reco=era#le 
a1ou2;W 

�,e reco=era#le a1ou2; o( a2 asse; or �G� is ;,e +rea;er o( i;s =alue i2 use a2d i;s (air =alue less cos;s ;o sellW 
2 assessi2+ 
=alue i2 useT ;,e esধ1a;ed (u;ure cas, *o>s are discou2;ed ;o ;,eir prese2; =alue usi2+ a pref;a? discou2; ra;e ;,a; re*ec;s 
curre2; 1ar0e; assess1e2;s o( ;,e ধ1e =alue o( 1o2e@ a2d ;,e ris0s speci)c ;o ;,e asse; or �G�W 
or ;,e purpose o( 
i1pair1e2; ;esধ2+T asse;s ;,a; ca22o; #e ;es;ed i2di=iduall@ are +rouped ;o+e;,er i2;o ;,e s1alles; +roup o( asse;s ;,a; 
+e2era;es cas, i2*o>s (ro1 co2ধ2ui2+ use ;,a; are lar+el@ i2depe2de2; o( ;,e cas, i2*o>s o( o;,er asse;s or �G�sW �u#/ec; 
;o a2 operaধ2+ se+1e2; ceili2+ ;es;T (or ;,e purposes o( +ood>ill i1pair1e2; ;esধ2+T �G�s ;o >,ic, +ood>ill ,as #ee2 
alloca;ed are a++re+a;ed so ;,a; ;,e le=el a; >,ic, i1pair1e2; ;esধ2+ is per(or1ed re*ec;s ;,e lo>es; le=el a; >,ic, +ood>ill 
is 1o2i;ored (or i2;er2al reporধ2+ purposesW Good>ill ac7uired i2 a #usi2ess co1#i2aধo2 is alloca;ed ;o +roups o( �G�s ;,a; 
are e?pec;ed ;o #e2e); (ro1 ;,e s@2er+ies o( ;,e co1#i2aধo2W 

�,e GroupZs corpora;e asse;s do 2o; +e2era;e separa;e cas, i2*o>s a2d are uধlised #@ 1ore ;,a2 o2e �G�W �orpora;e asse;s 
are alloca;ed ;o �G�s o2 a reaso2a#le a2d co2sis;e2; #asis a2d ;es;ed (or i1pair1e2; as par; o( ;,e ;esধ2+ o( ;,e �G� ;o 
>,ic, ;,e corpora;e asse; is alloca;edW 


1pair1e2; losses are reco+2ised i2 pro); or lossW 
1pair1e2; losses reco+2ised i2 respec; o( �G�s are alloca;ed )rs; ;o 
reduce ;,e carr@i2+ a1ou2; o( a2@ +ood>ill alloca;ed ;o ;,e �G� l+roup o( �G�smT a2d ;,e2 ;o reduce ;,e carr@i2+ a1ou2;s 
o( ;,e o;,er asse;s i2 ;,e �G� l+roup o( �G�sm o2 a pro ra;a #asisW 
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Expanding Our Landmark for You

3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.9 Impairment (cont’d)

Non-financial assets (cont’d)

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior 
periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment 
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss 
is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 

3.10 Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate 
entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined 
contribution pension plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which related 
services are rendered by employees. 

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is 
provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans 
if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the 
employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 

Share-based payment transactions

The grant date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment awards granted to employees is recognised as an employee 
expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the 
awards. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the related service and 
non-market performance conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is 
based on the number of awards that meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date. For 
share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of the share-based payment is measured 
to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between expected and actual outcomes. 

3.11 Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be 
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions 
are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. 

3.12 Revenue

Rendering of services

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised in profit or loss upon provision of healthcare, hospital and insurance services. 
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.12 Revenue (cont’d)

Rental income

Re2;al i2co1e (ro1 i2=es;1e2; properধes is reco+2ised i2 pro); or loss o2 a s;rai+,;fli2e #asis o=er ;,e ;er1 o( ;,e leaseW 
�ease i2ce2ধ=es +ra2;ed are reco+2ised as a2 i2;e+ral par; o( ;,e ;o;al re2;al i2co1eT o=er ;,e ;er1 o( ;,e leaseW �o2ধ2+e2; 
re2;als are reco+2ised as i2co1e i2 ;,e accou2ধ2+ period i2 >,ic, ;,e@ are ear2edW 

3.13 Lease payments

�a@1e2;s 1ade u2der operaধ2+ leases are reco+2ised i2 pro); or loss o2 a s;rai+,;fli2e #asis o=er ;,e ;er1 o( ;,e leaseW �ease 
i2ce2ধ=es recei=ed are reco+2ised as a2 i2;e+ral par; o( ;,e ;o;al lease e?pe2seT o=er ;,e ;er1 o( ;,e leaseW 

Mi2i1u1 lease pa@1e2;s 1ade u2der )2a2ce leases are apporধo2ed #e;>ee2 ;,e )2a2ce e?pe2se a2d ;,e reducধo2 o( 
;,e ou;s;a2di2+ lia#ili;@W �,e )2a2ce e?pe2se is alloca;ed ;o eac, period duri2+ ;,e lease ;er1 so as ;o produce a co2s;a2; 
periodic ra;e o( i2;eres; o2 ;,e re1ai2i2+ #ala2ce o( ;,e lia#ili;@W 

�o2ধ2+e2; lease pa@1e2;s are accou2;ed (or #@ re=isi2+ ;,e 1i2i1u1 lease pa@1e2;s o=er ;,e re1ai2i2+ ;er1 o( ;,e lease 
>,e2 ;,e lease ad/us;1e2; is co2)r1edW 

3.14 Finance income and finance expenses


i2a2ce i2co1e co1prises i2;eres; i2co1e (ro1 #a20 deposi;sW 
2;eres; i2co1e is reco+2ised as i; accrues i2 pro); or lossT 
usi2+ ;,e eøecধ=e i2;eres; 1e;,odW 


i2a2ce e?pe2ses co1prise i2;eres; e?pe2se o2 #orro>i2+s ;,a; are reco+2ised i2 pro); or lossW �orro>i2+ cos;s ;,a; are 2o; 
direc;l@ aħri#u;a#le ;o ;,e ac7uisiধo2T co2s;rucধo2 or producধo2 o( a 7uali(@i2+ asse; are reco+2ised i2 pro); or loss usi2+ 
;,e eøecধ=e i2;eres; 1e;,odW 


orei+2 curre2c@ +ai2s a2d losses o2 )2a2cial asse;s a2d )2a2cial lia#iliধes are repor;ed o2 a 2e; #asis as ei;,er )2a2ce 
i2co1e or )2a2ce e?pe2ses depe2di2+ o2 >,e;,er (orei+2 curre2c@ 1o=e1e2;s are i2 a 2e; +ai2 or 2e; loss posiধo2W 

3.15 Tax

�a? e?pe2se co1prises curre2; a2d de(erred ;a?W �urre2; ;a? a2d de(erred ;a? are reco+2ised i2 pro); or loss e?cep; ;o ;,e 
e?;e2; ;,a; i; rela;es ;o a #usi2ess co1#i2aধo2T or i;e1s reco+2ised direc;l@ i2 e7ui;@ or i2 o;,er co1pre,e2si=e i2co1eW 

�urre2; ;a? is ;,e e?pec;ed ;a? pa@a#le or recei=a#le o2 ;,e ;a?a#le i2co1e or loss (or ;,e @earT usi2+ ;a? ra;es e2ac;ed or 
su#s;a2ধ=el@ e2ac;ed a; ;,e reporধ2+ da;eT a2d a2@ ad/us;1e2; ;o ;a? pa@a#le i2 respec; o( pre=ious @earsW �,e a1ou2; 
o( curre2; ;a? pa@a#le or recei=a#le is ;,e #es; esধ1a;e o( ;,e ;a? a1ou2; e?pec;ed ;o #e paid or recei=ed ;,a; re*ec;s 
u2cer;ai2;@ rela;ed ;o i2co1e ;a?esT i( a2@W 

�e(erred ;a? is reco+2ised i2 respec; o( ;e1porar@ diøere2ces #e;>ee2 ;,e carr@i2+ a1ou2;s o( asse;s a2d lia#iliধes (or 
)2a2cial reporধ2+ purposes a2d ;,e a1ou2;s used (or ;a?aধo2 purposesW �e(erred ;a? is 2o; reco+2ised (orV 

• ;e1porar@ diøere2ces o2 ;,e i2iধal reco+2iধo2 o( asse;s or lia#iliধes i2 a ;ra2sacধo2 ;,a; is 2o; a #usi2ess co1#i2aধo2 
a2d ;,a; aøec;s 2ei;,er accou2ধ2+ 2or ;a?a#le pro); or lossU 

• ;e1porar@ diøere2ces rela;ed ;o i2=es;1e2;s i2 su#sidiaries ;o ;,e e?;e2; ;,a; ;,e Group is a#le ;o co2;rol ;,e ধ1i2+ 
o( ;,e re=ersal o( ;,e ;e1porar@ diøere2ce a2d i; is pro#a#le ;,a; ;,e@ >ill 2o; re=erse i2 ;,e (oreseea#le (u;ureU a2d 

• ;a?a#le ;e1porar@ diøere2ces arisi2+ o2 ;,e i2iধal reco+2iধo2 o( +ood>illW
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Expanding Our Landmark for You

3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.15 Tax (cont’d)

The measurement of deferred taxes reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which the Group expects, 
at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. For investment properties that are 
measured at fair value, the presumption that the carrying amount of the investment properties will be recovered through sale 
has not been rebutted. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences 
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and 
they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they 
intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences, to the extent that 
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed 
at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Group takes into account the impact of uncertain tax positions 
and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. The Group believes that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for 
all open tax years based on its assessment of many factors, including interpretations of tax law and prior experience. This 
assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve a series of judgements about future events. New information 
may become available that causes the Group to change its judgement regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such 
changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the period that such a determination is made.

3.16 Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing 
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the year, adjusted for own shares held. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable 
to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for 
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which comprise share options granted to employees.

3.17 Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and 
incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. All 
operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Group’s Chairman to make decisions about resources to 
be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

Segment results that are reported to the Group’s Chairman include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those 
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets (primarily the Company’s 
headquarters), head office expenses, and tax assets and liabilities.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property, plant and equipment, and intangible 
assets other than goodwill.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.18 Full convergence with International Financial Reporting Standards and adoption of new standards

Applicable to 2018 financial statements


2 �ece1#er ����T ;,e �ccou2ধ2+ �;a2dards �ou2cil l���m issued ;,e �i2+apore 
i2a2cial Reporধ2+ �;a2dards l
2;er2aধo2alm 
l�
R�l
mmW �
R�l
m co1prises s;a2dards a2d i2;erpre;aধo2s ;,a; are e7ui=ale2; ;o 
2;er2aধo2al 
i2a2cial Reporধ2+ �;a2dards 
l

R�m as issued #@ ;,e 
2;er2aধo2al �ccou2ধ2+ �;a2dards �oard l
���m a; �� �ece1#er ���� ;,a; are applica#le (or a22ual 
period #e+i22i2+ o2 � �a2uar@ ���¥W �i2+aporefi2corpora;ed co1pa2ies ;,a; ,a=e issuedT or are i2 ;,e process o( issui2+T 
e7ui;@ or de#; i2s;ru1e2;s (or ;radi2+ i2 a pu#lic 1ar0e; i2 �i2+aporeT >ill appl@ �
R�l
m >i;, eøec; (ro1 a22ual periods 
#e+i22i2+ o2 or ađer � �a2uar@ ���¥W

�,e GroupZs )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;s (or ;,e )2a2cial @ear e2di2+ �� �ece1#er ���¥ >ill #e prepared i2 accorda2ce >i;, �
R�l
mW 
�s a resul;T ;,is >ill #e ;,e las; se; o( )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;s prepared u2der ;,e curre2; 
R�W


2 adopধ2+ ;,e 2e> (ra1e>or0T ;,e Group >ill #e re7uired ;o appl@ ;,e speci)c ;ra2siধo2 re7uire1e2;s i2 �
R� � 
irs;fধ1e 
�dopধo2 o( �i2+apore 
i2a2cial Reporধ2+ �;a2dards l
2;er2aধo2almW


2 addiধo2 ;o ;,e adopধo2 o( ;,e 2e> (ra1e>or0T ;,e Group >ill also co2curre2;l@ appl@ ;,e (ollo>i2+ �
R�l
msT i2;erpre;aধo2s 
o( �
R�l
ms a2d re7uire1e2;s o( �
R�l
ms >,ic, are 1a2da;oril@ eøecধ=e (ro1 ;,e sa1e da;eW

• �
R�l
m �� Re=e2ue (ro1 �o2;rac;s >i;, �us;o1ers >,ic, i2cludes clari)caধo2s ;o 

R� �� Re=e2ue (ro1 �o2;rac;s 
>i;, �us;o1ers issued #@ ;,e 
��� i2 �pril ���¤U

• �
R�l
m � 
i2a2cial 
2s;ru1e2;s >,ic, i2cludes a1e2d1e2;s arisi2+ (ro1 

R� � 
2sura2ce �o2;rac;s issued #@ ;,e 
��� 
i2 �ep;e1#er ���¤U

• re7uire1e2;s i2 �
R�l
m � �,aref#ased �a@1e2; arisi2+ (ro1 ;,e a1e2d1e2;s ;o 

R� � g �lassi)caধo2 a2d 1easure1e2; 
o( s,aref#ased pa@1e2; ;ra2sacধo2s issued #@ ;,e 
��� i2 �u2e ���¤U

• re7uire1e2;s i2 �
R�l
m �f�� 
2=es;1e2; �roper;@ arisi2+ (ro1 ;,e a1e2d1e2;s ;o 
�� �� g �ra2s(ers o( i2=es;1e2; 
proper;@ issued #@ ;,e 
��� i2 �ece1#er ���¤U

• re7uire1e2;s i2 �
R�l
m � arisi2+ (ro1 ;,e a1e2d1e2;s ;o 

R� � g �eleধo2 o( s,or;f;er1 e?e1pধo2s (or )rs;fধ1e 
adop;ers issued #@ ;,e 
��� i2 �ece1#er ���¤U

• re7uire1e2;s i2 �
R�l
m �f�¥ 
2=es;1e2;s i2 �ssocia;es a2d �oi2; �e2;ures arisi2+ (ro1 ;,e a1e2d1e2;s ;o 
�� �¥ g 
Measuri2+ a2 associa;e or /oi2; =e2;ure a; (air =alue issued #@ ;,e 
��� i2 �ece1#er ���¤U a2d

• �
R�l
m 
�� �� 
orei+2 �urre2c@ �ra2sacধo2s a2d �d=a2ce �o2sideraধo2W

�,e Group does 2o; e?pec; ;,e applicaধo2 o( ;,e a#o=e s;a2dards a2d i2;erpre;aধo2s ;o ,a=e a si+2i)ca2; i1pac; o2 ;,e 
)2a2cial s;a;e1e2;sW

SFRS(I) 1

�,e2 ;,e Group adop;s �
R�l
m i2 ���¥T ;,e Group >ill appl@ �
R�l
m � >i;, � �a2uar@ ���� as ;,e da;e o( ;ra2siধo2 (or ;,e
Group a2d ;,e �o1pa2@W �
R�l
m � +e2erall@ re7uires ;,a; ;,e Group applies �
R�l
m o2 a re;rospecধ=e #asisT as i( suc, 
accou2ধ2+ polic@ ,ad al>a@s #ee2 appliedW 
( ;,ere are c,a2+es ;o accou2ধ2+ policies arisi2+ (ro1 2e> or a1e2ded s;a2dards 
eøecধ=e i2 ���¥T res;a;e1e2; o( co1paraধ=es 1a@ #e re7uired #ecause �
R�l
m � re7uires #o;, ;,e ope2i2+ #ala2ce s,ee;T 
a2d co1paraধ=e i2(or1aধo2 ;o #e prepared usi2+ ;,e 1os; curre2; accou2ধ2+ policiesW �
R�l
m � pro=ides 1a2da;or@ 
e?cepধo2s a2d opধo2al e?e1pধo2s (ro1 re;rospecধ=e applicaধo2T #u; ;,ese are ođe2 diøere2; (ro1 ;,ose speci)c ;ra2siধo2 
pro=isio2s i2 i2di=idual 
R�s applied ;o ;,e 
R� )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;sW 	?cep; as descri#ed #elo>T ;,e Group does 2o; e?pec; 
;,e applicaধo2 o( 1a2da;or@ e?cepধo2s a2d ;,e opধo2al e?e1pধo2s i2 �
R�l
m � ;o ,a=e a2@ si+2i)ca2; i1pac; o2 ;,e 
)2a2cial s;a;e1e2;sW
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.18 Full convergence with International Financial Reporting Standards and adoption of new standards (cont’d)

Applicable to 2018 financial statements (cont’d)

SFRS(I) 1 (cont'd)

Foreign currency translation reserve (FCTR)

The Group plans to elect the optional exemption in SFRS(I) 1 to reset its cumulative FCTR for all foreign operations to nil at 
the date of transition and to reclassify cumulative FCTR as at 1 January 2017 determined in accordance with FRS at the date 
to retained earnings. After the date of transition, any gain or loss on disposal of any foreign operations will exclude translation 
differences that arose before the date of transition.

The Group expects to credit the cumulative FCTR by $4,376,000 and debit retained earnings by the same amount as at 31 
December 2017.

SFRS(I) 15

SFRS(I) 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. 
It also introduces new cost guidance which requires certain costs of obtaining and fulfilling contracts to be recognised as 
separate assets when specific criteria are met.

The Group plans to adopt SFRS(I) 15 in its financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2018, using the retrospective 
approach. As a result, the Group will apply all of the requirements of SFRS(I) 15 retrospectively, and the comparative period 
presented in the 2018 financial statements will be restated.

The expected impact upon the adoption of SFRS(I) 15 is described below. The information below reflects the Group’s 
expectations of the tax implications arising from the changes in accounting treatment. Tax effects may change when the 
transition adjustments are finalised.

The Group’s main sources of revenue, impacted by SFRS(I) 15, are: 
– rendering of healthcare and hospital services; and
– rental income from investment properties.

Based on the Group’s existing revenue arrangements, the Group expects each of its revenue streams to constitute a single 
performance obligation. The Group does not expect a significant impact on the timing of revenue recognition.

SFRS(I) 9

SFRS(I) 9 contains new requirements for classification and measurement of financial instruments and a new expected credit 
loss model for calculating impairment of financial assets.

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of SFRS(I) 9 will generally be applied by the Group retrospectively, 
except as described below.

• The Group plans to take advantage of the exemption in SFRS(I) 1 allowing it not to restate comparative information 
in the 2018 SFRS(I) financial statements. Differences in the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities 
resulting from the adoption of SFRS(I) 9 are recognised in retained earnings as at 1 January 2018.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.18 Full convergence with International Financial Reporting Standards and adoption of new standards (cont’d)

Applicable to 2018 financial statements (cont’d)

SFRS(I) 9 (cont’d)

• �,e (ollo>i2+ assess1e2;s ,a=e ;o #e 1ade o2 ;,e #asis o( (ac;s a2d circu1s;a2ces ;,a; e?is;ed a; � �a2uar@ ���¥V
 g �,e de;er1i2aধo2 o( ;,e #usi2ess 1odel >i;,i2 >,ic, a )2a2cial asse; is ,eldW
 g �,e de;er1i2aধo2 o( >,e;,er co2;rac;ual ;er1s o( a )2a2cial asse; +i=e rise ;o cas, *o>s ;,a; are solel@ pa@1e2;s 

o( pri2cipal a2d i2;eres; o2 ;,e pri2cipal a1ou2; ou;s;a2di2+W

�,e e?pec;ed i1pac; o2 adopধo2 o( �
R�l
m � are descri#ed #elo>W �,e i2(or1aধo2 #elo> re*ec;s ;,e GroupZs e?pec;aধo2 
o( ;,e i1plicaধo2s arisi2+ (ro1 ;,e c,a2+es i2 ;,e accou2ধ2+ ;rea;1e2;T ,o>e=erT ;,e ac;ual ;a? eøec; 1a@ c,a2+e >,e2 ;,e 
;ra2siধo2 ad/us;1e2;s are )2alisedW


1pair1e2;

�
R�l
m � replaces ;,e curre2; Yi2curred loss 1odelZ i2 
R� �� >i;, a (or>ardfloo0i2+ Ye?pec;ed credi; lossZ l	��m 1odelW �,e 
2e> i1pair1e2; 1odel >ill appl@ ;o )2a2cial asse;s 1easured a; a1orধsed cos;T cer;ai2 loa2 co11i;1e2;s a2d )2a2cial 
+uara2;ee co2;rac;sW

�2der �
R�l
m �T loss allo>a2ces o( ;,e Group >ill #e 1easured o2 ei;,er o( ;,e (ollo>i2+ #asesV
• ��f1o2;, 	��sW �,ese are 	��s ;,a; resul; (ro1 possi#le de(aul; e=e2;s >i;,i2 ;,e �� 1o2;,s ađer ;,e reporধ2+ 

da;eU or
• li(eধ1e 	��sW �,ese are 	��s ;,a; resul; (ro1 all possi#le de(aul; e=e2;s o=er ;,e e?pec;ed li(e o( a )2a2cial i2s;ru1e2;W

�,e Group pla2s ;o appl@ ;,e si1pli)ed approac, a2d record li(eধ1e 	�� o2 all ;rade recei=a#les a2d a2@ co2;rac; asse;s 
arisi2+ (ro1 ;,e applicaধo2 o( �
R�l
m ��W �,e Group does 2o; e?pec; a si+2i)ca2; i1pac; (ro1 ;,e 2e> i1pair1e2; 1odelW

�,e Group is curre2;l@ )2alisi2+ ;,e ;esধ2+ o( i;s e?pec;ed credi; loss 1odel a2d ;,e 7ua2;u1 o( ;,e )2al ;ra2siধo2 ad/us;1e2;s 
1a@ #e diøere2; upo2 )2alisaধo2W

Applicable to financial statements for the year 2019 and thereafter

�,e (ollo>i2+ 2e> �
R�l
mT a1e2d1e2;s ;o a2d i2;erpre;aধo2s o( �
R�l
m are eøecধ=e (or a22ual periods #e+i22i2+ ađer � 
�a2uar@ ���¥V

Applicable to 2019 financial statements
• �
R�l
m �¤ �eases
• �
R�l
m 
�� �� �2cer;ai2;@ o=er 
2co1e �a? �rea;1e2;s

Applicable to 2021 financial statements
• �
R�l
m �� 
2sura2ce �o2;rac;s

Mandatory effective date deferred
• �ale or �o2;ri#uধo2 o( �sse;s #e;>ee2 a2 
2=es;or a2d i;s �ssocia;e or �oi2; �e2;ure l�1e2d1e2;s ;o �
R�l
m �� a2d 

�
R�l
m �f�¥mW
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.18 Full convergence with International Financial Reporting Standards and adoption of new standards (cont’d)

Applicable to financial statements for the year 2019 and thereafter (cont’d)

The Group is still in the process of assessing the impact of the new SFRS(I)s, amendments to and interpretations of SFRS(I)s 
on the financial statements. The Group’s preliminary assessment of SFRS(I) 16, which is expected to have a more significant 
impact on the Group, is as described below. The Group also preliminarily assessed that SFRS(I) 17 is relevant to the Group as 
the Group issues insurance contracts and account for financial guarantee contracts as insurance contracts.

SFRS(I) 16

SFRS(I) 16 replaces existing lease accounting guidance. SFRS(I) 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2019, with early adoption permitted if SFRS(I) 15 is also applied. SFRS(I) 16 eliminates the lessee’s classification of 
leases as either operating leases or finance leases and introduces a single lessee accounting model. Applying the new model, a 
lessee is required to recognise right-of-use (ROU) assets and lease liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, 
unless the underlying asset is of low value.

The Group plans to adopt the standard when it becomes effective in 2019 and expects to apply the standard using the 
modified retrospective approach. The Group also expects the ROU assets recognised at date of initial application to be equal 
to their lease liabilities.

The Group is likely to elect the practical expedient not to reassess whether a contract contains a lease at the date of initial 
application, 1 January 2019. Accordingly, existing lease contracts that are still effective on 1 January 2019 continue to be 
accounted for as lease contracts under SFRS(I) 16. The Group has performed a preliminary assessment of the impact on its 
financial statements based on its existing operating lease arrangements (refer to note 21).

Until 2018, the financial impact of the standard will be affected by factors that impact calculation of lease liabilities such 
as discount rate, expected term of leases including renewal options and exemptions for short-term leases. The Group will 
continue to assess its portfolio of leases to calculate the impending impact of transition to the new standard.

(i) The Group as lessee

The Group expects its existing operating lease arrangements to be recognised as ROU assets with corresponding lease 
liabilities under SFRS(I) 16. The operating lease commitments on an undiscounted basis amount to approximately 2% of 
the consolidated total assets and 9% of consolidated total liabilities. Under the new standard, remaining lease payments 
of the operating leases will be recognised at their present value discounted using appropriate discount rates. In addition, 
the nature of expenses related to those leases will now change as SFRS(I) 16 replaces the straight-line operating lease 
expense with depreciation charge of ROU assets and interest expense on lease liabilities.

(ii) The Group as lessor

SFRS(I) 16 substantially carries forward the current existing lessor accounting requirements. Accordingly, the Group 
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for these two types of leases 
using the existing lease and finance lease accounting models respectively. However, SFRS(I) 16 requires more extensive 
disclosures to be provided by a lessor.
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Expanding Our Landmark for You

4. Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Details of freehold land, leasehold land and properties of the Group are as follows:

Group
Carrying amount

Description/Location
Gross Floor Area 

(sq m) Tenure
2017
$’000

2016
$’000

HDB shop with living quarters located at Blk 283, 
Bishan St 22, #01-177, Singapore 570283, held 
for use as a primary healthcare clinic

135.0 99 years 
commencing from 

01/02/1991

736 762

A factory unit, located at 196 Pandan Loop,       
#06-05 Pantech Industrial Complex, Singapore 
128384, held for use as a store

112.0 99 years 
commencing from 

27/01/1984

211 219

HDB shop with living quarters located at Blk 722 
Ang Mo Kio Ave 8, #01-2825, Singapore 560722, 
held for use as a primary healthcare clinic

152.0 86 years 
commencing from 

01/10/1993

1,024 1,060

HDB shop with living quarters located at Blk 131 
Jurong East St 13, #01-267, Singapore 600131, 
held for use as a primary healthcare clinic

250.0 91 years 
commencing from 

01/04/1993

1,311 1,353

HDB shop with living quarters located at Blk 177 
Toa Payoh Central,  #01-170, Singapore 310177, 
held for use as a primary healthcare clinic

115.0 78 years 
commencing from 

01/10/1992

821 848

HDB shop with living quarters located at Blk 203 
Bedok North St 1, #01-467, Singapore 460203, 
held for use as a primary healthcare clinic

153.0 84 years 
commencing from 

01/07/1992

658 678

HDB shop with living quarters located at Blk 446 
Clementi Avenue 3, #01-189, Singapore 120446, 
held for use as a primary healthcare clinic

182.0 84 years 
commencing from 

01/01/1995

5,125 5,208

A hospital building, located at 585 North Bridge 
Road, Singapore 188770, held for use as a 
hospital and medical centre

28,604.9* 99 years 
commencing from 

01/03/1979

179,319 183,131

A building, located at 25 Tannery Lane, Singapore 
347786, held for use as administrative and 
support office

3,295.5 Freehold 20,382 20,547

Raffles Holland V, located at 118 Holland Avenue, 
Singapore 278997, held for use as a medical 
centre

6,011.4# 99 years 
commencing from 

18/01/1985

18,038 18,347

227,625 232,153

*  Includes commercial space of 284.4 sq m (2016: 284.4 sq m) classified as investment properties.

# Includes commercial space of 4,981.1 sq m (2016: 4,981.1 sq m) classified as investment properties.
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4. Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Source of estimation uncertainty

�,e cos; o( proper;@T pla2; a2d e7uip1e2; are deprecia;ed o2 a s;rai+,;fli2e #asis o=er ;,eir use(ul li=esW Ma2a+e1e2; 
esধ1a;es ;,e use(ul li=es o( ;,ese proper;@T pla2; a2d e7uip1e2; ;o #e #e;>ee2 � ;o �� @earsW �,e Group re=ie>s a22uall@ 
;,e esধ1a;ed use(ul li=es o( proper;@T pla2; a2d e7uip1e2; #ased o2 (ac;ors ;,a; i2clude asse; uধlisaধo2T i2;er2al ;ec,2ical 
e=aluaধo2 a2d ;ec,2olo+ical c,a2+esW 
; is possi#le ;,a; (u;ure resul;s o( operaধo2s could #e 1a;eriall@ aøec;ed #@ c,a2+es 
i2 ;,ese esধ1a;es #rou+,; a#ou; #@ c,a2+es i2 ;,ese (ac;orsW � reducধo2 i2 ;,e esধ1a;ed use(ul li=es o( proper;@T pla2; a2d 
e7uip1e2; >ould i2crease depreciaধo2 e?pe2se a2d decrease 2o2fcurre2; asse;sW

�,e esধ1a;es o( reco=era#le a1ou2;s >ere #ased o2 ei;,er ;,e (air =alue o( ;,e proper;@T pla2; a2d e7uip1e2; de;er1i2ed 
#@ a )r1 o( i2depe2de2; pro(essio2al =aluers or ;,e =alue i2 use o( ;,e proper;@T pla2; a2d e7uip1e2; de;er1i2ed #@ 
1a2a+e1e2;W �,e (air =alue is #ased o2 1ar0e; =alueT #ei2+ ;,e esধ1a;ed a1ou2; (or >,ic, a proper;@ could #e e?c,a2+ed 
o2 ;,e da;e o( ;,e =aluaধo2 #e;>ee2 a >illi2+ #u@er a2d a >illi2+ seller i2 a2 ar1Zs le2+;, ;ra2sacধo2 ađer proper 1ar0eধ2+ 
>,erei2 ;,e parধes ,ad eac, ac;ed 02o>led+ea#l@T prude2;l@ a2d >i;,ou; co1pulsio2W �,e reco=era#le a1ou2;s could 
c,a2+e si+2i)ca2;l@ as a resul; o( c,a2+es i2 1ar0e; co2diধo2s a2d ;,e assu1pধo2s used i2 de;er1i2i2+ ;,e =alue i2 useW

5. Intangible assets and goodwill

Goodwill
Customer 

relationship
Membership 

rights
Assignment 

fees

Software 
under 

development Software Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Group
Cost
�; � �a2uar@ ���¤ ��T��� �T��� �¤� ¤�� g g ��T���
	øec;s o( 1o=e1e2;  

i2 e?c,a2+e ra;e l¥��m l��¤m g g g g l�T���m
�; �� �ece1#er ���¤ �¤T��� �T��� �¤� ¤�� g g ��T¤�¥
�ddiধo2s g g g g �T��� �T��¤ �T¥¥¥
Reclassi)caধo2 (ro1 

proper;@T pla2; a2d 
e7uip1e2; l2o;e �m g g g g ¤�� ¥�� �T���

	øec;s o( 1o=e1e2;  
i2 e?c,a2+e ra;e l�¥�m l��m g g g g l¤¤¤m

�; �� �ece1#er ���� ��T¤¥¤ �T��� �¤� ¤�� �T�¥� �T��� �¥T�¤�

Accumulated 
amortisation and 
impairment losses

�; � �a2uar@ ���¤ ��� �� g ¤�� g g ¥��
�1orধsaধo2 g ��� g g g g ���
�; �� �ece1#er ���¤ ��� ��� g ¤�� g g �¥¥
�1orধsaধo2 g ��¤ g g g ��¥ ¤��
�; �� �ece1#er ���� ��� ¤�� g ¤�� g ��¥ �T���

Carrying amounts
�; � �a2uar@ ���¤ �¤T��� �T��� �¤� g g g ��T���
�; �� �ece1#er ���¤ �¤T��� �T��� �¤� g g g ��T¤¤�
�; �� �ece1#er ���� ��T��� �T¥�� �¤� g �T�¥� �T¥�� �¤T���
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Expanding Our Landmark for You

5. Intangible assets and goodwill (cont’d)

Membership 
rights Goodwill Software Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Company
Cost
At 1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 93 152 – 245

Additions – – 708 708
Reclassification from property, plant and equipment 

(note 4) – – 534 534

At 31 December 2017 93 152 1,242 1,487

Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
At 1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 – 152 – 152

Amortisation – – 39 39

At 31 December 2017 – 152 39 191

Carrying amounts
At 1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 93 – – 93

At 31 December 2017 93 – 1,203 1,296

Goodwill of $152,000 represents the excess of the purchase consideration over the fair value of the net identifiable assets 
acquired from the purchase of a clinic business. The amount was fully impaired in 2012.

Impairment testing for CGUs containing goodwill

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the Group’s CGUs (operating divisions) as follows:

Group

2017 2016

$’000 $’000

China clinics 22,208 22,521
Cambodia clinic 3,326 3,600

25,534 26,121

The recoverable amount of CGUs were based on its value in use, determined by discounting the pre-tax future cash flows to 
be generated from the continuing use of the CGUs. 

Key assumptions used in the estimation of value in use were as follows:

Group

2017 2016

% %

Discount rate 13.3 – 19.3 14.4 – 20.6
Terminal growth rate 2.5 – 3.0 0.2 – 2.4
Revenue growth rate for next five years 10.2 – 18.8 7.5 – 14.3
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5. Intangible assets and goodwill (cont’d)

Impairment testing for CGUs containing goodwill (cont’d)

�,e discou2; ra;e >as a pref;a? 1easure #ased o2 ;,e ra;e o( ��f@ear +o=er21e2; #o2ds issued #@ ;,e +o=er21e2; i2 ;,e 
rele=a2; 1ar0e; a2d i2 ;,e sa1e curre2c@ as ;,e cas, *o>sT ad/us;ed (or a ris0 pre1iu1 ;o re*ec; #o;, ;,e i2creased ris0 o( 
i2=esধ2+ i2 e7uiধes +e2erall@ a2d ;,e s@s;e1aধc ris0 o( ;,e speci)c �G�W 


i=e @ears o( cas, *o>s >ere i2cluded i2 ;,e discou2;ed cas, *o> 1odelW � lo2+f;er1 +ro>;, ra;e i2;o perpe;ui;@ ,as #ee2 
de;er1i2ed as ;,e 2o1i2al G�� ra;es (or ;,e cou2;ries i2 >,ic, ;,e �G�s opera;eW 

Re=e2ue +ro>;, >as pro/ec;ed ;a0i2+ i2;o accou2; ;,e a=era+e +ro>;, le=els e?perie2ced o=er ;,e pas; )=e @ears a2d ;,e 
esধ1a;ed +ro>;, (or ;,e 2e?; )=e @earsW 

Ma2a+e1e2; ,as ide2ধ)ed ;,a; a reaso2a#l@ possi#le c,a2+e i2 ;,e #elo> 0e@ assu1pধo2s o2 re=e2ue +ro>;, could cause 
;,e carr@i2+ a1ou2; ;o e?ceed ;,e reco=era#le a1ou2;W �,e (ollo>i2+ ;a#le s,o>s ;,e a1ou2; #@ >,ic, ;,is 0e@ assu1pধo2 
>ould 2eed ;o c,a2+e (or ;,e respecধ=e �G�s (or ;,e esধ1a;ed reco=era#le a1ou2; ;o #e e7ual ;o ;,e carr@i2+ a1ou2;W 

Change required for
carrying amount to equal
the recoverable amount

2017 2016

% %

Re=e2ue +ro>;, ra;e i2 respec; o(V

�,i2a cli2ics �W� �W�

�a1#odia cli2ic �W� �W�

Source of estimation uncertainty

�,e cos; o( i2;a2+i#le asse;sT o;,er ;,a2 +ood>illT are a1orধsed o2 a s;rai+,;fli2e #asis o=er ;,eir use(ul li=esW Ma2a+e1e2; 
esধ1a;es ;,e use(ul li=es o( ;,ese i2;a2+i#le asse;s ;o #e #e;>ee2 � ;o �� @earsW �,e Group re=ie>s a22uall@ ;,e esধ1a;ed 
use(ul li=es o( i2;a2+i#le asse;s #ased o2 (ac;ors ;,a; i2clude asse; uধlisaধo2T i2;er2al ;ec,2ical e=aluaধo2 a2d ;ec,2olo+ical 
c,a2+esW 
; is possi#le ;,a; (u;ure resul;s o( operaধo2s could #e 1a;eriall@ aøec;ed #@ c,a2+es i2 ;,ese esধ1a;es #rou+,; 
a#ou; #@ c,a2+es i2 ;,ese (ac;orsW � reducধo2 i2 ;,e esধ1a;ed use(ul li=es o( i2;a2+i#le asse;s >ould i2crease a1orধsaধo2 
e?pe2se a2d decrease 2o2fcurre2; asse;sW 
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6. Investment properties

Group
2017 2016
$’000 $’000

At 1 January 371,472 343,866

Additions 131,041 33,574

Reclassification to property, plant and equipment (note 4) (119,800) (5,658)

Changes in fair value 3,085 1,530

Effects of movement in exchange rate (300) (1,840)

At 31 December 385,498 371,472

(a) Investment properties relate to the shop units within Raffles Hospital Building, units of commercial space within Samsung 
Hub and Raffles Holland V that are leased to external parties. Each of the leases contains an initial non-cancellable 
period of 1 to 10 years. This is subject to the terms and conditions of the lease agreements entered into and subsequent 
renewals are negotiated with the respective lessee. These properties are measured at cost on initial recognition and 
subsequently at fair value with any change therein recognised in profit or loss.

(b) Investment properties under development relate to properties development expenditure for Raffles Hospital Extension, 
Raffles Medical Shanghai Hospital Project and Raffles Medical Chongqing Hospital Project. Investment properties under 
development are accounted for using the cost model until the earlier of the date on which fair value of the property can 
be measured reliably or the date on which the development is completed.

(c) As at 31 December 2017, investment properties under development amounted to $247,188,000 (2016: $236,292,000). 
Included in this amount are capitalised borrowing costs calculated using a capitalisation rate of 1.50% (2016: 1.54%) and 
staff costs related to the construction of the properties of $687,000 and $6,168,000, respectively (2016: $452,000 and 
$3,753,000).

Investment properties under development:

Description/Location Tenure
Expected date of 

completion
Site area

(sq m)
Group’s effective 

interest

Extension of Raffles Hospital, located at  
585 North Bridge Road, Singapore 188770

99 years 
commencing from 

01/03/1979

2018 1,978.1 100%

Raffles Medical Shanghai Hospital Project,  
located at China Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone,  
Ji Yang Road 688-4-101

50 years 
commencing from 

31/10/2015

2019 12,455.5 70%

Raffles Medical Chongqing Hospital Project,  
located at 020-3/06 Dazhulin, Liangjiang  
New District, Chongqing, China

40 years 
commencing from 

10/08/2017

2018 27,595.0 100%



Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2017

N
o

te
s
 to

 th
e

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l S
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

107

 Raffles Medical Group  Annual Report 2017

6. Investment properties (cont’d)

Investment properties:

Description/Location Tenure Gross Floor Area (sq m)

�2i;s >i;,i2 Raffles �ospi;alT loca;ed a;  
�¥� �or;, �rid+e RoadT �i2+apore �¥¥���

�� @ears co11e2ci2+ 
(ro1 ��c��c����

�¥�W�
l���¤V �¥�W�m

�2i;s >i;,i2 �a1su2+ �u#T loca;ed a; 
 � �,urc, �;ree;T �i2+apore ����¥�

��� @ears co11e2ci2+ 
(ro1 ��c��c�¥��

���W� 
l���¤V ���W�m

�2i;s >i;,i2 Raffles �olla2d �T loca;ed a; 
��¥ �olla2d �=e2ueT �i2+apore ��¥���

�� @ears co11e2ci2+ 
(ro1 �¥c��c��¥�

�T�¥�W� 

l���¤V �T�¥�W�m

Measurement of fair value

(i)  Fair value hierarchy


2=es;1e2; properধes a2d i2=es;1e2; properধes u2der de=elop1e2; ;,a; are 1easured a; (air =alue are s;a;ed a; (air 
=alue #ased o2 =aluaধo2 per(or1ed #@ i2depe2de2; pro(essio2al =aluersT �o2es �a2+ �a�alle �roper;@ �o2sul;a2;s �;eW 
�;dW l���¤V �o2es �a2+ �a�alle �roper;@ �o2sul;a2;s �;eW �;dWmT ,a=i2+ appropria;e reco+2ised pro(essio2al 7uali)caধo2s 
a2d rece2; e?perie2ce i2 ;,e locaধo2 a2d ca;e+or@ o( proper;@ #ei2+ =aluedW

�,e (air =alues are #ased o2 ope2 1ar0e; =aluesT #ei2+ ;,e esধ1a;ed a1ou2; (or >,ic, a proper;@ could #e e?c,a2+ed 
o2 ;,e da;e o( ;,e =aluaধo2 #e;>ee2 a >illi2+ #u@er a2d a >illi2+ seller i2 a2 ar1Zs le2+;, ;ra2sacধo2 ađer proper 
1ar0eধ2+ >,erei2 ;,e parধes ,ad eac, ac;ed 02o>led+ea#l@T prude2;l@T a2d >i;,ou; co1pulsio2W 
2 de;er1i2i2+ ;,e 
(air =alueT ;,e =aluers ,a=e used =aluaধo2 ;ec,2i7ues >,ic, i2=ol=e cer;ai2 esধ1a;esW 
2 rel@i2+ o2 ;,e =aluaধo2 repor;sT 
1a2a+e1e2; ,as e?ercised i;s /ud+e1e2; a2d is saধs)ed ;,a; ;,e =aluaধo2 1e;,ods a2d esধ1a;es are re*ecধ=e o( 
curre2; 1ar0e; co2diধo2sW

�,e =aluers ,a=e co2sidered =aluaধo2 ;ec,2i7ues i2cludi2+ ;,e capi;alisaধo2 a2d ;er1 a2d re=ersio2 approac,es i2 
arri=i2+ a; ;,e ope2 1ar0e; =alue as a; ;,e reporধ2+ da;eW

�,e capi;alisaধo2 approac, capi;alises a2 i2co1e s;rea1 i2;o a prese2; =alue usi2+ re=e2ue 1ulধpliers or si2+lef@ear 
capi;alisaধo2 ra;esW �,e ;er1 a2d re=ersio2 approac, capi;alises 2e; re2;al i2co1e o2 a (ull@ leased #asis >i;, re+ards ;o 
;,e curre2; passi2+ re2;al i2co1e (ro1 e?isধ2+ ;e2a2cies a2d po;e2ধal (u;ure re=ersio2ar@ i2co1e a; ;,e 1ar0e; le=elW

�,e (air =alue 1easure1e2; (or i2=es;1e2; properধes o( ��¥�T���T��� l���¤V ����T�¥�T���m ,as #ee2 ca;e+orised as 
a �e=el � (air =alue #ased o2 ;,e i2pu;s ;o ;,e =aluaধo2 ;ec,2i7ue used lsee 2o;e �W�mW
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6. Investment properties (cont’d)

Measurement of fair value (con’td)

(ii) Level 3 fair value

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for Level 3 fair values.

Group
2017 2016
$’000 $’000

At 1 January 135,180 133,895

Reclassification to property, plant and equipment (note 4) (119,800) (5,658)

Additions 266,045 5,413

Gain included in other operating income

– Changes in fair value 3,085 1,530

At 31 December 284,510 135,180

Valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs

The following table shows the Group’s valuation technique used in measuring the fair value of investment properties, as 
well as the significant unobservable inputs used.

Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs

Inter-relationship between key 
unobservable inputs and  
fair value measurement

Capitalisation and discounted 
cash flow approach

• Capitalisation rates  
4.0% to 6.5% (2016: 4.0% to 7.0%) 

• Discount rates 

7.5% to 7.75% (2016: 7.5% to 8.0%) 
• Terminal yield rates 

4.25% to 5.6% (2016: 4.25% to 
5.75%)

The estimated fair value varies 
inversely against the capitalisation 
rates and discount rates.

Term and reversion approach • Term and reversion rate of  
3.5% (2016: 3.5%)

The estimated fair value varies 
inversely against the term and 
reversion rate.
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7. Deferred tax assets and liabilities (cont’d)

At
1 January 2016

Recognised  
in profit or loss 

At 
31 December 

2016
Recognised  

in profit or loss 

At 
31 December 

2017

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Company

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment 668 117 785 195 980
Other items (66) 3 (63) (18) (81)

602 120 722 177 899

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same tax authority. 

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:

Group

2017 2016

$’000 $’000

Tax losses 7,580 6,165

The tax losses are subject to agreement by the tax authorities and compliance with tax regulations in the respective countries 
in which certain subsidiaries operate. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these items because it is not 
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the Group can utilise the benefits therefrom.

8. Trade and other receivables

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Trade receivables 59,075 51,680 17,577 13,312
Allowance for doubtful receivables (3,329) (3,743) (523) (621)
Net receivables 55,746 47,937 17,054 12,691
Deposits 5,412 5,339 2,572 2,913
Staff loans 582 1,582 398 691
Other receivables 26,452 48,380 – 4

Amounts due from subsidiaries:
– trade – – 29,599 14,735
– non-trade (see note below) – – 81,908 79,135

88,192 103,238 131,531 110,169
Prepayments 2,127 2,881 758 723

90,319 106,119 132,289 110,892

Non-current 3,060 4,711 7,663 7,658
Current 87,259 101,408 124,626 103,234

90,319 106,119 132,289 110,892
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8. Trade and other receivables (cont’d)

Company

2017 2016

$’000 $’000

�1ou2;s due (ro1 su#sidiaries l2o2f;radem ¥�T��¥ ¥�T���
�llo>a2ce (or dou#Ĥul recei=a#les l�T���m l�T���m
�e; recei=a#les ¥�T��¥ ��T���

�,e 2o2f;rade a1ou2;s due (ro1 su#sidiaries are u2securedT i2;eres;f(ree a2d repa@a#le o2 de1a2dW

�;,er recei=a#les rela;e 1ai2l@ ;o a1ou2; o>i2+ #@ rela;ed parধes o( 2o2fco2;rolli2+ i2;eres;s o( su#sidiaries ac7uired i2 
����W �,ese a1ou2;s are u2securedT i2;eres;f(ree a2d repa@a#le o2 de1a2dW

�,e Group a2d ;,e �o1pa2@Zs e?posure ;o credi; a2d curre2c@ ris0sT a2d i1pair1e2; losses rela;ed ;o ;rade a2d o;,er 
recei=a#les are disclosed i2 2o;e �¤W

9. Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000


i?ed deposi;s ��T¥�� ¥�T��¥ �T�¤� ��T��¤
�as, a; #a20 a2d i2 ,a2d r ¤�T��� ��T��� �T��� �T���

�¥T��� ���T¥¥� �T��¤ ��T¤��
r 
2cludes i2;eres;f#eari2+ cas, deposi;

�,e >ei+,;ed a=era+e eøecধ=e i2;eres; ra;es per a22u1 relaধ2+ ;o cas, a2d cas, e7ui=ale2;sT a; ;,e reporধ2+ da;e (or ;,e 
Group a2d �o1pa2@ are �W��¦ l���¤V �W��¦m a2d �W��¦ l���¤V �W�¤¦m respecধ=el@W 
2;eres; ra;es refprice a; i2;er=als o( 
o2e >ee0 ;o (our 1o2;,sW

10. Capital and reserves

Share capital

Group and Company

2017 2016
No. of shares No. of shares

’000 $’000 ’000 $’000

Fully paid ordinary shares, with no par value:
�; � �a2uar@ �T��¥T�¤� ���T�¤� ���T��� �¥¤T�¤¤
�ddiধo2al s,ares (ro1 �,are �pli; l�m g g �T���T��� g

ssue o( s,ares u2der scrip di=ide2d �¤T��� ��T��¥ ��T��� ��T��¤

ssue o( s,ares u2der s,are opধo2 sc,e1e ¤T��� �T��¥ �T��� �T���
�; �� �ece1#er �T���T��� ���T��� �T��¥T�¤� ���T�¤�

l�m �2 �� Ma@ ���¤T ;,e �o1pa2@ co1ple;ed a proposed s,are spli; o( e=er@ o2e l�m e?isধ2+ s,are ,eld #@ s,are,olders i2;o ;,ree l�m s,ares i2 ;,e capi;al 
o( ;,e �o1pa2@ l�,are �pli;mW 
or co1paraধ=e purposesT ;,e >ei+,;ed a=era+e 2u1#er o( s,ares (or ���¤ ,as #ee2 ad/us;ed (or ;,e �,are �pli; l2o;e ��mW
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10. Capital and reserves (cont’d)

Ordinary shares

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are entitled to one vote per 
share at meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

On 11 May 2016, the Company completed the share split exercise of every one (1) share into three (3) ordinary shares which 
resulted in an increase in the number of ordinary shares from 576,704,749 to 1,730,114,247.

During the financial year, the Company issued 16,474,652 shares at $1.26 per share (2016: 14,379,071 shares at $1.44 per 
share) to shareholders in lieu of cash dividends of 1.5 cents (2016: 1.5 cents) per ordinary share pursuant to Raffles Medical 
Group Ltd Scrip Dividend Scheme.

Pursuant to the option plans i.e. RMG 2000 Scheme and RMG 2010 Scheme, a total of 6,400,000 (2016: 8,684,000) new 
fully-paid ordinary shares were also issued during the year for cash by the Company as follows:

Date of Grant Exercise price* No. of Shares
$ 2017 2016*

03/04/2006 0.24 – 126,000
02/04/2007 0.38 228,000 396,000
01/04/2008 0.41 201,000 438,000
01/04/2009 0.26 671,000 429,000
01/04/2010 0.55 563,000 594,000
01/04/2011 0.73 501,000 1,413,000
02/04/2012 0.78 1,460,000 1,501,000
01/04/2013 1.09 1,020,000 1,714,000
01/04/2014 1.07 1,218,000 2,073,000
01/04/2015 1.31 538,000 –

6,400,000 8,684,000
* After adjustment for Share Split.

Unissued ordinary shares of the Company under options granted to eligible directors and employees under the Company’s 
Employee Share Option Scheme are disclosed in note 11.

Reserves

The reserves of the Group and the Company comprise the following balances:

Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Translation reserve (4,376) (4,092) – –
Share option reserve 26,194 23,745 26,194 23,745
Revaluation reserve 1,712 1,712 – –
Other reserve (4,714) (8,543) – –
Accumulated profits 375,033 339,401 242,156 219,149

393,849 352,223 268,350 242,894
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10. Capital and reserves (cont’d)

Translation reserve

�,e ;ra2slaধo2 reser=e co1prises all (orei+2 e?c,a2+e diøere2ces arisi2+ (ro1 ;,e ;ra2slaধo2 o( ;,e )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;s o( 
(orei+2 operaধo2sT as >ell as ;,e eøecধ=e porধo2 o( a2@ (orei+2 curre2c@ diøere2ces arisi2+ (ro1 ,ed+es o( a 2e; i2=es;1e2; 
i2 a (orei+2 operaধo2W

Share option reserve

�,e s,are opধo2 reser=e co1prises ;,e cu1ulaধ=e =alue o( e1plo@ee ser=ices recei=ed (or ;,e issue o( s,are opধo2sW

Revaluation reserve

�,e re=aluaধo2 reser=e rela;es ;o ;,e re=aluaধo2 o( proper;@T pla2; a2d e7uip1e2; i11edia;el@ #e(ore i;s reclassi)caধo2 as 
i2=es;1e2; proper;@W

Other reserve

�;,er reser=e rela;es ;o prese2; =alue o( ;,e e?ercise price o( >riħe2 pu; opধo2 arisi2+ (ro1 ;,e call a2d pu; opধo2s e2;ered 
>i;, ;,e 2o2fco2;rolli2+ s,are,olders lsee 2o;e ��mW

11. Employee share options

RMG 2000 Scheme

�2 �� �c;o#er ����T ;,e s,are,olders o( ;,e �o1pa2@ appro=ed ;,e Raffles Medical Group l����m �,are �pধo2 �c,e1e 
lRMG ���� �c,e1em a; ;,e 	?;raordi2ar@ Ge2eral Meeধ2+W �,e �c,e1e >as ad1i2is;ered #@ ;,e �o11iħee co1prisi2+ (our 
direc;orsT Mr �o, �o, �io2+T Mr 	ric �2+ �ei0 �i1T �r �ee �e2+ Geo0 a2d �ro(essor �i1 �i2W


2(or1aধo2 re+ardi2+ ;,e sc,e1e is as (ollo>sV

lim �u#scripধo2 priceV

lam �,e e?ercise price o( ;,e opধo2s is de;er1i2ed a; ;,e a=era+e closi2+ price o( ;,e �o1pa2@Zs s,ares o2 ;,e 
�i2+apore 	?c,a2+e �ecuriধes �radi2+ �i1i;ed o2 ;,e ;,ree #usi2ess da@s i11edia;el@ precedi2+ ;,e da;e o( +ra2; 
o( suc, opধo2sU or

l#m �,e discou2;ed =alue o( ;,e s,are price de;er1i2ed u2der lam a#o=eT pro=ided ;,a; ;,e 1a?i1u1 discou2; s,all 2o; 
e?ceed ��¦ o( lam a#o=eW

liim �,e opধo2s =es; o2 suc, da;e i2 respec; o( suc, proporধo2 o( ;,e opধo2 a1ou2; as ;,e �o11iħee 1a@ prescri#e #u; 
s,all #e 2o earlier ;,a2 � @ear ađer ;,e +ra2; da;e (or limlam a2d � @ears ađer ;,e +ra2; da;e (or liml#mW

liiim �,e opধo2s +ra2;ed e?pire ađer �� @ears (or e1plo@ees a2d � @ears (or 2o2fe1plo@ees (ro1 ;,e +ra2; da;e u2less ;,e@ 
are ca2celled or ,a=e lapsedW
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11. Employee share options (cont’d)

RMG 2010 Scheme

At the Annual General Meeting held on 30 April 2010, the shareholders of the Company adopted the Raffles Medical Group 
(2010) Share Option Scheme (RMG 2010 Scheme) for the Company. The existing RMG 2000 Scheme was concurrently 
terminated. The termination of the RMG 2000 Scheme will, however, not affect the subscription rights comprised in options 
granted pursuant to the RMG 2000 Scheme prior to the termination. Such options will continue to be exercisable in accordance 
with the rules of the RMG 2000 Scheme. However, no further options will be granted under the RMG 2000 Scheme.

Information regarding the scheme is as follows:

(i) Subject to any adjustment pursuant to any variation of the share capital of the Company, the subscription price for each 
share under the RMG 2010 Scheme shall be:

(a) a price equal to the average of the last dealt prices for a share, as determined by reference to the daily official list or 
other publication published by the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited for the three consecutive market 
days immediately preceding the offer date of that option, rounded up to the nearest whole cent, provided that in 
the case of a Market Price Option that is proposed to be granted to a Controlling Shareholder or an Associate of a 
Controlling Shareholder, the Subscription Price for each share shall be equal to the average of the last dealt price(s) 
for a share, as determined by reference to the daily official list published by the Singapore Exchange Securities 
Trading Limited, for the three consecutive market days immediately preceding the latest practicable date prior to 
the date of any circular, letter or notice to the Shareholders proposing to seek their approval of the grant of such 
options to such Controlling Shareholder and/or Associate of a Controlling Shareholder; or 

(b) the discounted value of the share price determined under (a) above, provided that the maximum discount shall not 
exceed 20% of (a) above; and

(c) the prior approval of the shareholders of the Company in general meeting shall have been obtained for the making 
of offers and grants of options at a discount not exceeding the maximum discount in a separate resolution (for the 
avoidance of doubt, such prior approval shall be required to be obtained only once and, once obtained, shall, unless 
revoked, authorise the making of offers and grants of options under the RMG 2010 Scheme at such discount for 
the duration of the RMG 2010 Scheme); or

(d) the prior approval of the shareholders of the Company in general meeting shall have been obtained for the discount 
exceeding 20% of the market price if it is prescribed or permitted for the time being by the Singapore Exchange 
Securities Trading Limited.

(ii) The options vest on such date in respect of such proportion of the option amount as the Committee may prescribe but 
shall be no earlier than 1 year after the grant date for (i)(a) and 2 years after the grant date for (i)(b).

(iii) The options granted expire after 10 years for employees and 5 years for non-employees from the grant date unless they 
are cancelled or have lapsed.

The RMG 2010 Scheme is administered by a committee comprising Directors of the Company duly authorised and appointed 
by the Board to administer the RMG 2010 Scheme. The Scheme is administered by the Committee comprising four directors, 
Mr Koh Poh Tiong, Mr Eric Ang Teik Lim, Dr Wee Beng Geok and Professor Lim Pin.



Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2017

N
o

te
s
 to

 th
e

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l S
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

115

 Raffles Medical Group  Annual Report 2017

11. Employee share options (cont’d)

RMG 2010 Scheme (cont’d)

Mo=e1e2;s i2 ;,e 2u1#er o( s,are opধo2s a2d ;,eir rela;ed >ei+,;ed a=era+e e?ercise prices are as (ollo>sV

Weighted 
average exercise 

price
No. of 

options

Weighted 
average exercise 

price
No. of 

options
2017

$
2017
’000

2016
$

2016
’000

�u;s;a2di2+ a; � �a2uar@ �W��� ¤�T¥�¤ �W�¤� ��T���
�d/us;1e2; (or �,are �pli; g g g ��T�¥�
Gra2;ed duri2+ ;,e @ear �W��� �T��� �W��� �T���

or(ei;edce?pired duri2+ ;,e @ear �W��¤ l���m �W�¥�r l��¥m
	?ercised duri2+ ;,e @ear �W¥�� l¤T���m �W��¥r l�T���m
�u;s;a2di2+ a; �� �ece1#er �W��¥ ¤�T¥¥¤ �W���r ¤�T¥�¤
	?ercisa#le a; �� �ece1#er �W��� ��T¤�� �W���r ��T¥��
r �đer ad/us;1e2; (or �,are �pli;W

�pধo2s u2der RMG ���� �c,e1e a2d RMG ���� �c,e1e e?ercised i2 ���� resul;ed i2 ¤T���T��� ordi2ar@ s,ares #ei2+ 
issued a; >ei+,;ed a=era+e e?ercise price o( ��W¥�� eac,W


2 ����T ���T��� opধo2s u2der RMG ���� �c,e1e a2d RMG ���� �c,e1e >ere (or(ei;ed a; >ei+,;ed a=era+e e?ercise 
price o( ��W��¤ eac,W

�pধo2s >ere e?ercised o2 a re+ular #asis ;,rou+,ou; ;,e @earW �,e >ei+,;ed a=era+e s,are price duri2+ ;,e @ear >as ��W�� 
l���¤V ��W��m per s,areW 

�,are opধo2s ou;s;a2di2+ a; ;,e e2d o( ;,e @ear ,a=e ;,e (ollo>i2+ e?pir@ da;es a2d e?ercise pricesV

Options outstanding

Date of grant of options Expiry date Exercise price*
$

2017
’000

2016*
’000

��c��c���� ��c��c���� �W�¥ g ��¤
��c��c���¥ ��c��c���¥ �W�� ��� ���
��c��c���� ��c��c���� �W�¤ ¥�� �T��¤
��c��c���� ��c��c���� �W�� �T��� �T���
��c��c���� ��c��c���� �W�� �T��� �T��¤
��c��c���� ��c��c���� �W�¥ g ���
��c��c���� ��c��c���� �W�¥ �T��� ¤T���
��c��c���� ��c��c���¥ �W�� ¥�� ¥��
��c��c���� ��c��c���� �W�� ¥T��� �T�¥�
��c��c���� ��c��c���� �W�� ��� �T���
��c��c���� ��c��c���� �W�� �T��� ��T��¤
��c��c���� ��c��c���� �W�� �T�¥� �T�¥�
��c��c���� ��c��c���� �W�� ��T¤�� ��T���
��c��c���¤ ��c��c���� �W�� �T��� �T���
��c��c���¤ ��c��c���¤ �W�� �T��� �T���
��c��c���� ��c��c���� �W�� ¤�� g
��c��c���� ��c��c���� �W�� �T��¥ g

¤�T¥¥¤ ¤�T¥�¤
r �đer ad/us;1e2; (or �,are �pli;W
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11. Employee share options (cont’d)

RMG 2010 Scheme (cont’d)

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted are measured by reference to the fair value of share 
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the services received is measured based on a Black-Scholes Option 
Pricing model.

Group

Date of grant of options 03/04/2017 01/04/2016(1)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

Fair value at measurement date $0.213 – $0.252 $0.872 – $1.011

Share price $1.43 $4.54
Exercise price $1.42 $4.51
Expected volatility 17.44% 22.58%
Expected option life 4.0 – 5.9 years 4.0 – 5.6 years
Expected dividend yield 1.33% 1.27%
Risk-free interest rate 2.09% 2.44%
(1)  Fair value of share options were calculated before Share Split.

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility (calculated based on the weighted average expected life of the share 
options), adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available information.

There are no market conditions associated with the share option grants. Service conditions and non-market performance 
conditions are not taken into account in the measurement of the fair value of the services to be received at the grant date.

12. Loans and borrowings

Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Non-current liabilities
Unsecured bank loans 38,000 16,947 – –

Current liabilities
Unsecured bank loans 41,204 13,451 37,262 9,518

Information about the Group’s and the Company’s exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and liquidity risk is included in 
note 16.



Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2017

N
o

te
s
 to

 th
e

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l S
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

117

 Raffles Medical Group  Annual Report 2017

12. Loans and borrowings (cont’d)

Terms and debt repayment schedule

�er1s a2d co2diধo2s o( ou;s;a2di2+ loa2s a2d #orro>i2+s are as (ollo>sV

2017 2016

Currency
Nominal

interest rate
Year of 

maturity
Face
value

Carrying 
amount

Face
value

Carrying 
amount

% $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Group

�2secured #a20 loa2 ��
�W��¦ �  
�G���R ���� g ���� ��T��� ��T��� ��T��� ��T¥¥�

�2secured #a20 loa2 ��� �W¤� ���¥ �T��� �T��� g g
�2secured #a20 loa2 ��� �W�¥ ���¥ ¤¤� ¤¤� g g
�2secured #a20 loa2 ��� �W¤� ���¥ �T�¥� �T�¥� g g
�2secured #a20 loa2 �� �W�¥ ���¥ �¥T��� �¥T��� g g
�2secured #a20 loa2 ��� �W�¥ ���� g g �T��� �T���
�2secured #a20 loa2 ��� �W�� ���� g g �T��� �T���
�2secured #a20 loa2 ��� �W�� ���� g g ¤�� ¤��
�o;al i2;eres;f#eari2+ 

lia#iliধes ��T�¤� ��T��� ��T��¥ ��T��¥

Company
�2secured #a20 loa2 ��� �W¤� ���¥ �T��� �T��� g g
�2secured #a20 loa2 ��� �W�¥ ���¥ ¤¤� ¤¤� g g
�2secured #a20 loa2 ��� �W¤� ���¥ �T�¥� �T�¥� g g
�2secured #a20 loa2 �� �W�¥ ���¥ �¥T��� �¥T��� g g
�2secured #a20 loa2 ��� �W�¥ ���� g g �T��� �T���
�2secured #a20 loa2 ��� �W�� ���� g g �T��� �T���
�2secured #a20 loa2 ��� �W�� ���� g g ¤�� ¤��
�o;al i2;eres;f#eari2+ 

lia#iliধes ��T�¤� ��T�¤� �T��¥ �T��¥

Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Liabilities

Loans and  
borrowings

Loan due to 
subsidiary’s non-

controlling interest Total

$’000 $’000 $’000

Group

Balance as at 1 January 2017 ��T��¥ �T��� ��T���
Changes from financing cash flows
�roceeds (ro1 #a20 loa2s ��¤T��� g ��¤T���
�roceeds (ro1 loa2 due ;o su#sidiar@Zs 2o2fco2;rolli2+ i2;eres; g ��� ���
Repa@1e2; o( #a20 loa2s l�¥¤T���m g l�¥¤T���m
Total changes from financing cash flows ��T��¥ ��� ��T���
The effect of changes in foreign exchange rates l¤��m l¥�m l���m
Balance as at 31 December 2017 ��T��� �T��� ¥�T��¥
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13. Trade and other payables

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Trade payables 37,831 56,227 3,836 3,089
Accrued operating expenses 59,206 50,143 8,569 8,851
Amounts due to subsidiaries:
– trade – – 11,164 9,117
– non-trade – – 26,113 11,957
Loan due to subsidiary’s non-controlling interest 2,204 2,053 – –
Deferred income 1,092 1,545 – –
Deposits received 2,512 2,058 264 223
Other payables 38,562 37,099 3,579 3,538

141,407 149,125 53,525 36,775

Non-current 15,102 4,397 58 96
Current 126,305 144,728 53,467 36,679

141,407 149,125 53,525 36,775

The non-trade amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Loan due to subsidiary’s non-controlling interest is unsecured, bears interest at 3% per annum and is repayable on demand.

Other payables relate mainly to amount due to related parties of non-controlling interests of subsidiaries acquired in 2015. 
These amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The Group and the Company’s exposure to currency and liquidity risk related to trade and other payables is disclosed in note 
16.

14. Other financial liabilities

Group

2017 2016

$’000 $’000

Present value of the exercise price of written put options 4,714 8,543

Non-current 1,773 8,377
Current 2,941 166

4,714 8,543

The Group has a written call and put options with the non-controlling shareholders of certain subsidiaries. These call options 
provide the Group the right to require the non-controlling shareholders to sell the shares owned by them, and put options 
provide the non-controlling shareholders the right to require the Group to acquire shares owned by them.
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15. Insurance contract provisions

Analysis of movements in insurance contract provisions

Group

2017 2016

Gross
Reinsurers’ 

share Net Gross
Reinsurers’ 

share Net

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

�; � �a2uar@ ��T�¥¤ l�¥T�¥�m ��T��� ��T��� l��T���m ��T¥��
�ro=isio2 1ade ��T��� l��T���m ��T��� �¥T��� l��T���m ��T���
�ro=isio2 used l��T��¤m ��T��� l�¥T���m l��T¥�¥m ��T��� l��T���m
�; �� �ece1#er ��T��� l��T���m ��T��� ��T�¥¤ l�¥T�¥�m ��T���

�,e Group >ri;es s,or;f;er1 +roup a2d i2di=idual ,eal;, i2sura2ce co2;rac;sW 
2sura2ce co2;rac; pro=isio2s represe2; ;,e 
GroupZs lia#iliধes ;o ;,e i2sured u2der i2sura2ce co2;rac;s >,e;,er repor;ed or 2o; repor;ed as a; ;,e #ala2ce s,ee; da;eW 
�is;orical da;a colla;ed #@ 1a2a+e1e2; >ere used (or de;er1i2i2+ ;,e e?pec;ed ulধ1a;e clai1s lia#ili;@W �,is da;a >as also 
supple1e2;ed #@ e?;er2all@ a=aila#le i2(or1aধo2 o2 i2dus;r@ s;aধsধcs a2d ;re2dsW

�,e 1o2i;ori2+ a2d e=aluaধo2 o( clai1 is acধ=el@ pursued >i;, processesW �,is is ;o e2sure ;,e ade7uac@ o( ;,e pro=isio2s 
re7uired ;o 1ee; ;,e o#li+aধo2s o( ;,e GroupZs (u;ure lia#iliধesW �2 e?;er2al ac;uar@ per(or1s re+ularl@ a =aluaধo2 o( ;,e 
polic@ lia#iliধes i2 accorda2ce >i;, ;,e Mo2e;ar@ �u;,ori;@ o( �i2+aporeZs re+ulaধo2sW �,e ade7uac@ o( ;,e esধ1a;ed polic@ 
lia#iliধes are =eri)ed #@ ;,e ac;uar@W

Source of estimation uncertainty

	sধ1a;es a2d /ud+e1e2;s are co2ধ2uall@ e=alua;ed a2d #ased o2 ,is;orical e?perie2ce a2d o;,er (ac;orsT i2cludi2+ 
e?pec;aধo2 o( (u;ure e=e2;s ;,a; are #elie=ed ;o #e reaso2a#le u2der ;,e circu1s;a2cesW �o>e=erT (u;ure clai1s e?perie2ce 
1i+,; de=ia;eT possi#l@ 1a;eriall@ (ro1 ;,e pro/ecধo2sW �1o2+ o;,er reaso2sT ;,is is #ecause ;,e ulধ1a;e clai1 a1ou2; >ill 
#e aøec;ed #@ (u;ure e?;er2al e=e2;sT (or e?a1pleT c,a2+es i2 ;,e i2;erpre;aধo2 o( polic@ co2diধo2s a2d ;,e aষ;udes o( 
clai1a2;s ;o>ards seħle1e2; o( ;,eir clai1sW

16. Financial instruments

Financial risk management

Overview

�,e Group ,as e?posure ;o ;,e (ollo>i2+ ris0s arisi2+ (ro1 )2a2cial i2s;ru1e2;sV

• credi; ris0
• li7uidi;@ ris0
• 1ar0e; ris0

�,is 2o;e prese2;s i2(or1aধo2 a#ou; ;,e GroupZs e?posure ;o eac, o( ;,e a#o=e ris0sT ;,e GroupZs o#/ecধ=esT policies a2d 
processes (or 1easuri2+ a2d 1a2a+i2+ ris0T a2d ;,e GroupZs 1a2a+e1e2; o( capi;alW 
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16. Financial instruments (cont’d)

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management 
framework. The Board has established the Audit & Risk Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the 
Group’s risk management policies. The committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities.

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate 
risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed 
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and management 
standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees 
understand their roles and obligations.

The Audit & Risk Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk management policies and 
procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The 
Audit & Risk Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc 
reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit & Risk Committee.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers.

The carrying amount of financial assets in the statement of financial position represents the Group and the Company’s 
respective maximum exposure to credit risk, before taking into account any collateral held. The Group and the Company do 
not hold any collateral in respect of their financial assets.

Guarantee

The Group’s policy is to provide financial guarantees only for wholly-owned subsidiaries’ liabilities. The maximum exposure of 
the Company in respect of the intra-group financial guarantee at the reporting date is disclosed in note 22.  

Trade and other receivables 

The Group has a credit policy in place which establishes credit limit for customers and monitors their balances on an ongoing 
basis. Credit evaluations are performed on customers requiring credit over certain amount. The credit quality of customers is 
assessed after taking into account its financial position and past experience with the customers. 

The Group’s primary exposure to credit risk arises through its trade receivables. Concentration of credit risk relating to 
trade receivables is limited due to the Group’s many varied customers. The Group’s historical experience in the collection of 
accounts receivable falls within the recorded allowances. Due to these factors, management believes that no additional credit 
risk beyond amounts provided for collection losses is inherent in the Group’s trade receivables.

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and 
other receivables. The main components of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates to individually significant 
exposures, and a collective loss component established for groups of similar assets in respect of losses that have been incurred 
but not yet identified. The collective loss allowance is determined based on historical data of payment statistics for similar 
financial assets. 
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16. Financial instruments (cont’d) 

Credit risk (cont’d)

	?posure ;o credi; ris0

�,e 1a?i1u1 e?posure ;o credi; ris0 a; ;,e reporধ2+ da;e >asV

Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

�rade a2d o;,er recei=a#les le?cludi2+ prepa@1e2;sm ¥¥T��� ���T��¥ ���T��� ���T�¤�

�as, a2d cas, e7ui=ale2;s �¥T��� ���T¥¥� �T��¤ ��T¤��

�¥¤T�¤� ���T��� ���T��� ���T�¥¥


1pair1e2; 

�,e a+ei2+ o( ;rade a2d o;,er recei=a#les le?cludi2+ prepa@1e2;sm a; ;,e reporধ2+ da;e >asV

Gross
Impairment

losses Gross
Impairment

losses

2017 2017 2016 2016

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Group
�o credi; ;er1s �¤T��� g ��T��� g
�ei;,er pas; due 2or i1paired �¤T¤�� g ��T��� g
�as; due � g �� da@s �T��� �� ��T��¥ ���
�as; due �� g �¥� da@s ��T��¤ �T��� ��T��� �T���
�as; due �¥� g �¤� da@s �T��� �T��� �T��� �T¤¥�
More ;,a2 o2e @ear ¥�� ��� ��� ��¤

��T��� �T��� ��¤T�¥� �T���

Company
�o credi; ;er1s ¥¤T�¥� �T��� ¥�T��� �T���
�ei;,er pas; due 2or i1paired ��T¥�� g ��T��¥ g
�as; due � g �� da@s �T¥�� g �T��� g
�as; due �� g �¥� da@s �T��� g �T��� g
�as; due �¥� g �¤� da@s �T��� ��� �T��� ¤��

���T��� �T¤�� ���T¥�� �T���

�,e Group a2d ;,e �o1pa2@ #elie=e ;,a; ;,e u2i1paired a1ou2;s ;,a; are pas; due are sধll collecধ#le i2 (ullT #ased o2 
,is;orical pa@1e2; #e,a=iour a2d e?;e2si=e a2al@ses o( cus;o1er credi; ris0T i2cludi2+ u2derl@i2+ cus;o1ersZ credi; raধ2+sT 
>,e2 a=aila#leW 
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16. Financial instruments (cont’d) 

Credit risk (cont’d)

Impairment (cont’d)

The movement in the allowance for impairment (net of recovery) in respect of trade and other receivables (excluding 
prepayments) during the year was as follows:

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At 1 January 3,743 2,722 2,721 2,553
Impairment loss recognised 1,481 1,028 701 428
Impairment loss utilised (1,895) (7) (799) (260)
At 31 December 3,329 3,743 2,623 2,721

Based on the Group’s monitoring of customer credit risk, the Group believes that, apart from the above, no impairment 
allowance is necessary in respect of trade receivables not past due or past due by up to 30 days. 

Cash and cash equivalents

The Group and the Company held cash and cash equivalents of $98,270,000 and $5,716,000 respectively at 31 December 
2017 (2016: $111,883,000 and $32,619,000 respectively) – these figures represent their maximum credit exposures on these 
assets. The cash and cash equivalents are held with bank and financial institution counterparties which are rated BB- to AA-, 
based on rating agency Standard & Poor’s ratings.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities 
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as 
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, 
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group monitors its liquidity risk and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by management to 
finance the Group’s operations and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. 

The Group has adequate undrawn unsecured credit facilities to meet its future operating activities and to finance and support 
the Group’s contractual commitments. 

The Group has contractual commitments to complete the development of the Raffles Hospital Extension, Raffles Medical 
Shanghai Hospital Project and Raffles Medical Chongqing Hospital Project (see note 22).
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16. Financial instruments (cont’d) 

Liquidity risk (cont’d)

	?posure ;o li7uidi;@ ris0

�,e (ollo>i2+ are ;,e co2;rac;ual 1a;uriধes o( )2a2cial lia#iliধesT i2cludi2+ esধ1a;ed i2;eres; pa@1e2;s a2d e?cludi2+ ;,e 
i1pac; o( 2eষ2+ a+ree1e2;sV

Carrying 
amount

Contractual cash 
flows

Within 1 
year

Between 1 and  
5 years

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Group
31 December 2017
Non-derivative financial liabilities
�2secured #a20 loa2s ��T��� l¥�T���m l��T���m l�¥T���m
�;,er )2a2cial lia#iliধes �T��� l�T���m l�T���m l�T���m
�rade a2d o;,er pa@a#lesr ���T��� l���T���m l���T���m l��T���m

���T��� l���T���m l���T���m l��T��¥m

31 December 2016
Non-derivative financial liabilities
�2secured #a20 loa2s ��T��¥ l��T���m l��T¥��m l��T���m
�;,er )2a2cial lia#iliধes ¥T��� l¥T���m l�¤¤m l¥T���m
�rade a2d o;,er pa@a#lesr ���T�¥� l���T�¥�m l���T�¥�m l�T���m

�¥¤T��� l�¥�T��¥m l���T�¤�m l��T���m

Company
31 December 2017
Non-derivative financial liabilities
�2secured #a20 loa2s ��T�¤� l��T���m l��T���m g
�rade a2d o;,er pa@a#lesr ��T��� l��T���m l��T�¤�m l�¥m

��T�¥� l��T¥��m l��T���m l�¥m
31 December 2016
Non-derivative financial liabilities
�2secured #a20 loa2s �T��¥ l�T���m l�T���m g
�rade a2d o;,er pa@a#lesr �¤T��� l�¤T���m l�¤T¤��m l�¤m

�¤T��� l�¤T��¤m l�¤T���m l�¤m
r 	?cludes de(erred i2co1e 

Market risk

Mar0e; ris0 is ;,e ris0 ;,a; c,a2+es i2 1ar0e; pricesT suc, as (orei+2 e?c,a2+e ra;esT i2;eres; ra;es a2d e7ui;@ prices >ill aøec; 
;,e GroupZs i2co1e or ;,e =alue o( i;s ,oldi2+s o( )2a2cial i2s;ru1e2;sW �,e o#/ecধ=e o( 1ar0e; ris0 1a2a+e1e2; is ;o 1a2a+e 
a2d co2;rol 1ar0e; ris0 e?posures >i;,i2 accep;a#le para1e;ersT >,ile opধ1isi2+ ;,e re;ur2W
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16. Financial instruments (cont’d) 

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk on borrowings and inter-company balances, that are denominated in currencies 
other than the respective functional currencies of Group entities. The currencies in which these transactions primarily are 
denominated are the Euro (EUR), Hong Kong Dollar (HKD), US Dollar (USD), Japanese Yen (JPY) and Singapore Dollar (SGD).

In respect of other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Group’s policy is to ensure that its 
net exposure is kept to an acceptable level. 

Exposure to currency risk 

The summary of quantitative data about the Group’s exposure to currency risk as reported to the management of the Group 
is as follows:

EUR HKD USD JPY SGD

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Group
2017
Trade and other receivables 131 – 14,314 – 61
Trade and other payables (463) – (7,840) – (53)
Amount owing (to)/ 

from subsidiaries (net) – – (7,376) 2,032 (3,143)
Loans and borrowings – (7,195) (661) (1,391) –

(332) (7,195) (1,563) 641 (3,135)

2016
Trade and other receivables 124 – 23,101 – 49
Trade and other payables (285) – (14,499) – (54)
Amount owing (to)/ 

from subsidiaries (net) – – (8,168) 2,112 (1,086)
Loans and borrowings – (7,744) (1,143) (631) –

(161) (7,744) (709) 1,481 (1,091)

HKD USD JPY

$’000 $’000 $’000

Company
2017
Amount owing (to)/from subsidiaries (net) – 1,159 1,391
Loan and borrowings (7,195) (661) (1,391)

(7,195) 498 –

2016
Amount owing (to)/from subsidiaries (net) – 1,730 631
Loan and borrowings (7,744) (1,143) (631)

(7,744) 587 –
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16. Financial instruments (cont’d) 

Currency risk (cont’d)

�e2siধ=i;@ a2al@sis 

� ��¦ s;re2+;,e2i2+ o( ;,e (ollo>i2+ 1a/or curre2cies a+ai2s; ;,e (u2cধo2al curre2c@ o( eac, o( ;,e GroupZs e2ধধes >ould 
i2creasecldecreasem pro); or loss #@ ;,e a1ou2;s s,o>2 #elo>W �i1ilarl@T a ��¦ >ea0e2i2+ >ould ,a=e ;,e e7ual #u; opposi;e 
eøec;W �,is a2al@sis assu1es ;,a; all o;,er =aria#lesT i2 parধcular i2;eres; ra;esT re1ai2 co2s;a2;W

2017 2016

$’000 $’000

Group
	�R l��m l�¤m
��� l���m l���m
��� l��¤m l��m
��� ¤� ��¥
�G� l���m l���m

Company
��� l���m l���m
��� �� ��

Interest rate risk

�,e GroupZs e?posure ;o c,a2+es i2 i2;eres; ra;es rela;es pri1aril@ ;o i2;eres;fear2i2+ )2a2cial asse;s a2d i2;eres;f#eari2+ 
)2a2cial lia#iliধesW 
2;eres; ra;e ris0 is 1a2a+ed #@ ;,e Group o2 a2 o2f+oi2+ #asis >i;, ;,e pri1ar@ o#/ecধ=e o( li1iধ2+ ;,e 
e?;e2; ;o >,ic, 2e; i2;eres; e?pe2se could #e aøec;ed #@ a2 ad=erse 1o=e1e2; i2 i2;eres; ra;esW

	?posure ;o i2;eres; ra;e ris0

�; ;,e reporধ2+ da;eT ;,e i2;eres; ra;e pro)le o( ;,e GroupZs i2;eres;f#eari2+ )2a2cial i2s;ru1e2;sT as repor;ed ;o ;,e 
1a2a+e1e2;T >as as (ollo>sV 

Group Company

Nominal amount Nominal amount

2017 2016 2017 2016

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Fixed rate instruments

i2a2cial asse;s ��T¥�� ¥�T��¥ �T�¤� ��T��¤


i2a2cial lia#iliধes l��T�¤�m l�T��¥m l��T�¤�m l�T��¥m

�oa2 due ;o su#sidiar@Zs 2o2fco2;rolli2+ i2;eres; l�T���m l�T���m g g
l�T¤��m ¤�T�¤� l��T���m ��T��¥

Variable rate instruments

i2a2cial lia#iliধes l��T���m l��T¥¥�m g g


air =alue se2siধ=i;@ a2al@sis (or )?ed ra;e i2s;ru1e2;s

�,e Group does 2o; accou2; (or a2@ )?ed ra;e )2a2cial asse;s a2d lia#iliধes a; (air =alue ;,rou+, pro); or lossW �,ere(oreT i2 
respec; o( ;,e )?ed ra;e i2s;ru1e2;sT a c,a2+e i2 i2;eres; ra;es a; ;,e reporধ2+ da;e >ould 2o; aøec; pro); or lossW



Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2017

N
o

te
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

126

Expanding Our Landmark for You

16. Financial instruments (cont’d) 

Interest rate risk (cont’d)

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points (bp) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased/(decreased) profit or loss by 
the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.

Group Company

Profit or loss Profit or loss

100 bp 
increase

100 bp 
decrease

100 bp
increase

100 bp
decrease

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

31 December 2017
Variable rate instruments (419) 419 – –

31 December 2016
Variable rate instruments (209) 209 – –

Capital management

The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to 
sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, which the Group defines 
as net operating income divided by total shareholders’ equity excluding NCI. The Board also monitors the levels of dividends 
to ordinary shareholders. In addition, the Board and senior management also monitors the Group’s capital adequacy and 
insurance fund solvency levels against regulatory requirements.

To mitigate exposure to large risks underwritten that can impact the financial strength of the Group, it has put in place robust 
underwriting guidelines and reinsurance arrangements to control its insurance risk exposure. The Group further stress-tests 
its financial position and capital adequacy under various stress scenarios to assess its financial stability. 

The Board seeks to maintain a balance between higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the 
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.

The Group has a scrip dividend scheme to provide an opportunity for ordinary shareholders to make an election to receive 
dividends in the form of shares, credited as fully paid up instead of cash. It will enable ordinary shareholders to participate 
in the equity capital of the Group without incurring brokerage fees, stamp duty and other related costs. The Group will also 
benefit from the participation by ordinary shareholders in the scheme as, to the extent that ordinary shareholders elect to 
receive dividend in the form of shares, the cash which would otherwise be payable by way of cash dividends may be retained 
to fund the growth and expansion of the Group. The issue of shares in lieu of cash dividends under the scheme will also 
enlarge the Group’s share capital base and the retention of cash will strengthen its working capital position.

The Group has a defined share buy back plan to purchase its own shares on the market; the timing of these purchases depends 
on market prices.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the year. 

The Company and its subsidiaries are not subject to externally imposed capital requirements, except for Raffles Health Insurance 
Pte Ltd which is required to comply with the regulatory capital requirement prescribed under the Singapore Insurance Act. 
Under the Risk-based Capital Framework regulation set by the Monetary Authority of Singapore (MAS), insurance companies are 
required to satisfy minimum prescribed capital adequacy ratio (CAR) and fund solvency ratio (FSR).  



 Raffles Medical Group  Annual Report 2017

127

16
. 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l i
ns

tr
um

en
ts

 (c
on

t’d
) 

Ac
co

un
tin

g 
cl

as
sifi

ca
tio

ns
 a

nd
 fa

ir 
va

lu
es


a
ir 

=a
lu

es
 =

er
su

s 
ca

rr
@i

2+
 a

1
ou

2;
s

�,
e 

ca
rr

@i
2+

 a
1

ou
2;

s 
a2

d 
(a

ir 
=a

lu
es

 o
( )

2a
2c

ia
l a

ss
e;

s 
a2

d 
)2

a2
ci

al
 li

a#
ili

ধe
sT 

i2
cl

ud
i2

+ 
;,

ei
r l

e=
el

s 
i2

 ;,
e 

(a
ir 

=a
lu

e 
,i

er
ar

c,
@ 

ar
e 

as
 (o

llo
>

sW 

; 

do
es

 2
o;

 i2
cl

ud
e 

(a
ir 

=a
lu

e 
i2

(o
r1

aধ
o2

 
(o

r )
2a

2c
ia

l a
ss

e;
s 

a2
d 

)2
a2

ci
al

 li
a#

ili
ধe

s 
2o

; 1
ea

su
re

d 
a;

 (a
ir 

=a
lu

e 
i( 

;,
e 

ca
rr

@i
2+

 a
1

ou
2;

 is
 re

as
o2

a#
le

 a
pp

ro
?i

1
aধ

o2
 o

( (
ai

r =
al

ue
W 

Ca
rr

yi
ng

 a
m

ou
nt

Fa
ir 

va
lu

e

N
ot

e
Lo

an
s a

nd
 

re
ce

iv
ab

le
s

O
th

er
 fi

na
nc

ia
l 

lia
bi

liti
es

To
ta

l
Le

ve
l 1

Le
ve

l 2
 

Le
ve

l 3
To

ta
l

$’
00

0
$’

00
0

$’
00

0
$’

00
0

$’
00

0
$’

00
0

$’
00

0

G
ro

up
31

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

7

Fi
na

nc
ia

l a
ss

et
s n

ot
 m

ea
su

re
d 

at
 fa

ir 
va

lu
e

�r
ad

e 
a2

d 
o;

,e
r r

ec
ei

=a
#l

es
�

¥
¥¥

T�
��

g
¥¥

T�
��

�a
s,

 a
2d

 c
as

, 
e7

ui
=a

le
2;

s
�

�¥
T�

��
g

�¥
T�

��
�¥

¤T
�¤

�
g

�¥
¤T

�¤
�

Fi
na

nc
ia

l l
ia

bi
liti

es
 n

ot
 m

ea
su

re
d 

at
 fa

ir 
va

lu
e

�o
a2

s a
2d

 #
or

ro
>

i2
+s

��
g

l�
�T

��
�m

l�
�T

��
�m

g
l�

�T
�¤

�m
g

l�
�T

�¤
�m

�r
ad

e 
a2

d 
o;

,e
r p

a@
a#

le
sr

��
g

l�
��

T�
��

m
l�

��
T�

��
m

�
;,

er
 )

2a
2c

ia
l l

ia
#i

liধ
es

��
g

l�
T�

��
m

l�
T�

��
m

g
g

l�
T�

��
m

l�
T�

��
m

g
l�

��
T�

��
m

l�
��

T�
��

m
31

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

6

Fi
na

nc
ia

l a
ss

et
s n

ot
 m

ea
su

re
d 

at
 fa

ir 
va

lu
e

�r
ad

e 
a2

d 
o;

,e
r r

ec
ei

=a
#l

es
�

¥
��

�T
��

¥
g

��
�T

��
¥

�a
s,

 a
2d

 c
as

, 
e7

ui
=a

le
2;

s
�

��
�T

¥¥
�

g
��

�T
¥¥

�
��

�T
��

�
g

��
�T

��
�

Fi
na

nc
ia

l l
ia

bi
liti

es
 n

ot
 m

ea
su

re
d 

at
 fa

ir 
va

lu
e

�o
a2

s a
2d

 #
or

ro
>

i2
+s

��
g

l�
�T

��
¥m

l�
�T

��
¥m

g
l�

�T
��

¥m
g

l�
�T

��
¥m

�r
ad

e 
a2

d 
o;

,e
r p

a@
a#

le
sr

��
g

l�
��

T�
¥�

m
l�

��
T�

¥�
m

�
;,

er
 )

2a
2c

ia
l l

ia
#i

liধ
es

��
g

l¥
T�

��
m

l¥
T�

��
m

g
g

l¥
T�

��
m

l¥
T�

��
m

g
l�

¥¤
T�

��
m

l�
¥¤

T�
��

m

N
ot

es
 to

 th
e 

Fi
na

nc
ial

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

�e
ar

 e
2d

ed
 �

� 
�

ec
e1

#e
r �

��
�

�
o;es ;o ;,e 
i2a2cial �;a;e1

e2;s



Expanding Our Landmark for You

128

16
. 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l i
ns

tr
um

en
ts

 (c
on

t’d
) 

Ac
co

un
tin

g 
cl

as
sifi

ca
tio

ns
 a

nd
 fa

ir 
va

lu
es

 (c
on

t’d
)

Fa
ir 

va
lu

es
 v

er
su

s 
ca

rr
yi

ng
 a

m
ou

nt
s 

(c
on

t’d
)

Ca
rr

yi
ng

 a
m

ou
nt

Fa
ir 

va
lu

e

N
ot

e
Lo

an
s a

nd
 

re
ce

iv
ab

le
s

O
th

er
 fi

na
nc

ia
l 

lia
bi

liti
es

To
ta

l
Le

ve
l 1

Le
ve

l 2
 

Le
ve

l 3
To

ta
l

$’
00

0
$’

00
0

$’
00

0
$’

00
0

$’
00

0
$’

00
0

$’
00

0

Co
m

pa
ny

31
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
7

Fi
na

nc
ia

l a
ss

et
s n

ot
 m

ea
su

re
d 

at
 fa

ir 
va

lu
e

Tr
ad

e 
an

d 
ot

he
r r

ec
ei

va
bl

es
#

8
13

1,
53

1
–

13
1,

53
1

Ca
sh

 a
nd

 c
as

h 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

s
9

5,
71

6
–

5,
71

6
13

7,
24

7
–

13
7,

24
7

Fi
na

nc
ia

l l
ia

bi
liti

es
 n

ot
 m

ea
su

re
d 

at
 fa

ir 
va

lu
e

Lo
an

s a
nd

 b
or

ro
w

in
gs

12
–

(3
7,

26
2)

(3
7,

26
2)

–
(3

7,
26

2)
–

(3
7,

26
2)

Tr
ad

e 
an

d 
ot

he
r p

ay
ab

le
s*

13
–

(5
3,

52
5)

(5
3,

52
5)

–
(9

0,
78

7)
(9

0,
78

7)
31

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

6

Fi
na

nc
ia

l a
ss

et
s n

ot
 m

ea
su

re
d 

at
 fa

ir 
va

lu
e

Tr
ad

e 
an

d 
ot

he
r r

ec
ei

va
bl

es
#

8
11

0,
16

9
–

11
0,

16
9

Ca
sh

 a
nd

 c
as

h 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

s
9

32
,6

19
–

32
,6

19
14

2,
78

8
–

14
2,

78
8

Fi
na

nc
ia

l l
ia

bi
liti

es
 n

ot
 m

ea
su

re
d 

at
 fa

ir 
va

lu
e

Lo
an

s a
nd

 b
or

ro
w

in
gs

12
–

(9
,5

18
)

(9
,5

18
)

–
(9

,5
18

)
–

(9
,5

18
)

Tr
ad

e 
an

d 
ot

he
r p

ay
ab

le
s*

13
–

(3
6,

77
5)

(3
6,

77
5)

–
(4

6,
29

3)
(4

6,
29

3)
# 

Ex
cl

ud
es

 p
re

pa
ym

en
ts

* 
Ex

cl
ud

es
 d

ef
er

re
d 

in
co

m
e 

N
ot

es
 to

 th
e 

Fi
na

nc
ial

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

Ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 3

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
7

N
ot

es
 to

 th
e 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l S
ta

te
m

en
ts



Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2017

N
o

te
s
 to

 th
e

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l S
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

129

 Raffles Medical Group  Annual Report 2017

16
. 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l i
ns

tr
um

en
ts

 (c
on

t’d
) 

Ac
co

un
tin

g 
cl

as
sifi

ca
tio

ns
 a

nd
 fa

ir 
va

lu
es

 (c
on

t’d
)


a
ir 

=a
lu

es
 =

er
su

s 
ca

rr
@i

2+
 a

1
ou

2;
s 

lc
o2

;Zd
m

Ca
rr

yi
ng

 a
m

ou
nt

Fa
ir 

va
lu

e

N
ot

e
Lo

an
s a

nd
 

re
ce

iv
ab

le
s

O
th

er
 fi

na
nc

ia
l 

lia
bi

liti
es

To
ta

l
Le

ve
l 1

Le
ve

l 2
 

Le
ve

l 3
To

ta
l

$’
00

0
$’

00
0

$’
00

0
$’

00
0

$’
00

0
$’

00
0

$’
00

0

Co
m

pa
ny

31
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
7

Fi
na

nc
ia

l a
ss

et
s n

ot
 m

ea
su

re
d 

at
 fa

ir 
va

lu
e

�r
ad

e 
a2

d 
o;

,e
r r

ec
ei

=a
#l

es
�

¥
��

�T
��

�
g

��
�T

��
�

�a
s,

 a
2d

 c
as

, 
e7

ui
=a

le
2;

s
�

�T
��

¤
g

�T
��

¤
��

�T
��

�
g

��
�T

��
�

Fi
na

nc
ia

l l
ia

bi
liti

es
 n

ot
 m

ea
su

re
d 

at
 fa

ir 
va

lu
e

�o
a2

s a
2d

 #
or

ro
>

i2
+s

��
g

l�
�T

�¤
�m

l�
�T

�¤
�m

g
l�

�T
�¤

�m
g

l�
�T

�¤
�m

�r
ad

e 
a2

d 
o;

,e
r p

a@
a#

le
sr

��
g

l�
�T

��
�m

l�
�T

��
�m

g
l�

�T
�¥

�m
l�

�T
�¥

�m
31

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

6

Fi
na

nc
ia

l a
ss

et
s n

ot
 m

ea
su

re
d 

at
 fa

ir 
va

lu
e

�r
ad

e 
a2

d 
o;

,e
r r

ec
ei

=a
#l

es
�

¥
��

�T
�¤

�
g

��
�T

�¤
�

�a
s,

 a
2d

 c
as

, 
e7

ui
=a

le
2;

s
�

��
T¤

��
g

��
T¤

��
��

�T
�¥

¥
g

��
�T

�¥
¥

Fi
na

nc
ia

l l
ia

bi
liti

es
 n

ot
 m

ea
su

re
d 

at
 fa

ir 
va

lu
e

�o
a2

s a
2d

 #
or

ro
>

i2
+s

��
g

l�
T�

�¥
m

l�
T�

�¥
m

g
l�

T�
�¥

m
g

l�
T�

�¥
m

�r
ad

e 
a2

d 
o;

,e
r p

a@
a#

le
sr

��
g

l�
¤T

��
�m

l�
¤T

��
�m

g
l�

¤T
��

�m
l�

¤T
��

�m
� 

	?
cl

ud
es

 p
re

pa
@1

e2
;s

r 
	?

cl
ud

es
 d

e(
er

re
d 

i2
co

1
e 

16. Financial instruments (cont’d)

Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs

�,e (ollo>i2+ ;a#le s,o>s ;,e =aluaধo2 ;ec,2i7ues used i2 1easuri2+ le=el � (air =aluesW


i2a2cial i2s;ru1e2; 2o; 1easured a; (air =alue

Type Valuation techniques

Group and Company

�;,er )2a2cial lia#iliধes g 2o2fcurre2; pa@a#lesT  
loa2s a2d #orro>i2+s a2d pu; opধo2s

�iscou2;ed cas, *o>V �,e =aluaধo2 1odel co2siders ;,e prese2; 
=alue o( e?pec;ed pa@1e2;T discou2;ed usi2+ a ris0fad/us;ed 
discou2; ra;e

�;,er recei=a#les g 2o2fcurre2; recei=a#les �iscou2;ed cas, *o>V �,e =aluaধo2 1odel co2siders ;,e prese2; 
=alue o( e?pec;ed pa@1e2;T discou2;ed usi2+ a ris0fad/us;ed 
discou2; ra;e

�o2fcurre2; loa2s a2d #orro>i2+s

�,e carr@i2+ a1ou2;s o( *oaধ2+ i2;eres; #eari2+ loa2sT >,ic, are repriced >i;,i2 � 1o2;, (ro1 ;,e reporধ2+ da;eT re*ec; 
;,e correspo2di2+ (air =aluesW

�;,er )2a2cial asse;s a2d lia#iliধes

�,e carr@i2+ a1ou2;s o( o;,er )2a2cial asse;s a2d lia#iliধes >i;, a 1a;uri;@ o( less ;,a2 o2e @ear li2cludi2+ ;rade a2d o;,er 
recei=a#lesT cas, a2d cas, e7ui=ale2;sT loa2s a2d #orro>i2+s a2d ;rade a2d o;,er pa@a#lesm are assu1ed ;o appro?i1a;e ;,eir 
(air =alues #ecause o( ;,e s,or; period ;o 1a;uri;@W

Transfer between fair values hierarchies 

�,ere is 2o ;ra2s(er #e;>ee2 ;,e (air =alue ,ierarc,ies duri2+ ;,e )2a2cial @earW

�e=el � (air =alues

�,e (ollo>i2+ ;a#le s,o>s a reco2ciliaধo2 (ro1 ;,e ope2i2+ #ala2ces ;o ;,e e2di2+ #ala2ces (or le=el � (air =aluesV 

Put options

Group $’000

�; � �a2uar@ ���¤ ¥T���
�,a2+es i2 e?ercise price o( >riħe2 pu; opধo2s l���m
�; �� �ece1#er ���¤ ¥T���
�,a2+es i2 e?ercise price o( >riħe2 pu; opধo2s l�T¥��m
�; �� �ece1#er ���� �T���
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17. Profit for the year

The following items have been included in arriving at profit for the year:

Group

2017 2016

$’000 $’000

Allowance for doubtful receivables 1,481 1,028
Changes in fair value in investment properties (3,085) (1,530)
Contributions to defined contribution plans 15,629 13,363
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net 10 –
Write-off for stock obsolescence 155 175
Interest expense
– bank loans 191 147
– finance lease 13 7
Interest income (936) (1,138)
Audit fees paid to: 
– auditors of the Company 182 176
– other auditors 62 101
Non-audit fees paid to:
– auditors of the Company 16 25
– other auditors 7 23
Property, plant and equipment written-off 143 154
Foreign exchange loss 134 566
Value of employee services received for issue of share options, included in staff costs 2,449 2,656

18. Tax expense

Group

2017 2016

$’000 $’000

Tax recognised in profit or loss
Current tax expense
Current year 12,463 14,289
Adjustment for prior years 254 48

12,717 14,337

Deferred tax expense
Movements in temporary differences (617) 583
Adjustment for prior years 57 64

(560) 647

Tax expense 12,157 14,984
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18. Tax expense (cont’d)

Group

2017 2016

$’000 $’000

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

�ro); #e(ore ;a? ¥�T¥�¥ ¥�T���

�a? usi2+ ;,e �i2+apore ;a? ra;e o( ��¦ l���¤V ��¦m ��T��� ��T��¥
	øec; o( ;a? ra;es i2 (orei+2 /urisdicধo2 l���m ���
�o2fdeducধ#le e?pe2ses �¥� �T���
�a? e?e1p; i2co1e l¥��m l���m
�a? i2ce2ধ=es l�T���m l�T���m
�a? eøec; o( u2reco+2ised ;a? losses �T�¥� �T���
�ধlisaধo2 o( ;a? loss l���m l���m
�2der pro=ided i2 prior @ears ��� ���
Others l¥��m ���

��T��� ��T�¥�

�,e �o1pa2@ i2;e2ds ;o uধlise ;,e u2a#sor#ed ;a? losses a2d capi;al allo>a2ces o( �¤¥¥T��� l���¤V �¥¤T���m o( o;,er 
su#sidiaries i2 ;,e sa1e +roup u2der ;,e +roup relie( s@s;e1T su#/ec; ;o co1plia2ce >i;, ;,e rele=a2; rules a2d procedures 
a2d a+ree1e2; o( 
2la2d Re=e2ue �u;,ori;@ o( �i2+aporeW 

19. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

�,e calculaধo2 o( #asic ear2i2+s per s,are a; �� �ece1#er ���� >as #ased o2 ;,e pro); aħri#u;a#le ;o ordi2ar@ s,are,olders 
o( ���T���T��� l���¤V ���T���T���mT a2d a >ei+,;edfa=era+e 2u1#er o( ordi2ar@ s,ares ou;s;a2di2+ o( �T�¤�T���T��� 
l���¤V �T���T��¥T���mT calcula;ed as (ollo>sV

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

Group

2017 2016

$’000 $’000

�ro); aħri#u;a#le ;o ordi2ar@ s,are,olders ��T��� ��T���
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19. Earnings per share (cont’d)

Basic earnings per share (cont’d)

Weighted-average number of ordinary shares

Group

2017 2016
No. of shares No. of shares

’000 ’000

Issued ordinary shares at beginning of the year(1) 1,748,164 1,725,101
Effect of scrip dividend shares issued 8,395 7,347
Effect of share options exercised 4,413 5,350
Weighted average number of ordinary shares during the year(1) 1,760,972 1,737,798

(1) For comparative purposes, the number of ordinary shares for 2016 has been adjusted for Share Split (note 10). 

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share at 31 December 2017 was based on profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 
of $70,779,000 (2016: $70,210,000), and a weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding after adjustment for the 
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares of  1,770,760,550 (2016: 1,753,819,285), calculated as follows:

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (diluted)

Group

2017 2016

$’000 $’000

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 70,779 70,210

Weighted-average number of ordinary shares

Group

2017 2016
No. of shares No. of shares

’000 ’000

Weighted average number of ordinary share (basic) 1,760,972 1,737,798
Potential ordinary shares issuable under share options 9,789 16,021
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) during the year 1,770,761 1,753,819

At 31 December 2017, 17,305,000 options (2016: 10,437,000) were excluded from the diluted weighted-average number of 
ordinary shares calculation as their effect would have been anti-dilutive.

The average market value of the Company’s shares for purposes of calculating the dilutive effect of share options was based 
on quoted market prices for the period during which the options were outstanding.
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20. Operating segments

�,e Group ,as � repor;a#le se+1e2;sT as descri#ed #elo>T >,ic, are ;,e GroupZs s;ra;e+ic #usi2ess u2i;sW �,e s;ra;e+ic 
#usi2ess u2i;s oøer diøere2; produc;s a2d ser=icesT a2d are 1a2a+ed separa;el@ #ecause ;,e@ re7uire diøere2; ;ec,2olo+@ a2d 
1ar0eধ2+ s;ra;e+iesW 
or eac, o( ;,e s;ra;e+ic #usi2ess u2i;sT ;,e GroupZs 	?ecuধ=e �,air1a2 re=ie>s i2;er2al 1a2a+e1e2; 
repor;s re+ularl@W �,e (ollo>i2+ su11ar@ descri#es ;,e operaধo2s i2 eac, o( ;,e GroupZs repor;a#le se+1e2;sV

�eal;,care  ser=ices V �,e operaধo2s o( 1edical cli2ics a2d o;,er +e2eral 1edical ser=icesU pro=isio2 o( ,eal;, 
i2sura2ceT ;radi2+ i2 p,ar1aceuধcal a2d 2u;raceuধcal produc;s a2d dia+2osধc e7uip1e2;T a2d 
pro=isio2 o( 1a2a+e1e2; a2d co2sul;a2c@ ser=icesW

�ospi;al ser=ices  V �,e pro=isio2 o( specialised 1edical ser=ices a2d operaধo2 o( ,ospi;al a2d #usi2ess o( 1edical 
la#ora;or@ a2d i1a+i2+ ce2;reW


2=es;1e2; ,oldi2+s V 
2=es;1e2; ,oldi2+ a2d ;,ose relaধ2+ ;o i2=es;1e2; properধesW

�er(or1a2ce is 1easured #ased o2 se+1e2; pro); #e(ore ;a?T as i2cluded i2 ;,e i2;er2al 1a2a+e1e2; repor;s ;,a; are 
re=ie>ed #@ ;,e GroupZs 	?ecuধ=e �,air1a2W �e+1e2; pro); is used ;o 1easure per(or1a2ce as 1a2a+e1e2; #elie=es ;,a; 
suc, i2(or1aধo2 is 1os; rele=a2; i2 e=aluaধ2+ ;,e resul;s o( cer;ai2 se+1e2;s relaধ=e ;o o;,er e2ধধes operaধ2+ >i;,i2 ;,ese 
#usi2essesW


2;erfse+1e2; prici2+ is de;er1i2ed o2 1u;uall@ a+reed ;er1sW

�e+1e2; resul;sT asse;s a2d lia#iliধes i2clude i;e1s direc;l@ aħri#u;a#le ;o a se+1e2; as >ell as ;,ose ;,a; ca2 #e alloca;ed o2 
a reaso2a#le #asisW �2alloca;ed i;e1s 1ai2l@ co1prise curre2; ;a? a2d de(erred ;a? lia#iliধes a2d asse;sW

�e+1e2; capi;al e?pe2di;ure is ;,e ;o;al cos; i2curred duri2+ ;,e period ;o ac7uire se+1e2; asse;s ;,a; are e?pec;ed ;o #e 
used (or 1ore ;,a2 o2e periodW

Geographical information

�,e Group opera;es pri2cipall@ i2 �i2+aporeW �o2;ri#uধo2s (ro1 o;,er i2di=idual o=erseas operaধo2s are 2o; si+2i)ca2; a2d 
are ;,ere(ore 2o; disclosedW
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20. Operating segments (cont’d)

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities and other material items

2017 2016

$’000 $’000

Revenues
�o;al re=e2ue (or repor;a#le se+1e2;s ���T��� ���T���
	li1i2aধo2 o( i2;erfse+1e2; re=e2ue l��T��¤m l��T���m
�o2solida;ed re=e2ue ���T�¥� ���T¤�¥

Profit or loss
�o;al pro); (or repor;a#le se+1e2;s ¥�T��� ¥¤T���
�d/us;1e2; (or depreciaধo2 o( proper;@T pla2; a2d e7uip1e2; l�T���m l�T�¤�m
�o2solida;ed pro); #e(ore ;a? ¥�T¥�¥ ¥�T���

Assets
�o;al asse;s (or repor;a#le se+1e2;s �T¤¥�T�¤� �T��¤T���
	li1i2aধo2 o( i2;erfse+1e2; asse;s l¤¥�T���m l��¤T���m
�2alloca;ed a1ou2;sfcurre2; ;a? a2d de(erred ;a? asse;s �T��� ���
�o2solida;ed ;o;al asse;s �T���T¥¤� ���T¤��

Liabilities
�o;al lia#iliধes (or repor;a#le se+1e2;s ¥�¥T��� ¤¥�T�¤�
	li1i2aধo2 o( i2;erfse+1e2; lia#iliধes l���T�¤�m l�¥�T��¤m
�2alloca;ed a1ou2;sfcurre2; ;a? a2d de(erred ;a? lia#iliধes ��T��� ��T��¤
�o2solida;ed ;o;al lia#iliধes ���T��¤ ��¥T�¥�

Other material items

Reportable 
segment  

totals Adjustments
Consolidated 

totals

$’000 $’000 $’000

2017
�epreciaধo2 a2d a1orধsaধo2 ��T¥�� �T��� ��T���

2016
�epreciaধo2 a2d a1orধsaধo2 ��T¤�� �T�¤� ��T¤¤�

�,e GroupZs properধes a; Raffles �olla2d � a2d Raffles �ospi;al are o>2ed #@ i;s su#sidiaries a2d classi)ed as i2=es;1e2; 
properধes i2 ;,e su#sidiariesZ s;a2dalo2e )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;sW 
2 accorda2ce >i;, ;,e GroupZs accou2ধ2+ policiesT i2=es;1e2; 
proper;@ is 1easured a; (air =alue a2d 2o; deprecia;edW


or ;,e preparaধo2 o( ;,e co2solida;ed )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;sT a porধo2 o( ;,ese properধes are reclassi)ed (ro1 i2=es;1e2; 
properধes ;o proper;@T pla2; a2d e7uip1e2; as ;,ese properধes are used i2 ;,e suppl@ o( 1edical ser=ices #@ ;,e GroupW 
�ccordi2+l@T ;,e carr@i2+ =alues o( ;,ese properধes are deprecia;ed o=er ;,eir use(ul li=es i2 ;,e co2solida;ed )2a2cial 
s;a;e1e2;s o( ;,e GroupW

�,e a1ou2; o( ��T���T��� l���¤V ��T�¤�T���m rela;es ;o ;,e depreciaধo2 o( ;,ese properধes (or ;,e @ear e2ded �� �ece1#er 
����W
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20. Operating segments (cont’d)

Major customer

There is no customer within the segments that represents more than 10% of the Group’s revenue.

21. Operating leases

Leases as lessee

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows:

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Within 1 year 10,975 11,360 5,415 6,666
Between 1 and 5 years 11,532 14,290 4,790 6,838
More than 5 years 1,277 1,404 – –

23,784 27,054 10,205 13,504

The leases typically run for an initial period of 3 to 10 years, with an option to renew the lease after that date. For renewed 
leases, the lease payments are determined based on the prevailing market rent at the point of renewal.

Leases as lessor

The Group leases out its investment properties. The future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable leases are as 
follows: 

Group

2017 2016

$’000 $’000

Within 1 year 6,639 6,108
Between 1 and 5 years 11,147 14,104
More than 5 years – 481

17,786 20,693

During the year, $6,468,000 (2016: $4,305,000) was recognised as rental income pertaining to investment properties held by 
the Group. Direct expenses in relation to this rental income were as follows:

Group

2017 2016

$’000 $’000

Income-generating property 1,560 840
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22. Commitments and contingent liabilities 

�; �� �ece1#er ����T co11i;1e2;s co2;rac;ed #u; 2o; pro=ided (or #@ ;,e Group i2 ;,e )2a2cial s;a;e1e2;s a1ou2;ed 
;o ����T¤��T��� l���¤V ����T���T���mW �,is rela;es ;o properধes de=elop1e2; e?pe2di;ure (or Raffles �ospi;al 	?;e2sio2T 
Raffles Medical �,a2+,ai �ospi;al �ro/ec;T Raffles Medical �,o2+7i2+ �ospi;al �ro/ec; a2d ;,e de=elop1e2; o( a 2e> 
i2sura2ce 1a2a+e1e2; s@s;e1W

�,e 1a?i1u1 e?posure o( ;,e �o1pa2@ i2 respec; o( ;,e i2;raf+roup )2a2cial +uara2;ee (or ;,e (aciliধes dra>2 do>2 #@ 
su#sidiar@ is ���T���T��� l���¤V ���T���T���mW �; ;,e reporধ2+ da;eT ;,e �o1pa2@ does 2o; co2sider i; pro#a#le ;,a; a clai1 
>ill #e 1ade a+ai2s; ;,e �o1pa2@ u2der ;,e i2;raf+roup )2a2cial +uara2;eeW


2 ���¤T ;,e Group pled+ed ;o do2a;e ��T���T��� ;o ;,e �aধo2al �id2e@ 
ou2daধo2 l��
m ;o se; up Raffles ��
 Re2al 
�ell2ess �e2;re i2 Raffles �ospi;alW �,e Group do2a;ed ����T��� ;o ��
 duri2+ ;,e @ear ����W �,e Group is also co11iħed 
;o do2a;e ��T���T��� #@ a>ardi2+ �� u2i=ersi;@ sc,olars,ips o=er ;,e 2e?; )=e @earsW

23. Transactions with key management personnel

Key management personnel compensation


2 addiধo2 ;o ;,eir salariesT ;,e Group also pro=ides 2o2fcas, #e2e);s ;o direc;ors a2d e?ecuধ=esW 

�e@ 1a2a+e1e2; perso22el parধcipa;e i2 ;,e 	1plo@ee �,are �pধo2 �c,e1eW �T�¤�T��� l���¤V �T�¥�T���m s,are opধo2s 
>ere +ra2;ed ;o ;,e 0e@ 1a2a+e1e2; perso22el o( ;,e �o1pa2@ duri2+ ;,e @earW �,e s,are opধo2s ;,a; >ere +ra2;ed duri2+ 
;,e @ear >ere o2 ;,e sa1e ;er1s a2d co2diধo2s as ;,ose oøered ;o o;,er e1plo@ees o( ;,e �o1pa2@ as descri#ed i2 2o;e 
��W �; ;,e reporধ2+ da;eT �T���T��� l���¤V �T���T���m o( ;,e s,are opধo2s +ra2;ed ;o ;,e direc;ors o( ;,e �o1pa2@ >ere 
ou;s;a2di2+W

�e@ 1a2a+e1e2; perso22el co1pe2saধo2 co1prisedV

Group

2017 2016

$’000 $’000

�,or;f;er1 e1plo@ee #e2e);s ��T��� ��T���
�irec;orsZ (ees 444 ��¤
�,aref#ased #e2e);s �¤� ���

��T¤�¥ ��T���

24. Subsidiaries

Company

2017 2016

$’000 $’000


2=es;1e2;s i2 su#sidiaries ��T�¤� ��T��¤
�1ou2;s due (ro1 su#sidiaries ���T�¤¤ ��¥T���

���T��� ���T���
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24. Subsidiaries (cont’d)

Amounts due from subsidiaries form part of the Company’s net investment in subsidiaries. The amounts due from subsidiaries 
are unsecured, interest-free and settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future. As the amounts 
are, in substance, a part of the Company’s net investment in the entities, they are stated at cost, less accumulated impairment 
loss. 

Details of subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of subsidiaries Principal activities

Place of 
incorporation 
and business

Effective equity
interest held by 

the Group

2017 2016

% %

1 Raffles Hospital Pte Ltd Provision of general and specialised 
medical services and operation of a 
hospital

Singapore 100 100

1 Raffles Diagnostica Pte Ltd Operation of medical laboratory and 
imaging centre

Singapore 100 100

1 Raffles Medical Properties Pte Ltd and its 
  subsidiaries:

Property owner and investment 
holding

Singapore 100 100

1 Raffles Hospital Properties Pte Ltd Property owner Singapore 100 100

1 MP Clementi Pte Ltd Investment holding Singapore 100 100

1 RM Network Pte. Ltd. Management consultancy services for 
healthcare organisations

Singapore 100 –

1 Raffles Research Labs Pte Ltd Research & experimental development 
on Biotechnology, Life & Medical 
Science

Singapore 100 100

1 Raffles Chinese Medicine Pte Ltd Provision of general medical services, 
acupuncture and acupressure

Singapore 100 100

1 Raffles Japanese Clinic Pte Ltd and its 
subsidiaries:

Operation of medical clinics, provision 
of medical services and investment 
holding

Singapore 80 80

2 RJC Ltd and its subsidiaries: Investment holding Japan 80 80

2 RSM Ltd and its subsidiary: Provision of medical support and 
consultancy services

Japan 40.8 40.8

2 Zui Wa Kai Medical Corporation Operation of medical clinics and 
provision of medical services

Japan – 13 – 13

1 Raffles Health Pte Ltd Trading in pharmaceutical and 
nutraceutical products and diagnostic 
equipment

Singapore 100 100

1 Aptitude [2003] Pte Ltd Provision of advisory and consultancy 
services and developing IT solutions

Singapore 100 100

4 Raffles Healthcare Management (China)  
Limited

Provision of hospital management and 
hospital management consultancy 
services

Hong Kong 100 −
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24. Subsidiaries (cont’d)

Name of subsidiaries Principal activities

Place of 
incorporation 
and business

Effective equity
interest held by 

the Group

2017 2016

% %

� Raffles Medical 
2;er2aধo2al �;e �;d a2d i;s   
su#sidiariesV


2=es;1e2; ,oldi2+ �i2+apore ��� ���

4 Raffles Medical Group l�o2+ �o2+m �i1i;ed  
 a2d i;s su#sidiariesV


2=es;1e2; ,oldi2+ a2d pro=isio2 o( 
1edical a2d de2;al ser=ices

�o2+ �o2+ ��� ���

4 �oors �o2sul;a2;s �i1i;ed �ro=isio2 o( co2sul;a2c@ ser=ices �o2+ �o2+ ��� ���

4 Medical �roperধes �oW �i1i;ed 
2=es;1e2; ,oldi2+T pro=isio2 
o( 1edical ser=ices a2d ,ospi;al 
operaধo2

�o2+ �o2+ ��� ���

�� �2A,e2+ l�,o2+7i2+m �ospi;al �oW �;dW �roper;@ o>2er �,i2a ��� Ȅ

�� �,e2�2 l�,o2+7i2+m �ospi;al �oW �;dW �ospi;al 1a2a+e1e2; a2d operaধo2s �,i2a ��� Ȅ

4 Raffles Medical �er=ices l��m �i1i;ed �ro=isio2 o( 1edical ser=ices �o2+ �o2+ ��� Ȅ

� Re2+ua2+ Ma2a+e1e2; �o2sul;a2c@  
 l�,a2+,aim �oW �;d

Ma2a+e1e2; co2sul;a2c@ �,i2a ��� ���

� �,a2+,ai Rui,e �li2ic �oW �;d �peraধo2 o( 1edical cli2ics a2d 
pro=isio2 o( 1edical ser=ices

�,i2a g �� g ��

� Raffles �eal;, 
2sura2ce �;e �;d �ro=isio2 o( ,eal;, a2d rela;ed 
i2sura2ce

�i2+apore ��� ���

� �� Raffles Medi0a 
2do2esia �ro=isio2 o( ,ospi;al a2d ,eal;,care 
1a2a+e1e2; a2d co2sul;a2c@ 
ser=ices


2do2esia ���3 ���3

� Raffles �ur+i�e2;re �;e �;d a2d i;s  
su#sidiariesV

�ro=isio2 o( +e2eral a2d specialised 
1edical ser=icesT operaধo2 o( a 
,ospi;al a2d i2=es;1e2; ,oldi2+

�i2+apore ��� ���

¤ 
2;er2aধo2al ��� lM� �oldi2+sm �;e �;d  
a2d i;s su#sidiariesV

�ro=isio2 o( ;,e usa+e o( ;rade 
2a1eT ;rade1ar0 a2d ad1i2is;raধo2T 
;rai2i2+T 2e;>or0 ser=ices a2d 
1ar0eধ2+ ser=ices ;o rela;ed 
co1pa2iesT a2d i2=es;1e2; ,oldi2+

�i2+apore �� ��

� �ei/i2+ 
2;er2aধo2al l���m �li2ic �ro=ides 1edical ser=ices ;,rou+, 
operaধo2 o( 1edical cli2ics

�,i2a �� ��

� �a2/i2+ 
2;er2aধo2al l���m �li2ic �ro=ides 1edical ser=ices ;,rou+, 
operaধo2 o( 1edical cli2ics

�,i2a �� ��

  � �ia2/i2 
2;er2aধo2al l���m �li2ic �ro=ides 1edical ser=ices ;,rou+, 
operaধo2 o( 1edical cli2ics

�,i2a �� ��

¥ 
2;er2aধo2al ��� �ie;2a1 �oWT �;dW �ro=ides 1edical co2sul;aধo2 a2d 
e=acuaধo2 ser=ices

�ie;2a1 �� ��

� �i(eধ1e �eal;, �i1i;ed �ia#ili;@ 
�o1pa2@

�ro=ides 1edical e?a1i2aধo2 a2d 
;rea;1e2; ;,rou+, i;s i2;er2aধo2al 
pol@cli2ics a2d special;@ cli2ics

�ie;2a1 �� Ȅ
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24. Subsidiaries (cont’d)

Name of subsidiaries Principal activities

Place of 
incorporation 
and business

Effective equity
interest held by 

the Group

2017 2016

% %

10 AEA International SOS (Cambodia) Ltd Provides medical services through 
operation of medical clinics 

Cambodia 55 55

4 International SOS (HK) Limited and its 
  subsidiary:

Provision of medical emergency 
assistance services, the sale of medical 
kits and investment holding 

Hong Kong 55 55

11  Shenzhen International SOS Clinic Provision of clinical services China 55 55

1 Raffles Medical China Pte Ltd and its 
subsidiaries:

Investment holding and provision 
of medical services and hospital 
operation

Singapore 100 100

2 Shenzhen Investments Pte Ltd Investment holding (dormant) Singapore 100 100

1 Shanghai Capital Pte Ltd and its subsidiary: Investment holding Singapore 100 100

12  Shanghai Qihua Hospital Co. Ltd. Property owner China 70 70

1 RMG Capital Pte Ltd and its subsidiary: Investment holding Singapore 100 100

1 Asian Healthcare Capital Management  
 Pte Ltd

Property owner Singapore 100 100

2 International Medical Investment Co., Ltd Investment holding (dormant) British Virgin 
Islands

100 100

1 Audited by KPMG LLP, Singapore

2 Not required to be audited

3 Shares of this subsidiary are partially held in trust by a director of the subsidiary

4 Audited by Lawrence Cheung C.P.A. Company Limited, Hong Kong

5 Audited by Shanghai Deking Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd 

6 Audited by Ernst & Young LLP, Singapore for the financial year ended 30 June 2016. The Company has changed its financial year to 31 December and has 
appointed KPMG LLP, Singapore as its auditor in February 2017.

7 Audited by Horizon CPA Limited

8 Audited by Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited

9 Audited by KPMG Limited, Ho Chi Minh City

10 Audited by BDO (Cambodia) Limited

11 Audited by Beijing Yongtuo Certified Public Accountants LLP

12 Audited by BDO China Shu Lun Pan Certified Public Accountants LLP

13 The Group does not hold any ownership interests in two structured entities, Shanghai Ruihe Clinic Co. Ltd and Zui Wa Kai Medical Corporation. However, 
based on the terms of agreements under which these entities were established, the Group receives substantially all of the returns related to their 
operations and net assets and has the current ability to direct these entities’ activities that most significantly affect these returns. Because the owners’ 
interests in these entities are presented as liabilities of the Group, there are no non-controlling interests for these entities.

KPMG LLP is the auditor of all significant Singapore-incorporated subsidiaries. For this purpose, a subsidiary is considered 
significant as defined under the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited if its net tangible assets 
represents 20% or more of the Group’s consolidated net tangible assets, or if its pre-tax profits account for 20% or more of 
the Group’s consolidated pre-tax profits.
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24. Subsidiaries (cont’d)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries

�,e (ollo>i2+ su#sidiaries ,a=e 2o2fco2;rolli2+ i2;eres;s l��
m ;,a; are 1a;erial ;o ;,e GroupW 

Ownership interests held by NCI

Name
Principal places of business/ 

Country of incorporation 2017 2016

Raffles �apa2ese �li2ic �;e �;d lR��m �i2+apore ��¦ ��¦

2;er2aধo2al ��� lM� �oldi2+sm �;e �;d lM��m �i2+apore ��¦ ��¦
�,a2+,ai �i,ua �ospi;al �oW �;d l���m �,i2a ��¦ ��¦

�,e (ollo>i2+ su11arised )2a2cial i2(or1aধo2 (or ;,e a#o=e su#sidiaries are prepared i2 accorda2ce >i;, 
R�T 1odi)ed (or 
(air =alue ad/us;1e2;s o2 ac7uisiধo2 a2d diøere2ces i2 ;,e GroupZs accou2ধ2+ policiesW 

RJC MCH SQH

Other 
individually 
immaterial 
subsidiaries

Intra-group 
elimination Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2017
Re=e2ue ��T¥�� �¥T��� g
�ro);cl�ossm �T¤�� l�T���m ��
��
 g ��� l���m
Total comprehensive income �T¤�� l�T���m l���m
Attributable to NCI:
g  �ro);cl�ossm ��� l�T¤¥�m �� l���m g l�T��¥m
g  ��
 g ��� l���m ¥¥ g ���
g  Total comprehensive income ��� l�T�¥�m l���m l���m g l�T���m

�o2fcurre2; asse;s �T��� ¤T��� ��T���
�urre2; asse;s �¤T��� ��T��� ��T�¤�
�o2fcurre2; lia#iliধes l�¤�m g l��T��¤m
�urre2; lia#iliধes l�T���m l�¤T�¤�m l�T�¤�m
Net assets ��T��� �T��� ��T�¤�
Net assets attributable to NCI �T��� ��� �¤T��� l�T���m l���m ��T���

�as, *o>s lused i2mc(ro1 operaধ2+ 
acধ=iধes l�T���m ¤�� l���m

�as, *o>s used i2 i2=esধ2+ 
acধ=iধes l�T�¥�m l���m l��T¤¤�m

�as, *o>s (ro1 )2a2ci2+  
acধ=iধes g g ��T���

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and 
cash equivalents l¥T��¥m l���m ��T���
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24. Subsidiaries (cont’d)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)

RJC MCH SQH

Other 
individually 
immaterial 
subsidiaries

Intra-group 
elimination Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2016
Revenue 17,027 42,334 –
Profit/(Loss) 2,289 (3,499) (22)
OCI – (1,173) (1,907) 
Total comprehensive income 2,289 (4,672) (1,929)
Attributable to NCI:
– Profit/(Loss) 458 (1,575) (7) (1,140) – (2,264)
– OCI – (528) (572) 14 – (1,086)
– Total comprehensive income 458 (2,103) (579) (1,126) – (3,350)

Non-current assets 905 7,034 41,278
Current assets 13,341 57,447 1,065
Non-current liabilities (79) – –
Current liabilities (3,606) (59,119) (970)
Net assets 10,561 5,362 41,373
Net assets attributable to NCI 2,112 2,413 12,412 (1,422) (59) 15,456

Cash flows from/(used in) operating 
activities 2,832 3,556 (45)

Cash flows used in investing
 activities (675) (230) (305)
Cash flows used in financing 
 activities (580) – –
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and 

cash equivalents 1,577 3,326 (350)

25. Dividends

After the respective reporting dates, the directors proposed a one-tier tax exempt final dividend of 1.75 cents (2016: 1.5 
cents) per share amounting approximately to $30,993,000 (2016: $26,222,000), which is based on the number of shares 
outstanding as at the end of the financial year. The dividends have not been provided for and there are no income tax 
consequences.



 Raffles Medical Group  Annual Report 2017

143

Shareholdings Statistics

�,are,oldi2+s �;aধsধcs

�lass o( s,ares g �rdi2ar@ s,ares 
�oধ2+ ri+,;s g � =o;e per ordi2ar@ s,are

Shareholdings Held in Hands of Public

�ased o2 i2(or1aধo2 a=aila#le ;o ;,e �o1pa2@ as a; �� Marc, ���¥T appro?i1a;el@ ��W�¦ o( ;,e issued ordi2ar@ s,ares o( ;,e 
�o1pa2@ is ,eld #@ ;,e pu#lic a2d ;,ere(ore Rule ��� o( ;,e �isধ2+ Ma2ual is co1plied >i;,W

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

Range of Shareholdings No. of Shareholders % No. of Shares %

� g �� ��� �W�� ��T¥�� �W�� 
��� g �T��� �T��� �W�� ¤��T��¥ �W�� 
�T��� g ��T��� ¥T��� �¤W�� ��T��¤T��� �W�� 
��T��� g �T���T��� �T�¥�    ��W�¥ ��¤T��¤T��� ��W�� 
�T���T��� a2d a#o=e �� �W�� �T���T��¥T��¥ ¥�W�� 

��T��¤ ���W�� �T���T�¥¥T��� ���W��

TOP 20 SHAREHOLDERS

No. Name of Shareholder No. of Shares %

� Raffles Medical �oldi2+s �;e �;d ¤�¥T���T¤�� �¤W¤�
� �oo �,oo2 �o2+                ���T¤��T¥�� �W��
3 ��� �o1i2ees �;e �;d          ���T���T��� ¤W��
4 �iধ#a20 �o1i2ees �i2+apore �;e �;d  ���T���T¥�¤ ¤W��
� ���� �er=ices �;e �;d         ¥�T��¥T��� �W��
¤ Raffles �o1i2ees l�;em �;d    ¤�T��¤T��� �W¤¥
� ���� �o1i2ees �i2+apore l�;eWm �;dW ¤�T���T��� �W¤�
¥ � { � �oldi2+s �;e �;d        ��T���T��¥ �W��
� ���� l�i2+aporem �o1i2ees �;e �;d ��T��¥T�¤� �W�¥
�� ��� �o1i2ees l���¤m �;e �;d   ��T���T¥�� �W��
�� �2i;ed �=erseas �a20 �o1i2ees �;e �;d �¥T���T��� �W��
�� �a2 �ia2+ �ee                 ��T���T�¥� �W��
�� �sia2 Medical 
ou2daধo2 �;d  ��T���T��� �W�¤
�� �ii �ee �e2+                  �T���T¤�� �W��
�� ���� �o1i2ees �i2+apore �;e �;d      ¥T���T��� �W��
�¤ �,illip �ecuriধes �;e �;d �T���T��� �W��
�� �a2 �oo �a2                   �T��¤T��� �W�¤
�¥ ��� �a@ �ia2 �;e �;d �T���T��� �W��
�� ���� �ecuriধes �ri=a;e �;d �T¤¤�T�¤� �W��
�� �ee �e2+ Geo0 �T���T��� �W��

�T���T���T��� ¥�W��

�,e �o1pa2@ does 2o; ,old a2@ ;reasur@ s,ares a2d ;,ere is 2o su#sidiar@ ,oldi2+s as a; �� Marc, ���¥W 

 

�s a; �� Marc, ���¥
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Name Direct Interest % Deemed Interest % Total Interest %

Dr Loo Choon Yong1 175,781,718 9.92 733,097,786 41.39 908,879,504 51.31

Raffles Medical Holdings Pte Ltd 674,118,458 38.05 – – 674,118,458 38.05

Standard Life Aberdeen plc2 – – 117,938,581 6.66 117,938,581 6.66

Aberdeen Asset Management PLC3 – – 117,938,581 6.66 117,938,581 6.66

Aberdeen Asset Management Asia Limited4 – – 110,035,616 6.21 110,035,616 6.21
Notes:

1 Dr Loo Choon Yong is deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 733,097,786 shares held through Raffles Medical Holdings Pte Ltd in which he is a director and 
shareholder of, S & D Holdings Pte Ltd in which he is a director and shareholder of, and his spouse, Mdm Leong Lai Chee.

2 Standard Life Aberdeen plc (SLA) is deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 117,938,581 shares held by various accounts managed by SLA and its subsidiaries, 
over which SLA and its subsidiaries have disposal over voting rights.   

3 Aberdeen Asset Management PLC (AAM PLC), a wholly-owned subsidiary of SLA, is deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 117,938,581 shares held by 
various accounts managed by its subsidiaries, over which its subsidiaries have disposal over voting rights. 

4 Aberdeen Asset Management Asia Limited (AAMAL), a wholly-owned subsidiary of AAM PLC, is deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 110,035,616 shares 
held by various accounts managed by AAMAL, over which AAMAL has disposal over voting rights.   

Shareholdings Statistics
As at 13 March 2018
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN ;,a; ;,e ��;, �22ual Ge2eral Meeধ2+ l�GMm o( Raffles Medical Group �;d l;,e �o1pa2@m >ill #e ,eld 
at Stephen Riady Auditorium @ NTUC, Level 7, NTUC Centre, 1 Marina Boulevard, Singapore 018989 on Friday, 27 April 2018 

at 4.30 p.m. (or ;,e purpose o( co2sideri2+ a2dT i( ;,ou+,; );T passi2+ >i;, or >i;,ou; 1odi)caধo2T ;,e (ollo>i2+ resoluধo2s as 
�rdi2ar@ Resoluধo2sV

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

�W �o recei=e a2d adop; ;,e �irec;orsZ �;a;e1e2;T �udi;ed 
i2a2cial �;a;e1e2;s (or ;,e @ear e2ded �� �ece1#er ���� ;o+e;,er 
>i;, ;,e �udi;orsZ Repor; ;,ereo2W     [Resolution 1]

�W �o declare a o2efধer ;a? e?e1p; 
i2al �i=ide2d o( �W�� �i2+apore ce2;s per s,are (or ;,e @ear e2ded �� �ece1#er ���� l���¤V 
�W� �i2+apore ce2;s per s,aremW       [Resolution 2]

�W �o appro=e �irec;orsZ 
ees l����T���m (or ;,e @ear e2ded �� �ece1#er ���� l���¤V ����T���mW  [Resolution 3]

�W �o refelec; Mr �a2 �oo �a2T >,o is reধri2+ #@ ro;aধo2 i2 accorda2ce >i;, �rধcle �� o( ;,e �o2sধ;uধo2 o( ;,e �o1pa2@T a2d 
>,oT #ei2+ eli+i#leT >ill oøer ,i1sel( (or refelecধo2W    [Resolution 4]

�W �o refelec; Mr �li=ier �i1 �se G,o>T >,o is reধri2+ #@ ro;aধo2 i2 accorda2ce >i;, �rধcle �� o( ;,e �o2sধ;uধo2 o( ;,e 
�o1pa2@T a2d >,oT #ei2+ eli+i#leT >ill oøer ,i1sel( (or refelecধo2W  [Resolution 5]

¤W �o refelec; �ro(essor �i1 �i2T >,o is reধri2+ #@ ro;aধo2 i2 accorda2ce >i;, �rধcle �� o( ;,e �o2sধ;uধo2 o( ;,e �o1pa2@T 
a2d >,oT #ei2+ eli+i#leT >ill oøer ,i1sel( (or refelecধo2W    [Resolution 6] 

�W �o refelec; �r �ara, �u �i2+,uiT >,o is reধri2+ i2 accorda2ce >i;, �rধcle �� o( ;,e �o2sধ;uধo2 o( ;,e �o1pa2@T a2d >,oT 
#ei2+ eli+i#leT >ill oøer ,ersel( (or refelecধo2W     [Resolution 7]

     

¥W �o refappoi2; ��MG ��� as �udi;ors o( ;,e �o1pa2@ a2d ;o au;,orise ;,e �irec;ors ;o )? ;,eir re1u2eraধo2W 
            [Resolution 8]

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

9. Authority to Allot and Issue Shares

 �,a; pursua2; ;o �ecধo2 �¤� o( ;,e �i2+apore �o1pa2ies �c;T �,ap;er ��T a2d Rule ¥�¤ o( ;,e �isধ2+ Ma2ual o( 
;,e �i2+apore 	?c,a2+e �ecuriধes �radi2+ �i1i;ed l�G�f��mT au;,ori;@ #e a2d is ,ere#@ +i=e2 ;o ;,e �irec;ors o( ;,e 
�o1pa2@ ;oV

 lam  lim �llo; a2d issue s,ares a2d co2=erধ#le securiধes i2 ;,e capi;al o( ;,e �o1pa2@ >,e;,er #@ >a@ o( ri+,;sT #o2us or 
o;,er>iseU a2dcor

 liim Ma0e or +ra2; oøersT a+ree1e2;s or opধo2s lcollecধ=el@T 
2s;ru1e2;sm ;,a; 1i+,; or >ould re7uire s,ares ;o #e 
issuedT i2cludi2+ #u; 2o; li1i;ed ;o ;,e creaধo2 a2d issue o( las >ell as ad/us;1e2;s ;om >arra2;sT de#e2;ures or 
o;,er i2s;ru1e2;s co2=erধ#le i2;o s,aresT

a; a2@ ধ1e a2d upo2 suc, ;er1s a2d co2diধo2s a2d (or suc, purposes a2d ;o suc, perso2s as ;,e �irec;ors 1a@ i2 ;,eir 
a#solu;e discreধo2 dee1 );U a2d

l#m l�o;>i;,s;a2di2+ ;,a; ;,e au;,ori;@ co2(erred #@ ;,is Resoluধo2 1a@ ,a=e ceased ;o #e i2 (orcem 
ssue s,ares a2d 
co2=erধ#le securiধes i2 pursua2ce o( a2@ 
2s;ru1e2; 1ade or +ra2;ed #@ ;,e �irec;ors >,ile ;,is Resoluধo2 >as i2 
(orceT
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9. Authority to Allot and Issue Shares (cont'd)

Provided That:
 

(1) The aggregate number of shares to be issued pursuant to this Resolution (including shares to be issued in pursuance of 
Instruments made or granted pursuant to this Resolution) does not exceed 50% of the total number of issued shares 
(excluding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings) in the capital of the Company (as calculated in accordance with 
sub-paragraph (2) below), of which the aggregate number of shares and convertible securities to be issued other than 
on a pro-rata basis to shareholders of the Company (including shares to be issued in pursuance of Instruments made 
or granted pursuant to this Resolution) does not exceed 20% of the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury 
shares and subsidiary holdings) in the capital of the Company (as calculated in accordance with sub-paragraph (2) below);

(2) (Subject to such manner of calculation as may be prescribed by the SGX-ST) For the purpose of determining the 
aggregate number of shares that may be issued under sub-paragraph (1) above, the percentage of issued shares shall 
be based on the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings) in the capital of the 
Company at the time this Resolution is passed, after adjusting for:

(i) New shares arising from the conversion or exercise of convertible securities;

(ii) New shares arising from the conversion or exercise of any convertible securities or share options or vesting of 
share awards, which are outstanding or subsisting at the time this Resolution is passed; and

(iii) Any subsequent bonus issue or consolidation or sub-division of shares.

(3) In exercising the authority conferred by this Resolution, the Company shall comply with the provisions of the Listing 
Manual of the SGX-ST for the time being in force (unless such compliance has been waived by the SGX-ST) and the 
Constitution for the time being of the Company; and

(4) (Unless revoked or varied by the Company in general meeting) The authority conferred by this Resolution shall continue 
in force until the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company or the date by which the next AGM of the Company is 
required by law to be held, whichever is the earlier.                               [Resolution 9]

10. Authority to Allot and Issue Shares Under the Raffles Medical Group Share Option Scheme

That pursuant to Section 161 of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50, the Directors of the Company be and are hereby 
authorised to offer and grant options in accordance with the provisions of the Raffles Medical Group Share Option Scheme 
(the Scheme) and to allot and issue from time to time such number of shares in the capital of the Company as may be required 
to be issued pursuant to the exercise of such options under the Scheme, provided that the aggregate number of shares to 
be issued pursuant to the Scheme shall not exceed 15% of the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares and 
subsidiary holdings) of the Company from time to time.                                   [Resolution 10]

11. The Proposed Renewal of Share Buy Back Mandate
 

 That:
  

 (a)   For the purposes of Sections 76C and 76E of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50, the exercise by the Directors 
of the Company of all the powers of the Company to purchase or otherwise acquire fully paid issued ordinary shares in 
the capital of the Company (Shares), not exceeding in aggregate the Maximum Percentage (as hereafter defined), at such 
price or prices as may be determined by the Directors from time to time up to the Maximum Price (as hereafter defined), 
whether by way of:

Notice of Annual General Meeting
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11. The Proposed Renewal of Share Buy Back Mandate (cont'd)

lim �2 o2f1ar0e; purc,ase o( �,ares l�2fMar0e; �,are �u@ �ac0mT ;ra2sac;ed o2 ;,e �G�f�� ;,rou+, ;,e read@ 
1ar0e; or ;,e special ;radi2+ cou2;er o2 �G�f�� ;radi2+ s@s;e1 or o2 a2@ o;,er securiধes e?c,a2+e o2 >,ic, ;,e 
�,ares 1a@ (or ;,e ধ1e #ei2+ #e lis;ed a2d 7uo;ed l�;,er 	?c,a2+emT ;,rou+, o2e or 1ore dul@ lice2sed s;oc0 
#ro0ers appoi2;ed #@ ;,e �o1pa2@ (or ;,e purposeU a2d c or

liim �2 oøf1ar0e; purc,ase o(  �,ares l�øfMar0e; 	7ual �ccess �,are �u@ �ac0m li( eøec;ed o;,er>ise ;,a2 o2 
;,e �G�f�� orT as ;,e case 1a@ #eT �;,er 	?c,a2+em i2 accorda2ce >i;, a2@ e7ual access sc,e1elsm as 1a@ #e 
de;er1i2ed or (or1ula;ed #@ ;,e �irec;ors as ;,e@ co2sider );T >,ic, sc,e1elsm s,all saধs(@ all ;,e co2diধo2s 
prescri#ed #@ ;,e �o1pa2ies �c;T a2d o;,er>ise i2 accorda2ce >i;, all o;,er la>s a2d re+ulaধo2s a2d rules o( 
;,e �G�f�� orT as ;,e case 1a@ #eT �;,er 	?c,a2+es as 1a@ (or ;,e ধ1e #ei2+ #e applica#leT #e a2d is ,ere#@ 
au;,orised a2d appro=ed +e2erall@ a2d u2co2diধo2all@ l;,e �,are �u@ �ac0 Ma2da;emU

l#m �2less =aried or re=o0ed #@ �,are,olders i2 a +e2eral 1eeধ2+T ;,e au;,ori;@ co2(erred o2 ;,e �irec;ors o( ;,e �o1pa2@ 
pursua2; ;o ;,e �,are �u@ �ac0 Ma2da;e 1a@ #e e?ercised #@ ;,e �irec;ors a; a2@ ধ1e a2d (ro1 ধ1e ;o ধ1e duri2+ 
;,e period co11e2ci2+ (ro1 ;,e da;e o( ;,e passi2+ o( ;,is Resoluধo2 a2d e?piri2+ o2 ;,e earlier o(V

lim �,e da;e o2 >,ic, ;,e 2e?; �GM o( ;,e �o1pa2@ is ,eld or re7uired #@ la> ;o #e ,eldU 

liim �,e da;e o2 >,ic, ;,e purc,ases or ac7uisiধo2s o( �,ares pursua2; ;o ;,e proposed �,are �u@ �ac0 Ma2da;e are 
carried ou; ;o ;,e (ull e?;e2; 1a2da;edU or

liiim �,e da;e o2 >,ic, ;,e au;,ori;@ co2(erred #@ ;,e proposed �,are �u@ �ac0 Ma2da;e is re=o0ed or =aried #@ ;,e 
�,are,olders i2 a +e2eral 1eeধ2+W

lcm 
2 ;,is Resoluধo2V

[�=era+e �losi2+ Mar0e; �rice\ 1ea2s ;,e a=era+e o( ;,e closi2+ 1ar0e; prices o( ;,e �,ares o=er ;,e las; )=e 1ar0e; 
da@sT o2 >,ic, ;,e �,ares are ;ra2sac;ed o2 ;,e �G�f�� i11edia;el@ precedi2+ ;,e da;e o( a2 �2fMar0e; �,are �u@ 
�ac0 #@ ;,e �o1pa2@ orT as ;,e case 1a@ #eT ;,e da;e o( ;,e 1a0i2+ o( ;,e oøer pursua2; ;o ;,e �øfMar0e; 	7ual 
�ccess �,are �u@ �ac0T a2d dee1ed ;o #e ad/us;edT i2 accorda2ce >i;, ;,e �isধ2+ Ma2ual o( ;,e �G�f��T (or a2@ 
corpora;e acধo2 ;,a; occurs ađer ;,e rele=a2; )=efda@ periodU

[da;e o( ;,e 1a0i2+ o( ;,e oøer\ 1ea2s ;,e da;e o2 >,ic, ;,e �o1pa2@ a22ou2ces i;s i2;e2ধo2 ;o 1a0e a2 oøer (or 
a2 �øfMar0e; 	7ual �ccess �,are �u@ �ac0T s;aধ2+ ;,e purc,ase price l>,ic, s,all 2o; #e 1ore ;,a2 )=e per ce2; l�¦m 
a#o=e ;,e �=era+e �losi2+ Mar0e; �rice o( ;,e �,aresT e?cludi2+ rela;ed e?pe2ses o( ;,e purc,ase or ac7uisiধo2m (or 
eac, �,are a2d ;,e rele=a2; ;er1s o( ;,e e7ual access sc,e1e (or eøecধ2+ ;,e �øfMar0e; 	7ual �ccess �,are �u@ 
�ac0U

[Ma?i1u1 �erce2;a+e\ 1ea2s ;,a; ;,e 2u1#er o( issued �,ares represe2ধ2+ ;e2 per ce2; l��¦m o( ;,e issued �,ares 
o( ;,e �o1pa2@ as a; ;,e da;e o( ;,e passi2+ o( ;,is Resoluধo2 le?cludi2+ ;reasur@ s,ares a2d su#sidiar@ ,oldi2+smU a2d

[Ma?i1u1 �rice\ i2 relaধo2 ;o a �,are ;o #e purc,ased or ac7uiredT 1ea2s ;,e purc,ase price le?cludi2+ rela;ed 
#ro0era+eT co11issio2T applica#le +oods a2d ser=ices ;a?T s;a1p duধesT cleara2ce (ees a2d o;,er rela;ed e?pe2sesm 
>,ic, s,all 2o; e?ceedV

lim 
2 ;,e case o( a2 �2fMar0e; �,are �u@ �ac0 o( a �,areT 1ore ;,a2 )=e per ce2; l�¦m o( ;,e �=era+e �losi2+ 
Mar0e; �rice las de)2ed a#o=em o( ;,e �,areU a2d

liim 
2 ;,e case o( a2 �øfMar0e; 	7ual �ccess �,are �u@ �ac0 o( a �,areT 1ore ;,a2 )=e per ce2; l�¦m o( ;,e �=era+e 
�losi2+ Mar0e; �rice o( ;,e �,areU a2d
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11. The Proposed Renewal of Share Buy Back Mandate (cont'd)

(d)   The Directors of the Company and/or any of them be and are hereby authorised to complete and do all such acts and 
things (including executing such documents as may be required) as they and/or he may consider expedient or necessary 
to give effect to the transactions contemplated and/or authorised by this Resolution.                   [Resolution 11]

12. Authority to Issue Ordinary Shares Pursuant to the Raffles Medical Group Ltd Scrip Dividend Scheme
 

That authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Company to allot and issue from time to time such number 
of ordinary shares as may be required to be allotted and issued pursuant to the Raffles Medical Group Ltd Scrip Dividend 
Scheme.                                   [Resolution 12]

 

 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Kimmy Goh 
Company Secretary 
4 April 2018

Notice of Annual General Meeting

N
oti

ce
 o

f A
nn

ua
l G

en
er

al
 M

ee
tin

g



 Raffles Medical Group  Annual Report 2017

149

Explanatory Notes:

�rdi2ar@ Resoluধo2 � a#o=eT i( passedT is ;o see0 appro=al (or ;,e pa@1e2; o( up ;o ����T��� ;o all �irec;ors as �irec;orsZ 
ees (or ;,e @ear e2ded �� �ece1#er ����W


2 relaধo2 ;o �rdi2ar@ Resoluধo2 � a#o=eT Mr �a2 �oo �a2 >illT upo2 refelecধo2 as �irec;or o( ;,e �o1pa2@T co2ধ2ue ;o ser=e as a2 	?ecuধ=e a2d �o2f
2depe2de2; 
�irec;or o( ;,e �o1pa2@W


2 relaধo2 ;o �rdi2ar@ Resoluধo2 � a#o=eT Mr �li=ier �i1 �se G,o> >illT upo2 refelecধo2 as �irec;or o( ;,e �o1pa2@T re1ai2 as �o2f	?ecuধ=e a2d �o2f
2depe2de2; 
�irec;or o( ;,e �o1pa2@W


2 relaধo2 ;o �rdi2ar@ Resoluধo2 ¤ a#o=eT �ro(essor �i1 �i2 >illT upo2 refelecধo2 as �irec;or o( ;,e �o1pa2@T re1ai2 as a 1e1#er o( ;,e �o1i2aধ2+ { �o1pe2saধo2 
�o11iħee a2d >ill #e co2sidered i2depe2de2;W


2 relaধo2 ;o �rdi2ar@ Resoluধo2 � a#o=eT �r �ara, �u �i2+,ui >illT upo2 refelecধo2 as �irec;or o( ;,e �o1pa2@T re1ai2 as �o2f	?ecuধ=e a2d �o2f
2depe2de2; 
�irec;or o( ;,e �o1pa2@W �r �u is ;,e dau+,;er o( �r �oo �,oo2 �o2+T 	?ecuধ=e �,air1a2 o( ;,e �o1pa2@W 

�rdi2ar@ Resoluধo2 � a#o=eT i( passedT >ill au;,orise ;,e �irec;ors o( ;,e �o1pa2@ (ro1 ;,e da;e o( ;,e a#o=e Meeধ2+ u2ধl ;,e da;e o( ;,e 2e?; �GM ;o allo; a2d 
issue s,ares a2d co2=erধ#le securiধes i2 ;,e �o1pa2@ up ;o a2 a1ou2; 2o; e?ceedi2+ i2 ;o;al ��¦ o( ;,e ;o;al 2u1#er o( issued s,ares le?cludi2+ ;reasur@ s,ares a2d 
su#sidiar@ ,oldi2+sm i2 ;,e capi;al o( ;,e �o1pa2@T (or ;,e ধ1e #ei2+ (or suc, purposes as ;,e@ co2sider >ould #e i2 ;,e i2;eres; o( ;,e �o1pa2@T pro=ided ;,a; ;,e 
a++re+a;e 2u1#er o( s,ares ;o #e issued o;,er ;,a2 o2 a profra;a #asis ;o e?isধ2+ s,are,olders pursua2; ;o ;,is Resoluধo2 s,all 2o; e?ceed ��¦ o( ;,e ;o;al 2u1#er o( 
issued s,ares le?cludi2+ ;reasur@ s,ares a2d su#sidiar@ ,oldi2+sm i2 ;,e capi;al o( ;,e �o1pa2@T (or ;,e ধ1e #ei2+W

�rdi2ar@ Resoluধo2 �� a#o=eT i( passedT >ill au;,orise ;,e �irec;ors ;o issue s,ares i2 ;,e capi;al o( ;,e �o1pa2@ pursua2; ;o ;,e e?ercise o( ;,e opধo2s u2der ;,e 
Raffles Medical Group �,are �pধo2 �c,e1e pro=ided ;,a; ;,e a++re+a;e 2u1#er o( s,ares ;o #e issued does 2o; e?ceed ��¦ o( ;,e ;o;al 2u1#er o( s,ares le?cludi2+ 
;reasur@ s,ares a2d su#sidiar@ ,oldi2+sm issued #@ ;,e �o1pa2@ a; a2@ ধ1eW

�rdi2ar@ Resoluধo2 �� a#o=eT i( passedT >ill re2e> ;,e �,are �u@ �ac0 Ma2da;e ;o per1i; ;,e �o1pa2@ ;o purc,ase or o;,er>ise ac7uire i;s issued ordi2ar@ s,ares o2 
;,e ;er1s a2d su#/ec; ;o ;,e co2diধo2s o( ;,e Resoluধo2W 
ur;,er de;ails are se; ou; i2 ;,e leħer ;o s,are,olders >,ic, is e2closed >i;, ;,e �o1pa2@Zs �22ual Repor;W

�rdi2ar@ Resoluধo2 �� a#o=eT i( passedT >ill au;,orise ;,e �irec;ors o( ;,e �o1pa2@ ;o issue ordi2ar@ s,ares pursua2; ;o ;,e Raffles Medical Group �;d �crip �i=ide2d 
�c,e1e ;o 1e1#ers >,o ,a=e elec;ed ;o recei=e scrip i2 lieu o( cas, i2 respec; o( a2@ di=ide2d ;o >,ic, ;,e said �crip �i=ide2d �c,e1e is appliedW 

Notes:

�W lam � 1e1#erT >,o is 2o; a rele=a2; i2;er1ediar@T is e2ধ;led ;o appoi2; 2o; 1ore ;,a2 ;>o pro?ies ;o aħe2dT spea0 a2d =o;e o2 ,is #e,al( a; ;,e 1eeধ2+W 
�,ere a 1e1#er appoi2;s 1ore ;,a2 o2e pro?@T ,e s,all speci(@ ;,e proporধo2 o( ,is s,ares ;o #e represe2;ed #@ eac, pro?@ i2 ;,e (or1 o( pro?@W

 l#m � 1e1#erT >,o is a rele=a2; i2;er1ediar@T is e2ধ;led ;o appoi2; 1ore ;,a2 ;>o pro?ies ;o aħe2dT spea0 a2d =o;e a; ;,e �GMT #u; eac, pro?@ 1us; #e 
appoi2;ed ;o e?ercise ;,e ri+,;s aħac,ed ;o a diøere2; s,are or s,ares ,eld #@ suc, 1e1#erW �,ere suc, 1e1#erZs (or1 o( pro?@ appoi2;s 1ore ;,a2 ;>o 
pro?iesT ;,e 2u1#er a2d class o( s,ares i2 relaধo2 ;o >,ic, eac, pro?@ ,as #ee2 appoi2;ed s,all #e speci)ed i2 ;,e (or1 o( pro?@W Rele=a2; i2;er1ediar@ 
,as ;,e 1ea2i2+ ascri#ed ;o i; i2 secধo2 �¥� o( ;,e �i2+apore �o1pa2ies �c;T �,ap;er �� >,ic, 1ea2sV

  lim � #a20i2+ corporaধo2 lice2sed u2der ;,e �a20i2+ �c;T �,ap;er ��T or i;s >,oll@fo>2ed su#sidiar@ >,ic, pro=ides 2o1i2ee ser=ices a2d ,olds 
s,ares i2 ;,a; capaci;@U

  liim � capi;al 1ar0e;s ser=ices lice2ce ,older >,ic, pro=ides cus;odial ser=ices (or securiধes u2der ;,e �ecuriধes a2d 
u;ures �c;T �,ap;er �¥�T a2d 
>,o ,olds s,ares i2 ;,a; capaci;@U or

  liiim �,e �e2;ral �ro=ide2; 
u2d l��
m �oard es;a#lis,ed #@ ;,e ��
 �c;T �,ap;er �¤T i2 respec; o( s,ares purc,ased o2 #e,al( o( ��
 i2=es;orsW

�W � pro?@ 2eed 2o; #e a 1e1#er o( ;,e �o1pa2@W

�W �,e i2s;ru1e2; appoi2ধ2+ a pro?@ or pro?ies 1us; #e deposi;ed a; ;,e �o1pa2@Zs re+is;ered oăce a; �¥�T �or;, �rid+e RoadT Raffles �ospi;alT ���f��T �i2+apore 
�¥¥���T 2o; less ;,a2 �¥ ,ours #e(ore ;,e ধ1e )?ed (or ,oldi2+ ;,e Meeধ2+W

�W � corporaধo2 >,ic, is a 1e1#er 1a@ au;,oriseT #@ resoluধo2 o( i;s direc;ors or o;,er +o=er2i2+ #od@T suc, perso2 as i; ;,i20s ); ;o ac; as i;s represe2;aধ=e a; 
;,e �GMT i2 accorda2ce >i;, secধo2 ��� o( ;,e �i2+apore �o1pa2ies �c;T �,ap;er ��W

�W �erso2al �a;a �ri=ac@V �,ere a 1e1#er o( ;,e �o1pa2@ su#1i;s a2 i2s;ru1e2; appoi2ধ2+ a pro?@liesm a2d c or represe2;aধ=elsm ;o aħe2dT spea0 a2d =o;e a; 
;,e �GM a2d c or a2@ ad/our21e2; ;,ereo(T ;,e 1e1#er o( ;,e �o1pa2@ lim co2se2;s ;o ;,e collecধo2T use a2d disclosure o( ;,e 1e1#erZs perso2al da;a #@ ;,e 
�o1pa2@ lor i;s a+e2;sm (or ;,e purpose o( ;,e processi2+ a2d ad1i2is;raধo2 #@ ;,e �o1pa2@ lor i;s a+e2;sm o( pro?ies a2d represe2;aধ=es appoi2;ed (or ;,e �GM 
li2cludi2+ a2@ ad/our21e2; ;,ereo(m a2d ;,e preparaধo2 a2d co1pilaধo2 o( ;,e aħe2da2ce lis;sT 1i2u;es a2d o;,er docu1e2;s relaধ2+ ;o ;,e �GM li2cludi2+ a2@ 
ad/our21e2; ;,ereo(mT a2d i2 order (or ;,e �o1pa2@ lor i;s a+e2;sm ;o co1pl@ >i;, a2@ applica#le la>sT lisধ2+ rulesT re+ulaধo2s a2d c or +uideli2es lcollecধ=el@T ;,e 
�urposesmU liim >arra2;s ;,a; >,ere ;,e 1e1#er discloses ;,e perso2al da;a o( ;,e 1e1#erZs pro?@liesm a2d c or represe2;aধ=elsm ;o ;,e �o1pa2@ lor i;s a+e2;smT 
;,e 1e1#er ,as o#;ai2ed ;,e prior co2se2; o( suc, pro?@liesm a2d c or represe2;aধ=elsm (or ;,e collecধo2T use a2d disclosure #@ ;,e �o1pa2@ lor i;s a+e2;sm o( 
;,e perso2al da;a o( suc, pro?@liesm a2d c or represe2;aধ=elsm (or ;,e �urposesU a2d liiim a+rees ;,a; ;,e 1e1#er >ill i2de12i(@ ;,e �o1pa2@ i2 respec; o( a2@ 
pe2alধesT lia#iliধesT clai1sT de1a2dsT losses a2d da1a+es as a resul; o( ;,e 1e1#erZs #reac, o( >arra2;@W

Notice of Annual General Meeting

�
oধce o( �

22ual G
e2eral M

eeধ2+



This page has been intentionally left blank.



Company Registration No. 198901967K 
(Incorporated in Singapore)

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
PROXY FORM

I/We (Name) (NRIC/Passport/Co Reg No.) 

of (Address)

being a member / members of Raffles Medical Group Ltd (the Company) hereby appoint:

Name Address NRIC/ Passport
Number

Proportion of
Shareholdings (%)

And / or (delete as appropriate)

as my / our proxy / proxies to attend, speak and vote for me / us on my / our behalf, at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company to be 
held at Stephen Riady Auditorium @ NTUC, Level 7, NTUC Centre, 1 Marina Boulevard, Singapore 018989 on Friday, 27 April 2018 at 4.30 p.m. 
and at any adjournment thereof. I / We direct my / our proxy / proxies to vote for or against the resolutions to be proposed at the AGM as indicated 
hereunder. If no specific direction as to voting is given, the proxy / proxies may vote or abstain from voting on his / her / their discretion. If no person 
is named in the above boxes, the Chairman of the AGM shall be my/our* proxy/proxies* to vote, for or against the resolutions to be passed at the 
AGM as indicated below, for me/us* and on my/our behalf* at the AGM and at any adjournment of the AGM.

No RESOLUTIONS No. of Votes For* No. of Votes 
Against*

ORDINARY BUSINESS – ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
1. Adoption of the Directors’ Statement, Audited Financial Statements for the financial year 

ended 31 December 2017 and Auditors’ Report thereon

2. Approval of a one-tier tax exempt Final Dividend of 1.75 Singapore cents per share for the 
year ended 31 December 2017

3. Approval of Directors’ Fees of S$343,100 for the year ended 31 December 2017

4. Re-election of Mr Tan Soo Nan, who is retiring by rotation in accordance with Article 93 
of the Company’s Constitution

5. Re-election of Mr Olivier Lim Tse Ghow, who is retiring by rotation in accordance with 
Article 93 of the Company’s Constitution

6. Re-election of Professor Lim Pin, who is retiring by rotation in accordance with Article 93 
of the Company’s Constitution

7. Re-election of Dr Sarah Lu Qinghui, who is retiring in accordance with Article 92 of the 
Company’s Constitution

8. Re-appointment of KPMG LLP as Auditors and fixing their remuneration

SPECIAL BUSINESS – ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
9. Authority to Allot and Issue Shares

10. Authority to Allot and Issue Shares Under the Raffles Medical Group Share Option Scheme

11. The Proposed Renewal of Share Buy Back Mandate

12. Authority to Issue Ordinary Shares Pursuant to the Raffles Medical Group Ltd Scrip 
Dividend Scheme

* Voting will be conducted by poll. If you wish to exercise all your votes “For” or “Against” the relevant resolution, please tick (√) within the relevant box provided. 
Alternatively, if you wish to exercise your votes both “For” and “Against” the relevant resolution, please indicate the number of shares in the boxes provided.

Dated this  day of   2018

Signature of Member(s) or Common Seal

IMPORTANT: PLEASE READ NOTES OVERLEAF

IMPORTANT
(a) Relevant intermediaries as defined in section 181 of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50, may 

appoint more than two proxies to attend, speak and vote at the AGM. 
(b) CPF / SRS investors who have used their CPF monies to buy Raffles Medical Group Ltd shares should 

contact their respective Agent Banks if they have any queries regarding their appointment as proxies.
(c) Please read the notes to the Proxy Form.

PERSONAL DATA PRIVACY
By submitting an instrument appointing proxy(ies) and / or representative(s), the member, the proxy(ies) and 
the representative(s) accept and agree to the personal data privacy terms set out in the Notice of the Annual 
General Meeting dated 4 April 2018.

NO VOUCHERS
After due consideration, the Company has decided to discontinue the practice of issuing vouchers to our 
shareholders and their proxies at the Annual General Meeting. 

Total Number of Shares Held
(Please see Note 1)



Fold this flap for sealing

Notes to Proxy Form:
1. Please insert the total number of shares held by you. If you have shares entered against your name in the Depository Register, you should insert that number of 

shares. If you have shares entered against your name in the Depository Register and shares registered in your name in the Register of Members, you should insert 
the aggregate number of shares entered against your name in the Depository Register and registered in your name in the Register of Members.

2. (a)  A member, who is not a relevant intermediary, is entitled to appoint not more than two proxies to attend, speak and vote on his behalf at the meeting. 
Where a member appoints two proxies, the appointments shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportion of his shareholding (expressed as a percentage 
of the whole) to be represented by each proxy.

 (b)  A member, who is a relevant intermediary, is entitled to appoint more than two proxies to attend, speak and vote at the AGM, but each proxy must be 
appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares held by such member. Where such member’s form of proxy appoints more than 
two proxies, the number and class of shares in relation to which each proxy has been appointed shall be specified in the proxy form. Relevant intermediary 
has the meaning ascribed to it in section 181 of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50.

3. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

4. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies (together with the power of attorney, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy thereof) must be 
deposited at the Company’s registered office at 585, North Bridge Road, Raffles Hospital, #11-00, Singapore 188770, not less than 48 hours before the time fixed 
for the AGM.

5. A corporation which is a member may authorise, by resolution of its directors or other governing body, such person as it thinks fit to act as its representative at 
the AGM, in accordance with section 179 of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50.

6. Completion and return of this instrument appointing a proxy or proxies shall not preclude a member from attending and voting at the AGM. Any appointment of a 
proxy or proxies shall be deemed to be revoked if a member attends the meeting in person, and in such event, the Company reserves the right to refuse to admit 
any person or persons appointed under the instrument of proxy, to the meeting.

7. The Company shall be entitled to reject the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies if it is incomplete, improperly completed or illegible or where the true 
intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor specified in the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies. In addition, in 
the case of members whose shares are entered in the Depository Register, the Company may reject any instrument appointing a proxy or proxies lodged if such 
members are not shown to have shares entered against their names in the Depository Register as at 72 hours before the time appointed for holding the AGM, as 
certified by The Central Depository (Pte) Limited (CDP) to the Company.

Fold Here

The Company Secretary 
Raffles Medical Group Ltd 

585 North Bridge Road #11-00 
Raffles Hospital

Singapore 188770
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